
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETINGS 
OF THE 

SANTA FE SPRINGS 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

WATER UTILITY AUTHORITY 
HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

AND CITY COUNCIL 

June 22, 2017 

6:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
11710 Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 

William K. Rounds, Mayor 
Jay Sarno, Mayor Pro Tem 

Richard J. Moore, Councilmember 
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember 

Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember 

Public Comment: The public is encouraged to 
address City Council on any matter listed on the 
agenda or on any other matter within its 
jurisdiction. If you wish to address the City Council, 
please complete the card that is provided at the 
rear entrance to the Council Chambers and hand 
the card to the City Clerk or a member of staff. City 
Council will hear public comment on items listed 
on the agenda during discussion of the matter and 
prior to a vote. City Council will hear public 
comment on matters not listed on the agenda 
during the Oral Communications period. 
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action 
may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the 
agenda, or unless certain emergency or special 
circumstances exist. The City Council may direct 
staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters 
for consideration at a future City Council meeting. 

Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance 
with the ADA, if you need special assistance to 
participate in a City meeting or other services 
offered by this City, please contact the City Clerk's 
Office. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting or time when services are needed will 
assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility 
to the meeting or service. 

Please Note: Staff reports, and supplemental 
attachments, are available for inspection at the 
office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 11710 E. 
Telegraph Road during regular business hours 7:30 
a.m. - 5:30 p.m., Monday - Thursday and every
other Friday. Telephone (562) 868-0511. 



















































































 

City of Santa Fe Springs 
2015 Urban Water Management Plan 

May 2017 

 
861 Village Oaks Drive, Suite 100 ▪ Covina, California 91724 

Phone: (626) 967‐6202 ▪ FAX: (626) 331‐7065 ▪ www.stetsonengineers.com  

Northern California ▪ Southern California ▪ Arizona ▪ Colorado 

FINAL DRAFT 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

 

  i 

CHAPTER 1 ............................................................................................................................ 1‐1 

PLAN PREPARATION ............................................................................................................. 1‐1 

1.1  BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE ......................................................................................... 1‐1 
1.2  URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING AND THE CALIFORNIA WATER CODE .......... 1‐2 

1.2.1  URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT OF 1983 .................................. 1‐2 
1.2.2  APPLICABLE CHANGES TO THE WATER CODE SINCE 2010 ................................. 1‐2 
1.2.3  WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 (SB X7‐7) ................................................ 1‐3 

1.3  URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING IN RELATION TO OTHER PLANNING 
EFFORTS ........................................................................................................................... 1‐4 

1.4  UWMP ORGANIZATION ................................................................................................... 1‐4 
1.5  UWMP AND GRANT OR LOAN ELIGIBILITY ....................................................................... 1‐5 
1.6  TIPS FOR UWMP PREPARERS ........................................................................................... 1‐6 

CHAPTER 2 ............................................................................................................................ 2‐1 

PLAN PREPARATION ............................................................................................................. 2‐1 

2.1  BASIS FOR PREPARING A PLAN ........................................................................................ 2‐1 
2.1.1  PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS .................................................................................... 2‐3 
2.1.2  AGENCIES SERVING MULTIPLE SERVICE AREAS / PUBLIC WATER 

SYSTEMS .............................................................................................................. 2‐4 
2.2  REGIONAL PLANNING ...................................................................................................... 2‐4 
2.3  INDIVIDUAL OR REGIONAL PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE ............................................. 2‐4 

2.3.1  REGIONAL UWMP ............................................................................................... 2‐4 
2.3.2  REGIONAL ALLIANCE ........................................................................................... 2‐5 

2.4  FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR AND UNITS OF MEASURE .................................................... 2‐6 
2.4.1  FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR ................................................................................ 2‐6 
2.4.2  REPORTING COMPLETE 2015 DATA .................................................................... 2‐6 
2.4.3  UNITS OF MEASURE ............................................................................................ 2‐7 

2.5  COORDINATION AND OUTREACH .................................................................................... 2‐7 
2.5.1  WHOLESALE AND RETAIL COORDINATION ......................................................... 2‐7 
2.5.2  COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES AND THE COMMUNITY ..................... 2‐8 
2.5.3  NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES ...................................................................... 2‐8 

CHAPTER 3 ............................................................................................................................ 3‐1 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION .......................................................................................................... 3‐1 

3.1  GENERAL DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................... 3‐1 
3.2  SERVICE AREA BOUNDARY MAP ...................................................................................... 3‐1 

3.2.1  MAP FORMAT RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................. 3‐2 
3.3  SERVICE AREA CLIMATE ................................................................................................... 3‐2 

3.3.1  CLIMATE CHANGE (OPTIONAL) ........................................................................... 3‐4 
3.4  SERVICE AREA POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS ........................................................ 3‐4 

3.4.1  OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS ....................................................................... 3‐5 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  ii 

 

CHAPTER 4 ............................................................................................................................ 4‐1 

SYSTEM WATER USE ............................................................................................................. 4‐1 

4.1  RECYCLED VERSUS POTABLE AND RAW WATER DEMAND .............................................. 4‐1 
4.2  WATER USES BY SECTOR .................................................................................................. 4‐1 

4.2.1  DEMAND SECTORS LISTED IN WATER CODE ....................................................... 4‐2 
4.2.2  DEMAND SECTORS IN ADDITION TO THOSE LISTED IN THE WATER CODE ........ 4‐3 

4.3  DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM WATER LOSSES ........................................................................... 4‐3 
4.4  ESTIMATED FUTURE WATER SAVINGS ............................................................................. 4‐4 
4.5  WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSEHOLDS ............................................................ 4‐5 
4.6  CLIMATE CHANGE (OPTIONAL) ........................................................................................ 4‐6 

CHAPTER 5 ............................................................................................................................ 5‐1 

SB X7‐7 BASELINE AND TARGETS .......................................................................................... 5‐1 

5.1  GUIDANCE FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES .......................................................................... 5‐1 
5.2  UPDATING CALCULATIONS FROM 2010 UWMP .............................................................. 5‐2 

5.2.1  TARGET METHOD ................................................................................................ 5‐2 
5.2.2  REQUIRED USE OF 2010 U.S. CENSUS DATA ....................................................... 5‐3 
5.2.3  SB X7‐7 VERIFICATION FORM ............................................................................. 5‐3 

5.3  BASELINE PERIODS ........................................................................................................... 5‐3 
5.3.1  DETERMINATION OF THE 10‐15 YEAR BASELINE PERIOD (BASELINE 

GPCD) .................................................................................................................. 5‐4 
5.3.2  DETERMINATION OF THE 5‐YEAR BASELINE PERIOD (TARGET 

CONFIRMATION) ................................................................................................. 5‐5 
5.4  SERVICE AREA POPULTION .............................................................................................. 5‐6 

5.4.1  POPULATION METHODOLOGY ............................................................................ 5‐6 
5.5  GROSS WATER USE .......................................................................................................... 5‐7 

5.5.1  GROSS WATER TABLES ........................................................................................ 5‐8 
5.6  BASELINE DAILY PER CAPITAL WATER USE ...................................................................... 5‐8 
5.7  2015 AND 2020 TARGETS ................................................................................................ 5‐9 

5.7.1  SELECT AND APPLY A TARGET METHOD ............................................................. 5‐9 
5.7.2  5‐YEAR BASELINE – 2020 TARGET CONFIRMATION .......................................... 5‐11 
5.7.3  CALCULATE THE 2015 INTERIM URBAN WATER USE TARGET .......................... 5‐11 
5.7.4  BASELINE AND TARGETS SUMMARY ................................................................. 5‐12 

5.8  2015 COMPLIANCE DAILY PER CAPITA WATER USE (GPCD) .......................................... 5‐12 
5.8.1  MEETING THE 2015 TARGET ............................................................................. 5‐12 
5.8.2  2015 ADJUSTMENTS TO 2015 GROSS WATER USE ........................................... 5‐13 

5.9  REGIONAL ALLIANCE ...................................................................................................... 5‐13 

CHAPTER 6 ............................................................................................................................ 6‐1 

SYSTEM SUPPLIES ................................................................................................................. 6‐1 

6.1  PURCHASED OR IMPORTED WATER ................................................................................ 6‐2 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  iii 

 

6.1.1  CBWQPP .............................................................................................................. 6‐2 
6.1.2  TREATED IMPORTED WATER .............................................................................. 6‐2 

6.2  GROUNDWATER ............................................................................................................... 6‐3 
6.2.1  BASIN DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................ 6‐3 
6.2.2  GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ........................................................................ 6‐7 
6.2.3  OVERDRAFT CONDITIONS ................................................................................. 6‐10 
6.2.4  HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER PUMPING .......................................................... 6‐11 

6.3  SURFACE WATER ............................................................................................................ 6‐12 
6.4  STORMWATER ............................................................................................................... 6‐12 
6.5  WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER .......................................................................... 6‐12 

6.5.1  RECYCLED WATER COORDINATION .................................................................. 6‐13 
6.5.2  WASTEWATER COLLECTION, TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL .............................. 6‐14 
6.5.3  RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM ............................................................................... 6‐15 
6.5.4  RECYCLED WATER BENEFICIAL USES ................................................................. 6‐16 
6.5.5  ACTIONS TO ENCOURAGE AND OPTIMIZE FUTURE RECYCLED WATER 

USE .................................................................................................................... 6‐17 
6.6  DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES ......................................................................... 6‐18 
6.7  EXCHANGES OR TRANSFERS .......................................................................................... 6‐18 

6.7.1  EXCHANGES....................................................................................................... 6‐19 
6.7.2  TRANSFERS ........................................................................................................ 6‐19 
6.7.3  EMERGENCY INTERTIES .................................................................................... 6‐19 

6.8  FUTURE WATER PROJECTS ............................................................................................. 6‐20 
6.9  SUMMARY OF EXISTING AND PLANNED SOURCES OF WATER ...................................... 6‐20 
6.10  CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACTS TO SUPPLY ........................................................................ 6‐21 

CHAPTER 7 ............................................................................................................................ 7‐1 

WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT ............................................................................ 7‐1 

7.1  CONSTRAINTS ON WATER SOURCES ............................................................................... 7‐1 
7.1.1  TREATED GROUNDWATER FROM CBWQPP ....................................................... 7‐2 
7.1.2  IMPORTED WATER FROM MWD ......................................................................... 7‐2 
7.1.3  TREATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED FROM CITY WELL NO. 12 ...................... 7‐2 

7.2  RELIABILITY BY TYPE OF YEAR .......................................................................................... 7‐3 
7.2.1  TYPES OF YEARS .................................................................................................. 7‐4 
7.2.2  AGENCIES WITH MULTIPLE WATER SOURCES .................................................... 7‐4 

7.3  SUPPLY AND DEMAND ASSESSMENT ............................................................................... 7‐4 
7.4  REGIONAL SUPPLY RELIABILITY ........................................................................................ 7‐5 

CHAPTER 8 ............................................................................................................................ 8‐1 

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN .............................................................................. 8‐1 

8.1  STAGES OF ACTION .......................................................................................................... 8‐1 
8.2  PROHIBITIONS ON END USES ........................................................................................... 8‐2 

8.2.1  LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION ..................................................................................... 8‐3 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  iv 

 

8.2.2  COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND INSTITUTIONAL (CII) ..................................... 8‐4 
8.2.3  SWIMMING POOLS ............................................................................................. 8‐4 
8.2.4  DEFINING WATER FEATURES .............................................................................. 8‐4 
8.2.5  OTHER ................................................................................................................. 8‐5 

8.3  PENALTIES, CHARGES, OTHER ENFORCEMENT OF PROHIBITIONS .................................. 8‐5 
8.4  CONSUMPTION REDUCTION METHODS .......................................................................... 8‐6 

8.4.1  CATEGORIES OF CONSUMPTION REDUCTION METHODS .................................. 8‐7 
8.5  DETERMINING WATER SHORTAGE REDUCTIONS ............................................................ 8‐8 
8.6  REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORTS........................................................................... 8‐9 

8.6.1  DROUGHT RATE STRUCTURE AND SURCHARGES ............................................... 8‐9 
8.6.2  USES OF FINANCIAL RESERVES ........................................................................... 8‐9 

8.7  RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE ........................................................................................ 8‐10 
8.8  CATASTROPHIC SUPPLY INTERRUPTION ........................................................................ 8‐10 
8.9  MINIMUM SUPPLY NEXT THREE YEARS ......................................................................... 8‐15 

CHAPTER 9 ............................................................................................................................ 9‐1 

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES ................................................................................... 9‐1 

9.1  DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES ................................ 9‐1 
9.2  DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR RETAIL AGENCIES ......................................... 9‐2 

9.2.1  WATER WASTE PREVENTION ORDINANCES ....................................................... 9‐2 
9.2.2  METERING ........................................................................................................... 9‐3 
9.2.3  CONSERVATION PRICING .................................................................................... 9‐3 
9.2.4  PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ................................................................. 9‐4 
9.2.5  PROGRAMS TO ASSESS AND MANAGE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM REAL LOSS ....... 9‐5 
9.2.6  WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM COORDINATION AND STAFFING 

SUPPORT ............................................................................................................. 9‐6 
9.2.7  OTHER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES .................................................... 9‐6 

9.3  IMPLEMENTATION OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS .............................................................. 9‐7 
9.4  PLANNED IMPLEMENTATION TO ACHIEVE WATER USE TARGETS .................................. 9‐9 
9.5  MEMBERS OF THE CALIFORNIA URBAN WATER CONSERVATION COUNCIL ................. 9‐10 

CHAPTER 10 ........................................................................................................................ 10‐1 

PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION ..................................................... 10‐1 

10.1  INCLUSION OF ALL 2015 DATA ....................................................................................... 10‐1 
10.2  NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ......................................................................................... 10‐1 

10.2.1  NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES .................................................................... 10‐1 
10.2.2  NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC ..................................................................................... 10‐2 

10.3  PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION ................................................................................. 10‐3 
10.3.1  ADOPTION ......................................................................................................... 10‐4 

10.4  PLAN SUBMITTAL ........................................................................................................... 10‐4 
10.4.1  SUBMITTING A UWMP TO DWR ....................................................................... 10‐5 
10.4.2  ELECTRONIC DATA SUBMITTAL......................................................................... 10‐5 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  v 

 

10.4.3  SUBMITTING A UWMP TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY ........................... 10‐5 
10.4.4  SUBMITTING A UWMP TO CITIES AND COUNTIES ............................................ 10‐6 

10.5  PUBLIC AVAILABILITY ..................................................................................................... 10‐6 
10.6  AMENDING AN ADOPTED UWMP .................................................................................. 10‐7 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  vi 
   

 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
 
Table 2‐1  Public Water Systems 
Table 2‐2  Plan Identification 
Table 2‐3  Agency Identification 
Table 2‐4  Water Supplier Information Exchange 
Table 3‐1  Population – Current and Projected 
Table 4‐1  Demands for Potable Water ‐ Actual 
Table 4‐2  Demands for Potable Water ‐ Projected  
Table 4‐3  Total Water Demands 
Table 4‐4  12‐Month Water Loss Audit Reporting 
Table 4‐5  Inclusion in Water Use Projections 
Table 5‐1  Baselines and Targets Summary 
Table 5‐2  2015 Compliance 
Table 6‐1  Groundwater Volume Pumped 
Table 6‐2  Wastewater Collected Within Service Area in 2015 
Table 6‐3  Wastewater Treatment and Discharge Within Service Area in 2015 
Table 6‐4  Current and Projected Recycled Water Direct Beneficial Uses Within Service Area 
Table 6‐5  2010 UWMP Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2015 Actual 
Table 6‐6  Methods to Expand Future Recycled Water Use 
Table 6‐7  Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs 
Table 6‐8  Water Supplies – Actual 
Table 6‐9  Water Supplies – Projected 
Table 7‐1  Basis of Water Year Data 
Table 7‐2  Normal Water Supply and Demand Comparison 
Table 7‐3  Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison 
Table 7‐4  Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison 
Table 8‐1  Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Table 8‐2  Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses 
Table 8‐3  States of Water Shortage Contingency Plan – Consumption Reduction Methods 
Table 8‐4  Minimum Supply Next Three Years 
Table 10‐1  Notification to Cities and Counties   

 
 
 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  vii 
   

 
LIST OF FIGURES 

 
Figure 1  Water Service Area Boundary 

Figure 2  Water Service Area and Municipal Boundaries 

Figure 3  Service Area and Basin Boundary 

Figure 4  Historical Central Basin Groundwater Levels 

 
 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
 

Appendix A   Urban Water Management Planning Act 

Appendix B  DWR Standardized Tables  

Appendix C  Completed Plan Checklist 

Appendix D  Summary of Baseline and Compliance Urban per Capita Water Use 

Appendix E  Historical Annual Rainfall 

Appendix F    AWWA Audit Worksheet 

Appendix G   Water Conservation Act of 2009 

Appendix H   SB X7‐7 Verification Form 

Appendix I    Central Basin Judgment 

Appendix J    2015 Consumer Confidence Report 

Appendix K  City of Santa Fe Springs Resolution 5592 

Appendix L  City of Santa Fe Springs Ordinance 1065 

Appendix M  Water Rates and Charges 

Appendix N  60‐Day Notification Letters 

Appendix O   Notices of Public Hearing 

Appendix P  Resolution Adopting Plan 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐1

CHAPTER 1  

PLAN PREPARATION 

 
 
1.1 BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

The City of Santa Fe Springs (City) is a water supplier and is required to prepare 

an Urban Water Management Plan (Plan) in accordance with the California Urban 

Water Management Planning Act (UWMP Act) which was established in 1983.  The Act 

requires every “urban water supplier” to prepare and adopt a Plan, periodically review 

its Plan at least once every five years and make any amendments or changes which are 

indicated by the review.  Pursuant to California Water Code Section 10617, an “Urban 

Water Supplier” is defined as a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing 

water for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers 

or supplying more than 3,000 AF of water annually.”  The primary objective of the 

UWMP Act is to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate their existing water 

conservation efforts and, to the extent practicable, review and implement alternative and 

supplemental water conservation measures.  The UWMP Act is directed primarily at 

retail water purveyors where programs can be immediately affected upon the consumer.  

The UWMP Act, originally known as Assembly Bill (AB) 797, is included in Appendix A.   

 

Section 10621(a) of the California Water Code states, “Each water supplier shall 

update its plan at least once every five years on or before December 31, in years 

ending in five and zero.”  However, due to recent changes in Urban Water Management 

Plan requirements, California State law has extended the deadline for the 2015 Plans to 

July 1, 2016.  The City’s 2015 Plan is an update to the City’s 2010 Plan. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐2

1.2 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING AND THE CALIFORNIA WATER 

CODE 

1.2.1 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT OF 1983 

The City is a water supplier and is required to prepare a Plan in accordance with 

the UWMP Act established in 1983.  The UWMP Act is included in the California Water 

Code (CWC) under Sections 10610 through 10656. A copy of the UWMP Act is 

provided in Appendix A.  The UWMP Act requires water agencies to develop UWMPs 

which provide a framework for long-term water planning as well as information 

regarding long-term resource planning to ensure sufficient water supplies are available 

to meet existing and future demands. Urban water suppliers are required to report, 

describe, and evaluate water deliveries and uses, water supply sources, efficient water 

uses, demand management measures, and water shortage contingency planning. 

 

 

1.2.2 APPLICABLE CHANGES TO THE WATER CODE SINCE 2010 

In compliance with the UWMP Act, the City last updated its Urban Water 

Management Plan in 2011.  There have been new amendments added and some 

reorganization of the CWC sections since the City’s last update.  The following 

tabulation is a summary of the new requirements which were incorporated in the City’s 

2015 Plan, as applicable:   

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐3

 
Source: Department of Water Resources’ “Guidebook for Urban Water Suppliers” dated March 2016 

 

 

1.2.3 WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 (SB X7-7) 

The Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SB X7-7) required retail urban water 

suppliers to report the following conservation goals in their 2010 UWMPs: 

 Base Daily per Capita Water Use; 

 2015 Interim Urban Water Use Target; 

 2020 Urban Water Use Target; and 

 Compliance Daily per Capita Water Use 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐4

 

 A discussion addressing the requirements of the Water Conservation Act is found 

in Chapter 5 of the City’s 2015 Plan.  

 

R 

1.3 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING IN RELATION TO OTHER 

PLANNING EFFORTS 

	

The City is a member agency of Central Basin Municipal Water District 

(CBMWD), a wholesale water agency. CBMWD prepared a 2015 Plan which is 

incorporated in the City’s 2015 Plan by reference.  In addition, the City provided its 2015 

Plan to CBMWD which includes water use projections in five-year increments for 

normal, single dry, and multiple dry year conditions over the next 20 years. 

 

R 

1.4 UWMP ORGANIZATION 

The City’s 2015 Plan was prepared consistent with the recommended organization 

provided in the Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) Final “Guidebook for Urban 

Water Suppliers”, dated March 2016.  The City’s 2015 Plan consists of the following 

Chapters: 

 

Chapter 1 - Introduction and Overview 

Chapter 2 - Plan Preparation 

Chapter 3 - System Description 

Chapter 4 - System Water Use 

Chapter 5 - Baselines and Targets 

Chapter 6 - System Supplies 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐5

Chapter 7 - Water Supply Reliability 

Chapter 8 - Water Shortage Contingency Planning 

Chapter 9 - Demand Management Measures 

Chapter 10 - Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation 

 

Pursuant to California Water Code requirements, the City’s 2015 Plan 

incorporates DWR’s standardized tables for the reporting and submittal of UWMP data.  

The standardized tables are provided in Appendix B.  The City also submitted the 

UWMP data (standardized tables) electronically through DWR’s Online Submittal Tool.  

 

The City’s 2015 Plan also provides supporting documents (appendices) including 

notification letters of the UWMP update, public notice of the UWMP hearing, adoption 

resolution from the City’s governing body, and the City’s Water Shortage Contingency 

Plan.  Further discussions regarding these supporting documents are provided within 

the individual Chapters of the City’s 2015 Plan. 

 

 

1.5 UWMP AND GRANT OR LOAN ELIGIBILITY 

Pursuant to DWR’s Draft “Guidebook for Urban Water Suppliers”, “In order for an 

urban water supplier to be eligible for any water management grant or loan 

administered by DWR, the agency must have a current UWMP on file that has been 

determined by DWR to address the requirements of the CWC. A current UWMP must 

also be maintained by the water supplier throughout the term of any grant or loan 

administered by DWR… An UWMP may also be required in order to be eligible for other 

State funding, depending on the conditions that are specified in the funding guidelines.”  

The City’s 2015 Plan has been prepared in order to meet eligibility requirements for 

grants and loans administered by the State and / or DWR. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	1‐6

1.6 TIPS FOR UWMP PREPARERS 

The City’s 2015 Plan is considered an update to the City’s 2010 Plan.  However, 

the 2015 Plan is considered a stand-alone document.  As discussed in Section 1.4, the 

City’s 2015 Plan was prepared consistent with the recommended organization provided 

in DWR’s Final “Guidebook for Urban Water Suppliers,” dated March 2016.  A checklist 

of specific UWMP requirements is included in Appendix C.  The checklist includes the 

page number where the required elements are addressed to assist in DWR’s review of 

the submitted Plan. 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐1

CHAPTER 2  

PLAN PREPARATION 

 
2.1 BASIS FOR PREPARING A PLAN 

 
 

CWC 10617. 
 

"Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing 
water for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or 
supplying more than 3,000 AF of water annually. An urban water supplier includes a 
supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which distributes or sells 
for ultimate resale to customers. 

 
CWC 10620. 
 

(b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. 

 
CWC 10621. 
 

(a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five years on or 
before December 31, in years ending in five and zero, except as provided in subdivision 
(d). 
 
(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 

 
 

 
This Plan was prepared in accordance with the UWMP Act which was 

established in 1983.  The UWMP Act requires every “urban water supplier” to prepare 

and adopt a Plan, to periodically review its Plan at least once every five years and make 

any amendments or changes which are indicated by the review.  An “Urban Water 

Supplier” is defined as a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water for 

municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or 

supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet (AF) of water annually.  The primary objective of 

the UWMP Act is to direct urban water suppliers to prepare a Plan that describes and 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐2

evaluates sources of supply, reasonable and practical efficient uses, reclamation, and 

demand management activities.  The UWMP Act is directed primarily at retail water 

purveyors where programs can be immediately applied to the consumers.  

Sections 10610 through 10656 of the California Water Code, Urban Water Management 

Planning Act, were enacted in 1983.  The UWMP Act, originally known as Assembly Bill 

(AB) 797, is included in Appendix A.   

 

Section 10621(a) of the California Water Code states, “Each water supplier shall 

update its plan at least once every five years on or before December 31, in years 

ending in five and zero.”  However, because of recent changes in Urban Water 

Management Plan requirements, California State law has extended the deadline for the 

2015 Plans to July 1, 2016. 

 

 The City is an “urban water supplier” pursuant to Section 10617 of the California 

Water Code and directly serves potable water to more than 3,000 customers and 

supplies more than 3,000 AF per year (AFY) at retail for municipal purposes.  The City 

does not provide water at wholesale for municipal purposes. This 2015 Plan is an 

update to the City’s 2010 Plan. 

 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐3

2.1.1 PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS 

 
 

CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department … shall include 
any standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by the department. 
 

CWC 10608.52. 
 
(a) The department, in consultation with the board, the California Bay-Delta Authority or 
its successor agency, the State Department of Public Health, and the Public Utilities 
Commission, shall develop a single standardized water use reporting form to meet the 
water use information needs of each agency, including the needs of urban water 
suppliers that elect to determine and report progress toward achieving targets on a 
regional basis as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 10608.28. (b) At a minimum, the 
form shall be developed to accommodate information sufficient to assess an urban water 
supplier’s compliance with conservation targets pursuant to Section 10608.24… The form 
shall accommodate reporting by urban water suppliers on an individual or regional basis 
as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 10608.28. 
 

California Health and Safety Code 116275. 
 

(h) "Public water system" means a system for the provision of water for human 
consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances that has 15 or more 
service connections or regularly serves at least 25 individuals daily at least 60 days out of 
the year. 
 

 
 

 

Pursuant to California Water Code requirements, the City’s 2015 Plan 

incorporates DWR’s standardized tables for the reporting and submittal of UWMP data.  

The standardized tables are provided within the body of the 2015 Plan text as well as in 

Appendix B.  The City also submitted the UWMP data (standardized tables) 

electronically through DWR’s Online Submittal Tool.  In addition, the City is a Public 

Water System and is regulated by the State Water Resources Control Board - Division 

of Drinking Water (SWRCB-DDW). The SWRCB-DDW requires water agencies provide 

the number of connections, water usage, and other information annually. The 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐4

information provided to SWRCB-DDW indicates the City serves potable water to more 

than 3,000 customers and supplies more than 3,000 AFY. 

 

2.1.2 AGENCIES SERVING MULTIPLE SERVICE AREAS / PUBLIC WATER 

SYSTEMS 

The City serves only a single Public Water System.  Table 2-1 provides the name 

and number of the City’s Public Water System. 

 
2.2 REGIONAL PLANNING 

The City has developed its 2015 Plan reporting solely on its service area to 

address all requirements of the California Water Code.  The City’s 2015 Plan was not 

developed as a Regional Plan. 

 

2.3 INDIVIDUAL OR REGIONAL PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

As shown in Table 2-2, the City’s 2015 Plan is an “Individual UWMP”. The City has 

developed its 2015 Plan reporting solely on its service area to address all requirements 

of the California Water Code. The City notified and coordinated with appropriate 

regional agencies and constituents (See Section 2.5). 

 

2.3.1 REGIONAL UWMP 

 

CWC 10620. 
(d)(1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by participation in 
areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide urban water management planning where 
those plans will reduce preparation costs and contribute to the achievement of 
conservation and efficient water use. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐5

As indicated in Table 2-2, the City’s 2015 Plan was developed as an “Individual 

UWMP” and not part of a Regional Plan. 

 

2.3.2 REGIONAL ALLIANCE 

 
 
CWC 10608.20. 
 

(a)(1) …Urban retail water suppliers may elect to determine and report progress toward achieving 
these targets on an individual or regional basis, as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 
10608.28… 
 

CWC 10608.28. 
 

(a) An urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water use target within its retail service 
area, or through mutual agreement, by any of the following: 

(1) Through an urban wholesale water supplier. 
(2) Through a regional agency authorized to plan and implement water conservation, including, 
but not limited to, an agency established under the Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation 
Agency Act (Division 31 (commencing with Section 81300)). 
 (3) Through a regional water management group as defined in Section 10537. 
(4) By an integrated regional water management funding area. 
(5) By hydrologic region. 
(6) Through other appropriate geographic scales for which computation methods have been    
developed by the department. 
 

(b) A regional water management group, with the written consent of its member agencies, may 
undertake any or all planning, reporting, and implementation functions under this chapter for the 
member agencies that consent to those activities. Any data or reports shall provide information 
both for the regional water management group and separately for each consenting urban retail 
water supplier and urban wholesale water supplier. 

 
 

 
 

As indicated in Table 2-2, the City’s 2015 Plan was developed as an “Individual 

UWMP.” However, the City is also a participating agency in the Gateway Water 

Management Authority’s (GWMA) “Gateway Regional Water Conservation Alliance 

Report” (Gateway Regional Alliance report). GWMA is a coalition comprised of 28 cities 

and water agencies in the Los Angeles Gateway Region and was formed to integrate 

regional watershed activities.  The City is a member agency of the GWMA.  The GWMA 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐6

prepared a “Summary of Baseline and Compliance Urban per Capita Water Use 

Determination” in June 2016 to assist its member agencies in an alternative way of 

calculating Baseline and Urban per Capita Water Use compliance as a region, as 

shown in Appendix D.  The City chose to estimate its Baseline and Urban per Capita 

Water Use as an individual, which is discussed in detail in Chapter 5.   
 
 
2.4 FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR AND UNITS OF MEASURE 

 

CWC 10608.20. 
 

(a)(1) Urban retail water suppliers…may determine the targets on a fiscal year or 
calendar year basis. 

 
 

 

2.4.1 FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR 

The data provided in the City’s 2015 Plan is reported on a calendar year basis, 

unless noted otherwise, as show in Table 2-3. A calendar year begins on January 1 of 

every year. 

 

2.4.2 REPORTING COMPLETE 2015 DATA 

The data provided in the City’s 2015 Plan is provided on a calendar year basis 

through December 31, 2015. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐7

2.4.3 UNITS OF MEASURE 

As shown in Table 2-3, the data provided in the City’s 2015 Plan is reported in 

units of acre-feet (AF), unless noted otherwise. 

 

2.5 COORDINATION AND OUTREACH 

 

CWC 10631. 
 

(j) An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that 
source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The 
wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in the 
urban water supplier's plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the 
existing and planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the 
wholesale agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and 
during various water-year types in accordance with subdivision (c). An urban water 
supplier may rely upon water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in 
fulfilling the plan informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (c). 

 
 

 

2.5.1 WHOLESALE AND RETAIL COORDINATION 

The City is a member agency of the wholesale water agency CBMWD.  As 

indicated in Table 2-4, the City has provided its 2015 Plan to CBMWD which includes 

water use projections in five-year increments for normal, single dry, and multiple dry 

year conditions over the next 20 years. 

 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐8

2.5.2 COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES AND THE COMMUNITY 

 

CWC 10620. 
 

(d)(2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a common 
source, water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent 
practicable. 

 
CWC 10642. 

 
Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and 
during the preparation of the plan.  

 
 

 

The City is a retail water supplier that serves the majority of the residents within 

the City of Santa Fe Springs.  The City is required to coordinate the preparation of the 

Plan with appropriate agencies in the area, including appropriate water suppliers that 

share a common source.  Therefore, the City coordinated the preparation of the Plan 

with the County of Los Angeles, CBMWD, City of Norwalk, City of Downey, and the City 

of Santa Fe Springs.  As discussed in Section 10.2, the City notified these agencies, as 

well as to the cities and county within which the City provides water supplies, at least 

sixty (60) days prior to the public hearing of the preparation of the 2015 Plan and invited 

them to participate in the development of the Plan.  

 

2.5.3 NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

 

CWC 10621. 
 

(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall, at 
least 60 days before the public hearing on the plan required by Section 10642, notify any 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	2‐9

city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the plan. 

 
 
 

 As discussed in Section 10, notification was provided to the cities and county 

within which the City provides water supplies that the City was reviewing and 

considering amendments (updates) to the 2010 Plan, and as a result prepare the 2015 

Plan Update.  

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	3‐1

CHAPTER 3  

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

 
3.1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 

CWC 10631. 
 
(a) Describe the service area of the supplier. 

 
 

 

The City’s water service area is approximately 8.9 square miles in size, and 

covers approximately 90 percent of the land within the City’s municipal boundaries, as 

well as a small area in the City of Downey.  Figure 1 shows the City’s water service 

area.  The City is bounded on the north by the City of Whittier, on the east by the City of 

La Mirada, on the southeast by the City of Cerritos, on the southwest by the City of 

Norwalk, on the west by the City of Downey, and on the northwest by the City of Pico 

Rivera.  

 

Land use within the City’s service area is approximately 85 percent commercial 

and industrial, and approximately 15 percent residential.  Most of the residential land 

use is concentrated along the western perimeter of the City. 

 

3.2 SERVICE AREA BOUNDARY MAP 

As discussed in Section 3.1, the City’s current water service area covers 

approximately 8.9 square miles encompassing the majority of the City.  A service area 

boundary map is provided in Figure 1.  The City’s service area boundary relative to the 

City of Santa Fe Springs’ municipal boundary is provided in Figure 2. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	3‐2

3.2.1 MAP FORMAT RECOMMENDATIONS 

The City’s service area map was submitted online through DWR’s Population 

Tool in a “KML” file format (i.e. Google Earth format). The KML file was originally 

created in a Geographical Information Systems (GIS) shape file format and converted 

into a KML format.  To the extent information was available, metadata was included in 

the KML file (including map projection, contact information, start and end dates for 

which the map is valid, constraints, attribute table definitions, and digitizing base). 

 

3.3 SERVICE AREA CLIMATE 

 
 

CWC 10631. 
 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including… climate… 

 
 

 

The monthly historical average temperatures (including minimum and maximum), 

monthly historical average rainfall, and monthly evapotranspiration (ETo) in the vicinity 

of the City’s service area is summarized in the tabulation below. Historical climate 

information was obtained from the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC) and from 

DWR’s California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS). 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	3‐3

 

Service Area Climate Information 

Month 
Average  

Temperature 
Average Min. 
Temperature 

Average Max. 
Temperature 

Average Total 
Precipitation ETo 

  (F) (F) (F) (Inches) (Inches) 

            

January 55.6 41.9 69.1 2.78 2.20 

February 57.0 43.7 70.2 3.37 2.41 

March 58.9 45.9 71.7 2.20 3.71 

April 62.1 49.1 75.2 0.87 4.36 

May 65.7 53.5 77.7 0.21 5.29 

June 69.9 57.2 82.5 0.06 5.78 

July 74.9 61.1 88.7 0.03 6.55 

August 75.6 61.6 89.7 0.08 6.02 

September 73.9 59.5 88.1 0.27 4.87 

October 68.2 53.8 82.2 0.51 3.40 

November 61.0 46.4 75.3 1.36 2.38 

December 55.9 41.9 69.8 2.01 1.90 
            

Annual 64.7 51.3 78.4 13.74 48.87 
            

Source: 
Historical average monthly precipitation information was obtained from the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works 
and is based on data collected from Station 106Z (Whittier City Yard) from 1959 through 2015.  Historical monthly temperature 
information was obtained from the Western Regional Climate Center (http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/) and is based on data collected 
from Station 047785 (San Gabriel Fire Department) from 1939 through 2015.  Historical monthly average ETo information was 
obtained from the California Irrigation Management Information Systems (http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov) and is based on data 
collected from Station 159 (Monrovia). 

 

The historical average rainfall in the vicinity of the City’s service area is about 

13.74 inches.  Annual rainfall near the City’s service area from 1959 to 2015 is provided 

as Appendix E.   The City’s service area has a dry climate and summers can reach 

average daily temperatures in the high 80s.  Although changes in climatic conditions will 

have an impact, the projected water supply demands will be based on average year, 

single dry year and multiple-dry years, based on historical data and projected demands. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	3‐4

 

3.3.1 CLIMATE CHANGE (OPTIONAL) 

DWR had deemed Section 3.3.1 as optional. The City is not required by DWR to 

complete this section. GWMA is a coalition comprised of 28 cities and water agencies in 

the Los Angeles Gateway Region and was formed to integrate regional watershed 

activities.  The City is a member agency of the GWMA.  The GWMA’s 2013 Integrated 

Regional Water Management Plan1 (IRWMP) addresses baseline climate conditions 

and the potential quantitative effect of climate change on the Gateway Region, including 

effects on local water supplies and demands and imported water supplies.  The 2013 

GWMA IRWMP is incorporated in the City’s 2015 Plan by reference. 

 

A discussion on single-dry year and multiple dry years is provided in Section 7.2 

and a discussion on potential impacts to basin management practices is provided in 

Section 6.2.  A discussion regarding the regional impacts of climate change on demand 

and supply are provided in Metropolitan Water District of Southern California’s (MWD’s) 

2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

 

3.4 SERVICE AREA POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS 

 
 

CWC 10631. 
 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected 
population... The projected population estimates shall be based upon data from 
the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within the 
service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 
20 years or as far as data is available. 

 
 

                                            
1 http://gatewaywater.org/grants/completed-projects/gateway-integrated-regional-water-management-plan/ 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	3‐5

 
The City provides water service to an area with a 2015 population of about 

14,700. Table 3-1 presents the current and projected population of the area 

encompassed by the City from 2015 to 2040.  The City is projected to have a population 

of approximately 18,000 by 2040.  Projected populations in the City’s service area were 

based on projections obtained from the Southern California Association of Governments 

(SCAG). The SCAG data incorporates demographic trends, existing land use, general 

plan land use policies, and input and projections from the Department of Finance (DOF) 

and the US Census Bureau.  The population estimate for FY 2014-15 in Table 3-1 is 

consistent with DWR requirements discussed in Section 5.4.1. 

 

3.4.1 OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS 

 
 

CWC 10631. 
 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including… other demographic 
factors affecting the supplier's water management planning. 

 
 

No other demographic factors affect the City’s water management planning. 

However, increased population will have an impact on water demand. 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐1

CHAPTER 4  

SYSTEM WATER USE 

 
4.1 RECYCLED VERSUS POTABLE AND RAW WATER DEMAND 

Chapter 4 addresses the City’s potable water demands. Recycled water 

demands are addressed separately in Section 6.5; however, a summary is provided in 

Table 4-3.  Raw water is not served by the City and is not applicable. 

 

4.2 WATER USES BY SECTOR 

 
 

CWC 10631(e). 
 

(1) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over the 
same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected water use, 
identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all 
of the following uses: 
   (A) Single-family residential. 
   (B) Multifamily. 
   (C) Commercial. 
   (D) Industrial. 
   (E) Institutional and governmental. 
   (F) Landscape. 
   (G) Sales to other agencies. 
   (H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, or any 

combination thereof. 
   (I) Agricultural. 
(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). 

 
 
 

The City’s past and current, and projected water demands are provided in five-

year increments through 2040 in Tables 4-1, 4-2 and 4-3.  Water demand sectors are 

also identified (see Section 4.2.1).  The City’s total water demand projections are based 

on the SB X7-7 calculations prepared in Section 5.7. The water demands for each 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐2

individual water demand sector were projected based on the percentage breakdown of 

water demands from each individual water demands sector in 2015 (the percentages 

were then applied to the projected total water demands). 

 

4.2.1 DEMAND SECTORS LISTED IN WATER CODE 

As shown in Table 4-1, the City’s service area includes the following water 

demand sectors listed in the California Water Code: 

 

 Single-family residential 

(A single-family dwelling unit is a lot with a free-standing building 

containing one dwelling unit that may include a detached secondary 

dwelling. Single-family residential water demands are included in retail 

demands.) 

 

 Commercial 

(Commercial users are defined as water users that provide or distribute a 

product or service. Commercial water demands are included in retail 

demands.) 

 

 Distribution system losses 

(Distribution system losses are discussed in Section 4.3) 

 

 Other 

(Unbilled water) 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐3

4.2.2 DEMAND SECTORS IN ADDITION TO THOSE LISTED IN THE WATER 

CODE 

The City’s service area does not include other water demand sectors which are 

not listed in the California Water Code (including exchanges, surface water 

augmentation, transfers, and wetlands or wildlife habitat). 

 

4.3 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM WATER LOSSES 

 
 

CWC 10631(e)(1). 
 

Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over the same 
five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected water use, identifying the 
uses among water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all of the 
following uses:… 
   (J) Distribution system water loss 
 
 

CWC 10631(e)(3). 
 
(A) For the 2015 urban water management plan update, the distribution system water 
loss shall be quantified for the most recent 12-month period available. For all subsequent 
updates, the distribution system water loss shall be quantified for each of the five years 
preceding the plan update. 
 
(B) The distribution system water loss quantification shall be reported in accordance with 
a worksheet approved or developed by the department through a public process. The 
water loss quantification worksheet shall be based on the water system balance 
methodology developed by the American Water Works Association. 

 
 

 
 

The City has reviewed its distribution system water losses by using the American 

Water Works Association’s (AWWA) water audit software which is a spreadsheet-based 

water audit tool.  The City has submitted the reporting worksheet from the AWWA water 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐4

audit in an Excel format through DWR’s Online Submittal Tool.  In addition, a copy of 

the reporting worksheet from the AWWA water audit is provided in Appendix F. 

 

The City’s distribution system water losses during calendar year 2015 are 

provided in Table 4-1. The City’s projected distribution system water losses are 

provided in Table 4-2. In addition, the City’s distribution system water losses during the 

most recent 12-month period available (fiscal year 2015-16) are provided in Table 4-4.   

 

4.4 ESTIMATED FUTURE WATER SAVINGS  

 
 

CWC 10631(e)(4). 
 
(A) If available and applicable to an urban water supplier, water use projections may 
display and account for the water savings estimated to result from adopted codes, 
standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use plans identified by the urban water 
supplier, as applicable to the service area.  
 
(B) To the extent that an urban water supplier reports the information described in 
subparagraph (A), an urban water supplier shall do both of the following: (i) Provide 
citations of the various codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use 
plans utilized in making the projections.(ii) Indicate the extent that the water use 
projections consider savings from codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and 
land use plans. Water use projections that do not account for these water savings shall 
be noted of that fact. 

 
 

 

The City’s water demand projections are provided in Chapter 7 and are based on 

the water use targets identified in Section 5.7 pursuant to the Water Conservation Act of 

2009 (or SB X7-7). The water demand projections incorporate water savings, or 

“passive savings,” which are the result of implementation of new plumbing codes along 

with consumer awareness of the need to conserve water. On May 28, 2015, the City 

passed Ordinance No. 1065, which updated and implemented water conservation 

regulations.  Prior to 2015, the City’s residential water use rate averaged about 101 

gallons per capita day (gpcd). As identified in Section 5.8, the City’s actual water use 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐5

rate during 2015 was 83 gpcd, which is a decrease of about 18 gpcd from the recent 

historical average and includes passive savings.  The City’s projected water use targets 

identified in Section 5.7 incorporate ongoing water passive savings and reduced water 

use.  As indicated in Table 4-5, estimated future water savings have been considered 

as part of the City’s water use projections.  

 

 

4.5 WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 

 
 

CWC 10631.1. 
 
(a) The water use projections required by Section 10631 shall include projected water 
use for single-family and multifamily residential housing needed for lower income 
households, as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as identified in 
the housing element of any city, county, or city and county in the service area of the 
supplier. 
 

California Health and Safety Code 50079.5. 
 
(a) "Lower income households" means persons and families whose income does not 
exceed the qualifying limits for lower income families… In the event the federal standards 
are discontinued, the department shall, by regulation, establish income limits for lower 
income households for all geographic areas of the state at 80 percent of area median 
income, adjusted for family size and revised annually. 

 
 

 

The City’s water use projections (See Section 7.3) through 2040 include 

projected water demands for lower income single-family and multi-family households.  

The total number of lower income households within the City’s service area was 

estimated based on billing records provided by the City, a review of median household 

income statistics provided by the U.S. Census Bureau’s American FactFinder and a 

review of GIS maps of Disadvantaged Communities2 (DACs), including block groups, 

                                            
2 GIS information for DACs is based on data from the US Census showing census block groups, tracts, and places identified as 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	4‐6

tracts, and places, provided by DWR. The estimated number of lower income 

households within the City’s service area is approximately 35 percent of its total number 

of households. As indicated in Table 4-2, the total projected residential (single family 

and multi-family) water demands within the City in 2040 is estimated at about 1,612 

AFY.  Based on a 35 percent use factor of total residential water demands, the 

projected water demand for lower income households is about 570 AFY by the year 

2040.  The projected water demands for lower income households were included in the 

City’s total projected water demands, as indicated in Table 4-5.   

 

 

4.6 CLIMATE CHANGE (OPTIONAL) 

DWR had deemed Section 4.6 as optional. The City is not required by DWR to 

complete this section. However, as discussed in Section 3.3.1, GWMA’s 2013 IRWMP 

addresses baseline climate conditions and the potential quantitative effect of climate 

change on the Gateway Region, including effects on local water supplies and demands 

and imported water supplies.  The 2013 GWMA IRWMP is incorporated in the City’s 

2015 by reference. 

 

A discussion on single-dry year and multiple dry years is provided in Section 7.2 

and a discussion on potential impacts to basin management practices is provided in 

Section 6.2.  A discussion regarding the regional impacts of climate change on demand 

and supply are provided in MWD’s 2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

                                                                                                                                             
disadvantaged communities (less than 80 percent of the State's median household income) or severely disadvantaged communities 
(less than 60 percent of the State's median household income) 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐1

CHAPTER 5  

SB X7-7 BASELINE AND TARGETS  

 

The Water Conservation Act of 2009 (or SB X7-7) required retail urban water 

suppliers to determine target water use for the years 2015 and 2020 in order to help the 

state achieve a 20 percent reduction in urban water use by the year 2020. 

Methodologies for calculating baseline and compliance daily urban per capita water use 

for the consistent implementation of the Water Conservation Act of 2009 were 

previously published by DWR’s “Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and 

Compliance Urban Per Capita Water Use”, dated October 1, 2010.  DWR provided 

updated methodologies in its DWR’s “Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and 

Compliance Urban Per Capita Water Use”, dated February 2011. DWR’s guidance 

documents were used by the City to determine the required water use parameters 

which are discussed below.  The City developed the baselines and targets individually 

and not regionally.  A copy of the Water Conservation Act of 2009 is provided in 

Appendix G. 

 

5.1 GUIDANCE FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES 

 
 

CWC 10608.36. 
 
Urban wholesale water suppliers shall include in the urban water management plans… 
an assessment of their present and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to 
help achieve the water use reductions required by this part. 

 
 

 

The City is not a wholesale agency and is not required by DWR to complete 

Section 5.1.   



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐2

5.2 UPDATING CALCULATIONS FROM 2010 UWMP 

 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 
(g) An urban retail water supplier may update its 2020 urban water use target in its 2015 
urban water management plan required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 
10610). 
 

Methodologies DWR 2010, Methodology 2 Service Area Population. 
 

Page 27 - Water suppliers may revise population estimates for baseline years between 
2000 and 2010 when 2010 census information becomes available. DWR will examine 
discrepancy between the actual population estimate and DOF’s projections for 2010; if 
significant discrepancies are discovered, DWR may require some or all suppliers to 
update their baseline population estimates. 

 
 
 

5.2.1 TARGET METHOD 

The methodology selected in the City’s 2010 Plan to determine the City’s 2015 

and 2020 urban water use targets was: 

 

 “Method 1” and was based on eighty percent of the urban water supplier’s 

baseline water use over a specific 10-year period. 

 

 “Method 3” and was based on ninety-five percent of the applicable state 

hydrologic region target as stated in the State’s April 30, 2009, draft 

20x2020 Water Conservation Plan. 

 

 Because 2010 U.S. Census data was not available during the preparation of the 

City’s 2010 Plan, the City is required to recalculate its “baseline population” (See 

Section 5.2.2) as well as its target water use for the 2015 Plan (See Section 5.7.1). 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐3

However, “Target Method 3” (as discussed in Section 5.7.1) is incorporated in this 2015 

Plan. 

 

5.2.2 REQUIRED USE OF 2010 U.S. CENSUS DATA 

The City has incorporated 2010 U.S. Census data into baseline population 

calculations in this 2015 Plan (See Section 5.4).  As a result, the City updated its 

baseline population as well as its water use targets (See Section 5.7). 

 

5.2.3 SB X7-7 VERIFICATION FORM 

The required SBX7-7 Verification Form is provided in Appendix H. 

 

5.3 BASELINE PERIODS 

 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 
(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010...the baseline daily per capita water use…along with the bases for determining 
those estimates, including references to supporting data. 
 
(g) An urban retail water supplier may update its 2020 urban water use target in its 2015 
urban water management plan required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 
10610). 

 
 

 

The Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use is defined as the average water use, 

expressed in gallons per capita per day (GPCD), for a continuous, multi-year baseline 

period. There were two different baseline periods (including a 10-year baseline period3 

                                            
3 Pursuant to CWC 10608.12(b)(1),  the 10-year baseline period is based on “a continuous 10-year period 
ending no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than December 31, 2010” 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐4

and a 5-year baseline period4) for calculating Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use in 

the City’s 2010 Plan. The baseline periods applicable for the City’s 2015 Plan have 

been reviewed and are presented below. 

 

5.3.1 DETERMINATION OF THE 10-15 YEAR BASELINE PERIOD 

(BASELINE GPCD) 

 
 

CWC 10608.12. 
 
(b) "Base daily per capita water use" means any of the following: 
 

(1) The urban retail water supplier's estimate of its average gross water use, reported 
in gallons per capita per day and calculated over a continuous 10-year period ending 
no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than December 31, 2010. 
 
(2) For an urban retail water supplier that meets at least 10 percent of its 2008 
measured retail water demand through recycled water that is delivered within the 
service area of an urban retail water supplier or its urban wholesale water supplier, the 
urban retail water supplier may extend the calculation described in paragraph (1) up to 
an additional five years to a maximum of a continuous 15-year period ending no earlier 
than December 31, 2004, and no later than December 31, 2010. 

 
 

 

The California Water Code allows an urban water supplier to calculate up to a 

15-year baseline period if at least 10 percent of its 2008 retail water demands were met 

through recycled water deliveries within its service area, otherwise calculation of a 10-

year baseline period is required. The City received about 186 AF of recycled water 

deliveries in 2008, which is more than 10 percent of its total retail water demands. 

Consequently, a 10- to 15-year baseline period water use can be used to determine the 

baseline period.  A 10-year baseline period of 101 GPCD for the City was determined 

and incorporated into this 2015 Plan and is based on a continuous 10-year period 
                                                                                                                                             
 
4 Pursuant to CWC 10608.12(b)(3), the 5-year baseline period is based on “a continuous five-year period 
ending no earlier than December 31, 2007, and no later than December 31, 2010” 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐5

between 1999 and 2008 (See SB X7-7 Table 1, Appendix H). A further discussion of 

determining water use targets based on the 10-year baseline period water use is 

discussed further in Section 5.7. 

 

5.3.2 DETERMINATION OF THE 5-YEAR BASELINE PERIOD (TARGET 

CONFIRMATION) 

 
 

CWC 10608.12. 
 
(b)(3) For the purposes of Section 10608.22, the urban retail water supplier's estimate of 
its average gross water use, reported in gallons per capita per day and calculated over a 
continuous five-year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2007, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 
 

CWC 10608.22. 
 

…an urban retail water supplier's per capita daily water use reduction shall be no less than 5 
percent of base daily per capita water use as defined in paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
Section 10608.12. This section does not apply to an urban retail water supplier with a base 
daily per capita water use at or below 100 gallons per capita per day 
 

 
 

According to Section 10608.22 of the California Water Code, if an urban retail 

water supplier’s 5-year baseline period water use is greater than 100 GPCD, the 

calculated 2020 water use target (See Section 5.7) must be greater than or equal to 95 

percent of the 5-year baseline period water use. A 5-year baseline period water use of 

106 GPCD for the City was determined and incorporated into this 2015 Plan and is 

based on a continuous 5-year period between 2003 and 2007 SB X7-7 Table 1, 

Appendix H). A further discussion of the 2020 water use target confirmation based on 

the 5-year baseline period water use is discussed further in Section 5.7.2. 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐6

5.4 SERVICE AREA POPULTION 

 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 
(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010...the baseline daily per capita water use…along with the bases for determining 
those estimates, including references to supporting data. 

 
(f) When calculating per capita values for the purposes of this chapter, an urban retail 
water supplier shall determine population using federal, state, and local population 
reports and projections. 
 

CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(2) The plan… shall include any standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by 
the department. 

 
 

For the purposes of projecting water use targets (See Section 5.7), agencies 

must determine the population that they served for each baseline year in both of the 

baseline periods (identified in Section 5.3) and for the 2015 compliance year. The City 

has incorporated U.S. Census data through 2010 into baseline population calculations 

in this 2015 Plan (See Section 5.4.1).  According to DWR, the full 2010 U.S. Census 

data was not available until 2012.  As a result, the City updated its baseline population 

as well as its water use targets (See Section 5.7), previously calculated in its 2010 Plan. 

 

5.4.1 POPULATION METHODOLOGY 

The annual populations within the City’s service area for each year during the 

baseline periods (identified in Section 5.3) and for the 2015 compliance year were 

estimated by DWR’s online Population Tool (See SB X7-7 Table 2, Appendix H).  As 

discussed in Section 3.2.1, the City’s service area boundary was submitted to the 

Population Tool in a “KML” file format (i.e. Google Earth format).  The submitted KML 

file represents the City’s service area boundary from 1990 to present (2015). The 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐7

Population Tool utilized U.S. Census data from 1990, 2000, and 2010, along with the 

City’s service area boundary, to estimate the population served by the City in 1990, 

2000, and 2010. The annual amounts of residential service connections5 within the 

City’s service area for each year from 1990 through 2015 were also entered into the 

Population Tool.  Based on the actual population data (1990, 2000, and 2010) as well 

as the annual residential service connections (from 1990 through 2015), DWR’s 

Population Tool estimated the annual population within the City’s service area for each 

year from 1990 to 2015.  The City’s estimated populations during the baseline periods 

are provided in SB X7-7 Table 3, Appendix H. 

 

5.5 GROSS WATER USE 

 
 

CWC 10608.12. 
 

(g) "Gross water use" means the total volume of water, whether treated or untreated, 
entering the distribution system of an urban retail water supplier, excluding all of the 
following: 

(1) Recycled water that is delivered within the service area of an urban retail water 
supplier or its urban wholesale water supplier. 
(2) The net volume of water that the urban retail water supplier places into long-term 
storage. 
(3) The volume of water the urban retail water supplier conveys for use by another 
urban water supplier. 
(4) The volume of water delivered for agricultural use, except as otherwise provided in 
subdivision (f) of Section 10608.24. 
 
 

California Code of Regulations Title 23 Division 2 Chapter 5.1 Article 1, Section 596. 
 

(a) An urban retail water supplier that has a substantial percentage of industrial water use 
in its service area is eligible to exclude the process water use of existing industrial water 
customers from the calculation of its gross water use to avoid a disproportionate burden 
on another customer sector. 

 
 

                                            
5 The annual number of residential service connections was estimated based on information provided by 
the City.  The number of residential service connections is a total of single family and multi-family 
connections. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐8

Annual gross water use amounts within the City for each year of the 10-year 

baseline year (1999 to 2008) identified in Section 5.3.1, and for each of the 5-year 

baseline year (2003 to 2007) identified in Section 5.3.2, and for 2015, are provided in 

SB X7-7 Table 4 (Appendix H) and are based on the total amount of water entering the 

City’s distribution system from its water supply sources (groundwater production wells 

and imported water connections). 

 

5.5.1 GROSS WATER TABLES 

Annual gross water use amounts within the City for each year of the 10-year 

baseline year (1999 to 2008), identified in Section 5.3, and for 2015, are provided in SB 

X7-7 Table 4 (Appendix H). 

 

 The City currently does not use indirect recycled water within its service area.  

The City is not required by DWR to complete SB X7-7 Table 4-B. 

 

5.6 BASELINE DAILY PER CAPITAL WATER USE 

The “daily per capita water use” is based on the water used per person per day 

(GPCD) within the City. The daily per capita water use is estimated by dividing gross 

water use (See Section 5.5 and Appendix H, SBX7-7 Table 4) by the service area 

population (See Section 5.4 and Appendix G, SBX7-7 Table 3). The City’s baseline 

daily per capita water uses were determined for each baseline year (1999 to 2008) for 

the year 2015 and are provided in SBX7-7 Table 5 (Appendix H). 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐9

5.7 2015 AND 2020 TARGETS 

 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 

(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010… urban water use target, interim urban water use target,… along with the bases for 
determining those estimates, including references to supporting data. 
 
(g) An urban retail water supplier may update its 2020 urban water use target in its 2015 
urban water management plan…. 

 
 

 
 

As discussed in Section 5.2.1, “Target Method 3” has been incorporated in the 

City’s 2015 Plan to determine the City’s 2015 and 2020 urban water use targets. A 

further discussion regarding the selected target method is provided below. 

 

5.7.1 SELECT AND APPLY A TARGET METHOD 

Calculation of the 2020 Urban Water Use Target includes adoption of one of four 

available methods (pursuant to California Water Code Section 10608.20(b). The City 

reviewed the following available methods. 

 

Target Method 1: Eighty percent of the urban retail water supplier’s Baseline Per 

Capita Daily Water Use.   

 

Using this target method, the Urban Water Use Target for the City was calculated 

as 81 GPCD, based on 80 percent of the City’s Baseline Per Capita Daily Water Use of 

101 GPCD (See SB X7-7 Table 7-A, Appendix H). 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐10

Target Method 2: Estimate using the sum of the specified three performance 

standards specified in California Water Code Section 

10608.20(b)(2).   

 

Due to insufficient data, this target method was not considered. 

 

Target Method 3: Ninety-five percent of the applicable state hydrologic region target, 

as set forth in the state’s 20x2020 Water Conservation Plan.6   

 

The City’s service area lies entirely within the “South Coast” Hydrologic Region. 

According to SB X7-7 Table 7-E (Appendix H), the 2020 regional water use target for 

the South Coast Hydrologic Region is 149 GPCD.  The Target Method 3 regional use 

target for the South Coast Hydrologic Region (or 95 percent of the 2020 regional water 

use target) is 142 GPCD. 

 

Target Method 4: Water Savings (DWR Provisional Method 4)   

 

Due to insufficient data, this target method was not considered. 

 

The City’s Urban Water Use Target was initially determined to be 142 GPCD for 

2020 and is based on Target Method 3 above, as indicated in SBX7-7 Table 7 

(Appendix H). 

 

                                            
 
6 California Department of Water Resources, State Water Resources Control Board, California Bay-Delta 
Authority, California Energy Commission, California Department of Public Health, California Public Utilities 
Commission, and California Air Resources Board.  20x2020 Water Conservation Plan.  February 2010. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐11

5.7.2 5-YEAR BASELINE – 2020 TARGET CONFIRMATION 

 
 

CWC 10608.22. 
 

Notwithstanding the method adopted by an urban retail water supplier pursuant to 
Section 10608.20, an urban retail water supplier's per capita daily water use reduction 
shall be no less than 5 percent of base daily per capita water use as defined in paragraph 
(3) of subdivision (b) of Section 10608.12. This section does not apply to an urban retail 
water supplier with a base daily per capita water use at or below 100 gallons per capita 
per day. 

 
 
 

As discussed in Section 5.3.2, if an urban retail water supplier’s 5-year baseline 

period water use is greater than 100 GPCD, the calculated 2020 Urban Water Use 

Target (See Section 5.7.1) must be reduced to 95 percent of the 5-year baseline period 

water use (unless it is already below 95 percent of the 5-year baseline period). The 

City’s calculated 5-year baseline period water use was 106 GPCD (see Section 5.3.2). 

The value calculated for 95 percent of the 5-year baseline period water use is 100 

GPCD.  The City’s 2020 Urban Water Use Target was initially determined using Target 

Method 3 above to be 142 GPCD, which is more than the value calculated in this step 

(100 GPCD).  Therefore, an adjustment is needed and the City’s confirmed 2020 Urban 

Water Use Target is 100 GPCD, which is reflective of SB X7-7 Table 7-F, Appendix H. 

 

5.7.3 CALCULATE THE 2015 INTERIM URBAN WATER USE TARGET 

The City’s 2015 Interim Target is based on the value mid-point between the 10-

year baseline period water (101 GPCD, See Section 5.3.1 and SBX7-7 Table 5, 

Appendix H) and the confirmed 2020 Urban Water Use Target (100 GPCD, See Section 

5.7.2 and SBX7-7 Table 7, Appendix H).  The City’s 2015 Interim Target is 101 GPCD 

as indicated in SBX7-7 Table 8 (Appendix H). 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐12

5.7.4 BASELINE AND TARGETS SUMMARY 

A summary of the City’s baseline water use and targets is provided in Table 5-1. 

 

5.8 2015 COMPLIANCE DAILY PER CAPITA WATER USE (GPCD) 

 
 

CWC 10608.12. 
 

(e) "Compliance daily per capita water use" means the gross water use during the final 
year of the reporting period… 
 

 
CWC 10608.24. 
 

(a) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its interim urban water use target by 
December 31, 2015. 
 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 

(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010 … compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for determining 
those estimates, including references to supporting data. 

 
 

 

5.8.1 MEETING THE 2015 TARGET 

As discussed in Section 5.7.3, the City’s 2015 Interim Target is 101 GPCD. The 

City’s actual water use during fiscal year 2014-15 was 83 GPCD.  The City is currently 

in compliance with the 2015 Interim Target, as show in SB X7-7 Table 9 (Appendix H). 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	5‐13

5.8.2 2015 ADJUSTMENTS TO 2015 GROSS WATER USE 

 
 

CWC 10608.24(d). 
 

(1) When determining compliance daily per capita water use, an urban retail water 
supplier may consider the following factors: 

(A) Differences in evapotranspiration and rainfall in the baseline period compared to 
the compliance reporting period. 
(B) Substantial changes to commercial or industrial water use resulting from increased 
business output and economic development that have occurred during the reporting 
period. 
(C) Substantial changes to institutional water use resulting from fire suppression 
services or other extraordinary events, or from new or expanded operations, that have 
occurred during the reporting period. 

(2) If the urban retail water supplier elects to adjust its estimate of compliance daily per 
capita water use due to one or more of the factors described in paragraph (1), it shall 
provide the basis for, and data supporting, the adjustment in the report required by 
Section 10608.40. 
 

Methodology Document, Methodology 4. 
 

This section discusses adjustments to compliance-year GPCD because of changes in 
distribution area caused by mergers, annexation, and other scenarios that occur between 
the baseline and compliance years. 

 
 
 

As discussed in Section 5.8.1, the City is currently in compliance with its 2015 

Interim Target.  As a result, adjustments to the City’s 2015 gross water use were not 

incorporated into the City’s 2015 Plan (See Table 5-2). 

 

5.9 REGIONAL ALLIANCE 

As discussed in Section 2.3.2, the City’s 2015 Plan was not developed as part of 

a Regional Alliance. Information from the City’s 2015 Plan is not required to be reported 

in a Regional Alliance report. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐1

CHAPTER 6  

SYSTEM SUPPLIES 

 

The City’s historical water supply sources included local groundwater pumped 

from City wells, treated groundwater through the Water Quality Protection Program 

(CBWQPP), treated imported water purchased from MWD through CBMWD and 

recycled water supplies provided by CBMWD.  A tabulation of historical groundwater, 

imported water, and recycled water supplies from 1994 to 2015 is shown below. 

Calendar 
Year 

Groundwater 

Imported 
Water 
(MWD) 

Recycled 
Water 

(CBMWD) Total City Wells CBWQPP Subtotal 
             

1994 2,051 0 2,051 5,868 723 8,642 
1995 3,954 0 3,954 3,367 849 8,170 
1996 3,435 0 3,435 3,226 998 7,659 
1997 3,255 0 3,255 3,786 1,013 8,054 
1998 3,245 0 3,245 3,807 836 7,888 
1999 4,083 0 4,083 3,658 787 8,528 
2000 3,451 0 3,451 4,395 864 8,710 
2001 3,277 0 3,277 4,190 884 8,351 
2002 4,023 0 4,023 3,831 894 8,748 
2003 3,882 0 3,882 3,710 788 8,380 
2004 2,978 173 3,151 4,253 674 8,078 
2005 2,974 2,115 5,089 2,273 657 8,019 
2006 2,096 1,518 3,614 3,669 683 7,966 
2007 1,575 1,527 3,102 4,492 779 8,373 
2008 1,445 1,646 3,091 4,083 689 7,863 
2009 908 1,861 2,769 3,722 598 7,089 
2010 950 1,755 2,705 3,484 533 6,722 
2011 1,210 2,127 3,337 2947 489 6,773 
2012 1,314 2,138 3,452 3,138 585 7,175 
2013 1,310 2,432 3,742 2,831 834 7,407 
2014 20 2,855 2,875 3,227 1,032 7,134 
2015 0 2,716 2,716 2,714 939 6,369 

             
 

Source:  City records and Central Basin Watermaster Annual Reports 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐2

6.1 PURCHASED OR IMPORTED WATER 

 The City purchases treated groundwater through CBWQPP and receives treated 

imported water from MWD through CBMWD, which are summarized below.  The City’s 

2015 and projected volumes of purchased water are provided in Tables 6-8 and 6-9 

(See Section 6.9).  A discussion regarding the reliability of the treated imported water 

purchased by the City is provided in Section 7.1. 

 

6.1.1 CBWQPP 

The CBWQPP provides treated groundwater to some of its retail agencies, 

including the City of Santa Fe Springs, which has a contracted minimum purchase 

amount of 2,016 AFY.  The City purchases treated groundwater from the CBWQPP, 

which has a capacity of 2,200 gallons per minute, through an interconnection with the 

City of Whittier. In 2015, the City purchased approximately 2,716 AF of treated 

groundwater water from the CBWQPP.  The City’s 2015 and projected volumes of 

treated groundwater from the CBWQPP are provided in Tables 6-8 and 6-9 (See 

Section 6.9). 

 

6.1.2 TREATED IMPORTED WATER 

As a wholesale agency, MWD distributes imported water to 26 member agencies 

throughout Southern California.  CBMWD is one of the member agencies served by 

MWD. CBMWD distributes water to its retail agencies, including the City of Santa Fe 

Springs. The City purchases imported water from CBMWD through its CENB-30 and 

CENB-42 connections, which have capacities of 10 cubic feet per second and 16 cubic 

feet per second, respectively.  In 2015, the City has purchased approximately 2,714 AF 

of treated imported water from CBMWD.  The City’s 2015 and projected volumes of 

purchased water are provided in Tables 6-8 and 6-9 (See Section 6.9). 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐3

 

6.2 GROUNDWATER 

According to the Central Basin Judgment (described below), the City has an 

“Allowed Pumping Allocation” (or adjudicated pumping right) to the Central Basin of 

4,036 AFY.  City owns three wells: Wells No. 1, 2 and 12.  Well No. 1 was placed on 

standby in 2014 as a result of poor water quality, and is planned to be destroyed.  Well 

No. 2 has been on standby since 2008 due to water quality problems.  Well No. 12 was 

drilled in 2013 and has been inactive since 2013 due to water quality issues.  Wells No. 

2 and No. 12 have production capacities of 1,900 and 2,000 gallons per minute, 

respectively.  Water treatment facilities are planned for Wells No. 2 and No. 12.  The 

City produced groundwater from Central Basin from 2009 to 2014 from Well No. 1.  The 

City’s past groundwater production in Central Basin over the past five years is shown on 

Table 6-1 (See Section 6.2.4).  The City did not pump any groundwater in 2015 from its 

wells.   

 

In addition, and as previously discussed in Section 6.1.1, the City receives 

treated groundwater water through the CBWQPP.   

 

6.2.1 BASIN DESCRIPTION 

 
 

CWC 10631. 
 

(b) If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of water available to the 
supplier, all of the following information shall be included in the plan: 

 
(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water 
supplier pumps groundwater. 

 
 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐4

Central Basin is located in Los Angeles County approximately 20 miles 

southeasterly of downtown Los Angeles, as shown on Figure 3.  On its north, Central 

Basin is bounded by the Hollywood Basin, and that boundary runs through the City of 

Los Angeles.  The remainder of the northern boundary of Central Basin extends along 

the Merced Hills, across Whittier Narrows, and then along Puente Hills. DWR divided 

the Central Basin into four sections; the Los Angeles Forebay, the Montebello Forebay, 

the Whittier Area, and the Pressure Area. The northern Basin boundary terminates at 

the Orange County line, which forms the eastern boundary of the Central Basin.  This 

boundary is a political and not a geologic one, and the aquifers in this area reach into 

the East Coastal Plain area of Orange County.  The south-southwest boundary of the 

Central Basin is known as the Newport-Inglewood Uplift (NIU), separating Central and 

West Basin from Long Beach up to the Baldwin Hills just north of the City of Inglewood.  

DWR Bulletin 118 does not identify Central Basin as currently being in overdraft. 

 

6.2.1.1 GEOLOGY 

Central Basin is one of two groundwater basins in the Coastal Plain of Los 

Angeles County.  It is comprised of Quaternary-age sediments (less than 1.8 million 

years old) of gravel, sand, silt, and clay that were deposited from the erosion of nearby 

hills and mountains, and from historical beaches and shallow ocean floors that covered 

the area in the past.  Underlying these Quarternary sediments are basement rocks such 

as the Pliocene Pico Formation that generally do not provide sufficient quantities of 

groundwater for pumping.  Separating the Central Basin from the West Coast Basin is 

the NIU, a series of discontinuous faults and folds that form a prominent line of 

northwest trending hills including the Baldwin Hills, Dominguez Hills, and Signal Hill. 

  

Central Basin covers approximately 270 square miles and is bounded on the 

north by the Hollywood Basin and the Elysian, Repetto, Merced, and Puente Hills, to the 

east by the Los Angeles County/Orange County line, and to the south and west by the 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐5

NIU.  DWR divided the Central Basin into four sections; the Los Angeles Forebay, the 

Montebello Forebay, the Whittier Area, and the Pressure Area. 

 

The two forebays represent areas of unconfined aquifers that allow percolation of 

surface water down into the deeper aquifers to replenish the basins.  The Whittier Area 

and Pressure Area are confined aquifer systems that receive relatively minimal 

recharge from surface water.  They are replenished from the up-gradient forebay areas 

and adjacent groundwater basins. 

 

6.2.1.2 HYDROGEOLOGY  

The aquifers of Central Basin received their water supply primarily from the 

surface and subsurface inflow of water from the San Gabriel Valley.  The water 

originates as rainfall in the San Gabriel Mountains, the runoff from which is conveyed to 

the Los Angeles River, the Rio Hondo, and the San Gabriel River.  The Los Angeles 

River enters Central Basin through the Los Angeles Narrows, crosses the Los Angeles 

Forebay Area, and proceeds south across Central Basin, exiting Central Basin through 

the Dominguez Gap in West Basin.  The Rio Hondo, enters Central Basin at Whittier 

Narrows parallel to the San Gabriel River, proceeds southwesterly across the 

Montebello Forebay Area and joins the Los Angeles River midway across the Basin. 

The San Gabriel River also enters Central Basin through the Whittier Narrows, crosses 

the Montebello Forebay, and runs south to the Pacific Ocean near Long Beach at the 

Orange County line. 

  

As the Rio Hondo and San Gabriel Rivers flow through the Upper San Gabriel 

Valley toward Whittier Narrows, much of their flow percolates into the Main San Gabriel 

Basin (Main Basin).  This water crosses the Whittier Narrows and enters Central Basin 

as subsurface flow into the aquifers of Central Basin.  At the same time, the surface 

flows of the Rio Hondo and the San Gabriel River percolate downward into the aquifers 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐6

of Central Basin in the Montebello Forebay.  In the Montebello Forebay, the 

underground aquifers merge and are unconfined, and thus are capable of receiving 

large quantities of water from percolation through the sand and gravel surface of the 

forebay area. 

 

The Los Angeles Forebay area is also favorably situated for percolation from the 

flows of the Los Angeles River, but the Los Angeles Forebay has been largely 

eliminated as a source of fresh water replenishment to Central Basin, due to lining of 

the Los Angeles River channel and the paving over of the forebay area.  In the 

Montebello Forebay area, by contrast, flood flows have been largely controlled through 

the construction of the Whittier Narrows Dam, and the river channels have not been 

lined in the area, so percolation can still occur.  

  

Groundwater in the Central Basin provides a substantial portion of the water 

supply needed by residents and industries in the overlying area.  Groundwater occurs in 

the pore spaces of the sediments in the basin.  The major aquifers identified in Central 

Basin include the following, from shallowest to deepest:  a) the Gaspur and semi-

perched aquifers of the Holocene Alluvium Formation; b) the Exposition, Artesia, Gage, 

and Gardena aquifers of the Upper Pleistocene Lakewood Formation; c) the Hollydale, 

Jefferson, Lynwood, and Silverado aquifers of the Lower Pleistocene Upper San Pedro 

Formation; and d) the Sunnyside Aquifer of the Lower Pleistocene Lower San Pedro 

Formation.  Water levels have exhibited a general recovery since the Basin was 

adjudicated in the early 1960s, as shown on Figure 2.  Aquifer depths can reach more 

than 2,000 feet in Central Basin although production wells generally do not need to be 

drilled this deep to tap sufficient water.   

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐7

6.2.2 GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT 

 
 

CWC 10631(b). 
 

(b) If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of water available to the 
supplier, all of the following information shall be included in the plan: 

 
(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water supplier 
… or any other specific authorization for groundwater management. 
 
(2) …For basins that a court or the board has adjudicated the rights to pump 
groundwater, a copy of the order or decree adopted by the court or the board and a 
description of the amount of groundwater the urban water supplier has the legal right to 
pump under the order or decree. 

 
 

 

Groundwater production in Central Basin is restricted to adjudicated rights fixed 

by the Central Basin Judgment and managed by a court-appointed Watermaster.  The 

City was a defendant in Central Basin Judgment7 and as such had participation.  The 

following section provides a historical overview based on the Central Basin 

Watermaster Annual Report.  

  

6.2.2.1 CENTRAL BASIN JUDGMENT 

On January 2, 1962, the Central and West Basin Water Replenishment District 

(now WRD) filed Case No. 786,656 in the Superior Court, County of Los Angeles, 

naming more than 700 parties as defendants.  It sought to adjudicate water rights of 

groundwater and regulate pumping from the Central Basin.  By September 1962, a 

proposed agreement had been approved by a sufficient number of water producers 

(producers owning over 75 percent of the Assumed Relative Rights within Central 

                                            
7 Central and West Basin Water Replenishment District, etc, vs. Charles E. Adams etc, Los Angeles 
County Case No. 786,656, Judgment entered in 1965. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐8

Basin) to guarantee control over groundwater pumping in Central Basin.  On September 

28, 1962, the Court signed the “Order Pursuant to Stipulation and Interim Agreement 

and Petition for Order” and appointed DWR as Watermaster. 

 

Subsequently, a stipulated judgment was drafted.  Approval was received by 

public utility water companies and other producers representing well over 200,000 AF, 

or 75 percent, of the total rights within Central Basin.  This was a prerequisite to filing 

the stipulated judgment with the Court.  On May 17, 1965, the case went to trial before 

Judge Edmund M. Moor.  Following testimony on engineering, geology, hydrology, and 

safe yield of Central Basin and arguments on water right entitlement, the case was 

continued to August 25, 1965.  Shortly thereafter, Judge Moor appointed DWR as 

Watermaster.  The final Judgment was signed on October 11, 1965 and became 

affective on October 1, 1966.8  A copy of the Central Basin Judgment is located in 

Appendix I. 

 

 The Judgment was amended on March 21, 1980, to provide for a transition in the 

administrative year from a water year (October 1 to September 30) to a fiscal year (July 

1 to June 30).  Under the Judgment, this transition in turn contained a “short” 

administrative year of nine months – October 1, 1980 to June 30, 1981.  The 

administrative year starting July 1, 1981 was on a fiscal year basis. 

 

The Judgment was again amended on July 19, 1985, modifying the annual 

budget ($20 minimum assessment) and exchange pool provisions.  The second 

amended Judgment of May 6, 1991 modified the carryover and overproduction 

provisions (to 20 percent of allowed pumping allocation or 20 AF, whichever is greater, 

from 10 percent of allowed pumping allocation or 10 AF), and defined drought 

carryover, and provided for exemptions for extractors of contaminated groundwater.   
                                            
8 Central and West Basin Water Replenishment District, etc. v. Charles E. Adams, et al, Los Angeles 
County Case No. 786,656. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐9

 On January 12, 2001, by order of the Central Basin Watermaster, WRD issued 

Non-Consumptive Use Permit No. 2000-01 to the Southeast Water Coalition for the 

“Central Basin Early Remediation Project” to remedy or ameliorate groundwater 

contamination that originated in the San Gabriel Valley and that has moved into the 

northeast portion of the Central Basin. 

  

In December 2013, the Court approved amendments to the Central Basin 

Judgment which implement a water storage program.  The amendment states, “…a 

party may store up to 200 percent of the party’s Allowed Pumping Allocation, if space is 

available.”  In addition, the amendments allow parties to convert unused Allowed 

Pumping Allocation to stored water and revised the amount of carryover to be equal to 

100 percent of the party’s Allowed Pumping Allocation minus the amount of carryover 

water set aside for storage, as noted above.  The purpose of the storage program 

creates an added reliability in water supply from the Central Basin. In addition, the 

amendments allow for transfer of water between Central Basin and West Basin by 

permitting parties with water rights in Central Basin to increase production in Central 

Basin, while another party decreases production in West Basin by the corresponding 

amount. 

 

Under the Judgment, water rights are fixed and do not vary year to year.  Water 

producers cannot exceed their water rights by more than 20 percent or 20 AF, 

whichever is greater, in any year and an adjustment is made the following year.  In 

addition, water producers cannot carry over more than 20 percent or 20 AF, whichever 

is greater, of their water rights for use in the following year. 

 

California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring Program 

 

The 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) directed DWR to 

establish initial groundwater basin priorities for the basins identified and defined in 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐10

DWR’s Bulletin 118.  DWR finalized the basin prioritization in June 2014 through the 

California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM)9 program.  The 

CASGEM basin prioritization program is being used by DWR to focus resources 

towards implementing legislation to require all groundwater basins be monitored for 

seasonal and long‐term groundwater elevation trends.  DWR plans to evaluate the 

status of groundwater level monitoring in “High” or “Medium” priority groundwater 

basins. If DWR determines that groundwater levels in all or part of a High or Medium 

Priority basin are not being monitored, DWR will work cooperatively with local entities to 

establish a monitoring program.  Compliance with DWR requirements allows the basin 

monitoring entities to be eligible to receive State water grants or loans. The Central 

Basin (Basin 4-11.04) has been identified through CASGEM as a “high” priority basin 

and will be required to comply with specific SGMA regulations. 

 

6.2.3 OVERDRAFT CONDITIONS 

 
 

 
CWC 10631(b). 
 

(2) For basins that have not been adjudicated, information as to whether the department 
has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or has projected that the basin will 
become overdrafted if present management conditions continue, in the most current 
official departmental bulletin that characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, 
and a detailed description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. 

 
 
 

The City intends to produce groundwater from the Central Basin, which is an 

adjudicated basin as discussed in Section 6.2.2. The City is not required by DWR to 

complete Section 6.2.3. 

 
                                            
9 http://www.water.ca.gov/groundwater/casgem/basin_prioritization.cfm 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐11

6.2.4 HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER PUMPING 

 
 

CWC 10631(b). 
 

(b) If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of water available to the 
supplier, all of the following information shall be included in the plan: 

 
(3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. The 
description and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, 
including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

 
 

 

From 2009 to 2014, the City has pumped groundwater from Central Basin 

through one well, Well No. 1.  The City did not pump groundwater in 2015.  The City’s 

historical groundwater production in the Central Basin over the past five years is shown 

on Table 6-1.  The City plans to pump groundwater from its wells once treatment 

facilities are in place.   

 

From 2004 to 2015, the City received treated groundwater through CBWQPP.  

Historical purchased treated groundwater from CBWQPP over the past five years is 

shown on Table 6-1. 

 

According to the Central Basin Adjudication, the City has an allowed pumping 

allocation of 4,036 AFY.  The Central Basin Adjudication allows Parties to the Judgment 

to pump up to 20 percent more of its annual allowed pumping allocation plus any carry-

over as described in Chapter 3.2.2.1.  In December 2013, the Court approved 

amendments to the Judgment which implement a water storage program.  The 

amendment states, “…a party may store up to 200 percent of the party’s Allowed 

Pumping Allocation, if space is available.”  In addition, the amendments allow parties to 

convert unused Allowed Pumping Allocation to stored water and revised the amount of 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐12

carryover to be equal to 100 percent of the party’s Allowed Pumping Allocation minus 

the amount of carryover water set aside for storage.  The purpose of the storage 

program creates an added reliability in water supply from the Central Basin.  Based on 

the amendments, the City may store up to 200 percent of its Allowed Pumping 

Allocation of 4,036 AF, which equates to about 8,072 AF (200% x 4,036 AF).  This 

stored water may be used as an additional source of supply within the Central Basin.   

 

Historical data indicate the Central Basin has been well managed for over its 

adjudication period, resulting in a stable and reliable water supply.  There are no 

contemplated basin management changes, other than the planned use of recycled 

water for groundwater replenishment.  Based on these historical and on-going 

management practices, the groundwater supply in the Central Basin has been reliable 

and the City will be able to rely on the Central Basin for adequate supply over the next 

20 years under single year and multiple year droughts.  Table 6-1 describes the total 

water produced by the City from Central Basin over the last five years.  

 

6.3 SURFACE WATER 

The City does not use surface water supplies to meet its water demands. 

 

6.4 STORMWATER 

The City does not use stormwater to meet its water demands. 

 

6.5 WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 

Recycled water is used within the City’s service area for landscape irrigation at 

City parks, schools, athletic fields, roadway medians, and business complexes, as well 

as industrial purposes, including carpet manufacturing, concrete mixing, and cooling 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐13

tower use.  Table 6-4 summarizes current and projected recycled water use within the 

City from 2015 to 2040.  The following sections provide a description of the City’s 

current recycled water use and its plans to expand the use of recycled water as a 

source of water supply over the next 25 years. 

 

6.5.1 RECYCLED WATER COORDINATION 

 
 

CWC 10633. 
 

The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area… 

 
 

	

The City is a member agency of CBMWD, which provides recycled water 

produced from Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts’ (LACSD) Los Coyotes Water 

Reclamation Plant (LCWRP) in Cerritos and San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant 

(SJCWRP) in Whittier.  CBMWD has developed a recycled water program within its 

service area to provide direct delivery of recycled water to serve non-potable demands, 

thereby offsetting reliance on imported water supplies. CBMWD continues to expand its 

recycled water system, as discussed in its 2015 Plan which is incorporated by 

reference.  The City has coordinated the preparation of its 2015 Plan with CBMWD.  

 

 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐14

6.5.2 WASTEWATER COLLECTION, TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL 

 
 

CWC 10633(a). 
 

(Describe) the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's service 
area, including a quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 
 

CWC 10633(b). 
 

(Describe) the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, is 
being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled water project. 

 
 

 

Wastewater from the City’s service area is collected and treated in the LACSD’s 

LCWRP and Long Beach Water Reclamation Plant (LBWRP).  LCWRP and LBWRP 

also receive wastewater from other cities served by LACSD.  Table 6-2 shows the 

wastewater collected and treated within the City’s service area.  No wastewater is 

disposed of within the City’s service area. 

 

LCWRP, which began operation in 1970, has a current design capacity of 37.5 

MGD.  LCWRP plant serves a population of approximately 370,000 people.  The 

method of disposal when treated recycled water is not used (non-recycled) is discharge 

to the San Gabriel River and eventually flows to the ocean.   

 

LBWRP, which began operation in 1973, is located in Long Beach, California and 

has a current design capacity of 25 MGD.  The LBWRP plant serves a population of 

approximately 250,000 people.  The method of disposal when treated recycled water is 

not used (non-recycled) is discharge to Coyote Creek, a tributary of the San Gabriel 

River that flows to the ocean.   

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐15

LACSD estimates approximately 60 gallons of wastewater is generated per 

person per day within LACSD’s service area.  Based on the City’s 2015 population of 

14,700 within its service area, the estimated volume of residential wastewater 

generated and collected in 2015 is approximately 990 AF, as shown in Table 6-2.  

 

6.5.3 RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

Section 10633 
 
(c)  (Describe) the recycled water currently being used in the supplier’s service area, 

including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use 
 

 
 

 Recycled water use within the City began in 1992 when CBMWD completed 

construction of the Century recycled water distribution system (Century system).  

Recycled water delivered to the City is part of the Century system, which delivers 

recycled water from LCWRP and SJCWRP.  Recycled water use within the City’s 

service area is used in industry (carpet manufacturing, cooling towers, and concrete 

mixing) and for irrigation at the City’s parks (Heritage Park, Lake Center Park, Lakeview 

Park, Little Lake Park, and Los Nietos Park), athletic fields, schools, roadway medians, 

business park landscaping, and along the California Department of Transportation 

freeways and highways.  Current recycled water demand within the City’s service area 

is shown on Table 6-4.     

 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐16

6.5.4 RECYCLED WATER BENEFICIAL USES 

 
 

Section 10633 
 
(d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, but 

not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat 
enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect potable 
reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to the technical 
and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 

 
 (e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier’s service area at the end of 5, 

10, 15 and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected pursuant to this subdivision 

 
Section 10633 
 
(e) (Provide) a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison to uses 

previously projected pursuant to this subdivision. 
 

 
 

 

As shown in Table 6-4 and previously discussed in Section 6.5.3, the City has 

several recycled water connections within its service area to deliver recycled water to its 

customers.  Recycled water use within the City’s service area is used in industry (carpet 

manufacturing, cooling towers, and concrete mixing) and for irrigation at City parks 

(Heritage Park, Lake Center Park, Lakeview Park, Little Lake Park, and Los Nietos 

Park), athletic fields, schools, roadway medians, business park landscaping, and along 

the California Department of Transportation freeways and highways.  The City 

continues to retrofit landscape irrigation systems to use recycled water where available.  

The City has continued to add pipelines connecting to the CBMWD distribution system 

since 1992.  In 2015, industrial use of recycled water has accounted for approximately 

40 percent of the City’s total recycled water use.   

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐17

Projected recycled water demand within the City’s service area is shown on 

Table 6-4.  The City’s actual use of recycled water in 2015 was 939 AF, while the 2010 

Plan had projected a recycled water use of 779 AF for 2015, as shown in Table 6-5.   

 

6.5.5 ACTIONS TO ENCOURAGE AND OPTIMIZE FUTURE RECYCLED 

WATER USE 

 
 

Section 10633 
 
(f) (Describe the) actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 

encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in 
terms of AF of recycled water used per year. 

 
(g) (Provide a) plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier’s service 

area, including actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems, to 
promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater that 
meets recycled water standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that 
increased use. 

 
 

 

The City’s recycled water is provided by CBMWD.  In June 2008, CBMWD 

prepared a “Recycled Water Master Plan Update” report which identified potential 

recycled water customers within CBMWD’s service area. The Recycled Water Master 

Plan Update report also provided details of a proposed Capital Improvement Program 

for the expanded recycled water system, including prioritization of projects and capital 

requirements.  As a member agency of CBMWD, the City has the advantage of 

receiving financial assistance for plumbing retrofits necessary to receive recycled water.  

CBMWD advances funds for the necessary plumbing retrofits, which are then 

reimbursed.  In addition, CBMWD offers recycled water at a lower rate and the savings 

are passed on to City customers with non-potable water demands.  CBMWD also 

promotes the use of recycled water within its system as a more reliable water source 

than imported water. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐18

The City does not have a recycled water program, but CBMWD’s recycled water 

program is available to customers of the City.  Additional details on CBMWD’s recycled 

water program are available in CBMWD’s 2015 Plan which is incorporated by reference. 

  

 

6.6 DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES  

 
 

Section 10631(h) 
 
Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not 
limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 

 
 
 

The City does not have opportunities to incorporate desalinated water into its 

supply.  Based on the City’s 2015 Consumer Confidence Report (CCR), the average 

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) concentrations for the Central Basin groundwater is 550 

milligrams per liter (mg/l), which is less than the secondary Maximum Contaminant 

Level (MCL) of 1,000 mg/l.  Consequently, the City has not needed to investigate the 

use of desalination to develop or reestablish a new long-term supply.   However, there 

may be opportunities for use of desalinated ocean water as a potential water supply 

source in the future, through coordination with other agencies that have ocean 

desalination programs.   

 

6.7 EXCHANGES OR TRANSFERS  

 
 

Section 10631(d) 
 
 Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or 

long-term basis. 
 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐19

6.7.1 EXCHANGES 

The City does not have any current or planned water exchanges. 

 

6.7.2 TRANSFERS 

The City does not anticipate any current or planned water transfers. 

 

6.7.3 EMERGENCY INTERTIES 

Emergency interconnections are distribution system interconnections between 

water agencies for use during critical situations where one system or the other is 

temporarily unable to provide sufficient potable water to meet its water demands and/or 

fire protection needs. An emergency interconnection will allow a water system to 

continue serving water during critical situations such as local water supply shortages as 

a result of earthquakes, fires, prolonged power outages, and droughts.  

 

The City has an emergency interconnection with the City of Whittier which serve 

as short-term emergency exchange opportunities.  This is a 6-inch connection that 

consists of a 6-inch pressure-reducing valve tied to an 8-inch main and is capable of 

providing up to 2,200 gallons per minute (gpm).  This emergency source would be 

chlorinated through an existing 2-inch tap by using one of the City’s portable 

chlorination units. 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐20

6.8 FUTURE WATER PROJECTS 

 
 

Section 10633 
 
 (g) …The urban water supplier shall include a detailed description of expected future 

projects and programs… that the urban water supplier may implement to increase the 
amount of the water supply available to the urban water supplier in average, single-
dry, and multiple-dry water years. The description shall identify specific projects and 
include a description of the increase in water supply that is expected to be available 
from each project. The description shall include an estimate with regard to the 
implementation timeline for each project or program. 

 
 
 

As discussed in Section 6.2, the City has not pumped any groundwater from its 

wells since 2014 due to water quality issues.  The City plans to install a water treatment 

facility to treat iron, manganese, hydrogen sulfite and color at its Well No. 12.  The 

proposed treatment facility is currently in the planning stages and is scheduled to start 

fiscal year 2017-18.  With treatment, the City’s groundwater pumping capacity in the 

Central Basin will be approximately 2,000 gpm (see Table 6-7)  The City is also 

conducting a new well siting study for two new wells in its Zone I pressure zone.   

 

6.9 SUMMARY OF EXISTING AND PLANNED SOURCES OF WATER 

 
 

Section 10631 
 
 (b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 

water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision 10631(a). 

 
(4)  (Provide a) detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of 

groundwater that is projected to be pumped by the urban water supplier.  The 
description and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, 
including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

 
 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	6‐21

 As discussed in Chapter 6, the City’s water supply sources include treated 

imported water, treated local groundwater through CBWQPP, local groundwater 

pumped from its wells and recycled water supply sources. The actual quantities of the 

water supply sources available to the City in 2015 are summarized in Table 6-8. The 

reliable quantities of projected water supply sources available to the City in five-year 

increments through 2040 during average years are summarized in Table 6-9.  

 

6.10 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACTS TO SUPPLY 

The California Water Code does not require the City to address climate change.  

However, as discussed in Section 3.3.1, GWMA’s 2013 IRWMP addresses baseline 

climate conditions and the potential quantitative effect of climate change on the 

Gateway Region, including effects on local water supplies and demands and imported 

water supplies.  The 2013 GWMA IRWMP is incorporated in the City’s 2015 by 

reference. 

 

A discussion on single-dry year and multiple dry years is provided in Section 7.2 

and a discussion on potential impacts to basin management practices is provided in 

Section 6.2.  A discussion regarding the regional impacts of climate change on demand 

and supply are provided in MWD’s 2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐1

CHAPTER 7  

WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT 

 

 

7.1 CONSTRAINTS ON WATER SOURCES 

 
 

Section 10631(c) 
 
 (2) For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, given 

specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors, describe plans to 
supplement or replace that source with alternative sources or water demand 
management measures, to the extent practicable.  

 

Section 10634 
 
  The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 

existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments 
as described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631, and the manner in which water 
quality affects water management strategies and supply reliability. 

 
 
 

When the City had water quality issues at its wells and ceased groundwater 

production in 2014, the City was able to meet its demands by using other water supply 

sources from treated imported water from MWD, treated groundwater from the 

CBWQPP and recycled water from CBMWD.  Consequently, the City did not experience 

water supply constraints or deficiencies in order to meet its demands.  In addition, the 

City plans to construct a treatment facility at its Well No. 12 to treat iron, manganese, 

hydrogen sulfite and color and will be able to have treated groundwater as a water 

supply source starting in fiscal year 2017-18.  The quality of the CBWQPP, imported 

water supply from MWD, and treated groundwater supply from Well No. 12 is discussed 

below. 
 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐2

7.1.1 TREATED GROUNDWATER FROM CBWQPP 

The City receives treated groundwater from the CBWQPP.  CBWQPP is 

approved by SWRCB-DDW.  All water delivered to the City’s customers meets SWRCB-

DDW guidelines and is not expected to change over the next 20 years.  A copy of the 

City’s 2015 Consumer Confidence Report is provided in Appendix J.     

 

7.1.2 IMPORTED WATER FROM MWD 

Imported water from MWD is delivered to the City by CBMWD.  MWD’s water 

quality meets all state and federal water quality standards.  Water quality plays a vital 

role in MWD’s availability of a useful water supply.  Water quality affects the reliability of 

groundwater storage, recycled water and impacts the CALFED Bay-Delta.  To the 

extent possible, MWD responds to water quality concerns by concentrating on 

protecting the quality of the source water and developing water management programs 

that maintain and enhance water quality.  As discussed in MWD’s 2015 Regional Plan, 

MWD anticipates no significant reductions in water supply availability from these 

sources due to water quality concerns.  MWD’s efforts and water quality data are 

explained in its 2015 Regional Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

 

7.1.3 TREATED GROUNDWATER PRODUCED FROM CITY WELL NO. 12 

In 2015, the City did not produce groundwater from its City wells, which are 

located in the Central Basin. The City encountered VOCs exceeding MCLs at Well No. 

1 in 2014.  The City has encountered arsenic concentrations exceeding the MCL at Well 

No. 2 since 2002.  The City has also encountered water quality issues at Well No. 12.  

The City plans to install a treatment system facility at its Well No. 12 to iron, 

manganese, hydrogen sulfite and color and provide treated potable water to its 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐3

customers.  With the installation of the treatment facility at its Well No. 12, treated 

groundwater supply will provide a reliable source of water for the City for the next 20 

years. 

 

7.2 RELIABILITY BY TYPE OF YEAR 

 
 

Section 10631(c) 
 
 (1) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 

shortage, to the extent practicable, and provide data for each of the following: 
 (a) an average water year, 
 (b) a single dry water year, 
 (c) multiple dry water years. 

 
 
 

Information regarding the reliability of the groundwater supplies from Central 

Basin is based on historical rainfall data in the vicinity of the City’s service area (See 

Appendix E), which results in stormwater which is used to replenish the groundwater 

basins, and past data on the availability of water supply to meet demands during 

seasonal or climatic shortage.  As discussed in Section 3.3, the annual average rainfall 

in the vicinity of the City’s service area is about 13.74 inches.  Therefore, calendar year 

2010 (water year 2009-10) represents an average year for the City in which the total 

amount of rainfall was about 16.8 inches.  A single dry year for the City was represented 

in calendar year 2012 (water year 2011-12) in which the total amount of rainfall was 

about 7.34 inches.  A multiple dry year sequence for the City is represented from 

calendar years 2012 to 2014 (water years 2011-12, 2012-13, and 2013-14), where the 

total amount of rainfall was about 7.34 inches, 5.01 inches, and 6.04 inches, 

respectively. Table 7-1 summarizes these “base years” for average, single dry, and 

multiple dry years and provides the total amount of water supplies available to the City 

during those base years. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐4

7.2.1 TYPES OF YEARS 

The City’s base years for average, single dry, and multiple dry years are provided 

in Section 7.2 and are summarized in Table 7-1. As indicated in Chapter 6, the City’s 

purchased water and groundwater supplies were sufficient in meeting the City’s 

historical water demands under all base years, including during normal, single, and 

multiple dry years.  A normal or average year was based on a year during the past 20 

years with a total precipitation similar to the historical average precipitation in the vicinity 

of the City’s service area. Because a single dry year or a multiple dry year period will 

not compromise the City’s ability to provide a reliable supply of water to its customers, a 

single dry year in this Plan was selected based on the first year of a multiple dry year 

period during the past 20 years. The multiple dry year period was based on a period of 

three consecutive dry years during the past 20 years.    

 

7.2.2 AGENCIES WITH MULTIPLE WATER SOURCES 

As discussed in Section 7.3 and shown in Table 7-2, Table 7-3, and Table 7-4, a 

single dry year or a multiple dry year period will not compromise the City’s ability to 

provide a reliable supply of water to its customers. 

 

7.3 SUPPLY AND DEMAND ASSESSMENT 

 
 

Section 10635 
 
 (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 

an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, 
dry, and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall 
compare the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal 
water year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry water years. The water service 
reliability assessment shall be based upon the information compiled pursuant to 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐5

Section 10631, including available data from state, regional or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 

 
 

 

As previously discussed, the City’s projected normal year water demands over 

the next 26 years in five-year increments were based on the City’s 2020 Urban Water 

Use Target of 101 GPCD.  The Urban Water Use Target Goals and City’s expected 

demands were then applied to estimate the City’s projected normal year demands in 

2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040 as shown in Table 4-3.  The City’s projected 

normal year supplies in 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040 were based on the 

reliability of supply in the Central Basin, as discussed in Section 6.9 and shown on 

Table 4-3.  The City will continue to use groundwater and recycled water as its future 

water supplies through 2040.  Table 7-2, Table 7-3, and Table 7-4 summarize the City’s 

projected water demands and supplies over the next 25 years in five-year increments, 

including during normal, single, and multiple dry years.  These tables indicate the City 

can meet water demands during normal, single dry, and multiple dry years over the next 

25 years. 

 

7.4 REGIONAL SUPPLY RELIABILITY 

 
 

Section 10620 
 
 (f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools and 

options used by that entity that will maximize resources and minimize the need to 
import water from other regions. 

 
 

 
As discussed in Section 6.2.2, Central Basin has been adjudicated and is well 

managed.  The successful management of the reduction in groundwater withdrawals by 

the Central Basin Judgment, combined with the spreading program and the guaranteed 

minimum inflow from the Main Basin (see Section 4.2.1.1), resulted in recovery of water 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	7‐6

levels in wells throughout the Central Basin.  In each drought cycle the Central Basin 

has been managed to maintain water levels. Therefore, based on historical and on-

going management practices, the City will be able to rely on the Central Basin for 

adequate supply over the next 20 years under single year and multiple year droughts. 

 

Chapter 6 provides a description of the management of groundwater resources in 

the Central Basin, as well as information on basin management. Chapter 6 also 

demonstrates that the management structure of Central Basin provides a reliable 

source of groundwater supply for the City during average, single-dry and multiple-dry 

water years. Historical data indicates Central Basin has been well managed through its 

adjudication, resulting in a stable and reliable water supply. There are no contemplated 

basin management changes, other than increasing direct use of recycled water (see 

Section 6.5). Therefore, the groundwater supplies in the Central Basin are deemed 

reliable.  

 
 
 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐1

CHAPTER 8  

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 
 

 
 

Section 10632 
 
 (a) The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that includes 

each of the following elements that are within the authority of the urban water 
supplier. 

 
 
 

 The City adopted Resolution No. 5592 on September 12, 1991, which 

established an Emergency Water Conservation Plan (see Appendix H).  The 

Emergency Water Conservation Plan is to be implemented when a water shortage 

emergency exists. 

 

8.1 STAGES OF ACTION 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
 (1) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in response to water 

supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply, and an 
outline of specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stage. 

 
 

 
 

 The City must provide the minimum health and safety water needs of the 

community at all times. During water shortage emergencies, the City will implement its 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan, Resolution No. 5592 (see Appendix H), which can 

impose up to a 50 percent mandatory reduction in water use. The City will also work in 

conjunction with MWD to implement water shortage plans and supply allocations on a 

regional level. The City's potable water sources are local groundwater, treated 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐2

groundwater from CBWQPP, treated imported water from MWD and recycled water.  

Rationing stages may be triggered by a shortage in one source or a combination of 

sources, and water supply shortages may trigger a stage at any time.  As noted in 

Resolution No. 5592, a Stage (Phase) I water supply shortage triggers up to a 10 

percent reduction in water use. Stages (Phases) II through V water supply shortage 

triggers up to a 10 to 50 percent reduction in water use.  

 

Table 8-1 provides a description of the stages of action which may be triggered 

by a shortage in one or more of the City’s water supply sources, depending on the 

severity of the shortage and its anticipated duration. 

 

 

8.2 PROHIBITIONS ON END USES 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
 (4) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water 

shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for street 
cleaning 

 
 (5) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban water 

supplier may use any type of consumption reduction methods in its water shortage 
contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are appropriate for its area, and 
have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent 
reduction in water supply. 

 
 

 
 In 2015, he City declared a Stage I water shortage and passed Ordinance No. 

1065, which requires certain reduction measures to be imposed on all water users in the 

City.  In accordance with the City’s Ordinance No. 1065 (see Appendix L), water use 

restrictions are enacted during times of water supply shortage. Restrictions are based 

on severity of shortage include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐3

 Limits on watering days 

 No washing down of driveways and sidewalks 

 Limits on filling ornamental lakes/ponds  

 Establishment of water allocations, including penalty rates for water used above 

an allocation (beginning Stage 2) 

 

As the water purveyor, the City must provide the minimum health and safety 

water needs within its service area at all times.  The water shortage response is 

designed to provide a minimum of fifty percent (50%) of normal supply during a severe 

or extended water shortage.  The various consumption reduction methods undertaken 

by the City are included in Table 8-2. 

 

8.2.1 LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION 

 The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 

runoff is prohibited. 

 The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during and within 48 

hours after measurable rainfall is prohibited. 

 The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians is 

prohibited. The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly 

constructed homes and buildings in a manner inconsistent with regulations or 

other requirements established by the California Building Standards Commission 

and the Department of Housing and Community Development. 

 Outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water is limited to 

no more than two days per week, no more than 10 minutes per area.   

 Residential and commercial landscape areas shall not be watered between the 

hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐4

 Properties located north of Lakeland Road may only be watered on Mondays and 

Thursdays.  Properties located south of Lakeland Road may only be watered on 

Tuesdays and Fridays. 

 

8.2.2 COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND INSTITUTIONAL (CII) 

 To promote water conservation, operators of hotels and motels shall provide 

guests with the option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily.   

 Restaurants or other public places where food is served or offered for sale, shall 

not serve drinking water to any customer, unless expressly requested. 

 

8.2.3 SWIMMING POOLS 

Under the City’s Water Conservation Plan, there is no prohibition on swimming 

pools.  

   

8.2.4 DEFINING WATER FEATURES  

 
 

Section 10632 
 
(b) Commencing with the urban water management plan update due July 1, 2016, for 

purposes of developing the water shortage contingency analysis pursuant to 
subdivision (a), the urban water supplier shall analyze and define water features that 
are artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and fountains, 
separately from swimming pools and spas, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 
115921 of the Health and Safety Code.  

 
 
Health and Safety Code Section 115921 
 
 As used in this article the following terms have the following meanings: (a) 

“Swimming pool” or “pool” means any structure intended for swimming or recreational 
bathing that contains water over 18 inches deep. “Swimming pool” includes in-ground 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐5

and aboveground structures and includes, but is not limited to, hot tubs, spas, 
portable spas, and non-portable wading pools. 

 
 
 

Water shall not be used to clean, fill or maintain levels in decorative fountains, 

unless a re-circulating system is used. 

 

8.2.5 OTHER 

 There shall be no hose washing of walkways, driveways, or parking areas except 

as needed for sanitary or safety purposes.  

 Water hoses used to wash motor vehicles must be fitted with a shut-off nozzle. 

 All water leaks shall be promptly repaired. 

 No water customer shall use water contrary to the provisions stated above. 

 For Stages II through V, no water customer or user shall use or permit the use of 

water from the City in an amount in excess of the following projected reductions 

of the corresponding billing period of the historic base period. 

 

 

8.3 PENALTIES, CHARGES, OTHER ENFORCEMENT OF PROHIBITIONS 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
 
(6) Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 

 
 

 

The City imposes the following penalties, in ascending order:  

 

 Written notice to the customer on or with the current water bill;  



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐6

 A surcharge of 10% of the total water bill, charged in addition to the 

regular water charges;  

 In addition to the regular rate, a minimum over usage charge of $1.25 per 

100 cubic feet of water used over the target quantity;  

 In addition to the regular rate, a minimum over usage charge of $2.00 per 

100 cubic feet of water used over the target quantity;  

 In addition to the regular rate, a minimum over usage charge of $4.00 per 

100 cubic feet of water used over the target quantity shall be charged;  

 In addition to the regular rate, a minimum over usage charge of $10 per 

100 cubic feet of water used over the target quantity shall be charged;   

 The taking of any action prohibited by the City restrictions is an infraction, 

punishable by a fine as set forth in Section 36900 of the California 

Government Code, not to exceed $500 for each day in which the violation 

occurs. 

 

For a third or subsequent failure to comply with the water restrictions, the City 

may install a flow restricting device at a customer’s water service connection.  

Tampering or removal of a flow restricting device may result in water service 

discontinuation.  Each of these penalties results following a notice of subsequent 

violation and failure to comply, when the City is in Stage II through Stage V.   

 

 

8.4 CONSUMPTION REDUCTION METHODS 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
 
(5) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban water 

supplier may use any type of consumption reduction methods in its water shortage 
contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are appropriate for its area, and 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐7

have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent 
reduction in water supply. 

 
 

 
 
During more restrictive stages of water shortage (Stages II through V), the City’s 

consumption reduction methods include graduated percentage reductions in hospitals, 

convalescent homes, schools, hotels and motels, oil field injectors and all other water 

service customers, as shown below. 

 
 Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period 

Customer Group Stage II Stage III Stage IV Stage V 

Hospitals 100 100 95 90 

Convalescent Homes 100 100 95 90 

Schools 100 100 100 90 

Hotels and Motels 90 90 90 85 

Oil Field Injectors 80 75 70 65 

All Other Customers 90 90 90 80 

 

 

8.4.1 CATEGORIES OF CONSUMPTION REDUCTION METHODS 

The City’s consumption reduction methods are provided in Table 8-3.  These 

consumption reduction methods include offering water use surveys, provide rebates on 

plumbing fixtures and devices, reduce system water loss, and expand public information 

campaign.   

 

 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐8

8.5 DETERMINING WATER SHORTAGE REDUCTIONS 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(9) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the urban 

water shortage contingency analysis. 
 

 
The City may use one or more of the following measures to determine actual 

reductions in water consumption: 

 

 Establish a normalized/averaged water use baseline 

 Review water production on a more frequent basis 

 Read customer meters on a more frequent basis 

 Perform leak detections and repair on a more frequent basis 

 Perform meter checking and repair on a more frequent basis 

 Perform periodic water system audits 

 Continue monitor utility actions 

 Continue enforcing penalties for violations 

 

The City measures and determines reductions in water use by using SWRCB’s 

Drought Response Tool pursuant to SWRCB’s Executive Order B-29-15.  Beginning 

October 2014, urban water suppliers were required to estimate and report the number 

of gallons of water per person per day used by residential customers it serves using the 

tool for submitting monthly water production data. The Drought Response Tool allows 

the City to calculate residential GPCD on a monthly basis for comparison with the City’s 

baseline year 2013, which is set by the SWRCB.  

 

  



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐9

8.6 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORTS 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(7) An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in 

paragraphs (1) to (6), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water 
supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, such as the 
development of reserves and rate adjustments. 

 
 

 

8.6.1 DROUGHT RATE STRUCTURE AND SURCHARGES 

The City’s source of revenue is 1) user service charges, which consist of monthly 

fixed water meter charges based on meter size and fire service; 2) a consumption 

charge per unit of water consumed; 3) a reclaimed water rate; 4) a City facility rate; and 

5) a senior citizen lifeline rate. The monthly fixed meter charge is sufficient to meet 

about 50 percent of the City’s fixed expenses. The revenue from the consumption 

charge is designed to be sufficient to fund the remaining 50 percent of the fixed 

expenses plus all of the variable expenses associated with the cost of water.  In 

addition, the City’s consumption charge is based on 5 tiers of water uses and rates 

designed to promote water conservation. The current water rates are provided in 

Appendix M. 

 

8.6.2 USES OF FINANCIAL RESERVES 

 The City maintains financial operating reserves, which may be used for water 

system expenditures to make up for unanticipated shortfalls in water revenue as the 

result of reduced water sales.  

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐10

8.7 RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(8) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 

 
 

 

In 1991, Santa Fe Springs’ City Council adopted Resolution No. 5592, 

establishing an Emergency Water Conservation Plan (Appendix K).  On May 28, 2015, 

the City passed Ordinance No. 1065, which updated and implemented water 

conservation regulations (Appendix L).   

 

8.8 CATASTROPHIC SUPPLY INTERRUPTION 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(3) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare for, and implement 

during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, but not limited to, a 
regional power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

 
 

 
A water shortage emergency could be a catastrophic event such as result of 

drought, failures of transmission facilities, a regional power outage, earthquake, 

flooding, supply contamination from chemical spills, or other adverse conditions.  

 

In the event of a catastrophic supply interruption, the City will implement a water 

shortage contingency plan which is included and within the Urban Water Management 

Plan and updated every five years.  This plan includes specific supplier actions 

designed to minimize the impacts of supply interruption in the City’s service area. Below 

shows possible catastrophe and an action summary. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐11

Possible Catastrophe:  Regional Power Outage.  The City continuously trains 

employees to execute the Emergency Response Plan for such a catastrophe.  The City 

has a list of trained personnel that can transport to, connect, and operate an emergency 

standby generator at a well site to maintain a water supply to the City.  

 

Possible Catastrophe: Earthquake.  Expect MWD to use free-chlorine instead 

of chloramines for disinfection as stated May 25, 1993.  The City receives notification of 

the chlorination change via Member Agency Response System (MARS) or by telephone 

within eight hours of the earthquake. 

 

The City continuously trains employees to execute the Emergency Response 

Plan for such a catastrophe.  The City has portable chlorinators that can be installed at 

the well sites. The City maintains these units in its current equipment inventory.  The 

City has a list of State-Certified water treatment operators to operate and adjust the 

chlorinators after notification to chlorinate by the Department of Health Services.   

 

Possible Catastrophe: Unknown Loss in System Pressure.  According to the 

City Emergency Response Plan, the City will follow four necessary steps prior to a 

public notification program: 

 

1. Determine the reasons for loss in system pressure.  A survey of the system 

should reveal the cause, such as a break in a main, reservoir, or well. 

 

2. Take appropriate action to reduce loss of water supply.  Shut down appropriate 

facilities and/or close distribution system valves.  Each valve that is closed shall 

be logged on the Emergency Valve Closure Log. 

3. Define the type of potential contamination that may occur and identify possible 

sources. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐12

4. Determine the area that is potentially affected by the problem. 

 

After the above steps have been completed, sampling locations will be selected 

to verify that contamination has occurred. Notification of relevant agencies will occur 

prior to public notification process.  

 

Possible Catastrophe: Unknown Event that Requires that the Entire Water 

System be Disinfected at a Rate of 5mg/L.  City source water and stored water will be 

chlorinated in the following manner: 

 

Well #2  

This is an electrically operated well that produces a maximum of approximately 

1,900 gallons-per-minute directly into the distribution system.  This well is equipped with 

redundant chlorine metering pumps and an on-site 500 gallon chlorine storage tank.  

The City will fill and draw from this tank on site and maintain a minimum of 200 gallons 

of 12.5% sodium hypochlorite. The existing chlorination system is capable of 

chlorination to 5 mg/L. 

 

Well #12  

This is an electrically operated well that produces a maximum of approximately 

2,000 gallons-per-minute directly into the distribution system.  This well is equipped with 

redundant chlorine metering pumps and an on-site 300 gallon chlorine storage tank.  

The City can fill and draw from this tank on site and maintain a minimum of 200 gallons 

of 12.5% sodium hypochlorite. The existing chlorination/chloramation system is capable 

of chlorination to 5 mg/L. 

 

Reservoir #1  

This is a 4-million gallon above-ground water storage reservoir.  It loads through 

a 12" pressure sustaining control valve and discharges via a natural gas booster pump 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐13

or an emergency standby diesel booster directly into the distribution system.  This 

reservoir is equipped with redundant chlorine metering pumps and an on site 600 gallon 

chlorine storage tank. The City will fill and draw from this tank on site and maintain a 

minimum of 300 gallons of 12.5% sodium hypochlorite. The chlorination system is 

capable of raising the chlorine level to 5 mg/L in the reservoir.  The reservoir can be 

also chlorinated to 5 mg/L with 65% calcium hypochlorite granules through hand holes 

in the top of the tank. 

 

Reservoir #2  

This is a 4-million gallon above-ground water storage reservoir.  It loads through 

a 12" pressure sustaining control valve and discharges via a natural gas booster pump 

or an emergency standby diesel booster directly into the distribution system.  The 

reservoir is equipped with a chloramination system consisting of chemical metering 

pumps tied into a 3" bypass valve and a water circulation piping grid on the bottom of 

the tank.  This system is capable of raising the chlorine level to 5 mg/L with 12% sodium 

hypochlorite supplied by 55 gallon DOT approved drums delivered by trailer.  The 

reservoir can be also chlorinated to 5 mg/L with 65% calcium hypochlorite granules 

through hand holes in the top of the tank. 

 

Whittier Connection  

This is a 6" connection that consists of a 6" pressure-reducing valve tied to an 8" 

main and is capable of providing up to 2,200 GPM.  This source would be chlorinated to 

5 mg/L through an existing 2” tap by using one of the City’s portable chlorination units. 

 

Metropolitan Water District Connection #30  

This connection is a 12" pressure-reducing valve tied to a 96" MWD water main 

which yields 10 CFS maximum. 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐14

Metropolitan Water District Connection #42  

This connection is a 12" and a 6" pressure-reducing valve tied to a 96" MWD 

water main which yields 16 CFS maximum.  This connection would not be used unless 

absolutely necessary, and would be dependent upon the scope of the causative 

incident, the level and type of disinfection being employed by MWD at the time, and the 

demands upon the City’s water system.  If this "connection were to be used, the City 

would have to limit the water flow to the chlorinating capacity of the portable chlorination 

units.  The City would chlorinate to 5 mg/L through an existing 1" tap. A 24-hour 

manned operation would be established to maintain water flow at a fixed rate. 

 

Portable Chlorination Units 

The City currently has one portable chlorination unit which consists of two 100 

GPD, 100 psi metering pumps, and a 1 HP booster pump all connected together. The 

trailer contains multiple 55 gallon DOT approved chemical drums.  The City is in the 

process of assembling at least two more portable units that will not include a booster 

pump. 

 

Chlorination Chemicals 

As previously stated, the City’s two operational wells are equipped with 500 

gallon chlorine storage tanks.  These tanks are refilled by Univar before the chlorine 

level falls below 200 gallons. The City also maintains a 600 gallon sodium hypochlorite 

tank at the Municipal Services Yard to supply the 4MG reservoir.  This tank is kept at 

least half-full and could be used to fill DOT approved drums for distribution to other 

locations in case of an emergency.  Univar is also available to make emergency 

deliveries of chemicals citywide. Additionally, the City also maintains a minimum of 500 

pounds of calcium hypochlorite at the Aquatic Center that could be used for water 

system chlorination in emergencies. 

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	8‐15

8.9 MINIMUM SUPPLY NEXT THREE YEARS 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(2) An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next three 

water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the agency’s water 
supply. 

 
 

 

As discussed in Section 7.3, the City experienced multiple dry years from 2012 to 

2014.  The minimum water supply available during each of the next three water years 

based on the driest three-year historical sequence (2012 to 2014) for the City’s water 

supply is provided in Table 8-4. 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐1

CHAPTER 9  

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

 

 The City is committed to implementing water conservation programs and works 

collaboratively with CBMWD to provide water conservation programs for the City’s 

customers.  As a member of CBMWD, the City’s residents have the benefit of 

participating in CBMWD’s conservation efforts.  CBMWD offers an extensive program 

throughout its service area and is a signatory to the Memorandum of Understanding 

regarding Urban Water Conservation in California (MOU) and is therefore a member of 

the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC).  Although the City did not 

sign the MOU regarding Urban Water Conservation in California and is not a member of 

the CUWCC, the City takes advantage of its relationship with CBMWD as a member 

agency.  The following sections describe the City’s implementation of the Demand 

Management Measures (DMMs) required in the UWMP Act.   

 

 

9.1 DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES 

 
 

Section 10632(a) 
 
(f) Provide a description of the (wholesale) supplier’s water demand management 

measures. This description shall include all of the following: 
 
 (1)(B) The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the 

following water demand management measures: 
  (ii) Metering.  
  (iv) Public education and outreach.  
  (vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support. 

 (vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact on 
water use as measured in gallons per capita per day, including innovative 
measures, if implemented.  

 
 (2) For an urban wholesale water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, (provide) 

a narrative description of the items in clauses (ii), (iv), (vi), and (vii) of subparagraph 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐2

(B) of paragraph (1), and a narrative description of its distribution system asset 
management and wholesale supplier assistance programs. 

 
 
 

 The City is not a wholesale agency and is not required by DWR to complete 

Section 9.1.  

 

9.2 DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR RETAIL AGENCIES 

 
 

Section 10631(f) 
  
(A) The narrative shall describe the water demand management measure that the 

supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use targets pursuant to Section 
10608.20. 

 
(B)  The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the 

following water demand management measures:  
 (i) Water waste prevention ordinances.  
 (ii) Metering.  
 (iii) Conservation pricing.  
 (iv) Public education and outreach.  
 (v) Programs to assess and manage distribution system real loss.  
 (vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support.  
 (vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact on 

water use as measured in gallons per capita per day, including innovative 
measures, if implemented. 

 
 

 

9.2.1 WATER WASTE PREVENTION ORDINANCES 

  The City Council passed Resolution No. 5592 on September 12, 1991 

establishing an emergency water conservation plan (see Appendix K). The City Council 

passed Ordinance No. 1065 on May 28, 2015, which implemented water conservation 

regulations (see Appendix L).  As discussed in Section 8.2, measures to prevent water 

waste include landscape irrigation during specified hours and days, laundry options at 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐3

lodging establishments, use of recirculated water in decorative water features, and 

prohibition of washing down hard or paved surfaces.   

  

9.2.2 METERING 

 
 

CWC 526 
  
(a)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, an urban water supplier that, on or 

after January 1, 2004, receives water from the federal Central Valley Project 
under a water service contract or subcontract... shall do both of the following: 
(1) On or before January 1, 2013, install water meters on all service connections 

to residential and nonagricultural commercial buildings... located within its 
service area. 

 

CWC 527 
  
(a)  An urban water supplier that is not subject to Section 526 shall do both the 

following: 
(1) Install water meters on all municipal and industrial service connections 

located within its service area on or before January 1, 2025. 
 

 
  

 The City is fully metered for all connections within its service area. Water service 

charges for the City are based on the customers’ connection size.  Section 9.2.3 

provides greater detail about the City’s fees and conservation pricing.  In addition, the 

City requires a separate meter and an appropriate backflow device for each service line 

(i.e. fire, landscape, and domestic use) in new developments.   

 

9.2.3 CONSERVATION PRICING 

As discussed in Section 8.6.1, the City utilizes a water rate structure that 

provides financial incentives for customers to conserve water. The water rate structure 

includes a meter service charge, tiered commodity charge, and a fire line charge. The 

service charge is a fixed charge based on the size of the customer’s connection. The 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐4

fire line charge is also a fixed charge based on the size of the customer’s connection.  

In addition, the City utilizes tiered commodity water rates for recycled water, which are 

lower than potable water rates. 

 

9.2.4 PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 

In coordination with MWD and CBMWD, a variety of water conservation public 

information programs are available to the public within the City. MWD’s water education 

programs provide free teacher workshops, classroom materials, field trips, and class 

instruction to schools, including water conservation related education programs. More 

than 20,000 people viewed student artwork from MWD’s “Water is Life” Student Art and 

Calendar program, which stresses the importance of water conservation.  MWD has an 

education resources website promoting its Science-Technology-Engineering-Arts-Math 

(STEAM) programs for pre-kindergarten through college aged students. The website 

hosts downloadable curriculum regarding water’s critical role in society. 

 

During fiscal year 2013-14, MWD implemented a variety of conservation and 

education outreach programs throughout its service area. MWD authorized $5.5 million 

regional outreach campaign for conservation and water awareness in March 2014. The 

campaign promoted the ongoing need for conservation, including descriptions of long-

term investments in water storage and development of local water resources, and the 

availability of rebates and incentives for turf removal and purchase of water-saving 

devices and appliances. MWD authorized $5.5 million for a second multi-lingual 

communications, outreach and advertising campaign in March 2015. The campaign 

called for online, social media, streaming radio, and mobile ads, along with billboards, 

television commercials, and special events.  

 

CBMWD’s school educational program includes a variety of elementary and high 

school programs within its service area, including the City.  Schools located within 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐5

CBMWD’s service area can receive educational materials and handouts about water 

conservation and water awareness.  CBMWD also provides information on its school 

education programs through its website links.  More information about CBMWD’s school 

education programs is provided in its 2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

 

9.2.5 PROGRAMS TO ASSESS AND MANAGE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 

REAL LOSS 

The City utilizes a water leak detection program. Inspections for leaks are made 

daily during meter reading by trained City Personnel including both potable and 

reclaimed pipelines and meters. When a leak is detected, the appropriate staff is 

notified and a service request is generated on the City’s internal computerized service 

request system to provide documentation and follow up.  Typically, leak repairs are 

made the same day.   

 

Main line water leaks are quickly detected by an observed drop in water pressure 

monitored by a computerized SCADA system. The SCADA system can alert water 

personnel about an area that is losing normal system water pressure typically caused 

by a leak or ruptured pipe.  These types of leaks are repaired immediately.  

 

The City’s distribution system water loss for the year 2015 was approximately 

258 AF, which is a water loss of about 4 percent from the water supplied.  A copy of the 

AWWA Audit worksheet is provided in Appendix F.  

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐6

9.2.6 WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM COORDINATION AND 

STAFFING SUPPORT 

 The City has assigned the Utility Services Manager as its Conservation 

Coordinator to implement conservation programs within its service area. The 

Conservation Coordinator works collaboratively with other cities and water agencies 

within the region, including MWD’s Conservation Coordinator, to enhance water 

conservation.  

 

CBMWD’s water conservation coordinator promotes conservation programs that 

are available to the residents of the City.  CBMWD’s program started in 2003.  The 

conservation coordinator employed by CBMWD promotes CBMWD’s water 

conservation programs and works directly with cities and water agencies like the City on 

enhancing water conservation efforts.  In addition, CBMWD’s water conservation 

coordinator does research on water management practices and looks for federal, state 

and local funding programs that CBMWD, cities or retail water purveyors may utilize.  

Additional information about CBMWD’s water conservation coordinator is provided in its 

2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference.   

 

9.2.7 OTHER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

The City currently participates in CBMWD and MWD retrofit programs and 

assists its customers in obtaining plumbing retrofits from CBMWD and MWD. These 

programs include distribution of conservation kits consisting of showerhead flow 

restrictors, toilet tank displacement devices, dye tablets for use in detecting toilet leaks, 

and brochures on conservation measures. The City also provides information to its 

customers about various programs available CBMWD and MWD.  

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐7

The City participates in CBMWD's high-efficiency toilet (HET) (0.8 gallons per 

flush or less) and high-efficiency clothes washer (HECW) rebate programs and will 

continue to do so in the future.  Residents in the City’s service area can participate in 

CBMWD’s Landscape Rotating Nozzles program that offers rebates through MWD’s 

program for the purchase of landscape rotating nozzles for landscape irrigation.  In 

addition, CBMWD’s Synthetic Turf program offers rebates through MWD’s program for 

replacement of the irrigated area with synthetic turf. 

 

 CBMWD also offers landscape classes to residences within its service area, 

including the City, to teach residents about water conservation and to reduce urban run-

off.  Additional information on CBMWD’s water conservation programs is available in 

CBMWD’s 2015 Plan, which is incorporated by reference. 

 

 

9.3 IMPLEMENTATION OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS 

 
 

CWC 10631 
  
(f)  Provide a description of the supplier’s water demand management measures. 

This description shall include all of the following: 
 

(1)(A) a narrative description that addresses the nature and extent of each water 
demand management measure implemented over the past five years. 

 
 

 
The City is committed to implementing water conservation programs and works 

collaboratively with CBMWD to provide water conservation programs for its customers.  

The nature and extent of DMMs implemented over the past five years is described 

below. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐8

Water Waste Prevention Ordinances – As discussed in Section 9.2.1, The City Council 

had passed Resolution No. 5592 on September 21, 1991, which established an 

emergency water conservation plan.  The City passed Ordinance No. 1065, 

implementing measures and prohibitions to prevent water waste within the City. The 

City Council may enact a specific stage during an emergency.  During each stage, all 

water customers are to abide to conservation requirements as mandated by the City 

Council. 

 

Metering – As discussed in Section 9.2.2, the City’s existing customers are fully 

metered and are billed based on customer’s connection size.  In addition, the City 

requires a separate meter and an appropriate backflow device for each service line (i.e. 

fire, landscape, and domestic use) in new developments.   

 

Public Education and Outreach – As discussed in Section 9.2.4, the City in coordination 

with MWD and CBMWD, offer a variety of water conservation public information 

programs are available to the public. During fiscal year 2013-14, MWD implemented a 

variety of conservation and education outreach programs throughout its service area. 

MWD authorized $5.5 million regional outreach campaign for conservation and water 

awareness in March 2014. MWD authorized $5.5 million for a second multi-lingual 

communications, outreach and advertising campaign in March 2015. 

 

Programs to Assess and Manage Distribution System Real Loss – As discussed in 

Section 9.2.5, the City repairs main breaks, hydrant leaks or breaks, and meter leaks as 

they occur. A team of water service workers is available to permanently repair main or 

hydrant breaks, and promptly restore water service. Water meters that are identified to 

be leaking are investigated and repaired promptly. The City also replaces deteriorated 

water mains, which are quickly detected by an observed drop in water pressure 

monitored by a computerized SCADA system.  

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐9

Water Conservation Program Coordination and Staffing Support – As described in 

Section 9.2.6, the City has assigned the Utility Services Manager as its Conservation 

Coordinator to implement conservation programs within its service area. The 

Conservation Coordinator works collaboratively with other cities and water agencies 

within the region, including MWD’s Conservation Coordinator, to enhance water 

conservation. 

 

Other Demand Management Measures – As discussed in Section 9.2.7, other DMMs 

implemented are summarized below. 

 

 The City currently participates in CBMWD and MWD retrofit programs and 

assists its customers in obtaining plumbing retrofits from CBMWD and MWD. 

These programs include distribution of conservation kits consisting of 

showerhead flow restrictors, toilet tank displacement devices, dye tablets for 

use in detecting toilet leaks, and brochures on conservation measures. 

 The City continued participation in CBMWD's HET, HECW, Landscape 

Rotating Nozzles and Synthetic Turf rebate program offers. 

 

 

9.4 PLANNED IMPLEMENTATION TO ACHIEVE WATER USE TARGETS 

 
 

 
CWC 10631 
  
(f)  Provide a description of the supplier’s water demand management measures. 

This description shall include all of the following: 
 

(1)(A) …The narrative shall describe the water demand management measures 
that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use targets pursuant 
to Section 10608.20. 

 
 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	9‐10

 
The City is committed to implementing water conservation programs and works 

collaboratively with CBMWD to provide water conservation programs for its residents.  

As a member of CBMWD, the City’s residents have the benefit of participating in 

CBWMD’s conservation efforts.  The City and CBMWD monitor the status of water 

conservation and DMM programs, which include a quantitative status of some DMMs 

(i.e. low-flow showerhead distribution), and a qualitative status of others (public 

education).  

 

As discussed in Section 5.8.1, the City’s 2014-15 water use of 83 GPCD is in 

compliance with the 2015 Interim Target of 101 GPCD and the 2020 Target of 100 

GPCD, as shown in SB X7-7 Table 9. The City met their 2015 interim target and 2020 

target through the implementation of DMMs discussed in Section 9.2. Continued 

implementation of these DMMs will assist the City in meeting the 2020 water use targets 

projected in Section 5.7. 

 
 

9.5 MEMBERS OF THE CALIFORNIA URBAN WATER CONSERVATION COUNCIL 

 
 

CWC 10631 
  
(i)  For purposes of this part, urban water suppliers that are members of the 

California Urban Water Conservation Council shall be deemed in compliance 
with the requirements of subdivision (f) by complying with all the provisions of the 
“Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in 
California,” dated December 10, 2008, as it may be amended, and by submitting 
the annual reports required by Section 6.2 of that memorandum. 

 
 
 

The City is not a signatory to the Memorandum of Understanding regarding 

Urban Water Conservation in California and is therefore not a member of the California 

Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC). 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐1

CHAPTER 10  

PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 

 

10.1 INCLUSION OF ALL 2015 DATA 

The data provided in the City’s 2015 Plan is provided on a calendar year basis 

through December 31, 2015 (as discussed in Section 2.4.2). 

 

10.2 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

10.2.1 NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

 
 

CWC 10621. 
 

(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan shall… at least 60 days prior to 
the public hearing on the plan … notify any city or county within which the supplier 
provides waters supplies that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the plan. 
 
 

CWC 10642. 
 
…The urban water supplier shall provide notice of the time and place of hearing to any 
city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies. A privately owned water 
supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its service area… 

 
 

 

As discussed in Section 2.5.2. the City coordinated the preparation of the Urban 

Water Management Plan with the CBMWD, the County of Los Angeles, City of Norwalk, 

and City of Downey.  The City notified these agencies and City residents at least sixty 

(60) days prior to the public hearing of the preparation of the 2015 Plan and invited 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐2

them to participate in the development of the Plan.  A copy of the notification letters sent 

to these agencies is provided in Appendix N.  

 

Additionally, a notice of public hearing was sent to CBMWD, the County of Los 

Angeles, City of Norwalk, City of Downey, and residents of Santa Fe Springs.  Copies of 

the notice of the public hearing are provided in Appendix O.   

 

 Table 10-1 summarizes the agencies which were provided notifications by the 

City. 

 

10.2.2 NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
 

CWC 10642. 
 

…Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier shall make the plan available for 
public inspection…Prior to the hearing, notice of the time and place of hearing shall be 
published within the jurisdiction of the publicly owned water supplier pursuant to Section 
6066 of the Government Code… 
 
 

Government Code 6066. 
 

Publication of notice pursuant to this section shall be once a week for two successive 
weeks. Two publications in a newspaper published once a week or oftener, with at least 
five days intervening between the respective publication dates not counting such 
publication dates, are sufficient. The period of notice commences upon the first day of 
publication and terminates at the end of the fourteenth day, including therein the first day. 

 
 
 

The City encouraged the active involvement of the population within its service 

area prior to and during the preparation of the Plan.   Pursuant to Section 6066 of the 

Government Code, the City published a notice of public hearing in the newspaper 

during the weeks of May 14 and 21, 2017.  A notice of public hearing was also provided 

to the City Clerk’s office and on the City’s website.  To ensure that the plan was 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐3

available for review, the City placed a copy of the 2015 draft Plan at the City Clerk’s 

Office located at City Hall and made a copy available for review on its website.   

 

10.3 PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION 

 
 

CWC 10642. 
 

…Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier shall hold a public hearing thereon. 
	
	

CWC 10608.26. 
	
 (a) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier shall conduct at least one 
public hearing to accomplish all of the following: 
 

(1) Allow community input regarding the urban retail water supplier’s implementation 
plan for complying with this part. 
 

(2) Consider the economic impacts of the urban retail water supplier’s 
implementation plan for complying with this part. 

 
(3) Adopt a method, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20 for determining 

its urban water use target. 
 

 
 

Prior to adopting the 2015 Plan, the City held a public hearing on May 25, 2017 

which included input from the community regarding the City’s draft 2015 Plan. As part of 

the public hearing, the City made available to the public information on determination of 

its water use targets (see Section 5.7.1), economic impacts (see Section 8.6) and 

DMMs (see Chapter 9). 

 

The City is committed to the implementation of the 2015 Plan in accordance with 

Section 10643 of the Act, including the water demand management measures (DMMs) 

(see Section 9) and water conservation requirements of SBX7-7 (see Section 5).  The 

City continues to be committed to the concept of good water management practice and 

intends to expand its water conservation program as budgets and staffing allow.  The 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐4

City's water conservation program will periodically be re-evaluated and modified to 

institute additional methods or techniques as the need arises.  The City reviewed 

implementation of its 2010 Plan and incorporated changes to create the 2015 Plan. 

 

10.3.1 ADOPTION 

 
 

CWC 10642. 
 

…After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as modified after the hearing. 
 

 
 

 Following the public hearing, the City adopted the draft Plan as its 2015 Plan.  A 

copy of the resolution adopting the 2015 Plan is provided in Appendix P.   

 
 

10.4 PLAN SUBMITTAL 

 
 

CWC 10621. 
 

(d) An urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 
 
 

CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(1) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies a copy of 
its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. 

 
 
CWC 10635. 
 

(b) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its urban water management 
plan prepared pursuant to this article to any city or county within which it provides water 
supplies no later than 60 days after the submission of its urban water management plan. 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐5

10.4.1 SUBMITTING A UWMP TO DWR 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2015 Plan by the City Council and by July 1, 

2016, the City will submit the adopted 2015 Plan to DWR. The 2015 Plan will be 

submitted through DWR’s “Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Data Online Submittal Tool” 

website. 

 

DWR developed a checklist for an Urban Water Management Plan to ensure it 

has addresses the requirements of the California Water Code. The City has completed 

the DWR checklist by indicating where the required CWC elements can be found within 

the City’s 2015 Plan (See Appendix C). 

 

10.4.2 ELECTRONIC DATA SUBMITTAL 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2015 Plan, the City will also submit all data 

tables associated with the 2015 Plan through DWR’s “Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Data 

Online Submittal Tool” website. 

 

10.4.3 SUBMITTING A UWMP TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE LIBRARY 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2015 Plan by the City Council, a copy (CD or 

hardcopy) of the 2015 Plan will be submitted to the State of California Library. A copy of 

the letter to the State Library will be maintained in the City’s file. The 2015 Plan will be 

mailed to the following address if sent by regular mail: 

California State Library 
Government Publications Section 
P.O. Box 942837 
Sacramento, CA 94237-0001 
Attention: Coordinator, Urban Water Management Plans 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐6

The 2015 Plan will be mailed to the following address if sent by courier or overnight 

carrier: 

California State Library 
Government Publications Section 
914 Capitol Mall 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

10.4.4 SUBMITTING A UWMP TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2015 Plan by the City Council, a copy of the 

2015 Plan will be submitted to the County of Los Angeles Registrar / Recorders office 

and the City Clerk’s Office. A copy of the letter to the County of Los Angeles will be 

maintained in the City’s file. 

 

10.5 PUBLIC AVAILABILITY 

 
 

CWC 10645. 
 

Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the urban water 
supplier and the department shall make the plan available for public review during normal 
business hours. 

 
 

 

Within 30 days after submittal of the 2015 Plan to DWR, the City will make the 

2015 Plan available at the City Clerk’s Office located at City Hall during normal business 

hours and on the City’s website.  

 

 



 	

Urban	Water	Management	Plan	Update	 2015	

   
 
 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	 Page	10‐7

10.6 AMENDING AN ADOPTED UWMP 

 
 

CWC 10621. 
 

(c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the manner 
set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 
 

CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(1) Copies of amendments or changes to the plans shall be submitted to the 
department, the California State Library, and any city or county within which the supplier 
provides water supplies within 30 days after adoption. 

 
 

 
If the City amends the adopted 2015 Plan, the amended Plan will undergo 

adoption by the City’s governing board. Within 30 days of adoption, the amended 

Plan will then be submitted to DWR, the State of California Library, the County of 

Los Angeles Registrar / Recorders office, and the City Clerk’s Office. 

 

 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLES 



Public Water System 

Number

Public Water System 

Name

Number of Municipal 

Connections 2015

Volume of

Water Supplied

2015

CA1910245 City of Santa Fe Springs 6,347 6,369

6,347 6,369

Table 2‐1 Retail Only: Public Water Systems                                                                                       

NOTES: Includes Recycled Water

TOTAL



Water Supplier is also a member of a RUWMP

Water Supplier is also a member of a Regional 

Alliance Gateway Regional Alliance

Regional Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP)                        

Table 2‐2: Plan Identification  

NOTES:

Individual UWMP

Name of RUWMP or Regional Alliance                   

if applicable                                           
drop down list

Select 

Only One
Type of Plan



Agency is a wholesaler

Agency is a retailer

UWMP Tables Are in Calendar Years

UWMP Tables Are in Fiscal Years

Unit AF

NOTES:

Table 2‐3: Agency Identification                                               

Type of Agency (select one or both)

Fiscal or Calendar Year (select one)

If Using Fiscal Years Provide Month and Date that the Fiscal Year Begins 

(mm/dd)

Units of Measure Used in UWMP (select from Drop down)



Table 2‐4 Retail: Water Supplier Information Exchange  

The retail supplier has informed the following wholesale supplier(s) of projected water 

use in accordance with CWC 10631.                   

Wholesale Water Supplier Name (Add additional rows as needed) 

Central Basin Municipal Water District (CBMWD)

NOTES:



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

14,644 15,266 15,920 16,601 17,313 18,054

Table 3‐1 Retail: Population ‐ Current and Projected

Population 

Served

NOTES: Based on 2015 population using the DWR Population Tool (see Section 5.4.1) 

and projected populations from the Southern California Association of Governments 

(SCAG) for the City



Use Type                       
(Add additional rows as needed)

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will be 

recognized by the WUEdata online submittal 

tool

Additional Description           
(as needed)

Level of Treatment 

When Delivered
Drop down list

Volume

Single Family Drinking Water 1,277

Commercial Drinking Water 3,894

Losses  Drinking Water 170

Other  Unbilled water Drinking Water 89

5,430

 Table 4‐1 Retail: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Actual

2015 Actual

NOTES: 

TOTAL



Use Type  (Add additional rows as needed)

 Drop down list 

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will be recognized by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040‐opt

Single Family 1,710 1,783 1,860 1,939 2,022

Commercial 3,330 3,482 3,639 3,803 3,975

Losses  172 173 175 177 179

Other  Unbilled Water 90 91 92 93 94

5,302 5,529 5,766 6,012 6,270

 Table 4‐2 Retail: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Projected 

Additional Description        

(as needed)

Projected Water Use                               

Report To the Extent that Records are Available

NOTES: 

TOTAL



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(opt)

Potable and Raw Water         From 

Tables 4‐1 and 4‐2
5,430 5,302 5,529 5,766 6,012 6,270

Recycled Water Demand*     From 

Table 6‐4
939 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

TOTAL WATER DEMAND 6,369 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Table 4‐3 Retail: Total Water Demands

NOTES:

*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6‐4 is complete. 



Reporting Period Start Date 

(mm/yyyy) 
Volume of Water Loss*

07/2015 170

NOTES:  AWWA worksheet provided in Appendix E.

Table 4‐4  Retail:  12 Month Water Loss Audit Reporting  

* Taken from the field "Water Losses" (a combination of apparent 

losses and real losses) from the AWWA worksheet.



Are Future Water Savings Included in Projections?
(Refer to Appendix K of UWMP Guidebook)

Drop down list (y/n)       Yes

If "Yes"  to above, state the section or page number, in the cell to the right, where citations of the codes, 

ordinances, etc… utilized in demand projections are found.  
Section 4.4 and Chapter 8

Are Lower Income Residential Demands Included In Projections?  
Drop down list (y/n)

Yes

Table 4‐5 Retail Only:  Inclusion in Water Use Projections

NOTES:



Baseline 

Period
Start Year          End Year      

Average 

Baseline  

GPCD*

2015 Interim 

Target *

Confirmed 

2020 Target*

10‐15 

year
1999 2008 101 101 100

5 Year 2003 2007 106

Table 5‐1 Baselines and Targets Summary

Retail Agency or Regional Alliance Only

*All values are in Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD)

NOTES:



Extraordinary 

Events*

Economic 

Adjustment*

Weather 

Normalization*

TOTAL 

Adjustments*

Adjusted  

2015 GPCD*

83 101 0 0 0 0 83 83 Yes

*All values are in Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) 

NOTES:

Table 5‐2: 2015 Compliance

Retail Agency  or Regional Alliance Only

Actual    

2015 GPCD*

2015 

Interim 

Target 

GPCD*

2015 GPCD* 

(Adjusted if 

applicable)

Did Supplier 

Achieve 

Targeted 

Reduction for 

2015? Y/N

Optional Adjustments to 2015 GPCD                                        

Enter "0" if no adjustment is made                                                                       From 

Methodology 8



Groundwater Type
Drop Down List

May use each category 

multiple times

Location or Basin Name 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alluvial Basin Central Groundwater Basin 1,210 1,314 1,310 20 0

1,210 1,314 1,310 20 0

 Table 6‐1  Retail: Groundwater Volume Pumped

Supplier does not pump groundwater.                                                                                                                  

The supplier will not complete the table below.

NOTES: Wells not operating during 2014 and 2015

TOTAL

Add additional rows as needed



Name of 

Wastewater 

Collection Agency

Wastewater Volume 

Metered or 

Estimated?
Drop Down List

Volume of 

Wastewater 

Collected from 

UWMP Service Area 

2015                

Name of Wastewater 

Treatment Agency 

Receiving Collected 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Plant Name

Is WWTP Located 

Within UWMP 

Area?
Drop Down List

Is WWTP Operation 

Contracted to a Third 

Party? (optional)        
Drop Down List

City of Santa Fe 

Springs
Estimated 990

Sanitation Districts of 

Los Angeles County

Los Coyotes 

Water 

Reclamation 

Plant  and Long 

Beach Water 

Reclamation 

Plant 

No No

990

Table 6‐2 Retail:  Wastewater Collected Within Service Area in 2015

NOTES:  Volume of wastewater (AF) based on 60 gpcd generated.  

Recipient of Collected Wastewater

Total Wastewater Collected from Service 

Area in 2015:

There is no wastewater collection system.  The supplier will not complete the table below. 

Percentage of 2015 service area population covered by wastewater collection system  (optional)

Percentage of 2015 service area covered by wastewater collection system (optional)

Wastewater Collection

Add additional rows as needed



Wastewater 

Treated

Discharged 

Treated 

Wastewater

Recycled 

Within 

Service Area

Recycled 

Outside of 

Service Area

Total 0 0 0 0

NOTES:

Table 6‐3 Retail:  Wastewater Treatment and Discharge Within Service Area in 2015

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Plant Name

Discharge 

Location 

Name or 

Identifier

Discharge 

Location 

Description

Wastewater 

Discharge ID 

Number      

(optional)

Method of 

Disposal

Drop down list

Does This Plant 

Treat Wastewater 

Generated 

Outside the 

Service Area?

Treatment 

Level

Drop down list

2015 volumes

No wastewater is treated or disposed of within the UWMP service area.                                                                                                                                                

The supplier will not complete the table below.

Add additional rows as needed



939 AF

General Description of 2015 Uses
Level of Treatment

Drop down list
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

Agricultural irrigation

Landscape irrigation (excludes golf courses)
School Fields, Parks, Business Parks, 

Walkways, Roadway Medians
Tertiary 563 548 572 596 622 649

Golf course irrigation

Commercial use

Carpet Manufacturing, Cooling Tower, 

Concrete Mixing Tertiary
376 366 381 398 414 432

Geothermal and other energy production 

Seawater intrusion barrier

Recreational impoundment

Wetlands or wildlife habitat

Groundwater recharge (IPR)*

Surface water augmentation (IPR)*

Direct potable reuse

Total: 939 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

Industrial use

NOTES:

Supplemental Water Added in 2015

Source of 2015 Supplemental Water

Beneficial Use Type

*IPR ‐ Indirect Potable Reuse

Los Coyotes Water Reclamation Plant and San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant

Other (Provide General Description)

Recycled water is not used and is not planned for use within the service area of the supplier.

The supplier will not complete the table below.

Table 6‐4 Retail:  Current and Projected Recycled Water Direct Beneficial Uses Within Service Area

Name of Agency Producing (Treating) the Recycled Water: Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County

Name of Agency Operating the Recycled Water Distribution System: Central Basin Municipal Water District



2010 Projection for 2015 2015 Actual Use

Landscape irrigation (excludes golf courses) 549 563

230 376

Geothermal and other energy production 

Other  Type of Use

779 939

Recycled water was not used in 2010 nor projected for use in 2015.                                                 

The supplier will not complete the table below. 

Table 6‐5 Retail:  2010 UWMP Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2015 Actual

Use Type

NOTES:  

Total

Groundwater recharge (IPR)

Direct potable reuse

Agricultural irrigation

Industrial use

Seawater intrusion barrier

Recreational impoundment

Wetlands or wildlife habitat

Surface water augmentation (IPR)

Golf course irrigation

Commercial use



Name of Action Description

Planned 

Implementation 

Year

Expected Increase in 

Recycled Water Use        

0

Table 6‐6 Retail: Methods to Expand Future Recycled Water Use

Total

NOTES:

Supplier does not plan to expand recycled water use in the future. Supplier will not complete 

the table below but will provide narrative explanation.  

Provide page location of narrative in UWMP

Add additional rows as needed



Drop Down List  (y/n) If Yes, Agency Name

Treatment Facilities No
Groundwater Water 

Quality Treatment
FY 17‐18 All Year Types 2,000 gpm

No expected future water supply projects or programs that provide a quantifiable increase to the agency's water supply. 

Supplier will not complete the table below.

Some or all of the supplier's future water supply projects or programs are not compatible with this table and are described 

in a narrative format.                                                                                                   

Table 6‐7 Retail: Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs

Joint Project with other agencies?

NOTES: 

Name of Future 

Projects or Programs

Description

(if needed)

Planned 

Implementation 

Year

Expected 

Increase in  

Water Supply to 

Agency 
This may be a range

Planned for Use 

in Year Type
Drop Down List

Provide page location of narrative in the UWMP

Add additional rows as needed



Water Supply 

Drop down list

May use each category multiple times.

These are the only water supply categories 

that will be recognized by the WUEdata 

online submittal tool 

Actual Volume
Water 

Quality
Drop Down List

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Purchased or Imported  Water CBMWD WQPP 2,716
Drinking 

Water

Purchased or Imported  Water MWD 2,714
Drinking 

Water

Groundwater Central Basin Wells 0 Raw Water

Recycled Water  CBMWD 939
Recycled 

Water

6,369 0

 Table 6‐8  Retail: Water Supplies — Actual

Additional Detail on     

Water Supply

2015

NOTES:

Total

Add additional rows as needed



Water Supply                  

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Purchased or Imported  Water CB WQPP* 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Groundwater CB Wells 1,302 1,529 1,766 2,012 2,270

Purchased or Imported  Water MWD 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Recycled Water  CBMWD 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

6,216 0 6,482 0 6,760 0 7,048 0 7,351 0

NOTES:  *CB WQPP volume is based on contracted minimal amount of 1,250 gpm (about 2,000 AFY)

 Table 6‐9 Retail: Water Supplies — Projected

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

Projected Water Supply 

Report To the Extent Practicable

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

Total

Drop down list

May use each category multiple 

times. These are the only water supply 

categories that will be recognized by 

the WUEdata online submittal tool 

Add additional rows as needed



% of Average Supply

Average Year 2010 100%

Single‐Dry Year 2012 107%

Multiple‐Dry Years 1st Year  2012 107%

Multiple‐Dry Years 2nd Year 2013 110%

Multiple‐Dry Years 3rd Year 2014 106%

Multiple‐Dry Years 4th Year Optional 

Multiple‐Dry Years 5th Year Optional 

Multiple‐Dry Years 6th  Year Optional 

6722

7174

7174

7407

Table 7‐1 Retail: Basis of Water Year Data

Year Type

Base Year    
If not using a 

calendar year, 

type in the last 

year of the fiscal,  

water year, or 

range of years, 

for example, 

water year 1999‐

2000, use 2000

Available Supplies if 

Year Type Repeats

Quantification of available supplies is not 

compatible with this table and is provided 

elsewhere in the UWMP.                               

Location __________________________

Quantification of available supplies is provided 

in this table as either volume only, percent 

only, or both.

Volume Available  

7134

NOTES:

Agency may use multiple versions of Table 7‐1 if different water sources have different base years and the 

supplier chooses to report the base years for each water source separately. If an agency uses multiple versions 

of Table 7‐1, in the "Note" section of each table, state that multiple versions of Table 7‐1 are being used and 

identify the particular water source that is being reported in each table.



  2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(Opt)

Supply totals

(autofill from Table 6‐9) 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Demand totals

(autofill from Table 4‐3) 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Difference
0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐2 Retail: Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

NOTES:



  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (Opt)

Supply totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Demand totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐3 Retail: Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison

NOTES: Normal year water supplies were projected and multiplied by a single dry 

year factor of 107%.



  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (Opt)

Supply totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Demand totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 6,849 7,143 7,449 7,766 8,100

Demand totals 6,849 7,143 7,449 7,766 8,100

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 6,597 6,879 7,174 7,480 7,802

Demand totals 6,597 6,879 7,174 7,480 7,802

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐4 Retail: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison

First year 

Second year 

Third year 

NOTES: Normal year water supplies were projected and multiplied by multiple dry year factors 

as follows: First Year: 107% of average year demand, Second year: 110% of average year 

demand and Third Year: 106% of average year demand.

Fourth year 

(optional)

Fifth year 

(optional)

Sixth year 

(optional)



Percent Supply 

Reduction1

Numerical value as a 

percent

Water Supply Condition 

(Narrative description)

1* 10%

A Stage 1 Water Supply Shortage exists when the City determines that 

due to drought or other water supply reductions, a water supply 

shortage exists. The type of event prompting this stage may include, 

among other factors, a finding that CBMWD calls for extraordinary 

water conservation.

2

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

3

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

4

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

5 up to 50%

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

Table 8‐1 Retail

Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 

Complete Both

1  One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%.

NOTES: 

The City will determine the Stage of water conservation necessary to accomplish water conservation 

requirements, which is based on the severity of the water supply shortage.

* As of June 2015, the City’s overall water use reduction goal is 16 percent, which is intended to address 

SWRCB’s 2015 mandated statewide water use reduction goal of 25 percent. 

Add additional rows as needed



Stage  

Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Users

Drop down list

These are the only categories that will be accepted by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool 

Additional Explanation or 

Reference

(optional)

Penalty, Charge, or 

Other Enforcement? 
Drop Down List

All Stages
Landscape ‐ Restrict or prohibit runoff from landscape 

irrigation
Yes

All Stages Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific times Yes

All Stages Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific days Yes

All Stages
CII ‐ Lodging establishment must offer opt out of linen 

service
Yes

All Stages CII ‐ Restaurants may only serve water upon request Yes

All Stages
Water Features ‐ Restrict water use for decorative water 

features, such as fountains
Yes

All Stages Other ‐ Require automatic shut of hoses Yes

All Stages
Other ‐ Prohibit use of potable water for washing hard 

surfaces
Yes

Table 8‐2 Retail Only: Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses 

NOTES:

Restrictions and Prohibitions are listed in Santa Fe Springs Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 54 (Ordinance 1065, adopted 

May 28, 2015).

Add additional rows as needed



Stage

Consumption Reduction Methods by 

Water Supplier

 Drop down list

 These are the only categories that will be accepted 

by the WUEdata online submittal tool 

Additional Explanation or Reference 

(optional)

All Stages Offer Water Use Surveys

The City offers water conservation kits to 

residential customers.  The kit includes faucet 

aerators, low flow shower heads, toilet tank 

dams, water saving information, and a simple 

water audit guide.

All Stages
Provide Rebates on Plumbing Fixtures and 

Devices

CBMWD offers rebates on high efficiency clothes 

washers, premium high efficiency toilets, weather‐

based irrigation controllers, soil moisture sensors, 

rotating sprinkler nozzles, and rain 

barrels/cisterns.

All Stages Reduce System Water Loss
The City inspects for leaks on a daily basis.  Main 

line water leaks are monitored electronically.  

All Stages Expand Public Information Campaign

Public information materials from CBMWD and 

MWD are provided to the City's customers by 

mail, City newsletters, and at public facilities.

Table 8‐3 Retail Only: 

Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan ‐ Consumption Reduction Methods  

NOTES:

Add additional rows as needed



2016 2017 2018

Available Water 

Supply
7,174 7,407 7,134

Table 8‐4 Retail: Minimum Supply Next Three Years

NOTES: Volumes based on water supplies of driest 3‐year historic 

sequence (2012 to 2014).  



City Name          60 Day Notice
Notice of Public 

Hearing

Santa Fe Springs     
Norwalk      

Downey     

County Name      
Drop Down List

60 Day Notice
Notice of Public 

Hearing

Los Angeles 

County
    

    

Table 10‐1 Retail: Notification to Cities and Counties             

Add additional rows as needed

Add additional rows as needed



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FIGURES 



J:\2570\2570-15-2015 (Santa Fe Springs)\03 Plates and Figures\FIGURE 1.dwg

FIGURE 1

NONE

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

WATER SERVICE AREA BOUNDARY



J:\2570\2570-15-2015 (Santa Fe Springs)\03 Plates and Figures\FIGURE 2.dwg

FIGURE 2

NONE

WATER SERVICE AREA AND MUNICIPAL

BOUNDARIES

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS



LEGEND:

CENTRAL BASIN BOUNDARY

SERVICE AREA

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

SERVICE AREA

ENGINEERS INC.

S T E T S O N

2651 W Guadalupe Rd., Suite A209

San Rafael California 94901
2171 E Francisco Blvd., Suite K 

Mesa Arizona 85202

FAX: (818) 331-7065
TEL: (818) 967-6202
COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91724
861 VILLAGE OAKS DRIVE, SUITE 100

FIG
U

R
E

 3



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

HISTORICAL CENTRAL BASIN GROUNDWATER LEVELS 

J:\2570\2570-15-2015 (Santa Fe Springs)\03 Plates and Figures\FIGURE 4.dwg

2651 W Guadalupe Rd., Suite A209

San Rafael California 94901
2171 E Francisco Blvd., Suite K 

Mesa Arizona 85202

FAX: (626) 331-7065
TEL: (626) 967-6202
COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91724
861 VILLAGE OAKS DRIVE,  SUITE 100

F:\JOBS\2343.CTB

Source : Water Replenishment District of Southern California

FIG
U

R
E

 4



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A  
Urban Water Management Planning Act 

 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 2 
 

 
 
California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.6. 

Chapter 1. General Declaration and Policy §10610‐10610.4 
Chapter 2. Definitions §10611‐10617 
Chapter 3. Urban Water Management Plans 

Article 1. General Provisions §10620‐10621 
Article 2. Contents of Plans §10630‐10634 
Article 2.5. Water Service Reliability §10635 
Article 3. Adoption And Implementation of Plans §10640‐10645 

Chapter 4. Miscellaneous Provisions §10650‐10656 
 
 

Chapter 1. General Declaration and Policy 

SECTION 10610-10610.4  

10610.  This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Urban Water Management Planning 
Act." 

10610.2.  (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 

   (1) The waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource subject to ever-
increasing demands. 

   (2) The conservation and efficient use of urban water supplies are of statewide 
concern; however, the planning for that use and the implementation of those 
plans can best be accomplished at the local level. 

(3) A long-term, reliable supply of water is essential to protect the productivity of 
California's businesses and economic climate. 

   (4) As part of its long-range planning activities, every urban water supplier should 
make every effort to ensure the appropriate level of reliability in its water 
service sufficient to meet the needs of its various categories of customers 
during normal, dry, and multiple dry water years. 

   (5) Public health issues have been raised over a number of contaminants that 
have been identified in certain local and imported water supplies. 

   (6) Implementing effective water management strategies, including groundwater 
storage projects and recycled water projects, may require specific water 
quality and salinity targets for meeting groundwater basins water quality 
objectives and promoting beneficial use of recycled water. 

   (7) Water quality regulations are becoming an increasingly important factor in 
water agencies' selection of raw water sources, treatment alternatives, and 
modifications to existing treatment facilities. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 3 
 

   (8) Changes in drinking water quality standards may also impact the usefulness of 
water supplies and may ultimately impact supply reliability. 

   (9) The quality of source supplies can have a significant impact on water 
management strategies and supply reliability. 

(b) This part is intended to provide assistance to water agencies in carrying out their 
long-term resource planning responsibilities to ensure adequate water supplies to 
meet existing and future demands for water. 

10610.4. The Legislature finds and declares that it is the policy of the state as follows: 

(a) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of water shall be 
actively pursued to protect both the people of the state and their water 
resources. 

(b) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of urban water 
supplies shall be a guiding criterion in public decisions. 

(c) Urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water management plans to 
actively pursue the efficient use of available supplies. 

 

Chapter 2. Definitions 

SECTION 10611-10617  

10611.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the definitions of this chapter govern the 
construction of this part. 

10611.5. “Demand management" means those water conservation measures, programs, and 
incentives that prevent the waste of water and promote the reasonable and efficient 
use and reuse of available supplies. 

10612.  "Customer" means a purchaser of water from a water supplier who uses the water for 
municipal purposes, including residential, commercial, governmental, and industrial 
uses. 

10613.  "Efficient use" means those management measures that result in the most effective use 
of water so as to prevent its waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of 
use. 

10614.  "Person" means any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, business, 
trust, corporation, company, public agency, or any agency of such an entity. 

10615.  "Plan" means an urban water management plan prepared pursuant to this part. A plan 
shall describe and evaluate sources of supply, reasonable and practical efficient uses, 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 4 
 

reclamation and demand management activities. The components of the plan may 
vary according to an individual community or area's characteristics and its capabilities 
to efficiently use and conserve water. The plan shall address measures for residential, 
commercial, governmental, and industrial water demand management as set forth in 
Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630) of Chapter 3. In addition, a strategy and 
time schedule for implementation shall be included in the plan. 

10616.  "Public agency" means any board, commission, county, city and county, city, regional 
agency, district, or other public entity. 

10616.5. "Recycled water" means the reclamation and reuse of wastewater for beneficial use. 

10617.  "Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing 
water for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers 
or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier 
includes a supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which 
distributes or sells for ultimate resale to customers. This part applies only to water 
supplied from public water systems subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
116275) of Part 12 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code. 

 

Chapter 3. Urban Water Management Plans 

Article 1. General Provisions  
 
SECTION 10620-10621  

10620.     (a) Every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt an urban water management 
plan in the manner set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 

(b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. 

(c) An urban water supplier indirectly providing water shall not include planning 
elements in its water management plan as provided in Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 10630) that would be applicable to urban water suppliers or public 
agencies directly providing water, or to their customers, without the consent of 
those suppliers or public agencies. 

 (d)  (1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by 
participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide urban water 
management planning where those plans will reduce preparation costs and 
contribute to the achievement of conservation and efficient water use. 

(2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 5 
 

share a common source, water management agencies, and relevant public 
agencies, to the extent practicable. 

(e) The urban water supplier may prepare the plan with its own staff, by contract, or in 
cooperation with other governmental agencies. 

(f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools and 
options used by that entity that will maximize resources and minimize the need to 
import water from other regions. 

10621.     (a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five years on or 
before December 31, in years ending in five and zero, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). 

(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall, at 
least 60 days before the public hearing on the plan required by Section 10642, 
notify any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the 
urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or 
changes to the plan. The urban water supplier may consult with, and obtain 
comments from, any city or county that receives notice pursuant to this 
subdivision. 

(c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the 
manner set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 

(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department 
by July 1, 2016. 

Article 2. Contents of Plan 
 
SECTION 10630-10634  

10630.  It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water 
management planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the 
volume of water supplied. 

10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter that shall do all of the following: 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected 
population, climate, and other demographic factors affecting the supplier's water 
management planning. The projected population estimates shall be based upon 
data from the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within 
the service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 
20 years or as far as data is available. 

(b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 6 
 

water available to the supplier, all of the following information shall be included in 
the plan: 

(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water 
supplier, including plans adopted pursuant to Part 2.75 (commencing with 
Section 10750), or any other specific authorization for groundwater 
management. 

(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water 
supplier pumps groundwater. For basins that a court or the board has 
adjudicated the rights to pump groundwater, a copy of the order or decree 
adopted by the court or the board and a description of the amount of 
groundwater the urban water supplier has the legal right to pump under the 
order or decree. For basins that have not been adjudicated, information as to 
whether the department has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or 
has projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present management 
conditions continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin that 
characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a detailed 
description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. 

(3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. The 
description and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably 
available, including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

(4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater 
that is projected to be pumped by the urban water supplier. The description 
and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, 
including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

(c)   (1) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or 
climatic shortage, to the extent practicable, and provide data for each of the 
following: 

(A) An average water year. 

(B) A single-dry water year. 

(C) Multiple-dry water years. 

(2) For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, 
given specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors, describe 
plans to supplement or replace that source with alternative sources or water 
demand management measures, to the extent practicable. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 7 
 

(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or 
long-term basis. 

(e)  (1) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over 
the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected 
water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, all of the following uses: 

(A) Single-family residential. 

(B) Multifamily. 

(C) Commercial. 

(D) Industrial. 

(E) Institutional and governmental. 

(F) Landscape. 

(G) Sales to other agencies. 

(H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, 
or any combination thereof. 

(I) Agricultural. 

   (J) Distribution system water loss. 

(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments 
described in subdivision (a). 

(3) (A) For the 2015 urban water management plan update, the distribution 
system water loss shall be quantified for the most recent 12-month period 
available. For all subsequent updates, the distribution system water loss 
shall be quantified for each of the five years preceding the plan update. 

(B) The distribution system water loss quantification shall be reported in 
accordance with a worksheet approved or developed by the department 
through a public process. The water loss quantification worksheet shall be 
based on the water system balance methodology developed by the 
American Water Works Association. 

(4) (A) If available and applicable to an urban water supplier, water use 
projections may display and account for the water savings estimated to 
result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and 
land use plans identified by the urban water supplier, as applicable to the 
service area. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 8 
 

(B) To the extent that an urban water supplier reports the information 
described in subparagraph (A), an urban water supplier shall do both of 
the following: 

   (i) Provide citations of the various codes, standards, ordinances, or 
transportation and land use plans utilized in making the projections. 

   (ii) Indicate the extent that the water use projections consider savings 
from codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use 
plans. Water use projections that do not account for these water 
savings shall be noted of that fact. 

   (f) Provide a description of the supplier's water demand management measures. 
This description shall include all of the following: 

(1) (A) For an urban retail water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a 
narrative description that addresses the nature and extent of each water 
demand management measure implemented over the past five years. 
The narrative shall describe the water demand management measures 
that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use targets 
pursuant to Section 10608.20. 

 (B) The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the 
following water demand management measures: 

(i) Water waste prevention ordinances. 

(ii) Metering. 

(iii) Conservation pricing. 

(iv) Public education and outreach. 

(v) Programs to assess and manage distribution system real loss. 

(vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support. 

(vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact 
on water use as measured in gallons per capita per day, including 
innovative measures, if implemented. 

 (2) For an urban wholesale water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a 
narrative description of the items in clauses (ii), (iv), (vi), and (vii) of 
subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1), and a narrative description of its 
distribution system asset management and wholesale supplier assistance 
programs. 

(g) Include a description of all water supply projects and water supply programs that 
may be undertaken by the urban water supplier to meet the total projected water 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 9 
 

use, as established pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10635. The urban water 
supplier shall include a detailed description of expected future projects and 
programs that the urban water supplier may implement to increase the amount of 
the water supply available to the urban water supplier in average, single-dry, and 
multiple-dry water years. The description shall identify specific projects and 
include a description of the increase in water supply that is expected to be 
available from each project. The description shall include an estimate with regard 
to the implementation timeline for each project or program. 

(h) Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not 
limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 

(i)  For purposes of this part, urban water suppliers that are members of the California 
Urban Water Conservation Council shall be deemed in compliance with the 
requirements of subdivision (f) by complying with all the provisions of the 
"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in 
California," dated December 10, 2008, as it may be amended, and by submitting 
the annual reports required by Section 6.2 of that memorandum. 

(j)  An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency 
for that source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is 
available. The wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water 
supplier for inclusion in the urban water supplier's plan that identifies and 
quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of water as 
required by subdivision (b), available from the wholesale agency to the urban 
water supplier over the same five-year increments, and during various water-year 
types in accordance with subdivision (c). An urban water supplier may rely upon 
water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in fulfilling the plan 
informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (c). 

10631.1.  (a) The water use projections required by Section 10631 shall include projected water 
use for single-family and multifamily residential housing needed for lower income 
households, as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as 
identified in the housing element of any city, county, or city and county in the 
service area of the supplier. 

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that the identification of projected water use for 
single-family and multifamily residential housing for lower income households will 
assist a supplier in complying with the requirement under Section 65589.7 of the 
Government Code to grant a priority for the provision of service to housing units 
affordable to lower income households. 

 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 10 
 

10631.2. (a) In addition to the requirements of Section 10631, an urban water management plan 
may, but is not required to, include any of the following information: 

(1) An estimate of the amount of energy used to extract or divert water supplies. 

(2) An estimate of the amount of energy used to convey water supplies to the 
water treatment plants or distribution systems. 

(3) An estimate of the amount of energy used to treat water supplies. 

(4) An estimate of the amount of energy used to distribute water supplies through 
its distribution systems. 

(5) An estimate of the amount of energy used for treated water supplies in 
comparison to the amount used for nontreated water supplies. 

(6) An estimate of the amount of energy used to place water into or withdraw 
from storage. 

(7) Any other energy-related information the urban water supplier deems 
appropriate. 

(b) The department shall include in its guidance for the preparation of urban water 
management plans a methodology for the voluntary calculation or estimation of 
the energy intensity of urban water systems. The department may consider 
studies and calculations conducted by the Public Utilities Commission in 
developing the methodology. 

 

10631.5. (a)  (1) Beginning January 1, 2009, the terms of, and eligibility for, a water 
management grant or loan made to an urban water supplier and awarded or 
administered by the department, state board, or California Bay-Delta Authority 
or its successor agency shall be conditioned on the implementation of the 
water demand management measures described in Section 10631, as 
determined by the department pursuant to subdivision (b). 

(2) For the purposes of this section, water management grants and loans include 
funding for programs and projects for surface water or groundwater storage, 
recycling, desalination, water conservation, water supply reliability, and water 
supply augmentation. This section does not apply to water management 
projects funded by the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (Public Law 111-5). 

(3) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall determine that an urban 
water supplier is eligible for a water management grant or loan even though 
the supplier is not implementing all of the water demand management 
measures described in Section 10631, if the urban water supplier has 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 11 
 

submitted to the department for approval a schedule, financing plan, and 
budget, to be included in the grant or loan agreement, for implementation of 
the water demand management measures. The supplier may request grant or 
loan funds to implement the water demand management measures to the 
extent the request is consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to 
the water management funds. 

(4) (A) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall determine that an 
urban water supplier is eligible for a water management grant or loan 
even though the supplier is not implementing all of the water demand 
management measures described in Section 10631, if an urban water 
supplier submits to the department for approval documentation 
demonstrating that a water demand management measure is not locally 
cost effective. If the department determines that the documentation 
submitted by the urban water supplier fails to demonstrate that a water 
demand management measure is not locally cost effective, the 
department shall notify the urban water supplier and the agency 
administering the grant or loan program within 120 days that the 
documentation does not satisfy the requirements for an exemption, and 
include in that notification a detailed statement to support the 
determination. 

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, "not locally cost effective" means that the 
present value of the local benefits of implementing a water demand 
management measure is less than the present value of the local costs of 
implementing that measure. 

(b) (1) The department, in consultation with the state board and the California Bay-
Delta Authority or its successor agency, and after soliciting public comment 
regarding eligibility requirements, shall develop eligibility requirements to 
implement the requirement of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a). In establishing 
these eligibility requirements, the department shall do both of the following: 

(A) Consider the conservation measures described in the Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California, and 
alternative conservation approaches that provide equal or greater water 
savings. 

(B) Recognize the different legal, technical, fiscal, and practical roles and 
responsibilities of wholesale water suppliers and retail water suppliers. 

 (2) (A) For the purposes of this section, the department shall determine whether 
an urban water supplier is implementing all of the water demand 
management measures described in Section 10631 based on either, or a 
combination, of the following: 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 12 
 

   (i) Compliance on an individual basis. 

   (ii) Compliance on a regional basis. Regional compliance shall require 
participation in a regional conservation program consisting of two or 
more urban water suppliers that achieves the level of conservation or 
water efficiency savings equivalent to the amount of conservation or 
savings achieved if each of the participating urban water suppliers 
implemented the water demand management measures. The urban 
water supplier administering the regional program shall provide 
participating urban water suppliers and the department with data to 
demonstrate that the regional program is consistent with this clause. 
The department shall review the data to determine whether the urban 
water suppliers in the regional program are meeting the eligibility 
requirements. 

   (B) The department may require additional information for any 
determination pursuant to this section. 

(3) The department shall not deny eligibility to an urban water supplier in 
compliance with the requirements of this section that is participating in a 
multiagency water project, or an integrated regional water management plan, 
developed pursuant to Section 75026 of the Public Resources Code, solely 
on the basis that one or more of the agencies participating in the project or 
plan is not implementing all of the water demand management measures 
described in Section 10631. 

(c) In establishing guidelines pursuant to the specific funding authorization for any 
water management grant or loan program subject to this section, the agency 
administering the grant or loan program shall include in the guidelines the 
eligibility requirements developed by the department pursuant to subdivision (b). 

(d) Upon receipt of a water management grant or loan application by an agency 
administering a grant and loan program subject to this section, the agency shall 
request an eligibility determination from the department with respect to the 
requirements of this section. The department shall respond to the request within 
60 days of the request. 

(e) The urban water supplier may submit to the department copies of its annual 
reports and other relevant documents to assist the department in determining 
whether the urban water supplier is implementing or scheduling the 
implementation of water demand management activities. In addition, for urban 
water suppliers that are signatories to the Memorandum of Understanding 
Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California and submit biennial reports to 
the California Urban Water Conservation Council in accordance with the 
memorandum, the department may use these reports to assist in tracking the 
implementation of water demand management measures. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 13 
 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until July 1, 2016, and as of that date is 
repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that is enacted before July 1, 2016, 
deletes or extends that date. 

 

10631.7. The department, in consultation with the California Urban Water Conservation Council, 
shall convene an independent technical panel to provide information and 
recommendations to the department and the Legislature on new demand management 
measures, technologies, and approaches. The panel shall consist of no more than 
seven members, who shall be selected by the department to reflect a balanced 
representation of experts. The panel shall have at least one, but no more than two, 
representatives from each of the following: retail water suppliers, environmental 
organizations, the business community, wholesale water suppliers, and academia. The 
panel shall be convened by January 1, 2009, and shall report to the Legislature no later 
than January 1, 2010, and every five years thereafter. The department shall review the 
panel report and include in the final report to the Legislature the department's 
recommendations and comments regarding the panel process and the panel's 
recommendations. 

 

10632.  (a) The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that includes 
each of the following elements that are within the authority of the urban water 
supplier: 

(1) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in response to 
water supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water 
supply, and an outline of specific water supply conditions that are applicable 
to each stage. 

(2) An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the 
agency's water supply. 

(3) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare for, and 
implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, but 
not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

(4) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during 
water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable 
water for street cleaning. 

(5) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban 
water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction methods in its 
water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 14 
 

appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction 
consistent with up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply. 

(6) Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 

(7) An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in 
paragraphs (1) to (6), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the 
urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, 
such as the development of reserves and rate adjustments. 

(8) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 

(9) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the 
urban water shortage contingency analysis. 

(b) Commencing with the urban water management plan update due July 1, 2016, for 
purposes of developing the water shortage contingency analysis pursuant to 
subdivision (a), the urban water supplier shall analyze and define water features 
that are artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and 
fountains, separately from swimming pools and spas, as defined in subdivision (a) 
of Section 115921 of the Health and Safety Code. 

 

10633.  The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area, and shall include 
all of the following: 

 (a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's 
service area, including a quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and 
treated and the methods of wastewater disposal. 

 (b) A description of the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled 
water project. 

 (c) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service 
area, including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 

 (d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, 
but not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat 
enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect potable 
reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to the 
technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 15 
 

 (e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected pursuant to this subdivision. 

 (f) A description of actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in 
terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

 (g) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area, 
including actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems, to 
promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving 
that increased use. 

 

10634.  The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments 
as described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631, and the manner in which water quality 
affects water management strategies and supply reliability. 

 

Article 2.5. Water Service Reliability 
 
SECTION 10635  

10635.     (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management 
plan, an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand 
assessment shall compare the total water supply sources available to the water 
supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year 
increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry 
water years. The water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the 
information compiled pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from 
state, regional, or local agency population projections within the service area of 
the urban water supplier. 

(b) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its urban water management 
plan prepared pursuant to this article to any city or county within which it provides 
water supplies no later than 60 days after the submission of its urban water 
management plan. 

(c) Nothing in this article is intended to create a right or entitlement to water service or 
any specific level of water service. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 16 
 

(d) Nothing in this article is intended to change existing law concerning an urban 
water supplier's obligation to provide water service to its existing customers or to 
any potential future customers. 

Article 3. Adoption and Implementation of Plans 
 
SECTION 10640-10645  

10640.  Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall prepare 
its plan pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630).    The supplier shall 
likewise periodically review the plan as required by Section 10621, and any 
amendments or changes required as a result of that review shall be adopted pursuant 
to this article. 

10641.  An urban water supplier required to prepare a plan may consult with, and obtain 
comments from, any public agency or state agency or any person who has special 
expertise with respect to water demand management methods and techniques. 

10642.  Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and 
during the preparation of the plan. Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier 
shall make the plan available for public inspection and shall hold a public hearing 
thereon. Prior to the hearing, notice of the time and place of hearing shall be published 
within the jurisdiction of the publicly owned water supplier pursuant to Section 6066 of 
the Government Code. The urban water supplier shall provide notice of the time and 
place of hearing to any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies. 
A privately owned water supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its service 
area. 

After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as modified after the 
hearing. 

10643.  An urban water supplier shall implement its plan adopted pursuant to this chapter in 
accordance with the schedule set forth in its plan. 

10644.     (a)   (1) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. Copies of 
amendments or changes to the plans shall be submitted to the department, 
the California State Library, and any city or county within which the supplier 
provides water supplies within 30 days after adoption. 

(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department pursuant 
to paragraph (1) shall be submitted electronically and shall include any 
standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by the department. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 17 
 

(b)   (1) Notwithstanding Section 10231.5 of the Government Code, the department 
shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 31, in the 
years ending in six and one, a report summarizing the status of the plans 
adopted pursuant to this part. 

The report prepared by the department shall identify the exemplary elements 
of the individual plans. The department shall provide a copy of the report to 
each urban water supplier that has submitted its plan to the department. The 
department shall also prepare reports and provide data for any legislative 
hearings designed to consider the effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant 
to this part. 

(2) A report to be submitted pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be submitted in 
compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code. 

(c)   (1) For the purpose of identifying the exemplary elements of the individual plans, 
the department shall identify in the report water demand management 
measures adopted and implemented by specific urban water suppliers, and 
identified pursuant to Section 10631, that achieve water savings significantly 
above the levels established by the department to meet the requirements of 
Section 10631.5. 

(2) The department shall distribute to the panel convened pursuant to Section 
10631.7 the results achieved by the implementation of those water demand 
management measures described in paragraph (1). 

(3) The department shall make available to the public the standard the 
department will use to identify exemplary water demand management 
measures. 

10645.  Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the urban water 
supplier and the department shall make the plan available for public review during 
normal business hours. 

 

Chapter 4. Miscellaneous Provisions 

SECTION 10650-10656  

10650.  Any actions or proceedings to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the acts or 
decisions of an urban water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part 
shall be commenced as follows: 

(a) An action or proceeding alleging failure to adopt a plan shall be commenced within 
18 months after that adoption is required by this part. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 18 
 

(b) Any action or proceeding alleging that a plan, or action taken pursuant to the plan, 
does not comply with this part shall be commenced within 90 days after filing of 
the plan or amendment thereto pursuant to Section 10644 or the taking of that 
action. 

10651.  In any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul a plan, or an 
action taken pursuant to the plan by an urban water supplier on the grounds of 
noncompliance with this part, the inquiry shall extend only to whether there was a 
prejudicial abuse of discretion. Abuse of discretion is established if the supplier has not 
proceeded in a manner required by law or if the action by the water supplier is not 
supported by substantial evidence. 

10652.  The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) 
of the Public Resources Code) does not apply to the preparation and adoption of plans 
pursuant to this part or to the implementation of actions taken pursuant to Section 
10632. Nothing in this part shall be interpreted as exempting from the California 
Environmental Quality Act any project that would significantly affect water supplies for 
fish and wildlife, or any project for implementation of the plan, other than projects 
implementing Section 10632, or any project for expanded or additional water supplies. 

10653.  The adoption of a plan shall satisfy any requirements of state law, regulation, or order, 
including those of the State Water Resources Control Board and the Public Utilities 
Commission, for the preparation of water management plans or conservation plans; 
provided, that if the State Water Resources Control Board or the Public Utilities 
Commission requires additional information concerning water conservation to 
implement its existing authority, nothing in this part shall be deemed to limit the board or 
the commission in obtaining that information. The requirements of this part shall be 
satisfied by any urban water demand management plan prepared to meet federal laws 
or regulations after the effective date of this part, and which substantially meets the 
requirements of this part, or by any existing urban water management plan which 
includes the contents of a plan required under this part. 

10654.  An urban water supplier may recover in its rates the costs incurred in preparing its plan 
and implementing the reasonable water conservation measures included in the plan. 
Any best water management practice that is included in the plan that is identified in the 
"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California" is 
deemed to be reasonable for the purposes of this section. 

10655.  If any provision of this part or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this part 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application thereof, and to this 
end the provisions of this part are severable. 

10656.  An urban water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and submit its urban water 
management plan to the department in accordance with this part, is ineligible to receive 
funding pursuant to Division 24 (commencing with Section 78500) or Division 26 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 19 
 

(commencing with Section 79000), or receive drought assistance from the state until the 
urban water management plan is submitted pursuant to this article. 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B  
DWR Standardized Tables 

 



Public Water System 

Number

Public Water System 

Name

Number of Municipal 

Connections 2015

Volume of

Water Supplied

2015

CA1910245 City of Santa Fe Springs 6,347 6,369

6,347 6,369

Table 2‐1 Retail Only: Public Water Systems                                                                                       

NOTES: Includes Recycled Water

TOTAL



Water Supplier is also a member of a RUWMP

Water Supplier is also a member of a Regional 

Alliance Gateway Regional Alliance

Regional Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP)                        

Table 2‐2: Plan Identification  

NOTES:

Individual UWMP

Name of RUWMP or Regional Alliance                   

if applicable                                           
drop down list

Select 

Only One
Type of Plan



Agency is a wholesaler

Agency is a retailer

UWMP Tables Are in Calendar Years

UWMP Tables Are in Fiscal Years

Unit AF

NOTES:

Table 2‐3: Agency Identification                                               

Type of Agency (select one or both)

Fiscal or Calendar Year (select one)

If Using Fiscal Years Provide Month and Date that the Fiscal Year Begins 

(mm/dd)

Units of Measure Used in UWMP (select from Drop down)



Table 2‐4 Retail: Water Supplier Information Exchange  

The retail supplier has informed the following wholesale supplier(s) of projected water 

use in accordance with CWC 10631.                   

Wholesale Water Supplier Name (Add additional rows as needed) 

Central Basin Municipal Water District (CBMWD)

NOTES:



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

14,644 15,266 15,920 16,601 17,313 18,054

Table 3‐1 Retail: Population ‐ Current and Projected

Population 

Served

NOTES: Based on 2015 population using the DWR Population Tool (see Section 5.4.1) 

and projected populations from the Southern California Association of Governments 

(SCAG) for the City



Use Type                       
(Add additional rows as needed)

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will be 

recognized by the WUEdata online submittal 

tool

Additional Description           
(as needed)

Level of Treatment 

When Delivered
Drop down list

Volume

Single Family Drinking Water 1,277

Commercial Drinking Water 3,894

Losses  Drinking Water 170

Other  Unbilled water Drinking Water 89

5,430

 Table 4‐1 Retail: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Actual

2015 Actual

NOTES: 

TOTAL



Use Type  (Add additional rows as needed)

 Drop down list 

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will be recognized by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040‐opt

Single Family 1,710 1,783 1,860 1,939 2,022

Commercial 3,330 3,482 3,639 3,803 3,975

Losses  172 173 175 177 179

Other  Unbilled Water 90 91 92 93 94

5,302 5,529 5,766 6,012 6,270

 Table 4‐2 Retail: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Projected 

Additional Description        

(as needed)

Projected Water Use                               

Report To the Extent that Records are Available

NOTES: 

TOTAL



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(opt)

Potable and Raw Water         From 

Tables 4‐1 and 4‐2
5,430 5,302 5,529 5,766 6,012 6,270

Recycled Water Demand*     From 

Table 6‐4
939 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

TOTAL WATER DEMAND 6,369 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Table 4‐3 Retail: Total Water Demands

NOTES:

*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6‐4 is complete. 



Reporting Period Start Date 

(mm/yyyy) 
Volume of Water Loss*

07/2015 170

NOTES:  AWWA worksheet provided in Appendix E.

Table 4‐4  Retail:  12 Month Water Loss Audit Reporting  

* Taken from the field "Water Losses" (a combination of apparent 

losses and real losses) from the AWWA worksheet.



Are Future Water Savings Included in Projections?
(Refer to Appendix K of UWMP Guidebook)

Drop down list (y/n)       Yes

If "Yes"  to above, state the section or page number, in the cell to the right, where citations of the codes, 

ordinances, etc… utilized in demand projections are found.  
Section 4.4 and Chapter 8

Are Lower Income Residential Demands Included In Projections?  
Drop down list (y/n)

Yes

Table 4‐5 Retail Only:  Inclusion in Water Use Projections

NOTES:



Baseline 

Period
Start Year          End Year      

Average 

Baseline  

GPCD*

2015 Interim 

Target *

Confirmed 

2020 Target*

10‐15 

year
1999 2008 101 101 100

5 Year 2003 2007 106

Table 5‐1 Baselines and Targets Summary

Retail Agency or Regional Alliance Only

*All values are in Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD)

NOTES:



Extraordinary 

Events*

Economic 

Adjustment*

Weather 

Normalization*

TOTAL 

Adjustments*

Adjusted  

2015 GPCD*

83 101 0 0 0 0 83 83 Yes

*All values are in Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) 

NOTES:

Table 5‐2: 2015 Compliance

Retail Agency  or Regional Alliance Only

Actual    

2015 GPCD*

2015 

Interim 

Target 

GPCD*

2015 GPCD* 

(Adjusted if 

applicable)

Did Supplier 

Achieve 

Targeted 

Reduction for 

2015? Y/N

Optional Adjustments to 2015 GPCD                                        

Enter "0" if no adjustment is made                                                                       From 

Methodology 8



Groundwater Type
Drop Down List

May use each category 

multiple times

Location or Basin Name 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alluvial Basin Central Groundwater Basin 1,210 1,314 1,310 20 0

1,210 1,314 1,310 20 0

 Table 6‐1  Retail: Groundwater Volume Pumped

Supplier does not pump groundwater.                                                                                                                  

The supplier will not complete the table below.

NOTES: Wells not operating during 2014 and 2015

TOTAL

Add additional rows as needed



Name of 

Wastewater 

Collection Agency

Wastewater Volume 

Metered or 

Estimated?
Drop Down List

Volume of 

Wastewater 

Collected from 

UWMP Service Area 

2015                

Name of Wastewater 

Treatment Agency 

Receiving Collected 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Plant Name

Is WWTP Located 

Within UWMP 

Area?
Drop Down List

Is WWTP Operation 

Contracted to a Third 

Party? (optional)        
Drop Down List

City of Santa Fe 

Springs
Estimated 990

Sanitation Districts of 

Los Angeles County

Los Coyotes 

Water 

Reclamation 

Plant  and Long 

Beach Water 

Reclamation 

Plant 

No No

990

Table 6‐2 Retail:  Wastewater Collected Within Service Area in 2015

NOTES:  Volume of wastewater (AF) based on 60 gpcd generated.  

Recipient of Collected Wastewater

Total Wastewater Collected from Service 

Area in 2015:

There is no wastewater collection system.  The supplier will not complete the table below. 

Percentage of 2015 service area population covered by wastewater collection system  (optional)

Percentage of 2015 service area covered by wastewater collection system (optional)

Wastewater Collection

Add additional rows as needed



Wastewater 

Treated

Discharged 

Treated 

Wastewater

Recycled 

Within 

Service Area

Recycled 

Outside of 

Service Area

Total 0 0 0 0

NOTES:

Table 6‐3 Retail:  Wastewater Treatment and Discharge Within Service Area in 2015

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Plant Name

Discharge 

Location 

Name or 

Identifier

Discharge 

Location 

Description

Wastewater 

Discharge ID 

Number      

(optional)

Method of 

Disposal

Drop down list

Does This Plant 

Treat Wastewater 

Generated 

Outside the 

Service Area?

Treatment 

Level

Drop down list

2015 volumes

No wastewater is treated or disposed of within the UWMP service area.                                                                                                                                                

The supplier will not complete the table below.

Add additional rows as needed



939 AF

General Description of 2015 Uses
Level of Treatment

Drop down list
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

Agricultural irrigation

Landscape irrigation (excludes golf courses)
School Fields, Parks, Business Parks, 

Walkways, Roadway Medians
Tertiary 563 548 572 596 622 649

Golf course irrigation

Commercial use

Carpet Manufacturing, Cooling Tower, 

Concrete Mixing Tertiary
376 366 381 398 414 432

Geothermal and other energy production 

Seawater intrusion barrier

Recreational impoundment

Wetlands or wildlife habitat

Groundwater recharge (IPR)*

Surface water augmentation (IPR)*

Direct potable reuse

Total: 939 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

Industrial use

NOTES:

Supplemental Water Added in 2015

Source of 2015 Supplemental Water

Beneficial Use Type

*IPR ‐ Indirect Potable Reuse

Los Coyotes Water Reclamation Plant and San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant

Other (Provide General Description)

Recycled water is not used and is not planned for use within the service area of the supplier.

The supplier will not complete the table below.

Table 6‐4 Retail:  Current and Projected Recycled Water Direct Beneficial Uses Within Service Area

Name of Agency Producing (Treating) the Recycled Water: Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County

Name of Agency Operating the Recycled Water Distribution System: Central Basin Municipal Water District



2010 Projection for 2015 2015 Actual Use

Landscape irrigation (excludes golf courses) 549 563

230 376

Geothermal and other energy production 

Other  Type of Use

779 939

Recycled water was not used in 2010 nor projected for use in 2015.                                                 

The supplier will not complete the table below. 

Table 6‐5 Retail:  2010 UWMP Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2015 Actual

Use Type

NOTES:  

Total

Groundwater recharge (IPR)

Direct potable reuse

Agricultural irrigation

Industrial use

Seawater intrusion barrier

Recreational impoundment

Wetlands or wildlife habitat

Surface water augmentation (IPR)

Golf course irrigation

Commercial use



Name of Action Description

Planned 

Implementation 

Year

Expected Increase in 

Recycled Water Use        

0

Table 6‐6 Retail: Methods to Expand Future Recycled Water Use

Total

NOTES:

Supplier does not plan to expand recycled water use in the future. Supplier will not complete 

the table below but will provide narrative explanation.  

Provide page location of narrative in UWMP

Add additional rows as needed



Drop Down List  (y/n) If Yes, Agency Name

Treatment Facilities No
Groundwater Water 

Quality Treatment
FY 17‐18 All Year Types 2,000 gpm

No expected future water supply projects or programs that provide a quantifiable increase to the agency's water supply. 

Supplier will not complete the table below.

Some or all of the supplier's future water supply projects or programs are not compatible with this table and are described 

in a narrative format.                                                                                                   

Table 6‐7 Retail: Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs

Joint Project with other agencies?

NOTES: 

Name of Future 

Projects or Programs

Description

(if needed)

Planned 

Implementation 

Year

Expected 

Increase in  

Water Supply to 

Agency 
This may be a range

Planned for Use 

in Year Type
Drop Down List

Provide page location of narrative in the UWMP

Add additional rows as needed



Water Supply 

Drop down list

May use each category multiple times.

These are the only water supply categories 

that will be recognized by the WUEdata 

online submittal tool 

Actual Volume
Water 

Quality
Drop Down List

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Purchased or Imported  Water CBMWD WQPP 2,716
Drinking 

Water

Purchased or Imported  Water MWD 2,714
Drinking 

Water

Groundwater Central Basin Wells 0 Raw Water

Recycled Water  CBMWD 939
Recycled 

Water

6,369 0

 Table 6‐8  Retail: Water Supplies — Actual

Additional Detail on     

Water Supply

2015

NOTES:

Total

Add additional rows as needed



Water Supply                  

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Purchased or Imported  Water CB WQPP* 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Groundwater CB Wells 1,302 1,529 1,766 2,012 2,270

Purchased or Imported  Water MWD 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Recycled Water  CBMWD 914 953 994 1,036 1,081

6,216 0 6,482 0 6,760 0 7,048 0 7,351 0

NOTES:  *CB WQPP volume is based on contracted minimal amount of 1,250 gpm (about 2,000 AFY)

 Table 6‐9 Retail: Water Supplies — Projected

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

Projected Water Supply 

Report To the Extent Practicable

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (opt)

Total

Drop down list

May use each category multiple 

times. These are the only water supply 

categories that will be recognized by 

the WUEdata online submittal tool 

Add additional rows as needed



% of Average Supply

Average Year 2010 100%

Single‐Dry Year 2012 107%

Multiple‐Dry Years 1st Year  2012 107%

Multiple‐Dry Years 2nd Year 2013 110%

Multiple‐Dry Years 3rd Year 2014 106%

Multiple‐Dry Years 4th Year Optional 

Multiple‐Dry Years 5th Year Optional 

Multiple‐Dry Years 6th  Year Optional 

6722

7174

7174

7407

Table 7‐1 Retail: Basis of Water Year Data

Year Type

Base Year    
If not using a 

calendar year, 

type in the last 

year of the fiscal,  

water year, or 

range of years, 

for example, 

water year 1999‐

2000, use 2000

Available Supplies if 

Year Type Repeats

Quantification of available supplies is not 

compatible with this table and is provided 

elsewhere in the UWMP.                               

Location __________________________

Quantification of available supplies is provided 

in this table as either volume only, percent 

only, or both.

Volume Available  

7134

NOTES:

Agency may use multiple versions of Table 7‐1 if different water sources have different base years and the 

supplier chooses to report the base years for each water source separately. If an agency uses multiple versions 

of Table 7‐1, in the "Note" section of each table, state that multiple versions of Table 7‐1 are being used and 

identify the particular water source that is being reported in each table.



  2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(Opt)

Supply totals

(autofill from Table 6‐9) 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Demand totals

(autofill from Table 4‐3) 6,216 6,482 6,760 7,048 7,351

Difference
0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐2 Retail: Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

NOTES:



  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (Opt)

Supply totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Demand totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐3 Retail: Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison

NOTES: Normal year water supplies were projected and multiplied by a single dry 

year factor of 107%.



  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (Opt)

Supply totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Demand totals 6,634 6,918 7,215 7,522 7,845

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 6,849 7,143 7,449 7,766 8,100

Demand totals 6,849 7,143 7,449 7,766 8,100

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 6,597 6,879 7,174 7,480 7,802

Demand totals 6,597 6,879 7,174 7,480 7,802

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐4 Retail: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison

First year 

Second year 

Third year 

NOTES: Normal year water supplies were projected and multiplied by multiple dry year factors 

as follows: First Year: 107% of average year demand, Second year: 110% of average year 

demand and Third Year: 106% of average year demand.

Fourth year 

(optional)

Fifth year 

(optional)

Sixth year 

(optional)



Percent Supply 

Reduction1

Numerical value as a 

percent

Water Supply Condition 

(Narrative description)

1* 10%

A Stage 1 Water Supply Shortage exists when the City determines that 

due to drought or other water supply reductions, a water supply 

shortage exists. The type of event prompting this stage may include, 

among other factors, a finding that CBMWD calls for extraordinary 

water conservation.

2

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

3

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

4

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

5 up to 50%

Maximum Allowable Percentages of Base Period, which vary depending 

on Stage of water conservation, are in effect for the City's water 

customers.

Table 8‐1 Retail

Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 

Complete Both

1  One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%.

NOTES: 

The City will determine the Stage of water conservation necessary to accomplish water conservation 

requirements, which is based on the severity of the water supply shortage.

* As of June 2015, the City’s overall water use reduction goal is 16 percent, which is intended to address 

SWRCB’s 2015 mandated statewide water use reduction goal of 25 percent. 

Add additional rows as needed



Stage  

Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Users

Drop down list

These are the only categories that will be accepted by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool 

Additional Explanation or 

Reference

(optional)

Penalty, Charge, or 

Other Enforcement? 
Drop Down List

All Stages
Landscape ‐ Restrict or prohibit runoff from landscape 

irrigation
Yes

All Stages Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific times Yes

All Stages Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific days Yes

All Stages
CII ‐ Lodging establishment must offer opt out of linen 

service
Yes

All Stages CII ‐ Restaurants may only serve water upon request Yes

All Stages
Water Features ‐ Restrict water use for decorative water 

features, such as fountains
Yes

All Stages Other ‐ Require automatic shut of hoses Yes

All Stages
Other ‐ Prohibit use of potable water for washing hard 

surfaces
Yes

Table 8‐2 Retail Only: Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses 

NOTES:

Restrictions and Prohibitions are listed in Santa Fe Springs Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 54 (Ordinance 1065, adopted 

May 28, 2015).

Add additional rows as needed



Stage

Consumption Reduction Methods by 

Water Supplier

 Drop down list

 These are the only categories that will be accepted 

by the WUEdata online submittal tool 

Additional Explanation or Reference 

(optional)

All Stages Offer Water Use Surveys

The City offers water conservation kits to 

residential customers.  The kit includes faucet 

aerators, low flow shower heads, toilet tank 

dams, water saving information, and a simple 

water audit guide.

All Stages
Provide Rebates on Plumbing Fixtures and 

Devices

CBMWD offers rebates on high efficiency clothes 

washers, premium high efficiency toilets, weather‐

based irrigation controllers, soil moisture sensors, 

rotating sprinkler nozzles, and rain 

barrels/cisterns.

All Stages Reduce System Water Loss
The City inspects for leaks on a daily basis.  Main 

line water leaks are monitored electronically.  

All Stages Expand Public Information Campaign

Public information materials from CBMWD and 

MWD are provided to the City's customers by 

mail, City newsletters, and at public facilities.

Table 8‐3 Retail Only: 

Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan ‐ Consumption Reduction Methods  

NOTES:

Add additional rows as needed



2016 2017 2018

Available Water 

Supply
7,174 7,407 7,134

Table 8‐4 Retail: Minimum Supply Next Three Years

NOTES: Volumes based on water supplies of driest 3‐year historic 

sequence (2012 to 2014).  



City Name          60 Day Notice
Notice of Public 

Hearing

Santa Fe Springs     
Norwalk      

Downey     

County Name      
Drop Down List

60 Day Notice
Notice of Public 

Hearing

Los Angeles 

County
    

    

Table 10‐1 Retail: Notification to Cities and Counties             

Add additional rows as needed

Add additional rows as needed



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C  
Completed Plan Checklist 

 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 2 

 

 

Checklist Arranged by Water Code Section 
 

CWC 
Section 

 
UWMP Requirement 

 
Subject 

 
Guidebook 
Location 

UWMP 
Location 

(Optional 
Column for 

Agency Use) 

10608.20(b) Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use 
target using one of four methods. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7 
and App E 

Section 5.7 

10608.20(e) Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily 
per capita water use, urban water use target, 
interim urban water use target, and 
compliance daily per capita water use, along 
with the bases for determining those 
estimates, including references to supporting 
data.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Chapter 5 and 
App E 

Chapter 5 
Appendix G 

10608.22 Retail suppliers’ per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of 
base daily per capita water use of the 5 year 
baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers 
base GPCD is at or below 100.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7.2 Section 5.7.2 

10608.24(a) Retail suppliers shall meet their interim 
target by December 31, 2015. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

Section 5.8 

10608.24(d)(2) If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance 
GPCD using weather normalization, 
economic adjustment, or extraordinary 
events, it shall provide the basis for, and 
data supporting the adjustment.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8.2 Section 5.8.2 

10608.26(a) Retail suppliers shall conduct a public 
hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, 
and economic impact of water use targets.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3 Section 10.3 

10608.36 Wholesale suppliers shall include an 
assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help 
their retail water suppliers achieve targeted 
water use reductions.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.1 Not Applicable 

10608.40 Retail suppliers shall report on their progress 
in meeting their water use targets. The data 
shall be reported using a standardized form.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

Section 5.8 

10620(b) Every person that becomes an urban water 
supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has 
become an urban water supplier.  

Plan Preparation Section 2.1 Section 2.1 

10620(d)(2) Coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, 
including other water suppliers that share a 
common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 2.5.2 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 3 

 

10620(f) Describe water management tools and 
options to maximize resources and minimize 
the need to import water from other regions. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.4 Section 7.4 

10621(b) Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public 
hearing, any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the 
plan.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.2.1 Section 10.2.1 

10621(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and 
submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.3.1 and 
10.4 

Sections 10.3.1 
and 10.4 

10631(a) Describe the water supplier service area.  System 
Description 

Section 3.1 Section 3.1 

10631(a) Describe the climate of the service area of 
the supplier. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.3 Section 3.3 

10631(a) Indicate the current population of the service 
area.  

System 
Description and 
Baselines and 
Targets 

Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 

Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 

10631(a) Provide population projections for  2020, 
2025, 2030, and 2035.  

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 3.4 

10631(a) Describe other demographic factors affecting 
the supplier’s water management planning. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 3.4 

10631(b) Identify and quantify the existing and 
planned sources of water available for 2015, 
2020, 2025, 2030, and 2035. 

System Supplies Chapter 6 Chapter 6 

10631(b) Indicate whether groundwater is an existing 
or planned source of water available to the 
supplier.   

System Supplies Section 6.2 Section 6.2 

10631(b)(1) Indicate whether a groundwater 
management plan has been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific 
authorization for groundwater management.  
Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 6.2.2 

10631(b)(2) Describe the groundwater basin. System Supplies Section 6.2.1 Section 6.2.1 

10631(b)(2) Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated 
and include a copy of the court order or 
decree and a description of the amount of 
water the supplier has the legal right to 
pump. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 6.2.2 

10631(b)(2) For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether 
or not the department has identified the 
basin as overdrafted, or projected to become 
overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier 
to eliminate the long-term overdraft 
condition.  

System Supplies Section 6.2.3 Section 6.2.3 

10631(b)(3) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 

System Supplies Section 6.2.4 Section 6.2.4 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 4 

 

groundwater pumped by the urban water 
supplier for the past five years 

10631(b)(4) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the amount and location of groundwater 
that is projected to be pumped. 

System Supplies Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 

Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 

10631(c)(1) Describe the reliability of the water supply 
and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10631(c)(1) Provide data for an average water year, a 
single dry water year, and multiple dry water 
years 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.2 Section 7.2 

10631(c)(2) For any water source that may not be 
available at a consistent level of use, 
describe plans to supplement or replace that 
source. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10631(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or 
transfers of water on a short-term or long-
term basis. 

System Supplies  Section 6.7 Section 6.7 

10631(e)(1) Quantify past, current, and projected water 
use, identifying the uses among water use 
sectors. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.2 Section 4.2 

10631(e)(3)(A) Report the distribution system water loss for 
the most recent 12-month period available.  

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.3 Section 4.3 

10631(f)(1) Retail suppliers shall provide a description of 
the nature and extent of each demand 
management measure implemented over the 
past five years. The description will address 
specific measures listed in code.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 

Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 

10631(f)(2) Wholesale suppliers shall describe specific 
demand management measures listed in 
code, their distribution system asset 
management program, and supplier 
assistance program.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.1 
and 9.3 

Not Applicable 

10631(g) Describe the expected future water supply 
projects and programs that may be 
undertaken by the water supplier to address 
water supply reliability in average, single-dry, 
and multiple-dry years. 

System Supplies Section 6.8 Section 6.8 

10631(h) Describe desalinated water project 
opportunities for long-term supply.  

System Supplies Section 6.6 Section 6.6 

10631(i) CUWCC members may submit their 2013-
2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, 
or in addition to, describing the DMM 
implementation in their UWMPs. This option 
is only allowable if the supplier has been 
found to be in full compliance with the 
CUWCC MOU.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Section 9.5 Section 9.5 

10631(j) Retail suppliers will include documentation 
that they have provided their wholesale 
supplier(s) – if any - with water use 

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 Section 2.5.1 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 5 

 

projections from that source.  
10631(j) Wholesale suppliers will include 

documentation that they have provided their 
urban water suppliers with identification and 
quantification of the existing and planned 
sources of water available from the 
wholesale to the urban supplier during 
various water year types.  

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 Not Applicable 

10631.1(a) Include projected water use needed for lower 
income housing projected in the service area 
of the supplier. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.5 Section 4.5 

10632(a) and 
10632(a)(1) 

Provide an urban water shortage 
contingency analysis that specifies stages of 
action and an outline of specific water supply 
conditions at each stage. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.1 Section 8.1 

10632(a)(2) Provide an estimate of the minimum water 
supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-
year historic sequence for the agency. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.9 Section 8.9 

10632(a)(3) Identify actions to be undertaken by the 
urban water supplier in case of a 
catastrophic interruption of water supplies. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.8 Section 8.8 

10632(a)(4) Identify mandatory prohibitions against 
specific water use practices during water 
shortages. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.2 Section 8.2 

10632(a)(5) Specify consumption reduction methods in 
the most restrictive stages.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.4 Section 8.4 

10632(a)(6) Indicated penalties or charges for excessive 
use, where applicable. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.3 Section 8.3 

10632(a)(7) Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of 
the actions and conditions in the water 
shortage contingency analysis on the 
revenues and expenditures of the urban 
water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.6 Section 8.6 

10632(a)(8) Provide a draft water shortage contingency 
resolution or ordinance. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.7 Section 8.7 

10632(a)(9) Indicate a mechanism for determining actual 
reductions in water use pursuant to the water 
shortage contingency analysis. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.5 Section 8.5 

10633 For wastewater and recycled water, 
coordinate with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies that 
operate within the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.1 Section 6.5.1 

10633(a) Describe the wastewater collection and 
treatment systems in the supplier's service 
area. Include quantification of the amount of 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.2  Section 6.5.2  



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 6 

 

wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 

10633(b) Describe the quantity of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, is 
being discharged, and is otherwise available 
for use in a recycled water project. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 
6.5.2.2 

Section 6.5.2.2 

10633(c) Describe the recycled water currently being 
used in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 

Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 

10633(d) Describe and quantify the potential uses of 
recycled water and provide a determination 
of the technical and economic feasibility of 
those uses. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Section 6.5.4 

10633(e) Describe the projected use of recycled water 
within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description 
of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Section 6.5.4 

10633(f) Describe the actions which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of 
acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.5 Section 6.5.5 

10633(g) Provide a plan for optimizing the use of 
recycled water in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.5 Section 6.5.5 

10634 Provide information on the quality of existing 
sources of water available to the supplier 
and the manner in which water quality 
affects water management strategies and 
supply reliability 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10635(a)  Assess the water supply reliability during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years by 
comparing the total water supply sources 
available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use over the next 20 years.   

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.3 Section 7.3 

10635(b)  Provide supporting documentation that 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been, 
or will be, provided to any city or county 
within which it provides water, no later than 
60 days after the submission of the plan to 
DWR. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 10.4.4 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
water supplier has encouraged active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within 
the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 2.5.2 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier made the plan available 
for public inspection, published notice of the 
public hearing, and held a public hearing 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.2, 10.3, 
and 10.5  

Sections 10.2.2, 
10.3, and 10.5  



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 7 

 

about the plan.  
10642 The water supplier is to provide the time and 

place of the hearing to any city or county 
within which the supplier provides water.   

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.1 

Sections 10.2.1 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
plan has been adopted as prepared or 
modified. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3.1 Section 10.3.1 

10644(a) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to the California State Library.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.3 Section 10.4.3 

10644(a)(1) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water no later than 30 days 
after adoption. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 10.4.4 

10644(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, 
submitted to the department shall be 
submitted electronically. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.4.1 and 
10.4.2 

Sections 10.4.1 
and 10.4.2 

10645 Provide supporting documentation that, not 
later than 30 days after filing a copy of its 
plan with the department, the supplier has or 
will  make the plan available for public review 
during normal business hours. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.5 Section 10.5 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 8 

 

Checklist Arranged by Subject 
 

CWC 
Section 

 
UWMP Requirement 

 
Subject 

 
Guidebook 
Location 

UWMP 
Location 

(Optional 
Column for 

Agency Use) 

10620(b) Every person that becomes an urban water 
supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has 
become an urban water supplier.  

Plan Preparation Section 2.1 Section 2.1 

10620(d)(2) Coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, 
including other water suppliers that share a 
common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 2.5.2 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
water supplier has encouraged active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within 
the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 2.5.2 

10631(a) Describe the water supplier service area.  System 
Description 

Section 3.1 Section 3.1 

10631(a) Describe the climate of the service area of 
the supplier. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.3 Section 3.3 

10631(a) Provide population projections for  2020, 
2025, 2030, and 2035.  

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 3.4 

10631(a) Describe other demographic factors affecting 
the supplier’s water management planning. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 3.4 

10631(a) Indicate the current population of the service 
area.  

System 
Description and 
Baselines and 
Targets 

Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 

Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 

10631(e)(1) Quantify past, current, and projected water 
use, identifying the uses among water use 
sectors. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.2 Section 4.2 

10631(e)(3)(A) Report the distribution system water loss for 
the most recent 12-month period available.  

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.3 Section 4.3 

10631.1(a) Include projected water use needed for lower 
income housing projected in the service area 
of the supplier. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.5 Section 4.5 

10608.20(b) Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use 
target using one of four methods. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7 
and App E 

Section 5.7  

10608.20(e) Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily 
per capita water use, urban water use target, 
interim urban water use target, and 
compliance daily per capita water use, along 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Chapter 5 and 
App E 

Chapter 5 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 9 

 

with the bases for determining those 
estimates, including references to supporting 
data.  

10608.22 Retail suppliers’ per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of 
base daily per capita water use of the 5 year 
baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers 
base GPCD is at or below 100.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7.2 Section 5.7.2 

10608.24(a) Retail suppliers shall meet their interim 
target by December 31, 2015. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

Section 5.8 

10608.24(d)(2) If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance 
GPCD using weather normalization, 
economic adjustment, or extraordinary 
events, it shall provide the basis for, and 
data supporting the adjustment.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8.2 Section 5.8.2 

10608.36 Wholesale suppliers shall include an 
assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help 
their retail water suppliers achieve targeted 
water use reductions.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.1 Not 
Applicable 

10608.40 Retail suppliers shall report on their progress 
in meeting their water use targets. The data 
shall be reported using a standardized form.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

Section 5.8  

10631(b) Identify and quantify the existing and 
planned sources of water available for 2015, 
2020, 2025, 2030, and 2035. 

System Supplies Chapter 6 Chapter 6 

10631(b) Indicate whether groundwater is an existing 
or planned source of water available to the 
supplier.   

System Supplies Section 6.2 Section 6.2 

10631(b)(1) Indicate whether a groundwater 
management plan has been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific 
authorization for groundwater management.  
Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 6.2.2 

10631(b)(2) Describe the groundwater basin. System Supplies Section 6.2.1 Section 6.2.1 

10631(b)(2) Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated 
and include a copy of the court order or 
decree and a description of the amount of 
water the supplier has the legal right to 
pump. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 6.2.2 

10631(b)(2) For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether 
or not the department has identified the 
basin as overdrafted, or projected to become 
overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier 
to eliminate the long-term overdraft 
condition.  

System Supplies Section 6.2.3 Section 6.2.3 

10631(b)(3) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water 
supplier for the past five years 

System Supplies Section 6.2.4 Section 6.2.4 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 10 

 

10631(b)(4) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the amount and location of groundwater 
that is projected to be pumped. 

System Supplies Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 

Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 

10631(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or 
transfers of water on a short-term or long-
term basis. 

System Supplies  Section 6.7 Section 6.7 

10631(g) Describe the expected future water supply 
projects and programs that may be 
undertaken by the water supplier to address 
water supply reliability in average, single-dry, 
and multiple-dry years. 

System Supplies Section 6.8 Section 6.8 

10631(h) Describe desalinated water project 
opportunities for long-term supply.  

System Supplies Section 6.6 Section 6.6 

10631(j) Retail suppliers will include documentation 
that they have provided their wholesale 
supplier(s) – if any - with water use 
projections from that source.  

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 Section 2.5.1 

10631(j) Wholesale suppliers will include 
documentation that they have provided their 
urban water suppliers with identification and 
quantification of the existing and planned 
sources of water available from the 
wholesale to the urban supplier during 
various water year types.  

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 Not 
Applicable 

10633 For wastewater and recycled water, 
coordinate with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies that 
operate within the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.1 Section 6.5.1 

10633(a) Describe the wastewater collection and 
treatment systems in the supplier's service 
area. Include quantification of the amount of 
wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.2  Section 6.5.2 

10633(b) Describe the quantity of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, is 
being discharged, and is otherwise available 
for use in a recycled water project. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 
6.5.2.2 

Section 
6.5.2.2 

10633(c) Describe the recycled water currently being 
used in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 

Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 

10633(d) Describe and quantify the potential uses of 
recycled water and provide a determination 
of the technical and economic feasibility of 
those uses. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Section 6.5.4 

10633(e) Describe the projected use of recycled water 
within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description 
of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Section 6.5.4 

10633(f) Describe the actions which may be taken to System Supplies Section 6.5.5 Section 6.5.5 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 11 

 

encourage the use of recycled water and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of 
acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

(Recycled 
Water) 

10633(g) Provide a plan for optimizing the use of 
recycled water in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.5 Section 6.5.5 

10620(f) Describe water management tools and 
options to maximize resources and minimize 
the need to import water from other regions. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.4 Section 7.4 

10631(c)(1) Describe the reliability of the water supply 
and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10631(c)(1) Provide data for an average water year, a 
single dry water year, and multiple dry water 
years 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.2 Section 7.2 

10631(c)(2) For any water source that may not be 
available at a consistent level of use, 
describe plans to supplement or replace that 
source. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10634 Provide information on the quality of existing 
sources of water available to the supplier 
and the manner in which water quality 
affects water management strategies and 
supply reliability 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 7.1 

10635(a)  Assess the water supply reliability during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years by 
comparing the total water supply sources 
available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use over the next 20 years.   

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.3 Section 7.3 

10632(a) and 
10632(a)(1) 

Provide an urban water shortage 
contingency analysis that specifies stages of 
action and an outline of specific water supply 
conditions at each stage. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.1 Section 8.1 

10632(a)(2) Provide an estimate of the minimum water 
supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-
year historic sequence for the agency. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.9 Section 8.9 

10632(a)(3) Identify actions to be undertaken by the 
urban water supplier in case of a 
catastrophic interruption of water supplies. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.8 Section 8.8 

10632(a)(4) Identify mandatory prohibitions against 
specific water use practices during water 
shortages. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.2 Section 8.2 

10632(a)(5) Specify consumption reduction methods in 
the most restrictive stages.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.4 Section 8.4 

10632(a)(6) Indicated penalties or charges for excessive 
use, where applicable. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.3 Section 8.3 



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 12 

 

10632(a)(7) Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of 
the actions and conditions in the water 
shortage contingency analysis on the 
revenues and expenditures of the urban 
water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.6 Section 8.6 

10632(a)(8) Provide a draft water shortage contingency 
resolution or ordinance. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.7 Section 8.7 

10632(a)(9) Indicate a mechanism for determining actual 
reductions in water use pursuant to the water 
shortage contingency analysis. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.5 Section 8.5 

10631(f)(1) Retail suppliers shall provide a description of 
the nature and extent of each demand 
management measure implemented over the 
past five years. The description will address 
specific measures listed in code.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 

Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 

10631(f)(2) Wholesale suppliers shall describe specific 
demand management measures listed in 
code, their distribution system asset 
management program, and supplier 
assistance program.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.1 
and 9.3 

Not 
Applicable 

10631(i) CUWCC members may submit their 2013-
2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, 
or in addition to, describing the DMM 
implementation in their UWMPs. This option 
is only allowable if the supplier has been 
found to be in full compliance with the 
CUWCC MOU.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Section 9.5 Section 9.5 

10608.26(a) Retail suppliers shall conduct a public 
hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, 
and economic impact of water use targets.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3 Section 10.3 

10621(b) Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public 
hearing, any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the 
plan.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.2.1 Section 
10.2.1 

10621(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and 
submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.3.1 and 
10.4 

Sections 
10.3.1 and 
10.4 

10635(b)  Provide supporting documentation that 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been, 
or will be, provided to any city or county 
within which it provides water, no later than 
60 days after the submission of the plan to 
DWR. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 
10.4.4 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier made the plan available 
for public inspection, published notice of the 
public hearing, and held a public hearing 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.2, 10.3, 
and 10.5  

Sections 
10.2.2, 10.3, 
and 10.5  



Appendix F Checklist Final  

F - 13 

 

about the plan.  
10642 The water supplier is to provide the time and 

place of the hearing to any city or county 
within which the supplier provides water.   

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.1 

Sections 
10.2.1 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
plan has been adopted as prepared or 
modified. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3.1 Section 
10.3.1 

10644(a) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to the California State Library.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.3 Section 
10.4.3 

10644(a)(1) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water no later than 30 days 
after adoption. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 
10.4.4 

10644(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, 
submitted to the department shall be 
submitted electronically. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.4.1 and 
10.4.2 

Sections 
10.4.1 and 
10.4.2 

10645 Provide supporting documentation that, not 
later than 30 days after filing a copy of its 
plan with the department, the supplier has or 
will  make the plan available for public review 
during normal business hours. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.5 Section 10.5 

 

 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D  
Summary of Baseline and Compliance 

Urban per Capita Water Use 



 

 

 

SUMMARY OF  

“BASELINE AND 

COMPLIANCE URBAN PER 

CAPITA WATER USE” 

DETERMINATION 
 

 

June 2016 

 
861 Village Oaks Drive, Suite 100 ▪ Covina, California 91724 

Phone: (626) 967‐6202 ▪ FAX: (626) 331‐7065 ▪ www.stetsonengineers.com  

Northern California ▪ Southern California ▪ Arizona ▪ Colorado 

FINAL DRAFT 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water 
Management Joint Powers 
Authority 
 



 

BASELINE AND COMPLIANCE URBAN PER CAPITA WATER USE 

 

California Water Code Section 10608.20(a)(1) 

Each urban retail water supplier shall develop urban water use targets and an interim 
urban water use target by July 1, 2011. Urban retail water suppliers may elect to 
determine and report progress toward achieving these targets on an individual or 
regional basis, as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 10608.28, and may determine the 
targets on a fiscal year or calendar year basis. 

California Water Code Section 10608.28 

(a) An urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water use target within its retail 
service area, or through mutual agreement, by any of the following: 

(1) Through an urban wholesale water supplier. 

(2) Through a regional agency authorized to plan and implement water 
conservation, including, but not limited to, an agency established under the 
Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency Act (Division 31 
(commencing with Section 81300)). 

(3) Through a regional water management group as defined in Section 10537. 

(4) By an integrated regional water management funding area. 

(5) By hydrologic region. 

(6) Through other appropriate geographic scales for which computation methods 
have been developed by the department. 

(b) A regional water management group, with the written consent of its member 
agencies, may undertake any or all planning, reporting, and implementation 
functions under this chapter for the member agencies that consent to those activities. 
Any data or reports shall provide information both for the regional water 
management group and separately for each consenting urban retail water supplier 
and urban wholesale water supplier. 

 
Introduction 

According to California Water Code Sections 10608.20(a)(1) and 10608.28, urban retail 

water suppliers may plan, comply, and report on a regional basis, an individual basis or 

both.  The California Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) guidebook titled, 

“Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and Compliance Urban per Capita Water Use” 

includes “Methodology 9” which prescribes three options by which the regional alliance 



 

compliance may be calculated. Each group of water suppliers agreeing among 

themselves to plan, comply, and report as a region is referred to in Methodology 9 as a 

“regional alliance.”   

 

Calculation of Regional Targets 

Water suppliers in a regional alliance have three options to calculate the regional targets. 

 

Option 1 

This option preserves maximum flexibility at the water supplier level.  Each retail water 

supplier in a regional alliance first calculates its individual target. The individual targets 

from each retail water supplier is then multiplied by each retail water supplier’s population. 

The total is divided by the total population in the alliance to obtain the regional target. For 

the 2010 urban water management plans, retail water suppliers used their estimated 

population data to generate the regional targets. However, for compliance in 2015 and 

2020, the population weighting of the individual targets must be based upon the 

compliance-year population data. Because 2010 U.S. Census data was not available until 

2012, retail water suppliers were required to recalculate its individual population, baseline 

and targets in 2015.  A modification in any individual target or a change in membership in 

a regional alliance will require a recalculation of the entire regional target.   

 

Option 2  

The second option for an alliance to calculate a regional target is to sum up the individual 

retail water supplier’s gross water use and service area populations to develop regional 

gross water use and population. The alliance would then calculate regional base daily per 

capita use and choose one target method to calculate a regional target. This option 

requires all the members to use the same baseline period. 

 



 

Option 3  

A third option is to calculate regional gross water use or population directly for the entire 

regional alliance area. Regional base daily per capita use and a regional water use target 

would then be derived. Like Option 2, members of alliances using this option must use 

the same baseline period and the same target method. The regional target may not 

exceed 95 percent of the region’s 5-year Base Daily Per Capita Water Use.  

 

Results 

The Gateway Regional Alliance has chosen Option 1 to estimate its Regional Target.  The 

following tabulation summarizes the steps used with Option 1 and to calculate the 

Regional Target.  As shown in the tabulation below, the “Regional Alliance Weighted 

Average 10-15 Year Baseline” is 128 GPCD.  The “Regional Alliance Weighted Average 

2020 Target” is 111 GPCD.  The “Regional Alliance 2015 Interim Target” is based on the 

mid-point between the Weighted Average 10-15 Year Baseline (129 GPCD) and the 

Weighted Average 2020 Target (115 GPCD).  The Regional Alliance 2015 Interim Target 

is 120 GPCD ((128 + 111) / 2).   

Based on each of the member agencies’ individual 2015 Actual water use, the “Regional 

Alliance 2015 Actual water use” is 102 GPCD.   The 2015 Actual water use of 102 GPCD 

is less than the “Regional Alliance 2015 Interim Target” of 120 GPCD.  Therefore, the 

Gateway Regional Alliance achieved its Targeted Reduction for 2015 and is in 

compliance with the 2015 Interim Target.       

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E  
Historical Annual Rainfall 

 



  Los Angeles County Dept of Public Works                                                            HYMONTH V114  Output 03/09/2016

  Site      106Z            Whittier City  - Composite Records for Analysis                                           Site  106Z

  Variable  11.05           Total  Rainfall in Inches Processed Rainfall Data

Mean Annual

Year Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Monthly Total

1959/60 0 0.07 1.44 2.54 T 2.6 0.42 2.02 0.11 0 0 0 0 0.767 T 9.2 T

1960/61 0.12 2.59 0.08 1.37 0 0.51 0.28 0 0.02 0 T 0.06 0 T 0.419 T 5.03 T

1961/62 0 2.53 T 1.84 2.98 13.71 T 0.92 0 0.13 0 0 0 0 1.843 T 22.11 T

1962/63 0.13 0.1 0.02 0.36 4.56 2.76 1.69 T 0 0.07 T 0 0.02 1.83 0.962 T 11.54 T

1963/64 0.92 2.68 0 1.21 0 1.95 0.53 0.04 0.21 0 0 0 0.628 7.54

1964/65 0.13 T 1.29 1.61 0.65 0.39 $ 2.69 $ 5.71 $ 0 $ 0 T 0.01 $ 0 T 1.01 $ 1.124 $ 13.49 $

1965/66 0 8.85 4.27 1 1.29 T 0.8 0 0.06 0 0 0 0.15 1.368 T 16.42 T

1966/67 0.08 2.01 T 5.15 4.73 0.02 1.85 4.25 0.15 0 T 0 0 0.42 T 1.555 T 18.66 T

1967/68 0 4.14 2.3 0.46 0.8 3.11 0.73 0 0 0.24 0 0 0.982 11.78

1968/69 0.27 0.34 1.25 T 13.31 8.22 1.18 0.79 0 T 0.01 0 T 0 0 2.114 T 25.37 T

1969/70 0 1.47 T 0.07 1.5 3.1 2.47 0 T 0 0 0 0 0 0.718 T 8.61 T

1970/71 0.03 4.31 4.16 T 0.55 1.24 0.42 0.45 T 0.38 T 0 0 0 0 T 0.962 T 11.54 T

1971/72 0 T 0.27 T 5.35 T 0 0.09 T 0 0.16 0.02 0.19 T 0 0.58 T 0.35 T 0.584 T 7.01 T

1972/73 0.8 T 3.95 T 1.88 3.66 T 7.09 T 2.77 T 0 0.02 0 0 0 0 T 1.681 T 20.17 T

1973/74 0.06 T 2.15 0.48 T 7.82 T 0.29 3.79 T 0.19 0.01 T 0 0 0 0 1.232 T 14.79 T

1974/75 0.94 0.02 3.37 0.12 3.37 3.13 1.15 0.11 0.05 0 0 0 T 1.022 T 12.26 T

1975/76 0.41 0 T 0.22 0 3.01 1.61 1.13 0.04 T 0.17 0.01 T 0.06 3.87 T 0.878 T 10.53 T

1976/77 0 T 0.42 0.93 2.56 0.31 1.08 0 2.79 T 0 T 0 2.2 T 0 0.858 T 10.29 T

1977/78 0 T 0.03 T 5.55 7.35 T 9.21 8.65 1.72 0.02 0 0 0 0.68 2.768 T 33.21 T

1978/79 0.05 2.24 T 2.98 7.45 2.57 T 5.52 0 0.02 0 T 0 0 0 1.736 T 20.83 T

1979/80 0.64 T 0.2 0.39 7.49 T 12.88 4.46 0.25 0.14 0 0 0 0 2.204 T 26.45 T

1980/81 0 0 0.56 2.69 1.74 2.89 T 0.57 0 T 0 0 0 0 0.704 T 8.45 T

1981/82 0.68 3.17 0.41 2.09 0.43 4.16 1.17 0.32 0 0 0.06 0.81 1.108 13.3

1982/83 0.42 4 1.08 4.26 T 5.02 10.08 3 0.12 0 0 0.55 1.57 2.508 T 30.1 T

1983/84 2.02 $ 3.21 $ 1.98 $ 0.35 0 0.17 T 0.91 0 0.1 0 0.32 0.14 0.767 $ 9.2 $

1984/85 0.09 2.05 6.47 0.69 2.17 0.97 0 0.15 0 0 0 0.24 1.069 12.83

1985/86 0.4 2.96 0.48 2.92 5.63 4.98 T 0.58 0 0 0.1 0 1.24 1.608 T 19.29 T

1986/87 0.27 0.75 0.31 2.07 0.85 0.94 0.05 0 0.06 0 0.08 0.05 0.452 5.43

1987/88 2.14 0.98 2.01 * 1.82 1.1 0.35 3.15 T 0 T 0 0 0 0 T 0.962 * 11.55 *

1988/89 0 0.43 3.49 0.73 T 1.31 0.93 0 0 0 0 0 0.05 0.578 T 6.94 T

1989/90 0.32 0.3 0 1.82 2.48 0.14 T 0.21 1.23 0 T 0 0 0 0.542 T 6.5 T

1990/91 0 0.28 0 2 3.97 6.6 0.09 0 0 0 T 0 T 0 T 1.078 T 12.94 T

1991/92 0.39 0 2.36 T 1.66 6.82 5.53 T 0 0 T 0 0.38 0 0 1.428 T 17.14 T

1992/93 0.71 0 4.4 12 9.56 1.78 T 0 0 0.91 0 0 0 2.447 T 29.36 T

1993/94 0.12 1.33 0.68 0.58 3.21 2 * 0.61 0.29 T 0 0 0 0 0.735 * 8.82 *

1994/95 0.54 0.86 0.86 10.79 T 1.36 T 5.79 0.7 0 T 1.15 0 0 0 1.837 T 22.05 T

1995/96 0 T 0 T 1.81 2.6 T 4.64 2.4 0.61 0 T 0 0 0 0 1.005 T 12.06 T

1996/97 1.23 * 2.32 3.79 4.85 * 0.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.14 1.069 * 12.83 *

1997/98 0 2.29 2.9 5.01 12.05 4.7 0.71 $ 1.36 0.06 0 0 0.37 2.454 $ 29.45 $

1998/99 0 0.94 0.51 * 0.22 0.83 0.53 2.05 0 0.55 0.01 0 0 0.47 * 5.64 *



  Los Angeles County Dept of Public Works                                                            HYMONTH V114  Output 03/09/2016

  Site      106Z            Whittier City  - Composite Records for Analysis                                           Site  106Z

  Variable  11.05           Total  Rainfall in Inches Processed Rainfall Data

Mean Annual

Year Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Monthly Total

1999/ 0 0 0 0.5 1.45 4.93 1.95 2.68 0.06 0 0 0 0 0.964 11.57

2000/ 1 1.8 0 0 3.85 6.06 0.36 1.23 0 0 0 0 0 1.108 13.3

2001/ 2 0.03 0.99 0.99 0.6 0.24 0.09 0.31 0.23 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.29 $ 3.48 $

2002/ 3 0 $ 2.79 $ 1.79 $ 0 $ 4.59 $ 4.07 * 1.63 $ 1.19 $ 0 $ 0.12 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1.348 * 16.18 *

2003/ 4 0.09 $ 0.04 $ 1.36 $ 0.26 $ 6.17 $ 0 $ 0.79 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.726 $ 8.71 $

2004/ 5 5.86 $ 0.5 $ 3.68 $ 6.78 $ 9.39 $ 1.9 $ 0.93 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.36 $ 2.45 $ 29.4 $

2005/ 6 1.37 $ 0 $ 0.92 $ 1.17 $ 1.84 $ 2.35 $ 1.74 $ 0.61 $ 0 $ 0.14 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.845 $ 10.14 $

2006/ 7 0 $ 0.04 $ 0.38 $ 0.1 $ 0.83 $ 0.24 $ 1.91 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.73 $ 0.352 $ 4.23 $

2007/ 8 0.48 $ 0.84 $ 1.13 $ 5.07 $ 1.29 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.14 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.746 $ 8.95 $

2008/ 9 0.03 $ 1.55 $ 2.71 $ 0.21 $ 3.9 $ 0.45 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.738 $ 8.85 $

2009/10 1.81 $ 0 $ 3.09 $ 6.48 $ 4.59 $ 0.37 $ 0.44 $ 0.02 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1.4 $ 16.8 $

2010/11 1.06 $ 0.98 A 12.45 $ 0.86 $ 2.34 $ 2.32 $ 0.12 $ 0.48 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.06 $ 1.722 A 20.67 A

2011/12 1.58 * 1.21 $ 0.43 $ 0.76 A 0.53 $ 1.97 $ 0.83 $ 0.01 $ 0 $ 0.02 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.612 * 7.34 *

2012/13 0.14 $ 0.79 $ 1.82 $ 0.91 $ 0.34 $ 0.53 $ 0.01 $ 0.45 $ 0 $ 0.02 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.417 $ 5.01 $

2013/14 0.23 * 0.57 * 0.43 $ 0.01 $ 2.6 $ 1.18 $ 0.66 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0.33 $ 0.03 $ 0.503 * 6.04 *

2014/15 0 $ 0.22 $ 3.35 $ 1.16 $ 0.48 $ 0.21 $ 0.13 $ 1.2 $ 0.02 * 0.47 $ 0 $ 1.07 * 0.692 * 8.31 *

Mean 0.507 * 1.358 * 2.008 * 2.784 * 3.367 $ 2.197 * 0.873 $ 0.212 $ 0.064 * 0.027 $ 0.076 $ 0.271 * 1.145 * 13.744 * Mean

Med. 0.125 * 0.85 * 1.4 * 1.58 * 2.41 $ 1.815 * 0.575 $ 0.02 $ 0 * 0 $ 0 $ 0 * Med.

Max 5.86 * 8.85 * 12.45 * 13.31 * 13.71 $ 10.08 * 5.71 $ 2.79 $ 1.15 * 0.47 $ 2.2 $ 3.87 * 2.768 * 33.21 * Max

Min 0 * 0 * 0 * 0 * 0 $ 0 * 0 $ 0 $ 0 * 0 $ 0 $ 0 * 0.29 * 3.48 * Min

Total 28.39 * 76.05 * 112.47 * 155.93 * 188.54 $ 123.02 * 48.87 $ 11.9 $ 3.57 * 1.52 $ 4.26 $ 15.17 * 64.141 * 769.69 * Total

                                        ------------------ Notes -------------------

                                        All recorded data is continuous and reliable

                                        except where the following tags are used...

                                        $ ...  Daily Read

                                        * ...  Reliable Estimate

                                        A ...  Accumulated Data

                                        T ...  Trace



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX F  
AWWA Audit Worksheet 

 



5

Name of Contact Person: All audit data are entered on the Reporting Worksheet

Email Address: Value can be entered by user

Telephone | Ext.: 5628680511 7586 Value calculated based on input data 

Name of City / Utility: These cells contain recommended default values

City/Town/Municipality: 

State / Province: Pcnt: Value:

Country: 0.25%

Year: 2015 Financial Year

Start Date: 07/2015  Enter MM/YYYY numeric format

End Date: 06/2016  Enter MM/YYYY numeric format

Audit Preparation Date: 

Volume Reporting Units: 

PWSID / Other ID: 

If you have questions or comments regarding the software please contact us via email at: wlc@awwa.org

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 

City of Santa Fe Springs Water Authority

The following worksheets are available by clicking the buttons below or selecting the tabs along the bottom of the page

Santa Fe Springs

frankbeach@santafesprings.org

Auditors are strongly encouraged to refer to the most current edition of AWWA M36 Manual for Water Audits 
for detailed guidance on the water auditing process and targetting loss reduction levels

This spreadsheet-based water audit tool is designed to help quantify and track water losses associated with water distribution systems and identify areas for improved efficiency 
and cost recovery. It provides a "top-down" summary water audit format, and is not meant to take the place of a full-scale, comprehensive water audit format. 

1910245

USA
Use of Option  

(Radio) Buttons:

The spreadsheet contains several separate worksheets. Sheets can be accessed using the tabs towards the bottom of the screen, or by clicking the buttons below. 

Frank Beach

Acre-feet

Please begin by providing the following information The following guidance will help you complete the Audit

California (CA)

American Water Works Association Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.

Select the default percentage 
by choosing the option button 
on the left

To enter a value, choose 
this button and enter a 
value in the cell to the right

Instructions

The current sheet.
Enter contact 

information and basic 
audit details (year,  

units etc)

Performance 
Indicators

Review the
performance indicators 
to evaluate the results 

of the audit 

Comments

Enter comments to 
explain how values 

were calculated or to 
document data sources

Water Balance

The values entered in 
the Reporting 

Worksheet are used to 
populate the Water 

Balance

Dashboard

A graphical summary of 
the water balance and 
Non-Revenue Water 

components

Grading Matrix

Presents the possible 
grading options for 

each input component 
of the audit

Service Connection 
Diagram

Diagrams depicting 
possible customer service

connection line 
configurations

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements for 
the AWWA Free Water 

Audit Software v5.0

Loss Control 
Planning

Use this sheet to 
interpret the results of 
the audit validity score 

and performance 
indicators

Definitions

Use this sheet to 
understand the terms 

used in the audit 
process

Example Audits

Reporting Worksheet 
and Performance 

Indicators examples 
are shown for two 

validated audits

Reporting Worksheet

Enter the required data 
on this worksheet to 
calculate the water 

balance and data grading

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Instructions   1

mailto:wlc@awwa.org


Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:

All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR

Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments

WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:
Volume from own sources: 5 2,736.650 acre-ft/yr 5 0.90% acre-ft/yr

Water imported: 8 3,502.290 acre-ft/yr 5 0.90% acre-ft/yr
Water exported: n/a 0.000 acre-ft/yr n/a 0.01% acre-ft/yr

Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 6,183.290 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration

.

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 9 5,936.000 acre-ft/yr

Billed unmetered: n/a 0.000 acre-ft/yr
Unbilled metered: 10 0.000 acre-ft/yr Pcnt: Value:

Unbilled unmetered: 77.291 acre-ft/yr 1.25% acre-ft/yr24061

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 6,013.291 acre-ft/yr

WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 169.999 acre-ft/yr

Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:
Unauthorized consumption: 8 15.458 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr

Customer metering inaccuracies: 8 0.000 acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr
Systematic data handling errors: 8 14.840 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr

Apparent Losses: 30.298 acre-ft/yr

Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)

Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 139.701 acre-ft/yr

WATER LOSSES: 169.999 acre-ft/yr

NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 247.290 acre-ft/yr

= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered

SYSTEM DATA

Length of mains: 8 108.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 8 6,346

Service connection density: 59 conn./mile main

Yes
Average length of customer service line: 1 ft

Average operating pressure: 9 75.0 psi

COST DATA

Total annual cost of operating water system: 8 $11,332,459 $/Year
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 8 $3.26

Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 7 $790.00 $/acre-ft

 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:

 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:

     1: Volume from own sources

     2: Water imported

     3: Unauthorized consumption

                   Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed

Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied

Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 

 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet

       Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed

2,693.000

2015 7/2015 - 6/2016

City of Santa Fe Springs Water Authority  (1910245)

              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->

 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:

$/100 cubic feet (ccf)

                Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed                

6.733

*** YOUR SCORE IS: 72 out of 100 ***

A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score

24.457

7.383

?
?

?

?

?

? Click to access definition

?

?

?

?

?

?

Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the 
input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades

?

?

?

?

?

?

(length of service line, beyond the property 
boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility)

Use buttons to select
percentage of water 

supplied
OR

value

?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below

?

?

?

?

+

+ Click to add a comment

WAS v5.0

+
+

+
+

+

+

American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.

?
?
?

+

+
+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

?

To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.

Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Reporting Worksheet      2



Water Audit Report for: City of Santa Fe Springs Water Authority  (1910245)
Reporting Year:

System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 30.298                              acre-ft/yr

+              Real Losses: 139.701                            acre-ft/yr

=            Water Losses: 169.999                            acre-ft/yr

Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 129.06 acre-ft/yr

Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $43,025

Annual cost of Real Losses: $110,364 Valued at Variable Production Cost

Performance Indicators:

Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 4.0%

Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 1.9%  Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost

Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 4.26 gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per service connection per day: 19.65 gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A

Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 0.26 gallons/connection/day/psi

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 139.70 acre-feet/year

1.08

* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline

 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators

*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 72 out of 100 ***

Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:

2015 7/2015 - 6/2016

Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton

?

?

American Water Works Association.

WAS v5.0

Financial:

Operational Efficiency:

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Performance Indicators      3



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX G  
Water Conservation Act of 2009 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 2 
 

 
California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.55. 
 

Chapter 1. General Declarations and Policy §10608‐10608.8 
Chapter 2. Definitions §10608.12 
Chapter 3. Urban Retail Water Suppliers §10608.16‐10608.44 
Chapter 4. Agricultural Water Suppliers §10608.48 
Chapter 5. Sustainable Water Management §10608.50 
Chapter 6 Standardized Data Collection §10608.52 
Chapter 7 Funding Provisions §10608.56‐10608.60 
Chapter 8 Quantifying Agricultural Water Use Efficiency §10608.64 

 
 
Chapter 1.  General Declarations and Policy 
 
SECTION 10608-10608.8 
 
10608.  The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 
 

(a) Water is a public resource that the California Constitution protects against waste 
and unreasonable use. 
 

(b) Growing population, climate change, and the need to protect and grow California's 
economy while protecting and restoring our fish and wildlife habitats make it 
essential that the state manage its water resources as efficiently as possible. 
 

(c) Diverse regional water supply portfolios will increase water supply reliability and 
reduce dependence on the Delta. 
 

(d) Reduced water use through conservation provides significant energy and 
environmental benefits, and can help protect water quality, improve streamflows, 
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
(e) The success of state and local water conservation programs to increase efficiency 

of water use is best determined on the basis of measurable outcomes related to 
water use or efficiency. 

 
(f) Improvements in technology and management practices offer the potential for 

increasing water efficiency in California over time, providing an essential water 
management tool to meet the need for water for urban, agricultural, and 
environmental uses. 

 
(g) The Governor has called for a 20 percent per capita reduction in urban water use 

statewide by 2020. 
 

(h) The factors used to formulate water use efficiency targets can vary significantly 
from location to location based on factors including weather, patterns of urban and 
suburban development, and past efforts to enhance water use efficiency. 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 3 
 

(i) Per capita water use is a valid measure of a water provider's efforts to reduce 
urban water use within its service area. However, per capita water use is less 
useful for measuring relative water use efficiency between different water 
providers. Differences in weather, historical patterns of urban and suburban 
development, and density of housing in a particular location need to be 
considered when assessing per capita water use as a measure of efficiency. 

 
10608.4. It is the intent of the Legislature, by the enactment of this part, to do all of the following: 
 

(a) Require all water suppliers to increase the efficiency of use of this essential 
resource. 

 
(b) Establish a framework to meet the state targets for urban water conservation 

identified in this part and called for by the Governor. 
 
(c) Measure increased efficiency of urban water use on a per capita basis. 
 
(d) Establish a method or methods for urban retail water suppliers to determine 

targets for achieving increased water use efficiency by the year 2020, in 
accordance with the Governor's goal of a 20-percent reduction. 

 
(e) Establish consistent water use efficiency planning and implementation standards 

for urban water suppliers and agricultural water suppliers. 
 
(f)  Promote urban water conservation standards that are consistent with the 

California Urban Water Conservation Council's adopted best management 
practices and the requirements for demand management in Section 10631. 

 
(g) Establish standards that recognize and provide credit to water suppliers that made 

substantial capital investments in urban water conservation since the drought of 
the early 1990s. 

 
(h) Recognize and account for the investment of urban retail water suppliers in 

providing recycled water for beneficial uses. 
 
(i) Require implementation of specified efficient water management practices for 

agricultural water suppliers. 
 
(j) Support the economic productivity of California's agricultural, commercial, and 

industrial sectors. 
 
(k) Advance regional water resources management. 

 
10608.8.  (a)    (1) Water use efficiency measures adopted and implemented pursuant to this 

part or Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800) are water conservation 
measures subject to the protections provided under Section 1011. 

 
(2) Because an urban agency is not required to meet its urban water use target 

until 2020 pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.24, an urban retail 
water supplier's failure to meet those targets shall not establish a violation of 
law for purposes of any state administrative or judicial proceeding prior to 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 4 
 

January 1, 2021. Nothing in this paragraph limits the use of data reported to 
the department or the board in litigation or an administrative proceeding. This 
paragraph shall become inoperative on January 1, 2021. 

 
(3) To the extent feasible, the department and the board shall provide for the use 

of water conservation reports required under this part to meet the 
requirements of Section 1011 for water conservation reporting. 

 
(b) This part does not limit or otherwise affect the application of Chapter 3.5 

(commencing with Section 11340), Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 11370), 
Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 11400), and Chapter 5 (commencing with 
Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code. 

 
(c) This part does not require a reduction in the total water used in the agricultural or 

urban sectors, because other factors, including, but not limited to, changes in 
agricultural economics or population growth may have greater effects on water 
use. This part does not limit the economic productivity of California's agricultural, 
commercial, or industrial sectors. 

 
(d) The requirements of this part do not apply to an agricultural water supplier that is a 

party to the Quantification Settlement Agreement, as defined in subdivision (a) of 
Section 1 of Chapter 617 of the Statutes of 2002, during the period within which 
the Quantification Settlement Agreement remains in effect. After the expiration of 
the Quantification Settlement Agreement, to the extent conservation water 
projects implemented as part of the Quantification Settlement Agreement remain 
in effect, the conserved water created as part of those projects shall be credited 
against the obligations of the agricultural water supplier pursuant to this part. 

 

 

Chapter 2 Definitions 
 
SECTION 10608.12  
 
10608.12. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following definitions govern the 

construction of this part: 
 

(a) "Agricultural water supplier" means a water supplier, either publicly or privately 
owned, providing water to 10,000 or more irrigated acres, excluding recycled 
water. "Agricultural water supplier" includes a supplier or contractor for water, 
regardless of the basis of right, that distributes or sells water for ultimate resale to 
customers. "Agricultural water supplier" does not include the department. 

 
(b) "Base daily per capita water use" means any of the following: 
 

(1) The urban retail water supplier's estimate of its average gross water use, 
reported in gallons per capita per day and calculated over a continuous 10-
year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 5 
 

(2) For an urban retail water supplier that meets at least 10 percent of its 2008 
measured retail water demand through recycled water that is delivered within 
the service area of an urban retail water supplier or its urban wholesale water 
supplier, the urban retail water supplier may extend the calculation described 
in paragraph (1) up to an additional five years to a maximum of a continuous 
15-year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 

 
(3) For the purposes of Section 10608.22, the urban retail water supplier's 

estimate of its average gross water use, reported in gallons per capita per 
day and calculated over a continuous five-year period ending no earlier than 
December 31, 2007, and no later than December 31, 2010. 

 
(c) "Baseline commercial, industrial, and institutional water use" means an urban retail 

water supplier's base daily per capita water use for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users. 

 
(d) "Commercial water user" means a water user that provides or distributes a product 

or service. 
 
(e) "Compliance daily per capita water use" means the gross water use during the 

final year of the reporting period, reported in gallons per capita per day. 
 
(f) "Disadvantaged community" means a community with an annual median 

household income that is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual median 
household income. 

 
(g) "Gross water use" means the total volume of water, whether treated or untreated, 

entering the distribution system of an urban retail water supplier, excluding all of 
the following: 

 
(1) Recycled water that is delivered within the service area of an urban retail 

water supplier or its urban wholesale water supplier. 
 
(2) The net volume of water that the urban retail water supplier places into long-

term storage. 
 
(3) The volume of water the urban retail water supplier conveys for use by 

another urban water supplier. 
 
(4) The volume of water delivered for agricultural use, except as otherwise 

provided in subdivision (f) of Section 10608.24. 
 

(h) "Industrial water user" means a water user that is primarily a manufacturer or 
processor of materials as defined by the North American Industry Classification 
System code sectors 31 to 33, inclusive, or an entity that is a water user 
primarily engaged in research and development. 

 
(i) "Institutional water user" means a water user dedicated to public service. This type 

of user includes, among other users, higher education institutions, schools, courts, 
churches, hospitals, government facilities, and nonprofit research institutions. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 6 
 

 
(j) "Interim urban water use target" means the midpoint between the urban retail water 

supplier's base daily per capita water use and the urban retail water supplier's 
urban water use target for 2020. 

 
(k) "Locally cost effective" means that the present value of the local benefits of 

implementing an agricultural efficiency water management practice is greater than 
or equal to the present value of the local cost of implementing that measure. 

 
(l) "Process water" means water used for producing a product or product content or 

water used for research and development, including, but not limited to, continuous 
manufacturing processes, water used for testing and maintaining equipment used 
in producing a product or product content, and water used in combined heat and 
power facilities used in producing a product or product content. Process water 
does not mean incidental water uses not related to the production of a product or 
product content, including, but not limited to, water used for restrooms, 
landscaping, air conditioning, heating, kitchens, and laundry. 

 
(m) "Recycled water" means recycled water, as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 

13050, that is used to offset potable demand, including recycled water supplied 
for direct use and indirect potable reuse, that meets the following requirements, 
where applicable: 

 
(1) For groundwater recharge, including recharge through spreading basins, 

water supplies that are all of the following: 
 

(A) Metered. 
 

(B) Developed through planned investment by the urban water supplier or a 
wastewater treatment agency. 

 
(C) Treated to a minimum tertiary level. 

 
(D) Delivered within the service area of an urban retail water supplier or its 

urban wholesale water supplier that helps an urban retail water supplier 
meet its urban water use target. 

 
(2) For reservoir augmentation, water supplies that meet the criteria of paragraph 

(1) and are conveyed through a distribution system constructed specifically 
for recycled water. 

    
(n) "Regional water resources management" means sources of supply resulting from 

watershed-based planning for sustainable local water reliability or any of the 
following alternative sources of water: 

 
(1) The capture and reuse of stormwater or rainwater. 
 
(2) The use of recycled water. 
 
(3) The desalination of brackish groundwater. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 7 
 

(4) The conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater in a manner that is 
consistent with the safe yield of the groundwater basin. 

 
(o) "Reporting period" means the years for which an urban retail water supplier 

reports compliance with the urban water use targets. 
 
(p) "Urban retail water supplier" means a water supplier, either publicly or privately 

owned, that directly provides potable municipal water to more than 3,000 end 
users or that supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet of potable water annually at retail 
for municipal purposes. 

 
(q) "Urban water use target" means the urban retail water supplier's targeted future 

daily per capita water use. 
 
(r) "Urban wholesale water supplier," means a water supplier, either publicly or 

privately owned, that provides more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually at 
wholesale for potable municipal purposes. 

 
 

Chapter 3 Urban Retail Water Suppliers 
 
SECTION 10608.16-10608.44  
 
10608.16.(a) The state shall achieve a 20-percent reduction in urban per capita water use in 

California on or before December 31, 2020. 
 

(b) The state shall make incremental progress towards the state target specified in 
subdivision (a) by reducing urban per capita water use by at least 10 percent on 
or before December 31, 2015. 

 
10608.20.(a) (1) Each urban retail water supplier shall develop urban water use targets and an 

interim urban water use target by July 1, 2011. Urban retail water suppliers 
may elect to determine and report progress toward achieving these targets on 
an individual or regional basis, as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 
10608.28, and may determine the targets on a fiscal year or calendar year 
basis. 

 
(2) It is the intent of the Legislature that the urban water use targets described in 

paragraph (1) cumulatively result in a 20-percent reduction from the baseline 
daily per capita water use by December 31, 2020. 

 
(b) An urban retail water supplier shall adopt one of the following methods for 

determining its urban water use target pursuant to subdivision (a): 
 
(1) Eighty percent of the urban retail water supplier's baseline per capita daily 

water use. 
 
(2) The per capita daily water use that is estimated using the sum of the following 

performance standards: 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 8 
 

(A) For indoor residential water use, 55 gallons per capita daily water use as 
a provisional standard. Upon completion of the department's 2016 report 
to the Legislature pursuant to Section 10608.42, this standard may be 
adjusted by the Legislature by statute. 

 
(B) For landscape irrigated through dedicated or residential meters or 

connections, water efficiency equivalent to the standards of the Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance set forth in Chapter 2.7 
(commencing with Section 490) of Division 2 of Title 23 of the California 
Code of Regulations, as in effect the later of the year of the landscape's 
installation or 1992. An urban retail water supplier using the approach 
specified in this subparagraph shall use satellite imagery, site visits, or 
other best available technology to develop an accurate estimate of 
landscaped areas. 

 
(C) For commercial, industrial, and institutional uses, a 10-percent reduction 

in water use from the baseline commercial, industrial, and institutional 
water use by 2020. 

 
(3) Ninety-five percent of the applicable state hydrologic region target, as set 

forth in the state's draft 20x2020 Water Conservation Plan (dated April 30, 
2009). If the service area of an urban water supplier includes more than one 
hydrologic region, the supplier shall apportion its service area to each region 
based on population or area. 

 
(4) A method that shall be identified and developed by the department, through a 

public process, and reported to the Legislature no later than December 31, 
2010. The method developed by the department shall identify per capita 
targets that cumulatively result in a statewide 20-percent reduction in urban 
daily per capita water use by December 31, 2020. In developing urban daily 
per capita water use targets, the department shall do all of the following: 
 
(A) Consider climatic differences within the state. 
 
(B) Consider population density differences within the state. 
 
(C) Provide flexibility to communities and regions in meeting the targets. 
 
(D) Consider different levels of per capita water use according to plant water 

needs in different regions. 
 
(E) Consider different levels of commercial, industrial, and institutional water 

use in different regions of the state. 
 
(F) Avoid placing an undue hardship on communities that have implemented 

conservation measures or taken actions to keep per capita water use low. 
 

(c) If the department adopts a regulation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) 
that results in a requirement that an urban retail water supplier achieve a 
reduction in daily per capita water use that is greater than 20 percent by 
December 31, 2020, an urban retail water supplier that adopted the method 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 9 
 

described in paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) may limit its urban water use target 
to a reduction of not more than 20 percent by December 31, 2020, by adopting 
the method described in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 

 
(d) The department shall update the method described in paragraph (4) of subdivision 

(b) and report to the Legislature by December 31, 2014. An urban retail water 
supplier that adopted the method described in paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) 
may adopt a new urban daily per capita water use target pursuant to this updated 
method. 
 

(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan 
due in 2010 pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) the baseline 
daily per capita water use, urban water use target, interim urban water use target, 
and compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for determining 
those estimates, including references to supporting data. 
 

(f) When calculating per capita values for the purposes of this chapter, an urban retail 
water supplier shall determine population using federal, state, and local population 
reports and projections. 
 

(g) An urban retail water supplier may update its 2020 urban water use target in its 
2015 urban water management plan required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing 
with Section 10610). 

 
(h) (1) The department, through a public process and in consultation with the 

California Urban Water Conservation Council, shall develop technical 
methodologies and criteria for the consistent implementation of this part, 
including, but not limited to, both of the following: 

 
(A) Methodologies for calculating base daily per capita water use, baseline 

commercial, industrial, and institutional water use, compliance daily per 
capita water use, gross water use, service area population, indoor 
residential water use, and landscaped area water use. 

 
(B) Criteria for adjustments pursuant to subdivisions (d) and (e) of Section 

10608.24. 
 

(2) The department shall post the methodologies and criteria developed pursuant 
to this subdivision on its Internet Web site, and make written copies available, 
by October 1, 2010. An urban retail water supplier shall use the methods 
developed by the department in compliance with this part. 

 
(i)    (1) The department shall adopt regulations for implementation of the provisions 

relating to process water in accordance with subdivision (l) of Section 
10608.12, subdivision (e) of Section 10608.24, and subdivision (d) of Section 
10608.26. 

 
(2) The initial adoption of a regulation authorized by this subdivision is deemed to 

address an emergency, for purposes of Sections 11346.1 and 11349.6 of the 
Government Code, and the department is hereby exempted for that purpose 
from the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 11346.1 of the 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 10 
 

Government Code. After the initial adoption of an emergency regulation 
pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall not request approval from 
the Office of Administrative Law to readopt the regulation as an emergency 
regulation pursuant to Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. 

 
(j)    (1) An urban retail water supplier is granted an extension to July 1, 2011, for 

adoption of an urban water management plan pursuant to Part 2.6 
(commencing with Section 10610) due in 2010 to allow the use of technical 
methodologies developed by the department pursuant to paragraph (4) of 
subdivision (b) and subdivision (h). An urban retail water supplier that adopts 
an urban water management plan due in 2010 that does not use the 
methodologies developed by the department pursuant to subdivision (h) shall 
amend the plan by July 1, 2011, to comply with this part. 

 
(2) An urban wholesale water supplier whose urban water management plan 

prepared pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) was due and 
not submitted in 2010 is granted an extension to July 1, 2011, to permit 
coordination between an urban wholesale water supplier and urban retail 
water suppliers. 

 
10608.22.  Notwithstanding the method adopted by an urban retail water supplier pursuant to 

Section 10608.20, an urban retail water supplier's per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of base daily per capita water use as 
defined in paragraph(3) of subdivision (b) of Section 10608.12. This section does not 
apply to an urban retail water supplier with a base daily per capita water use at or 
below 100 gallons per capita per day. 

 
10608.24.(a) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its interim urban water use target by 

December 31, 2015. 
 

(b) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its urban water use target by  
December 31, 2020. 

 
(c) An urban retail water supplier's compliance daily per capita water use shall be the 

measure of progress toward achievement of its urban water use target. 
 

(d)  (1) When determining compliance daily per capita water use, an urban retail water 
supplier may consider the following factors: 

 
(A) Differences in evapotranspiration and rainfall in the baseline period 

compared to the compliance reporting period. 
(B) Substantial changes to commercial or industrial water use resulting from 

increased business output and economic development that have occurred 
during the reporting period. 
 

(C) Substantial changes to institutional water use resulting from fire 
suppression services or other extraordinary events, or from new or 
expanded operations, that have occurred during the reporting period. 

 
(2) If the urban retail water supplier elects to adjust its estimate of compliance 

daily per capita water use due to one or more of the factors described in 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 11 
 

paragraph (1), it shall provide the basis for, and data supporting, the 
adjustment in the report required by Section 10608.40. 

 
(e) When developing the urban water use target pursuant to Section 10608.20, an 

urban retail water supplier that has a substantial percentage of industrial water 
use in its service area may exclude process water from the calculation of gross 
water use to avoid a disproportionate burden on another customer sector. 

 
(f)   (1) An urban retail water supplier that includes agricultural water use in an urban 

water management plan pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) 
may include the agricultural water use in determining gross water use. An 
urban retail water supplier that includes agricultural water use in determining 
gross water use and develops its urban water use target pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20 shall use a water efficient standard 
for agricultural irrigation of 100 percent of reference evapotranspiration 
multiplied by the crop coefficient for irrigated acres. 

 
(2) An urban retail water supplier, that is also an agricultural water supplier, is not 

subject to the requirements of Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
10608.48), if the agricultural water use is incorporated into its urban water 
use target pursuant to paragraph (1). 

 
10608.26.(a) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier shall conduct at least one 

public hearing to accomplish all of the following: 
 

(1) Allow community input regarding the urban retail water supplier's 
implementation plan for complying with this part. 

 
(2) Consider the economic impacts of the urban retail water supplier's 

implementation plan for complying with this part. 
 
(3) Adopt a method, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20, for 

determining its urban water use target. 
 

(b) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water 
use target through efficiency improvements in any combination among its 
customer sectors. An urban retail water supplier shall avoid placing a 
disproportionate burden on any customer sector. 
 

(c) For an urban retail water supplier that supplies water to a United States 
Department of Defense military installation, the urban retail water supplier's 
implementation plan for complying with this part shall consider the conservation of 
that military installation under federal Executive Order 13514. 

 
(d)  (1) Any ordinance or resolution adopted by an urban retail water supplier after the 

effective date of this section shall not require existing customers as of the 
effective date of this section, to undertake changes in product formulation, 
operations, or equipment that would reduce process water use, but may 
provide technical assistance and financial incentives to those customers to 
implement efficiency measures for process water. This section shall not limit 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 12 
 

an ordinance or resolution adopted pursuant to a declaration of drought 
emergency by an urban retail water supplier. 

 
(2) This part shall not be construed or enforced so as to interfere with the 

requirements of Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 113980) to Chapter 13 
(commencing with Section 114380), inclusive, of Part 7 of Division 104 of the 
Health and Safety Code, or any requirement or standard for the protection of 
public health, public safety, or worker safety established by federal, state, or 
local government or recommended by recognized standard setting 
organizations or trade associations. 

 
10608.28.(a) An urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water use target within its retail 

service area, or through mutual agreement, by any of the following: 
 

(1) Through an urban wholesale water supplier. 
 
(2) Through a regional agency authorized to plan and implement water 

conservation, including, but not limited to, an agency established under the 
Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency Act (Division 31 
(commencing with Section 81300)). 

 
(3) Through a regional water management group as defined in Section 10537. 
 
(4) By an integrated regional water management funding area. 
 
(5) By hydrologic region. 
 
(6) Through other appropriate geographic scales for which computation methods 

have been developed by the department. 
 

(b) A regional water management group, with the written consent of its member 
agencies, may undertake any or all planning, reporting, and implementation 
functions under this chapter for the member agencies that consent to those 
activities. Any data or reports shall provide information both for the regional water 
management group and separately for each consenting urban retail water supplier 
and urban wholesale water supplier. 

 
10608.32. All costs incurred pursuant to this part by a water utility regulated by the  

Public Utilities Commission may be recoverable in rates subject to review and 
approval by the Public Utilities Commission, and may be recorded in a memorandum 
account and reviewed for reasonableness by the Public Utilities Commission. 

 
 
 
10608.36. Urban wholesale water suppliers shall include in the urban water management plans 

required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) an assessment of 
their present and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to help achieve 
the water use reductions required by this part. 

 
10608.40. Urban water retail suppliers shall report to the department on their progress in 

meeting their urban water use targets as part of their urban water management plans 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 13 
 

submitted pursuant to Section 10631. The data shall be reported using a 
standardized form developed pursuant to Section 10608.52. 

 
10608.42.(a) The department shall review the 2015 urban water management plans and report 

to the Legislature by July 1, 2017, on progress towards achieving a 20-percent 
reduction in urban water use by December 31, 2020. The report shall include 
recommendations on changes to water efficiency standards or urban water use 
targets to achieve the 20-percent reduction and to reflect updated efficiency 
information and technology changes. 

 
(b) A report to be submitted pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be submitted in 

compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code. 
 
10608.43. The department, in conjunction with the California Urban Water Conservation 

Council, by April 1, 2010, shall convene a representative task force consisting of 
academic experts, urban retail water suppliers, environmental organizations, 
commercial water users, industrial water users, and institutional water users to 
develop alternative best management practices for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users and an assessment of the potential statewide water use efficiency 
improvement in the commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors that would result 
from implementation of these best management practices. The taskforce, in 
conjunction with the department, shall submit a report to the Legislature by April 1, 
2012, that shall include a review of multiple sectors within commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users and that shall recommend water use efficiency standards for 
commercial, industrial, and institutional users among various sectors of water use. 
The report shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Appropriate metrics for evaluating commercial, industrial, and institutional water 

use. 
 
(b) Evaluation of water demands for manufacturing processes, goods, and cooling. 
 
(c) Evaluation of public infrastructure necessary for delivery of recycled water to the 

commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors. 
 
(d) Evaluation of institutional and economic barriers to increased recycled water use 

within the commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors. 
 
(e) Identification of technical feasibility and cost of the best management practices to 

achieve more efficient water use statewide in the commercial, industrial, and 
institutional sectors that is consistent with the public interest and reflects past 
investments in water use efficiency. 

 
10608.44. Each state agency shall reduce water use at facilities it operates to support urban 

retail water suppliers in meeting the target identified in Section 10608.16. 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 14 
 

Chapter 4 Agricultural Water Suppliers 
 
SECTION 10608.48  
 
10608.48.(a) On or before July 31, 2012, an agricultural water supplier shall implement efficient 

water management practices pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c). 
 

(b) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement all of the following critical efficient 
management practices: 

 
(1) Measure the volume of water delivered to customers with sufficient accuracy 

to comply with subdivision (a) of Section 531.10 and to implement  
paragraph (2). 

 
(2) Adopt a pricing structure for water customers based at least in part on 

quantity delivered. 
 

(c) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement additional efficient management 
practices, including, but not limited to, practices to accomplish all of the following, 
if the measures are locally cost effective and technically feasible: 

 
(1) Facilitate alternative land use for lands with exceptionally high water duties or 

whose irrigation contributes to significant problems, including drainage. 
 

(2) Facilitate use of available recycled water that otherwise would not be used 
beneficially, meets all health and safety criteria, and does not harm crops or 
soils. 

 
(3) Facilitate the financing of capital improvements for on-farm irrigation systems. 

 
(4) Implement an incentive pricing structure that promotes one or more of the 

following goals: 
 

(A) More efficient water use at the farm level. 
 
(B) Conjunctive use of groundwater. 
 
(C) Appropriate increase of groundwater recharge. 
 
(D) Reduction in problem drainage. 
 
(E) Improved management of environmental resources. 
 
(F) Effective management of all water sources throughout the year by 

adjusting seasonal pricing structures based on current conditions. 
 

(5) Expand line or pipe distribution systems, and construct regulatory reservoirs 
to increase distribution system flexibility and capacity, decrease maintenance, 
and reduce seepage. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 15 
 

(6) Increase flexibility in water ordering by, and delivery to, water customers 
within operational limits. 

 
(7) Construct and operate supplier spill and tailwater recovery systems. 

 
(8) Increase planned conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater within 

the supplier service area. 
 

(9) Automate canal control structures. 
 
(10) Facilitate or promote customer pump testing and evaluation. 

 
(11) Designate a water conservation coordinator who will develop and implement 

the water management plan and prepare progress reports. 
 

(12) Provide for the availability of water management services to water users. 
These services may include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

 
(A) On-farm irrigation and drainage system evaluations. 
 
(B) Normal year and real-time irrigation scheduling and crop 

evapotranspiration information. 
 
(C) Surface water, groundwater, and drainage water quantity and quality 

data. 
 
(D) Agricultural water management educational programs and materials for 

farmers, staff, and the public. 
 

(13) Evaluate the policies of agencies that provide the supplier with water to 
identify the potential for institutional changes to allow more flexible water 
deliveries and storage. 

 
(14) Evaluate and improve the efficiencies of the supplier's pumps. 

 
(d) Agricultural water suppliers shall include in the agricultural water management 

plans required pursuant to Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800) a report on 
which efficient water management practices have been implemented and are 
planned to be implemented, an estimate of the water use efficiency improvements 
that have occurred since the last report, and an estimate of the water use 
efficiency improvements estimated to occur five and 10 years in the future. If an 
agricultural water supplier determines that an efficient water management practice 
is not locally cost effective or technically feasible, the supplier shall submit 
information documenting that determination. 

 
(e) The data shall be reported using a standardized form developed pursuant to 

Section 10608.52. 
(f) An agricultural water supplier may meet the requirements of subdivisions (d) and 

(e) by submitting to the department a water conservation plan submitted to the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation that meets the requirements described in 
Section 10828. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 16 
 

 
(g) On or before December 31, 2013, December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2021, 

the department, in consultation with the board, shall submit to the Legislature a 
report on the agricultural efficient water management practices that have been 
implemented and are planned to be implemented and an assessment of the 
manner in which the implementation of those efficient water management 
practices has affected and will affect agricultural operations, including estimated 
water use efficiency improvements, if any. 

 
(h) The department may update the efficient water management practices required 

pursuant to subdivision (c), in consultation with the Agricultural Water 
Management Council, the United States Bureau of Reclamation, and the board. 
All efficient water management practices for agricultural water use pursuant to this 
chapter shall be adopted or revised by the department only after the department 
conducts public hearings to allow participation of the diverse geographical areas 
and interests of the state. 

 
(i)    (1) The department shall adopt regulations that provide for a range of options that 

agricultural water suppliers may use or implement to comply with the 
measurement requirement in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 

 
(2) The initial adoption of a regulation authorized by this subdivision is deemed to 

address an emergency, for purposes of Sections 11346.1 and 11349.6 of the 
Government Code, and the department is hereby exempted for that purpose 
from the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 11346.1 of the 
Government Code. After the initial adoption of an emergency regulation 
pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall not request approval from 
the Office of Administrative Law to readopt the regulation as an emergency 
regulation pursuant to Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. 

 
 
Chapter 5 Sustainable Water Management 
 
Section 10608.50 
 
10608.50.(a) The department, in consultation with the board, shall promote implementation of 

regional water resources management practices through increased incentives and 
removal of barriers consistent with state and federal law. Potential changes may 
include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

 
(1) Revisions to the requirements for urban and agricultural water management 

plans. 
 
(2) Revisions to the requirements for integrated regional water management 

plans. 
 
(3) Revisions to the eligibility for state water management grants and loans. 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 17 
 

(4) Revisions to state or local permitting requirements that increase water supply 
opportunities, but do not weaken water quality protection under state and 
federal law. 

 
(5) Increased funding for research, feasibility studies, and project construction. 
 
(6) Expanding technical and educational support for local land use and water 
management agencies. 
 

(b) No later than January 1, 2011, and updated as part of the California Water Plan, 
the department, in consultation with the board, and with public input, shall propose 
new statewide targets, or review and update existing statewide targets, for 
regional water resources management practices, including, but not limited to, 
recycled water, brackish groundwater desalination, and infiltration and direct use 
of urban stormwater runoff. 

 
 
Chapter 6 Standardized Data Collection 
 
SECTION 10608.52  
 
10608.52.(a) The department, in consultation with the board, the California Bay-Delta Authority 

or its successor agency, the State Department of Public Health, and the Public 
Utilities Commission, shall develop a single standardized water use reporting 
form to meet the water use information needs of each agency, including the 
needs of urban water suppliers that elect to determine and report progress 
toward achieving targets on a regional basis as provided in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10608.28. 

 
(b) At a minimum, the form shall be developed to accommodate information sufficient 

to assess an urban water supplier's compliance with conservation targets 
pursuant to Section 10608.24 and an agricultural water supplier's compliance with 
implementation of efficient water management practices pursuant to subdivision 
(a) of Section 10608.48. The form shall accommodate reporting by urban water 
suppliers on an individual or regional basis as provided in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10608.28. 

 

 
Chapter 7 Funding Provisions 
 
Section 10608.56-10608.60 
 
10608.56.(a) On and after July 1, 2016, an urban retail water supplier is not eligible for a water 

grant or loan awarded or administered by the state unless the supplier complies 
with this part. 

 
(b) On and after July 1, 2013, an agricultural water supplier is not eligible for a water 

grant or loan awarded or administered by the state unless the supplier complies 
with this part. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 18 
 

 
(c) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the department shall determine that an urban 

retail water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the supplier 
has not met the per capita reductions required pursuant to Section 10608.24, if 
the urban retail water supplier has submitted to the department for approval a 
schedule, financing plan, and budget, to be included in the grant or loan 
agreement, for achieving the per capita reductions. The supplier may request 
grant or loan funds to achieve the per capita reductions to the extent the request 
is consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to the water funds. 

 
(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), the department shall determine that an 

agricultural water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the 
supplier is not implementing all of the efficient water management practices 
described in Section 10608.48, if the agricultural water supplier has submitted to 
the department for approval a schedule, financing plan, and budget, to be 
included in the grant or loan agreement, for implementation of the efficient water 
management practices. The supplier may request grant or loan funds to 
implement the efficient water management practices to the extent the request is 
consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to the water funds. 

 
(e) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the department shall determine that an urban 

retail water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the supplier 
has not met the per capita reductions required pursuant to Section 10608.24, if 
the urban retail water supplier has submitted to the department for approval 
documentation demonstrating that its entire service area qualifies as a 
disadvantaged community. 

 
(f) The department shall not deny eligibility to an urban retail water supplier or 

agricultural water supplier in compliance with the requirements of this part and 
Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800), that is participating in a multiagency 
water project, or an integrated regional water management plan, developed 
pursuant to Section 75026 of the Public Resources Code, solely on the basis that 
one or more of the agencies participating in the project or plan is not implementing 
all of the requirements of this part or Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800). 

 
10608.60.(a) It is the intent of the Legislature that funds made available by Section 75026 of the 

Public Resources Code should be expended, consistent with Division 43 
(commencing with Section 75001) of the Public Resources Code and upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, for grants to implement this part. In the 
allocation of funding, it is the intent of the Legislature that the department give 
consideration to disadvantaged communities to assist in implementing the 
requirements of this part. 

 
(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that funds made available by Section 75041 of the 

Public Resources Code, should be expended, consistent with Division 43 
(commencing with Section 75001) of the Public Resources Code and upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, for direct expenditures to implement this part. 

 
 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 19 
 

Chapter 8 Quantifying Agricultural Water Use Efficiency 
 
SECTION 10608.64  
 
10608.64. The department, in consultation with the Agricultural Water Management Council, 

academic experts, and other stakeholders, shall develop a methodology for 
quantifying the efficiency of agricultural water use. Alternatives to be assessed shall 
include, but not be limited to, determination of efficiency levels based on crop type or 
irrigation system distribution uniformity. On or before December 31, 2011, the 
department shall report to the Legislature on a proposed methodology and a plan for 
implementation. The plan shall include the estimated implementation costs and the 
types of data needed to support the methodology. Nothing in this section authorizes 
the department to implement a methodology established pursuant to this section. 

 

 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX H  
SB X7-7 Verification Form 

 



SB X7‐7 Table 0: Units of Measure Used in UWMP*           
(select one from the drop down list)                 

Acre Feet

*The unit of measure must be consistent with Table 2‐3 

NOTES:  



Parameter Value Units

2008 total water deliveries 1,606                       Acre Feet

2008 total volume of delivered recycled water 186                         Acre Feet

2008 recycled water as a percent of total deliveries  11.58% Percent

Number of years in baseline period1, 2 10 Years

Year beginning baseline period range 1999

Year ending baseline period range3 2008

Number of years in baseline period 5 Years

Year beginning baseline period range 2003

Year ending baseline period range4 2007

 SB X7‐7 Table‐1: Baseline Period Ranges

1 If the 2008 recycled water percent is less than 10 percent, then the first baseline period is a continuous 10‐year period.  If the amount of recycled water 

delivered in 2008 is 10 percent or greater, the first baseline period is a continuous 10‐ to 15‐year period.                                          2  The Water Code requires 

that the baseline period is between 10 and 15 years. However, DWR recognizes that some water suppliers may not have the minimum 10 years of baseline 

data. 

3 The ending year must be between December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2010.

4 The ending year must be between December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2010.

5‐year               

baseline period 

Baseline

10‐ to 15‐year    

baseline period

NOTES:



NOTES:

SB X7‐7 Table 2: Method for Population Estimates

Method Used to Determine Population

(may check more than one)

1. Department of Finance  (DOF)

DOF Table E‐8 (1990 ‐ 2000) and  (2000‐2010)  and

DOF Table E‐5 (2011 ‐ 2015) when available 

3. DWR Population Tool

4. Other

DWR recommends pre‐review

2. Persons‐per‐Connection Method



Population

Year 1 1999                                     16,024 

Year 2 2000                                     16,054 

Year 3 2001                                     15,669 

Year 4 2002                                     15,269 

Year 5 2003                                     14,884 

Year 6 2004                                     14,471 

Year 7 2005                                     14,071 

Year 8 2006                                     13,672 

Year 9 2007                                     13,277 

Year 10 2008                                     15,364 

Year 11

Year 12

Year 13

Year 14

Year 15

Year 1 2003                                     14,884 

Year 2 2004                                     14,471 

Year 3 2005                                     14,071 

Year 4 2006                                     13,672 

Year 5 2007                                     13,277 

                                    14,644 

SB X7‐7 Table 3: Service Area Population

10 to 15 Year Baseline Population

5 Year Baseline Population

2015 Compliance Year Population

NOTES: The 2015 population was calculated using 

the persons per connection for 2010 calculated 

using the DWR Population Tool and then multiplying 

the 2010 persons per connection by the number of 

connections for 2015.

Year

2015



Exported 

Water 

Change in 

Dist. System 

Storage

(+/‐) 

Indirect 

Recycled 

Water
This column will 

remain blank 

until SB X7‐7 

Table 4‐B is 

completed.       

 Water 

Delivered 

for 

Agricultural 

Use 

Process Water
This column will 

remain blank 

until SB X7‐7  

Table 4‐D is 

completed. 

Year 1 1999 1,806                                ‐                          ‐              1,806 

Year 2 2000 1,707                                ‐                          ‐              1,707 

Year 3 2001 1,634                                ‐                          ‐              1,634 

Year 4 2002 1,743                                ‐                          ‐              1,743 

Year 5 2003 1,753                                ‐                          ‐              1,753 

Year 6 2004 1,715                                ‐                          ‐              1,715 

Year 7 2005 1,643                                ‐                          ‐              1,643 

Year 8 2006 1,593                                ‐                          ‐              1,593 

Year 9 2007 1,624                               ‐                          ‐             1,624 

Year 10 2008 1,606                               ‐                          ‐             1,606 

Year 11 0 ‐                                     ‐                          ‐                   ‐   

Year 12 0 ‐                                      ‐                          ‐                   ‐   

Year 13 0 ‐                                      ‐                          ‐                   ‐   

Year 14 0 ‐                                      ‐                          ‐                   ‐   

Year 15 0 ‐                                      ‐                          ‐                   ‐   

1,682

Year 1 2003             1,753                       ‐                          ‐              1,753 

Year 2 2004             1,715                       ‐                          ‐              1,715 

Year 3 2005             1,643                       ‐                          ‐              1,643 

Year 4 2006             1,593                       ‐                          ‐              1,593 

Year 5 2007             1,624                       ‐                          ‐              1,624 

1,666

            1,354  ‐                                 ‐                          ‐           1,354 

Volume Into 

Distribution 

System
This column 

will remain 

blank until SB 

X7‐7 Table 4‐A 

is completed.    

Annual 

Gross 

Water Use 

Deductions

* NOTE that the units of measure must remain consistent throughout the UWMP,  as reported in Table 2‐3

NOTES:

SB X7‐7 Table 4: Annual Gross Water Use *

2015

 10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Gross Water Use 

10 ‐ 15 year baseline average gross water use

 5 Year Baseline ‐ Gross Water Use 

5 year baseline average gross water use

2015 Compliance Year ‐ Gross Water Use 

Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3



Volume   

Entering 

Distribution 

System 

Meter Error 

Adjustment* 

Optional

(+/‐)

Corrected 

Volume 

Entering 

Distribution 

System

Year 1 1999 1,806                            1,806 

Year 2 2000 1,707                            1,707 

Year 3 2001 1,634                            1,634 

Year 4 2002 1,743                            1,743 

Year 5 2003 1,753                            1,753 

Year 6 2004 1,715                            1,715 

Year 7 2005 1,643                            1,643 

Year 8 2006 1,593                            1,593 

Year 9 2007 1,624                            1,624 

Year 10 2008 1,606                            1,606 

Year 11 0                      ‐   

Year 12 0                      ‐   

Year 13 0                      ‐   

Year 14 0                      ‐   

Year 15 0                      ‐   

Year 1 2003 1,753                            1,753 

Year 2 2004 1,715                            1,715 

Year 3 2005 1,643                            1,643 

Year 4 2006 1,593                            1,593 

Year 5 2007 1,624                            1,624 

1,354                            1,354 

SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 

System(s)
Complete one table for each source. 

10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System

5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System

2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System

Name of Source

Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3

* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 

Methodologies Document

NOTES: Historical data is not broken down by source

This water source is:

The supplier's own water source

A purchased or imported source

2015

Groundwater and MWD Water



Service Area 

Population
Fm SB X7‐7   

Table 3

Annual Gross 

Water Use
Fm SB X7‐7

Table 4

Daily Per 

Capita Water 

Use (GPCD) 

Year 1 1999 16,024               1,806                       101                 

Year 2 2000 16,054               1,707                       95                   

Year 3 2001 15,669               1,634                       93                   

Year 4 2002 15,269               1,743                       102                 

Year 5 2003 14,884               1,753                       105                 

Year 6 2004 14,471               1,715                       106                 

Year 7 2005 14,071               1,643                       104                 

Year 8 2006 13,672               1,593                       104                 

Year 9 2007 13,277               1,624                       109                 

Year 10 2008 15,364               1,606                       93                   

Year 11 0 ‐                      ‐                          

Year 12 0 ‐                      ‐                          

Year 13 0 ‐                      ‐                          

Year 14 0 ‐                      ‐                          

Year 15 0 ‐                      ‐                          

                  101 

Service Area 

Population
Fm SB X7‐7

Table 3

Gross Water Use
Fm SB X7‐7

Table 4

Daily Per 

Capita Water 

Use

Year 1 2003                14,884                         1,753                    105 

Year 2 2004                14,471                         1,715                    106 

Year 3 2005                14,071                         1,643                    104 

Year 4 2006                13,672                         1,593                    104 

Year 5 2007                13,277                         1,624                    109 

106

14,644               1,354                       83                   

SB X7‐7 Table 5: Gallons Per Capita Per Day (GPCD)

Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3

10 to 15 Year Baseline GPCD

10‐15 Year Average Baseline GPCD

 5 Year Baseline GPCD

NOTES:

5 Year Average Baseline GPCD

 2015 Compliance Year GPCD

2015

Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3



101

106

2015 Compliance Year GPCD 83

SB X7‐7 Table 6: Gallons per Capita per Day 
Summary From Table SB X7‐7 Table 5

10‐15 Year Baseline GPCD

5 Year Baseline GPCD

NOTES:



Supporting Documentation

Method 1 SB X7‐7 Table 7A

Method 2
SB X7‐7 Tables 7B, 7C, and 7D 
Contact DWR for these tables

Method 3 SB X7‐7 Table 7‐E

Method 4 Method 4 Calculator

SB X7‐7 Table 7: 2020 Target Method

Select Only One

Target Method

NOTES:



10‐15 Year Baseline                  

GPCD

  2020 Target 

GPCD

101 81

SB X7‐7 Table 7‐A: Target Method 1

20% Reduction

NOTES:



Agency May 

Select More 

Than One as 

Applicable

Percentage of 

Service Area 

in This 

Hydrological 

Region

Hydrologic Region

"2020 Plan" 

Regional 

Targets

Method 3 

Regional 

Targets 

(95%)

North Coast 137 130

North Lahontan 173 164

Sacramento River 176 167

San Francisco Bay 131 124

San Joaquin River 174 165

Central Coast 123 117

Tulare Lake 188 179

South Lahontan 170 162

100% South Coast 149 142

Colorado River 211 200

142

SB X7‐7 Table 7‐E: Target Method 3 

Target
(If more than one region is selected, this value is calculated.)

NOTES:



5 Year

Baseline GPCD

From SB X7‐7         

Table 5

Maximum 2020 

Target1
Calculated

2020 Target2
Confirmed 

2020 Target

106 100 142 100

SB X7‐7 Table 7‐F: Confirm Minimum Reduction for 2020 Target

1 Maximum 2020 Target is 95% of the 5 Year Baseline GPCD                                           2 2020 

Target is calculated based on the selected Target Method, see SB X7‐7 Table 7 and 

corresponding tables for agency's calculated target.     

NOTES: 



Confirmed

2020 Target

Fm SB X7‐7

Table 7‐F

10‐15 year 

Baseline GPCD

Fm SB X7‐7

Table 5

2015 Interim 

Target GPCD

100 101 101

SB X7‐7 Table 8: 2015 Interim Target GPCD

NOTES: 



Extraordinary 

Events

Weather 

Normalization

Economic 

Adjustment

83 101 0  0  0  ‐                    83                      83                      YES

Optional Adjustments  (in GPCD)

NOTES: 

SB X7‐7 Table 9: 2015 Compliance

Did Supplier 

Achieve 

Targeted 

Reduction for 

2015?

Actual 2015 

GPCD

2015 Interim 

Target GPCD

2015 GPCD 

(Adjusted if 

applicable)

TOTAL 

Adjustments

Adjusted 2015 

GPCD 

Enter "0" if Adjustment Not Used



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX I  
Central Basin Judgment 

 



1
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

W
IL

LI
A

M
 F

. K
R

U
SE

 (C
SB

 #
 0

90
23

1)
 

LA
G

ER
LO

F,
 S

EN
EC

A
L,

 G
O

SN
EY

 &
 K

R
U

SE
, L

LP
 

30
1 

N
. L

ak
e 

A
ve

nu
e,

 1
0t

h 
Fl

oo
r 

Pa
sa

de
na

, C
A

 9
11

01
-4

10
8 

62
6/

79
3-

94
00

; F
A

X
 6

26
/7

93
-5

90
0 

A
tto

rn
ey

s f
or

  C
IT

Y
 O

F 
LA

K
EW

O
O

D
, 

 
 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
LO

N
G

 B
EA

C
H

 

SU
PE

R
IO

R
 C

O
U

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

G
EL

ES
 

C
EN

TR
A

L 
A

N
D

 
W

ES
T 

B
A

SI
N

 
W

A
TE

R
R

EP
LE

N
IS

H
M

EN
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T,
 e

tc
., 

 
 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

, 

vs
.

C
H

A
R

LE
S 

E.
 A

D
A

M
S,

 e
t a

l.,
 

 
 

D
ef

en
da

nt
 

C
IT

Y
 

O
F 

LA
K

EW
O

O
D

, 
a 

m
un

ic
ip

al
co

rp
or

at
io

n,

 
 

C
ro

ss
-C

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 

vs
.

C
H

A
R

LE
S 

E.
 A

D
A

M
S,

 e
t a

l.,
 

 
 

C
ro

ss
-D

ef
en

da
nt

s. 

C
as

e 
N

o.
: 7

86
,6

56
 

TH
IR

D
 A

M
EN

D
ED

 JU
D

G
M

EN
T 

(D
ec

la
rin

g 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 

w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

 in
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
, 

en
jo

in
in

g 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 
th

er
ef

ro
m

 in
 e

xc
es

s o
f 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 st
or

ag
e 

an
d 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
of

 st
or

ed
 w

at
er

.) 

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
fo

r a
ll 

pu
rp

os
es

 to
 

H
on

. A
br

ah
am

 K
ha

n 
D

ep
t. 

51
 

2
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S 

I. 
 

D
EC

LA
R

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 D

ET
ER

M
IN

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

W
A

TE
R

 R
IG

H
TS

 O
F 

 

 
PA

R
TI

ES
; R

ES
TR

IC
TI

O
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
EX

ER
C

IS
E 

TH
ER

EO
F.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

3 

A
. 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 R

ig
ht

s o
f P

ar
tie

s. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
3 

B
. 

Pa
rti

es
 E

nj
oi

ne
d 

as
 to

 Q
ua

nt
iti

es
 o

f E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

4 

C
. 

Pa
rti

es
 E

nj
oi

ne
d 

as
 to

 E
xp

or
t o

f E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

7 

II
.  

A
PP

O
IN

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
W

A
TE

R
M

A
ST

ER
; W

A
TE

R
M

A
ST

ER
  

 
A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

7 

A
. 

Th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
8 

(1
) 

To
 R

eq
ui

re
 R

ep
or

ts
, I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
ec

or
ds

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
8 

(2
) 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
8 

(3
) 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

8 

(4
) 

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 A
pp

ea
l P

ro
ce

du
re

 in
 R

el
at

io
n 

Th
er

et
o.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

9 

(5
) 

R
ul

es
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
22

 

B
. 

Th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 2

2 

C
. 

Th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 2

6 

D
. 

U
se

 o
f F

ac
ili

tie
s a

nd
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
O

th
er

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ge

nc
ie

s. 
...

...
...

...
. 2

6 

E.
 

A
pp

ea
l f

ro
m

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r D
ec

is
io

ns
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

26
 

F.
 

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f N
on

-C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

by
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r W

ith
 T

im
e 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
7 

G
. 

Li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y.
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

27
 

H
. 

R
eg

io
na

l D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

8 

II
I. 

 
PR

O
V

IS
IO

N
S 

FO
R

 P
H

Y
SI

C
A

L 
SO

LU
TI

O
N

 T
O

 M
EE

T 
TH

E

 
W

A
TE

R
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 IN
 C

EN
TR

A
L 

B
A

SI
N

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 2
9 

A
. 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 o

f P
or

tio
n 

of
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

9 

(1
) 

A
m

ou
nt

 o
f C

ar
ry

ov
er

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 2

9 

(2
) 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 to
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
30

 

(3
) 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

0 



3
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(4
) 

D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

1 

(5
) 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 3
1 

B
. 

W
he

n 
 O

ve
r-

Ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 M

ay
 b

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ed
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
1 

(1
) 

U
nd

er
es

tim
at

io
n 

of
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r W

at
er

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3

2 

(2
) 

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 S
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

 

 
Y

ea
rs

 to
 C

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r P
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
O

ve
re

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3

2 

(3
) 

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 N
ex

t

 
Su

cc
ee

di
ng

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r t

o 
C

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r O
ve

rp
um

pi
ng

. ..
...

...
. 3

2 

(4
) 

R
ep

or
ts

 o
f C

er
ta

in
 O

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

rt.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

3 

(5
) 

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f O
ve

r-
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

R
ig

ht
s. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
33

 

(6
) 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 U
nd

er
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t W
ith

 P
la

in
tif

f D
ur

in
g 

 

 
Pe

rio
ds

 o
f E

m
er

ge
nc

y.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

3 

(7
) 

Ex
em

pt
io

n 
fo

r E
xt

ra
ct

or
s o

f C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

9 

C
. 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l P
ro

vi
si

on
s..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

42
 

(1
) 

D
ef

in
iti

on
s..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4
2 

(2
) 

Pa
rti

es
 W

ho
 M

ay
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

W
at

er
 T

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. .

...
...

...
...

.. 
43

 

(3
) 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l W
at

er
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4
3 

(4
) 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 to
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

44
 

(5
) 

Li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
Pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 W
at

er
 a

nd
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

R
eq

ue
st

s t
o 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 W

at
er

 A
m

on
g 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
. ..

...
...

...
 4

6 

(6
) 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

48
 

(7
) 

Ef
fe

ct
 i

f 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

R
eq

ue
st

s 
Ex

ce
ed

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
, 

B
ot

h 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
an

d 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

8 

(8
) 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

um
pi

ng
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 P
ur

su
an

t t
o

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l P

ro
vi

si
on

s..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4

9 

(9
) 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 P
um

pi
ng

 b
y 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

9 

(1
0)

 
Pr

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
Pa

id
 fo

r E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 W

at
er

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
9 

(1
1)

 
C

ar
ry

-o
ve

r o
f E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 P
ur

ch
as

es
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5

0 

4
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(1
2)

 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
by

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r t
o 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 a

nd
  

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 o
f E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 R
eq

ue
st

s a
nd

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns

 
Th

er
eo

f a
nd

 P
ric

e 
of

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 W

at
er

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

51
 

(1
3)

 
Pa

ym
en

t b
y 

Ex
ch

an
ge

es
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
52

 

(1
4)

 
Pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 E
xc

ha
ng

or
s. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5

2 

(1
5)

 
D

el
in

qu
en

t P
ay

m
en

ts
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
2 

IV
.  

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

S 
FO

R
 T

H
E 

ST
O

R
A

G
E 

O
F 

W
A

TE
R

 A
N

D
  

 
TH

E 
EX

TR
A

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

ST
O

R
ED

 W
A

TE
R

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
3 

A
. 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n 
of

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
, 

St
or

ag
e 

C
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 S
to

ra
ge

 

A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
53

 

B
. 

A
vo

id
an

ce
 o

f M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5

3 

C
. 

A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t o
f A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

54
 

D
. 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 5
5 

E.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
; R

eg
io

na
l D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
.5

5 

F.
 

Li
m

it 
on

 S
to

ra
ge

. .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

7 

G
. 

Ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 o

f S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
; E

xe
m

pt
io

n 
fr

om
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

...
...

. 5
8 

H
. 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5

8 

I. 
Lo

ss
 o

f S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
/R

el
at

iv
e 

Pr
io

rit
y.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

9 

J. 
Li

m
its

 o
n 

Ex
tra

ct
io

n.
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 5
9 

K
. 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 fo

r C
er

ta
in

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
rs

. ..
...

...
...

. 6
0 

L.
 

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ro
vi

si
on

s f
or

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

to
ra

ge
 w

ith
in

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l. 

...
.. 

61
 

M
. 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

3 

(1
) 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

Pa
rti

es
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

6 

(2
) 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 E
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

R
ig

ht
s. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

6 

(3
) 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 E

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
R

ig
ht

s. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

67
 

(4
) 

N
om

in
al

 F
lu

ct
ua

tio
ns

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

7 

(5
) 

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 N

ew
 W

at
er

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 6
7 

(6
) 

Li
m

ita
tio

n.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

68
 



5
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

O
. 

Li
m

its
 o

n 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r R

ev
ie

w
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
68

 

P.
 

H
ea

rin
g 

Pr
oc

es
s F

or
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r R

ev
ie

w
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

9 

Q
. 

Tr
ia

l C
ou

rt 
R

ev
ie

w
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

9 

R
. 

Sp
ac

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

St
or

ag
e,

 R
el

at
iv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y,
 a

nd
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
of

 “
Sp

ill
ed

” 
W

at
er

. 
70

 

V
.  

C
O

N
TI

N
U

IN
G

 JU
R

IS
D

IC
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

C
O

U
R

T.
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

72
 

V
I. 

 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

S.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
74

 

A
. 

Ju
dg

m
en

t C
on

st
itu

te
s I

nt
er

 S
e 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n.
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

74
 

B
. 

A
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

Tr
an

sf
er

, E
tc

., 
of

 R
ig

ht
s. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 7
4 

C
. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

U
po

n 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

to
 P

ar
tie

s o
f V

ar
io

us
 P

ap
er

s. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 7

4 

D
. 

Ju
dg

m
en

t D
oe

s N
ot

 A
ff

ec
t R

ig
ht

s, 
Po

w
er

s, 
Et

c.
, o

f P
la

in
tif

f D
is

tri
ct

. ..
...

...
...

...
...

 7
5 

E.
 

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 O

rd
er

 u
nd

er
 In

te
rim

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 7
5 

F.
 

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

Ex
ch

an
ge

es
; R

ed
uc

tio
ns

 in
 E

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

5 

G
. 

Ju
dg

m
en

t B
in

di
ng

 o
n 

Su
cc

es
so

rs
, E

tc
. .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

6 

H
. 

C
os

ts
. ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
6 

I. 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
of

 S
uc

ce
ss

or
s i

n 
In

te
re

st
 a

nd
 N

ew
 P

ar
tie

s. 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 7
6 

J. 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

hi
s A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t o
n 

O
rd

er
s F

ile
d 

H
er

ei
n.

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

6 

6
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

 
Th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 ju

dg
m

en
t i

n 
th

is
 a

ct
io

n 
w

as
 e

nt
er

ed
 o

n 
or

 a
bo

ut
 A

ug
us

t 2
7,

 1
96

5.
  P

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

he
 r

es
er

ve
d 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ou
rt 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

he
re

in
, 

ce
rta

in
 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 t

o 
sa

id
 J

ud
gm

en
t 

an
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

rd
er

s 
ha

ve
 h

er
et

of
or

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

en
te

re
d.

  

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

co
ur

t f
or

 th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
to

 H
on

. A
br

ah
am

 K
ha

n.
   

 
Th

e 
M

ot
io

n 
of

 P
la

in
tif

f 
W

A
TE

R
 R

EP
LE

N
IS

H
M

EN
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
O

F 
SO

U
TH

ER
N

 

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 (

w
hi

ch
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 b
ro

ug
ht

 th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

un
de

r 
its

 f
or

m
er

 n
am

e 
“C

en
tra

l a
nd

 W
es

t 

B
as

in
 W

at
er

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

D
is

tri
ct

”)
, 

an
d 

of
 d

ef
en

da
nt

s, 
C

ity
 o

f 
La

ke
w

oo
d,

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
ng

 

B
ea

ch
, G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
, C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

om
pa

ny
, C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, 

C
ity

 o
f C

er
rit

os
, C

ity
 o

f D
ow

ne
y,

 C
ity

 o
f S

ig
na

l H
ill

, P
ic

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

, B
el

lfl
ow

er
-S

om
er

se
t 

M
ut

ua
l 

W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
, 

La
H

ab
ra

 H
ei

gh
ts

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
, 

C
ity

 o
f 

N
or

w
al

k,
 O

rc
ha

rd
 

D
al

e 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

, M
on

te
be

llo
 L

an
d 

&
 W

at
er

 C
om

pa
ny

, S
ou

th
 M

on
te

be
llo

 Ir
rig

at
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
, 

Sa
tiv

a 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

, C
ity

 o
f 

V
er

no
n 

an
d 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 

D
is

tri
ct

 (“
M

ov
in

g 
Pa

rti
es

”)
 h

er
ei

n 
fo

r f
ur

th
er

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t, 

no
tic

e 
th

er
eo

f a
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

he
ar

in
g 

th
er

eo
n 

ha
vi

ng
 b

ee
n 

du
ly

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 g

iv
en

 to
 a

ll 
pa

rti
es

, c
am

e 
on

 f
or

 h
ea

rin
g 

in
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 5

1 
of

 th
e 

ab
ov

e-
en

tit
le

d 
co

ur
t o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 1

8,
 2

01
3 

at
 9

:0
0 

 a
.m

. b
ef

or
e 

sa
id

 H
on

. 

A
br

ah
am

 K
ha

n.
  

Th
is

 “
Th

ird
 A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t”
 i

nc
or

po
ra

te
s 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 a

nd
 o

rd
er

s 

he
re

to
fo

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
pr

es
en

tly
 o

pe
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 s

ai
d 

la
st

 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
m

ot
io

n.
  

To
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
is

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t i

s 
a 

re
st

at
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t a

s 

he
re

to
fo

re
 a

m
en

de
d,

 it
 is

 fo
r c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 in

 in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
al

l m
at

te
rs

 in
 o

ne
 d

oc
um

en
t, 

is
 n

ot
 a

 

re
ad

ju
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

at
te

rs
 a

nd
 i

s 
no

t 
in

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
re

op
en

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
m

at
te

rs
. 

 A
s 

us
ed

 

he
re

in
af

te
r 

th
e 

w
or

d 
“J

ud
gm

en
t”

 s
ha

ll 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 J

ud
gm

en
t 

en
te

re
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
as

 

am
en

de
d 

to
 d

at
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

is
 T

hi
rd

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

  

 
Th

er
e 

ex
is

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, S
ta

te
 o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, a
n 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

w
at

er
 

ba
si

n 
or

 re
se

rv
oi

r k
no

w
n 

an
d 

he
re

in
af

te
r r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 a

s 
th

e 
“C

en
tra

l B
as

in
” 

or
 “

B
as

in
” 

de
sc

rib
ed

 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

“1
” 

to
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 
W

ith
in

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

te
rm

s, 
w

or
ds

, p
hr

as
es

 a
nd

 c
la

us
es

 a
re

 u
se

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

ni
ng

s:
 

 
“A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
” 

m
ea

ns
 2

20
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 o
f 

th
e 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 



7
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Sp
ac

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
rti

on
ed

 h
er

ei
n 

fo
r 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
or

ag
e.

 

 
“A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y”
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

(A
). 

 
“A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r”
 m

ea
ns

 th
e 

tw
el

ve
 (1

2)
 m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ju

ly
 1

 a
nd

 e
nd

in
g 

Ju
ne

 3
0.

 

 
“A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n”

 is
 th

at
 q

ua
nt

ity
 in

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
ad

ju
dg

es
 to

 

be
 t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 q

ua
nt

ity
 w

hi
ch

 a
 p

ar
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

llo
w

ed
 t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 a
nn

ua
lly

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 a

s s
et

 fo
rth

 in
 P

ar
t I

 h
er

eo
f, 

w
hi

ch
 c

on
st

itu
te

s 8
0%

 o
f s

uc
h 

pa
rty

’s
 T

ot
al

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

. 

 
“A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

a 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r”

 a
nd

 “
A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
in

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r”

 a
nd

 s
im

ila
r 

cl
au

se
s, 

m
ea

n 
th

e 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r b

y 
an

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 

ca
rr

yo
ve

rs
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
II

I(
A

) 
of

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t a
nd

 a
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 r

ea
so

n 
of

 a
ny

 o
ve

r-

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
 p

re
vi

ou
s A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r. 

 
“A

rti
fic

ia
l 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t”

 i
s 

th
e 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t 
of

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

sp
re

ad
in

g 
or

 in
je

ct
io

n 
of

 im
po

rte
d 

or
 re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 fo
r p

er
co

la
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f i
nt

o 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 b

y 

a 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l a

ge
nc

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

W
R

D
. 

“A
rti

fic
ia

l 
R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
W

at
er

” 
m

ea
ns

 w
at

er
 c

ap
tu

re
d 

or
 p

ro
cu

re
d 

by
 W

R
D

 t
o 

re
pl

en
is

h 
th

e 
B

as
in

, 
ei

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 b
y 

pe
rc

ol
at

in
g 

or
 i

nj
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

w
at

er
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

B
as

in
, 

or
 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
 l

ie
u 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t 
by

 s
ub

st
itu

tin
g 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 (

or
 p

ay
m

en
t 

th
er

ef
or

) 
in

 l
ie

u 
of

 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

. 

 
“A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

” 
m

ea
ns

 t
he

 t
ot

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
sp

ac
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 h
ol

d 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 w

ith
ou

t c
au

si
ng

 M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
, w

hi
ch

 s
pa

ce
 is

 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
. 

 
“B

as
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

” 
is

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t c

on
tin

uo
us

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

at
er

 b
y 

a 
pa

rty
 fr

om
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 f

or
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l u

se
 in

 a
ny

 p
er

io
d 

of
 f

iv
e 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f 

ov
er

dr
af

t i
n 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
nd

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f 
th

is
 a

ct
io

n,
 a

s 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 n
o 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
of

 u
se

 b
y 

th
at

 p
ar

ty
 d

ur
in

g 
an

y 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 p
er

io
d 

of
 f

iv
e 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

ye
ar

s. 
 

A
s 

em
pl

oy
ed

 in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

de
fin

iti
on

, t
he

 w
or

ds
 “

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 o

f w
at

er
 b

y 
a 

pa
rty

” 
an

d 
“c

es
sa

tio
n 

8
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

of
 u

se
 b

y 
th

at
 p

ar
ty

” 
in

cl
ud

e 
su

ch
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

es
sa

tio
ns

 b
y 

an
y 

pr
ed

ec
es

so
r o

r p
re

de
ce

ss
or

s 

in
 in

te
re

st
. 

 
“B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
” 

m
ea

ns
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 

11
0,

00
0 

ac
re

 f
ee

t o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 

Sp
ac

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r B

as
in

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

IV
(L

). 
 T

he
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 e
qu

al
s t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
. 

 
“C

al
en

da
r 

Y
ea

r”
 i

s 
th

e 
tw

el
ve

 m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 J

an
ua

ry
 1

 o
f 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
an

d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 
of

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. 

 
“C

ar
ry

ov
er

” 
is

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
A

). 

 
“C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n”

 m
ea

ns
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
tra

ns
fe

rr
in

g 
w

at
er

 p
ro

pe
rly

 h
el

d 
as

 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 in

to
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

, o
r t

he
 w

at
er

 so
 c

on
ve

rte
d 

to
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

. 

 
“C

en
tra

l B
as

in
” 

is
 th

e 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
ba

si
n 

or
 re

se
rv

oi
r u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 A

re
a,

 

th
e 

ex
te

rio
r b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s o
f w

hi
ch

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
re

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
e 

ex
te

rio
r b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s o
f C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 A

re
a.

 

 
“C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 A

re
a”

 is
 th

e 
te

rr
ito

ry
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

“1
” 

to
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t a

nd
 is

 a
 

se
gm

en
t o

f t
he

 te
rr

ito
ry

 c
om

pr
is

in
g 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 D
is

tri
ct

. 

 
“C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l”

 m
ea

ns
 t

he
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
bo

dy
 o

f 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

co
ns

is
tin

g 
of

 se
ve

n 
(7

) P
ar

tie
s e

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 a

m
on

g 
pa

rti
es

 h
ol

di
ng

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

(B
). 

 
“C

EQ
A

” 
re

fe
rs

 t
o 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

, 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

od
e 

§§
 2

10
00

 e
t s

eq
.

 
“C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l”
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(E
). 

 
“D

ec
la

re
d 

W
at

er
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y”
 m

ea
ns

 a
 p

er
io

d 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 a

 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 W
R

D
 d

ec
la

rin
g 

th
at

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 im

po
rte

d 
su

pp
lie

s 
of

 w
at

er
 a

re
 s

uc
h 

th
at

, w
ith

ou
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
at

er
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
th

e 
w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 r
is

k 

de
gr

ad
at

io
n.

  S
uc

h 
D

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
A

)(
3)

.  
 

 

“D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
ity

” 
m

ea
ns

 a
ny

 a
re

a 
th

at
 is

 se
rv

ed
 b

y 
a 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r a

nd
 th

at
 

co
ns

is
ts

 o
f 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 c

en
su

s 
tra

ct
s 

w
hi

ch
, 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 t

he
 m

os
t-r

ec
en

t 
U

ni
te

d 



9
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

St
at

es
 C

en
su

s 
da

ta
, d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

a 
m

ed
ia

n 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
co

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 le
ss

 th
an

 e
ig

ht
y 

pe
rc

en
t 

(8
0%

) o
f t

he
 m

ed
ia

n 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
co

m
e 

fo
r a

ll 
C

en
su

s 
Tr

ac
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
st

at
e 

of
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

.  
Th

e 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ea

ch
 

de
ce

nn
ia

l c
en

su
s.

 
“E

xt
ra

ct
io

n,
” 

“e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

,”
 “

ex
tra

ct
in

g,
” 

“e
xt

ra
ct

ed
,”

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 v

ar
ia

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

sa
m

e 

no
un

 a
nd

 v
er

b,
 m

ea
n 

pu
m

pi
ng

, t
ak

in
g,

 d
iv

er
tin

g 
or

 w
ith

dr
aw

in
g 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 b
y 

an
y 

m
an

ne
r o

r 

m
ea

ns
 w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
. 

 
“I

m
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
” 

m
ea

ns
 w

at
er

 b
ro

ug
ht

 i
nt

o 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 A
re

a 
fr

om
 a

 n
on

-tr
ib

ut
ar

y 

so
ur

ce
 b

y 
a 

pa
rty

 a
nd

 a
ny

 p
re

de
ce

ss
or

s 
in

 i
nt

er
es

t, 
ei

th
er

 t
hr

ou
gh

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 o

f 
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 (
“M

W
D

”)
, 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 (

“C
B

M
W

D
”)

, 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 M

W
D

 m
em

be
r 

ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

as
 t

o 
th

e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 P

ow
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, w
at

er
 b

ro
ug

ht
 in

to
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 

A
re

a 
by

 th
at

 p
ar

ty
 b

y 
m

ea
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

O
w

en
s 

R
iv

er
 A

qu
ed

uc
t. 

 I
n 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f 

w
at

er
 im

po
rte

d 
fo

r 

st
or

ag
e 

by
 a

 p
ar

ty
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

“I
m

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

” 
m

ea
ns

 w
at

er
 b

ro
ug

ht
 in

to
 th

e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 f

ro
m

 a
ny

 n
on

-tr
ib

ut
ar

y 
so

ur
ce

 a
s 

on
e 

m
et

ho
d 

fo
r 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 s
to

ra
ge

 i
n 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

. 

 
“I

m
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
 U

se
 C

re
di

t”
 is

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 a

m
ou

nt
, c

om
pu

te
d 

on
 a

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r b
as

is
, o

f 

Im
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
 w

hi
ch

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 a

nd
 a

ny
 p

re
de

ce
ss

or
s 

in
 i

nt
er

es
t, 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
tim

el
y 

m
ad

e 
th

e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fil
in

gs
 u

nd
er

 W
at

er
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
05

.1
, h

av
e 

im
po

rte
d 

in
to

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 A
re

a 
in

 a
ny

 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 to
 J

ul
y 

9,
 1

95
1,

 f
or

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l u

se
 th

er
ei

n,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 th
at

 p
ar

ty
 a

nd
 a

ny
 p

re
de

ce
ss

or
s 

in
 in

te
re

st
 r

ed
uc

es
 h

is
 o

r 
th

ei
r 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 o

f 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 in
 th

at
 c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f h

is
 o

r t
he

ir 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 in
 

th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r, 

or
 in

 a
ny

 p
rio

r c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r n
ot

 e
ar

lie
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r 1
95

0,
 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
r. 

 

 
“I

nd
iv

id
ua

l S
to

ra
ge

 A
llo

ca
tio

n”
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(D
). 

 
“M

aj
or

ity
 P

ro
te

st
” 

m
ea

ns
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

pr
ot

es
t 

fil
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

of
 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r w
ith

in
 s

ix
ty

 (6
0)

 d
ay

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
pr

ot
es

te
d 

ev
en

t o
r d

ec
is

io
n,

 w
hi

ch
 e

vi
de

nc
es

 th
e 

co
nc

ur
re

nc
e 

of
 a

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 h

el
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 a
s 

of
 th

e 

10
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

da
te

 th
er

eo
f. 

 
“M

at
er

ia
l P

hy
si

ca
l H

ar
m

” 
m

ea
ns

 m
at

er
ia

l p
hy

si
ca

l i
nj

ur
y 

or
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l d
im

in
ut

io
n 

in
 th

e 

qu
al

ity
 o

r 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 B
as

in
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

of
 T

ot
al

 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
or

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
, t

ha
t i

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

to
 b

e 
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
re

ch
ar

ge
, 

in
je

ct
io

n,
 st

or
ag

e 
or

 re
ca

pt
ur

e 
of

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 in

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
, b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, 

de
gr

ad
at

io
n 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 l
iq

ue
fa

ct
io

n,
 l

an
d 

su
bs

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

l 
ph

ys
ic

al
 i

nj
ur

y 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
el

ev
at

ed
 o

r 
lo

w
er

ed
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 l

ev
el

s. 
 M

at
er

ia
l 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 H
ar

m
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

“e
co

no
m

ic
 i

nj
ur

y”
 t

ha
t 

re
su

lts
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 t

ha
n 

di
re

ct
 p

hy
si

ca
l 

ca
us

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

 r
at

es
, l

ea
se

 r
at

es
, o

r 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
w

at
er

.  
O

nc
e 

fu
lly

 m
iti

ga
te

d,
 p

hy
si

ca
l 

in
ju

ry
 

sh
al

l n
o 

lo
ng

er
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

 
“N

at
ur

al
 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t”

 
m

ea
ns

 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 

al
l 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 
“A

rti
fic

ia
l 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t”

 b
y 

w
hi

ch
 w

at
er

 m
ay

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 su
pp

ly
 o

f C
en

tra
l B

as
in

. 

 
“N

at
ur

al
 S

af
e 

Y
ie

ld
” 

is
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f g
ro

un
dw

at
er

, n
ot

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 th
e 

lo
ng

 

te
rm

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
nn

ua
l q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f N
at

ur
al

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ex

tra
ct

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 fr

om
 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 w

ith
ou

t 
ev

en
tu

al
 d

ep
le

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f 

or
 w

ith
ou

t 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

ca
us

in
g 

ev
en

tu
al

 

pe
rm

an
en

t d
am

ag
e 

to
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 a

s a
 so

ur
ce

 o
f g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 fo

r b
en

ef
ic

ia
l u

se
, s

ai
d 

m
ax

im
um

 

qu
an

tit
y 

be
in

g 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

ou
t r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 A

rti
fic

ia
l R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t. 
 

 
“O

ut
go

in
g 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r”
 is

 th
e 

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

, t
he

 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
te

rm
s o

f t
he

 Ju
dg

m
en

t b
ef

or
e 

th
is

 T
hi

rd
 A

m
en

dm
en

t. 

“O
ve

rd
ra

ft”
 i

s 
th

at
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 a

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 b
as

in
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 i
n 

an
y 

gi
ve

n 
an

nu
al

 p
er

io
d 

or
 p

er
io

ds
 i

n 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ng

 t
er

m
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

nn
ua

l 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 N
at

ur
al

 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t, 

or
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

at
 q

ua
nt

ity
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

ex
tra

ct
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 w
ith

ou
t o

th
er

w
is

e 

ca
us

in
g 

ev
en

tu
al

 p
er

m
an

en
t d

am
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

ba
si

n.
 

 
“P

ar
ty

” 
m

ea
ns

 a
 p

ar
ty

 to
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n.
  

W
he

ne
ve

r 
th

e 
te

rm
 “

pa
rty

” 
is

 u
se

d 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
w

at
er

 ri
gh

t, 
or

 a
ny

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

rig
ht

, p
riv

ile
ge

 o
r o

bl
ig

at
io

n,
 o

r i
n 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 

w
ith

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 o
f t

he
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r, 

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 re

fe
r c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 

th
os

e 
pa

rti
es

 to
 w

ho
m

 a
re

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 a

 T
ot

al
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
 in

 P
ar

t I
 o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 

 
“P

er
so

n”
 o

r 
“p

er
so

ns
” 

in
cl

ud
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s, 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s, 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

, 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 



11
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 c
or

po
ra

tio
ns

, a
nd

 a
ny

 a
nd

 a
ll 

ty
pe

s o
f e

nt
iti

es
. 

 
“R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
” 

m
ea

ns
 w

at
er

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

cl
ai

m
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

tre
at

m
en

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r 

its
 in

te
nd

ed
 u

se
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 

 
“R

eg
io

na
l 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 I

nc
en

tiv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

” 
m

ea
ns

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
 t

o 
be

 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
in

 t
he

 m
an

ne
r 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

Se
ct

io
n 

II
(H

) 
of

 t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t, 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 w

he
re

by
 a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l i
s 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 

or
 fo

r t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

, o
n 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
ba

si
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

. 
 

 
“R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t”
 m

ea
ns

 t
he

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

im
po

se
d 

by
 W

R
D

 

up
on

 e
ac

h 
ac

re
-f

oo
t 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 W
R

D
’s

 

en
ab

lin
g 

ac
t, 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 C
od

e 
§§

 6
00

00
 e

t s
eq

.

 
“S

m
al

l W
at

er
 P

ro
du

ce
rs

 G
ro

up
” 

m
ea

ns
 a

 b
od

y 
co

ns
is

tin
g 

of
 p

ar
tie

s 
ho

ld
in

g 
no

 g
re

at
er

 

th
an

 5
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 o
f 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 o

n 
A

pp
en

di
x 

3 
he

re
to

 a
nd

 a
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

by
 t

he
 G

ro
up

’s
 o

w
n 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 s
et

 

fo
rth

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

3.
 

 
“S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

” 
or

 “
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

” 
m

ea
ns

 a
 b

ic
am

er
al

 c
on

st
itu

en
t b

od
y 

of
 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
co

ns
is

tin
g 

of
 (

i) 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

an
d 

(ii
) 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 

D
ire

ct
or

s o
f W

R
D

. 

 
“S

to
ra

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
” 

m
ea

ns
 a

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 p
er

ta
in

in
g 

to
 t

he
 p

la
ce

m
en

t, 
re

ch
ar

ge
, 

in
je

ct
io

n,
 

st
or

ag
e,

 tr
an

sf
er

, o
r r

ec
ap

tu
re

 o
f S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

, b
ut

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 a
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

W
R

D
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 it
s r

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

 
“S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

” 
m

ea
ns

 
w

at
er

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

, 
he

ld
 

w
ith

in
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 s

pr
ea

di
ng

, i
nj

ec
tio

n,
 in

-li
eu

 d
el

iv
er

y,
 o

r 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n,

 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 s

ub
se

qu
en

tly
 w

ith
dr

aw
 th

e 
w

at
er

 fo
r r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
an

d 
be

ne
fic

ia
l u

se
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 
“T

ot
al

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

” 
is

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

ar
riv

ed
 a

t i
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

an
ne

r a
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
pu

ta
tio

n 

of
 “

B
as

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
,”

 b
ut

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

 if
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 in
 a

ny
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
Im

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

 

U
se

 C
re

di
t, 

if 
an

y,
 to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

ar
ty

 m
ay

 b
e 

en
tit

le
d.

 

 
“W

at
er

” 
in

cl
ud

es
 o

nl
y 

no
n-

sa
lin

e 
w

at
er

, w
hi

ch
 i

s 
th

at
 h

av
in

g 
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

1,
00

0 
pa

rts
 o

f 

12
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

ch
lo

rid
es

 to
 1

,0
00

,0
00

 p
ar

ts
 o

f w
at

er
. 

 
“W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t”
 m

ea
ns

 p
re

-a
pp

ro
ve

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
ap

pr
ec

ia
bl

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

nn
ua

l g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 y
ie

ld
 

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 th
at

 a
re

 in
iti

at
ed

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

“W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r”

 m
ea

ns
 a

 P
ar

ty
 (

an
d 

su
cc

es
so

rs
 i

n 
in

te
re

st
) 

w
hi

ch
 s

el
ls

 w
at

er
 t

o 
th

e 

pu
bl

ic
, w

he
th

er
 a

 re
gu

la
te

d 
pu

bl
ic

 u
til

ity
, m

ut
ua

l w
at

er
 c

om
pa

ny
 o

r p
ub

lic
 e

nt
ity

.  
A

s t
ha

t t
er

m
 is

 

us
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
B

)(
6)

, “
W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

r,”
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
fo

re
go

in
g,

 m
ea

ns
 a

 P
ar

ty
 w

hi
ch

 

ha
s 

a 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

or
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 f

or
 t

he
 t

ak
in

g 
of

 I
m

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 (“
M

W
D

”)
, o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 M

W
D

-m
em

be
r a

ge
nc

y,
 o

r a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

uc
h 

Im
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

ch
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 n
or

m
al

ly
 s

up
pl

ie
s 

at
 le

as
t a

 p
ar

t o
f 

its
 c

us
to

m
er

s’
 w

at
er

 n
ee

ds
 w

ith
 su

ch
 Im

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

. 
 

 
“W

at
er

m
as

te
r”

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 P
ar

t I
I a

nd
 is

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f (
i) 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 (i
i) 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l, 

an
d 

(ii
i) 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
an

el
.  

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 

an
d 

th
e 

va
rio

us
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
bo

di
es

 o
f 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
as

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
ex

is
t 

as
 a

 

sp
ec

ia
l m

as
te

r 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t a
nd

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
se

rv
es

 a
t t

he
 p

le
as

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
rt.

  

N
ot

hi
ng

 h
er

ei
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
ns

tru
ed

 a
s 

cr
ea

tin
g 

an
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t d
es

ig
na

tio
n 

of
 “

W
at

er
m

as
te

r”
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

y 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
C

EQ
A

, n
or

 d
oe

s 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
or

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
as

 th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

ex
pa

nd
 a

ny
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

, c
on

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
or

 o
th

er
 p

ow
er

s 
of

 t
he

 m
em

be
rs

 

se
rv

in
g 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 

 
“W

es
t C

oa
st

 B
as

in
” 

is
 th

e 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 b

as
in

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f a
 se

pa
ra

te
 a

dj
ud

ic
at

io
n 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

 in
 C

al
if

or
ni

a 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
om

pa
ny

, e
t 

al
. v

. C
it

y 
of

 C
om

pt
on

, e
t a

l.,
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 S

up
er

io
r C

ou
rt 

C
as

e 
N

o.
 5

06
80

6.
 

 
“W

R
D

” 
or

 
“W

at
er

 
R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
D

is
tri

ct
” 

is
 

th
e 

pl
ai

nt
iff

 
he

re
in

, 
th

e 
W

at
er

 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t D

is
tri

ct
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, a
 s

pe
ci

al
 d

is
tri

ct
 o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, w

hi
ch

 

br
ou

gh
t 

th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

un
de

r 
its

 f
or

m
er

 n
am

e,
 “

C
en

tra
l 

an
d 

W
es

t 
B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 

D
is

tri
ct

.”

 
In

 th
os

e 
in

st
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
ab

ov
e-

de
fin

ed
 w

or
ds

, t
er

m
s, 

ph
ra

se
s 

or
 c

la
us

es
 a

re
 

ut
ili

ze
d 

in
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
ab

ov
e-

de
fin

ed
 w

or
ds

, t
er

m
s, 

ph
ra

se
s 

an
d 

cl
au

se
s, 



13
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

su
ch

 u
se

 is
 w

ith
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 a
s i

s a
bo

ve
 se

t f
or

th
. 

 
N

O
W

 T
H

ER
EF

O
R

E,
 I

T 
IS

 O
R

D
ER

ED
, D

EC
LA

R
ED

, A
D

JU
D

G
ED

 A
N

D
 D

EC
R

EE
D

 

W
IT

H
 R

ES
PE

C
T 

TO
 T

H
E 

A
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 C
R

O
SS

-A
C

TI
O

N
 A

S 
FO

LL
O

W
S:

 

I. 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 

A
N

D
 

D
ET

ER
M

IN
A

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

W
A

TE
R

 
R

IG
H

TS
 

O
F 

PA
R

TI
ES

; R
ES

TR
IC

TI
O

N
 O

N
 T

H
E 

EX
ER

C
IS

E 
TH

ER
EO

F.
1

A
.

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 R

ig
ht

s o
f P

ar
tie

s. 

(1
)

 E
ac

h 
pa

rty
, 

ex
ce

pt
 d

ef
en

da
nt

s 
Th

e 
C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 a

nd
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
W

at
er

 a
nd

 P
ow

er
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
, w

ho
se

 n
am

e 
is

 s
et

 

fo
rth

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
an

d 
by

 th
is

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 m

ad
e 

a 
pa

rt 
he

re
of

,  
an

d 
af

te
r 

w
ho

se
 

na
m

e 
th

er
e 

ap
pe

ar
s u

nd
er

 th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

“T
ot

al
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
” 

a 
fig

ur
e 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
“0

,”
 

is
 t

he
 o

w
ne

r 
of

 a
nd

 h
as

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 a
nn

ua
lly

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 fo

r b
en

ef
ic

ia
l u

se
 in

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

se
t f

or
th

 a
fte

r t
ha

t p
ar

ty
’s

 n
am

e 
un

de
r s

ai
d 

co
lu

m
n 

“T
ot

al
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
” 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

os
e 

of
 t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

2 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r R
ep

or
ts

 o
n 

fil
e 

w
ith

 th
is

 C
ou

rt 

an
d 

th
e 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 t

he
 P

la
in

tif
f. 

 T
hi

s 
ta

bu
la

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 t
ak

e 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

ad
di

tio
ns

 o
r s

ub
tra

ct
io

ns
 fr

om
 a

ny
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

 p
ro

du
ce

r f
or

 

th
e 

20
12

-2
01

3 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
no

r 
ot

he
r 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 n
ot

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 

ch
an

ge
 i

n 
fe

e 
tit

le
 t

o 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s, 

su
ch

 a
s 

le
as

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s, 

no
r 

do
es

 i
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

na
m

es
 o

f 
le

ss
ee

s 
of

 la
nd

ow
ne

rs
 w

he
re

 th
e 

le
ss

ee
s 

ar
e 

ex
er

ci
si

ng
 th

e 

w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s. 
 T

he
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

of
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
to

 t
he

 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t a

s 
he

re
in

af
te

r c
on

ta
in

ed
.  

A
ll 

of
 s

ai
d 

rig
ht

s 
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
le

ga
l f

or
ce

 a
nd

 e
ff

ec
t a

nd
 a

re
 w

ith
ou

t p
rio

rit
y 

w
ith

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r. 

 

Ea
ch

 p
ar

ty
 w

ho
se

 n
am

e 
is

  
se

t 
fo

rth
 i

n 
th

e 
ta

bu
la

tio
n 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

“2
” 

of
 t

hi
s 

1  H
ea

di
ng

s 
in

 th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t a
re

 fo
r p

ur
po

se
s 

of
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

th
e 

la
ng

ua
ge

 o
f s

ai
d 

he
ad

in
gs

 d
o 

no
t c

on
st

itu
te

, o
th

er
 

th
an

 fo
r s

uc
h 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t. 

14
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
an

d 
af

te
r 

w
ho

se
 n

am
e 

th
er

e 
ap

pe
ar

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

“T
ot

al
 W

at
er

 

R
ig

ht
” 

th
e 

fig
ur

e 
“0

,”
 o

w
ns

 n
o 

rig
ht

s 
to

 e
xt

ra
ct

 a
ny

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
, a

nd
 h

as
 n

o 
rig

ht
 to

 e
xt

ra
ct

 a
ny

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

. 

(2
)

D
ef

en
da

nt
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 i

s 
th

e 
ow

ne
r 

of
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 f

ift
ee

n 
th

ou
sa

nd
 (

15
,0

00
) 

ac
re

 f
ee

t 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 o
f 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

, b
ut

 it
 h

as
 th

e 
rig

ht
 a

nd
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
or

 le
as

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

ig
ht

s 

to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 it

s 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

  D
ef

en
da

nt
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 P

ow
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 h
as

 n
o 

rig
ht

 to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 e
xc

ep
t i

ns
of

ar
 a

s 
it 

ha
s 

th
e 

rig
ht

, p
ow

er
, d

ut
y 

or
 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 d

ef
en

da
nt

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 to
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

th
e 

w
at

er
 

rig
ht

s 
in

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 o
f 

de
fe

nd
an

t T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

.  
Th

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

f 

sa
id

 r
ig

ht
s 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
he

re
af

te
r 

co
nt

ai
ne

d,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 l
im

ite
d 

to
, 

sh
ar

in
g 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 a
ny

 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 d

ec
re

as
es

 o
r 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 f
ro

m
 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

, p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 

fif
te

en
 t

ho
us

an
d 

(1
5,

00
0)

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 (

an
d 

an
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

its
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n)
 b

ea
rs

 to
 th

e 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tie
s.

(3
)

N
o 

pa
rty

 to
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n 
is

 th
e 

ow
ne

r 
of

 o
r 

ha
s 

an
y 

rig
ht

 to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 e
xc

ep
t a

s h
er

ei
n 

af
fir

m
at

iv
el

y 
de

te
rm

in
ed

. 

B
.

Pa
rti

es
 E

nj
oi

ne
d 

as
 to

 Q
ua

nt
iti

es
 o

f E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

. 

(1
)

Ea
ch

 p
ar

ty
, o

th
er

 th
an

 T
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 a

nd
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
os

 

A
ng

el
es

 a
nd

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 P
ow

er
 o

f 
Th

e 
C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
, 

is
 

en
jo

in
ed

 a
nd

 r
es

tra
in

ed
 i

n 
an

y 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

da
te

 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t b
ec

om
es

 f
in

al
 f

ro
m

 e
xt

ra
ct

in
g 

fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
ny

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

W
at

er
 g

re
at

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

as
 h

er
ei

na
fte

r 
se

t 

fo
rth

 n
ex

t t
o 

th
e 

na
m

e 
of

 th
e 

pa
rty

 in
 th

e 
ta

bu
la

tio
n 

ap
pe

ar
in

g 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

at
 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
fu

rth
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t. 

 S
ub

je
ct

 

to
 s

uc
h 

fu
rth

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s, 
th

e 
of

fic
ia

ls
, 

ag
en

ts
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
of

 T
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 



15
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 a

re
 e

nj
oi

ne
d 

an
d 

re
st

ra
in

ed
 i

n 
an

y 
su

ch
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
fr

om
 

ex
tra

ct
in

g 
fr

om
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y 

an
y 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 th
e 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 T
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 a
s 

he
re

in
af

te
r 

se
t 

fo
rth

 

ne
xt

 to
 th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 th

at
 p

ar
ty

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

ta
bu

la
tio

n.
  

Ea
ch

 p
ar

ty
 a

dj
ud

ge
d 

an
d 

de
cl

ar
ed

 a
bo

ve
 n

ot
 t

o 
be

 t
he

 o
w

ne
r 

of
 a

nd
 n

ot
 t

o 
ha

ve
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 is
 e

nj
oi

ne
d 

an
d 

re
st

ra
in

ed
 in

 a
ny

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 a
fte

r t
he

 d
at

e 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t b

ec
om

es
 fi

na
l f

ro
m

 e
xt

ra
ct

in
g 

an
y 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
, e

xc
ep

t a
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

he
re

in
af

te
r 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 to
 a

ny
 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
  

(2
)

Th
e 

to
ta

l e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

 fo
r e

ac
h 

pa
rty

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 p

ar
ty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
(to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 n

ot
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
by

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t o

r o
th

er
w

is
e)

, a
ny

 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l r

ig
ht

 a
cq

ui
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
le

as
e 

or
 o

th
er

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 o
r 

us
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

s 
of

 a
no

th
er

 p
ar

ty
, 

an
d 

an
y 

rig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 o
r 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 N
o 

pa
rty

 m
ay

 e
xt

ra
ct

 in
 e

xc
es

s o
f 1

40
%

 o
f t

he
 su

m
 o

f 

(i)
 t

he
 p

ar
ty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

(ii
) 

th
e 

pa
rty

’s
 l

ea
se

d 
w

at
er

, 

ex
ce

pt
 u

po
n 

pr
io

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 b
od

y 
of

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(J
)a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
he

re
in

.  
U

po
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 th
e 

bo
dy

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(J
) s

ha
ll 

ap
pr

ov
e 

a 
pa

rty
’s

 re
qu

es
t t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 w
at

er
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 s

uc
h 

lim
it,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
M

at
er

ia
l P

hy
si

ca
l H

ar
m

.  
R

eq
ue

st
s 

to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 w

at
er

 in
 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f s
uc

h 
lim

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 e

ith
er

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
or

 d
en

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s o
f s

uc
h 

re
qu

es
t. 

(3
)

D
ef

en
da

nt
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 is

 e
nj

oi
ne

d 
an

d 
re

st
ra

in
ed

 in
 

an
y 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r c

om
m

en
ci

ng
 a

fte
r t

he
 d

at
e 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t b
ec

om
es

 fi
na

l 

fr
om

 e
xt

ra
ct

in
g 

fr
om

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

ny
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
w

at
er

 g
re

at
er

 t
ha

n 
fif

te
en

 

th
ou

sa
nd

 (1
5,

00
0)

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 o

r i
ts

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 a

s 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
if 

it 
ac

qu
ire

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

rig
ht

s 
to

 p
um

p 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
r l

ea
se

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fu

rth
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 

lim
ite

d 
to

, s
ha

rin
g 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 a
ny

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t d

ec
re

as
es

 o
r i

nc
re

as
es

 in
 

16
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 b

y 
pa

rti
es

, p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

of
 t

he
 C

ou
rt,

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 f

ift
ee

n 
th

ou
sa

nd
 (

15
,0

00
) 

ac
re

 f
ee

t 
(o

r 
th

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

rig
ht

s 
ar

e 

ac
qu

ire
d)

 b
ea

rs
 t

o 
th

e 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
pa

rti
es

.  

D
ef

en
da

nt
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 W
at

er
 a

nd
 P

ow
er

 o
f 

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 i
s 

en
jo

in
ed

 a
nd

 r
es

tra
in

ed
 i

n 
an

y 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

da
te

 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t b
ec

om
es

 f
in

al
 f

ro
m

 e
xt

ra
ct

in
g 

fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
ny

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

w
at

er
 o

th
er

 th
an

 s
uc

h 
as

 it
 m

ay
 e

xt
ra

ct
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 d

ef
en

da
nt

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

, a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 a
ny

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

sa
id

 C
ity

, s
ha

ll 
no

t 

ex
ce

ed
 th

at
 q

ua
nt

ity
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t t
o 

th
at

 C
ity

 in
 a

ny
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r. 
 W

he
ne

ve
r 

in
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
th

e 
te

rm
 “

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n”
 

ap
pe

ar
s, 

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 m

ea
n 

as
 to

 d
ef

en
da

nt
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 fi

fte
en

 th
ou

sa
nd

 (1
5,

00
0)

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 h
as

 

ac
qu

ire
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
r 

le
as

e 
rig

ht
 to

 e
xt

ra
ct

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
.  

Th
e 

lim
it 

on
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
Se

ct
io

n 
I(

B
)(

1)
 sh

al
l a

ls
o 

ap
pl

y 
to

 

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
. 

(4
)

A
ny

 r
ig

ht
s 

de
cr

ee
d 

an
d 

ad
ju

di
ca

te
d 

he
re

in
 m

ay
 b

e 
tra

ns
fe

rr
ed

, 

as
si

gn
ed

, l
ic

en
se

d 
or

 le
as

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ow

ne
r t

he
re

of
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
ha

t n
o 

su
ch

 

tra
ns

fe
r s

ha
ll 

be
 c

om
pl

et
e 

un
til

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 n

ot
ic

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r. 

 

(5
)

U
nl

es
s a

 p
ar

ty
 e

le
ct

s o
th

er
w

is
e,

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
e 

B
as

in
 

fo
r t

he
 u

se
 o

r b
en

ef
it 

of
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

 h
er

et
o 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
un

te
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 p

ar
ty

’s
 to

ta
l 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
 i

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

or
de

r: 
(i)

 I
nc

re
as

ed
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
ce

rta
in

 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s 
ho

ld
er

s 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
IV

(K
), 

(ii
) 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 

pr
od

uc
tio

n,
 (i

ii)
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 w

at
er

, (
iv

) p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 le

as
ed

 w
at

er
, ,

 

(v
) p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 (v

i) 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

, 

(v
ii)

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 D

ro
ug

ht
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 (
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r’

s 
R

ul
es

), 
an

d 

(v
iii

) 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 u
nd

er
 a

n 
ag

re
em

en
t 

w
ith

 W
R

D
 d

ur
in

g 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 



17
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

em
er

ge
nc

y 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
I(

B
)(

6)
. 

C
.

Pa
rti

es
 E

nj
oi

ne
d 

as
 to

 E
xp

or
t o

f E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

.

 
Ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

ex
pr

es
sl

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 o
r 

up
on

 f
ur

th
er

 o
rd

er
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 a
ll 

pa
rti

es
 a

re
 e

nj
oi

ne
d 

an
d 

re
st

ra
in

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

ns
po

rti
ng

 w
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 A

re
a.

  
Fo

r 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
th

is
 S

ec
tio

n,
 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

by
 a

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r 

to
 i

ts
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
ny

 o
f 

its
 s

er
vi

ce
 

ar
ea

s c
on

tig
uo

us
 to

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 o
r w

ith
in

 W
R

D
’s

 se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 sh
al

l b
e 

ex
em

pt
 fr

om
 

th
e 

ex
po

rt 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 o
f 

th
is

 S
ec

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

r 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

w
at

er
 t

o 
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 t
ha

t 
ov

er
lie

s 
th

e 
B

as
in

 i
n 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t. 
 T

he
 f

or
eg

oi
ng

 

ex
em

pt
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 m
ad

e,
 n

or
 is

 it
 re

la
te

d 
to

, a
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

un
de

rf
lo

w
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ba
si

ns
, a

 c
os

t o
r 

be
ne

fit
 a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
fa

ct
or

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

by
 W

R
D

.  
Fu

rth
er

, t
hi

s 
in

ju
nc

tio
n 

an
d 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 

ap
pl

y 
to

 e
xp

or
t 

of
 w

at
er

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4,
 n

or
 d

oe
s 

it 
ap

pl
y 

to
 e

xp
or

t o
f 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 n
ot

 

ha
vi

ng
 i

ts
 o

rig
in

 i
n 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n.
  

Th
e 

ex
po

rt 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
m

ay
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 v
io

la
te

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

ow
ev

er
 t

ha
t 

no
 s

uc
h 

ex
po

rt 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
sh

al
l 

ex
ce

ed
 5

,0
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 a
ny

 Y
ea

r. 

II
. 

A
PP

O
IN

TM
EN

T 
O

F 
W

A
TE

R
M

A
ST

ER
; W

A
TE

R
M

A
ST

ER
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
 

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

S.
   

 
Th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

bo
di

es
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

be
lo

w
 a

re
, j

oi
nt

ly
, h

er
eb

y 
ap

po
in

te
d 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 

fo
r 

an
 in

de
fin

ite
 te

rm
, b

ut
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
em

ov
al

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 to

 a
dm

in
is

te
r 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t. 
 S

uc
h 

bo
di

es
, w

hi
ch

 to
ge

th
er

 s
ha

ll 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

th
e 

“W
at

er
m

as
te

r,”
 s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 r
es

tri
ct

ed
 p

ow
er

s, 
du

tie
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

he
re

in
, i

t b
ei

ng
 th

e 
co

ur
t’s

 in
te

nt
io

n 
th

at
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
on

st
itu

en
t 

bo
di

es
 o

f 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

ha
ve

 o
nl

y 
lim

ite
d 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 p
ow

er
s 

ov
er

 c
er

ta
in

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t. 
 T

he
 O

ut
go

in
g 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r w
ill

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 d
ili

ge
nc

e 

in
 t

he
 c

om
pl

et
e 

tra
ns

iti
on

 o
f 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
du

tie
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
e 

18
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

try
 o

f 
th

is
 o

rd
er

, 
an

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 n

ew
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

al
l 

re
co

rd
s 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r a

ct
iv

iti
es

.  
Th

e 
ch

ai
r o

f t
he

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l (

de
fin

ed
 

be
lo

w
) s

ha
ll 

th
er

ea
fte

r r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
C

ou
rt.

 

A
.

Th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y.

   

 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 W

at
er

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

D
is

tri
ct

 o
f 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 (

“W
R

D
”)

 i
s 

ap
po

in
te

d 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
of

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
(“

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

B
od

y”
). 

 I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
in

 t
he

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
an

d 
to

 k
ee

p 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fu
lly

 a
dv

is
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

pr
em

is
es

, 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

ha
ve

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

du
tie

s, 
po

w
er

s 
an

d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s: (1

)
To

 R
eq

ui
re

 R
ep

or
ts

, I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
R

ec
or

ds
.  

 

 
In

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l, 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l r
eq

ui
re

 th
e 

pa
rti

es
 to

 fu
rn

is
h 

su
ch

 re
po

rts
, i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s a

s m
ay

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 la
ck

 o
f c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
by

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 
  

(2
)

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

.  
 

 
Th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

ex
er

ci
se

 
su

ch
 

po
w

er
s 

as
 

m
ay

 
be

 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 g

ra
nt

ed
 to

 it
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
. 

(3
)

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t.

 
Th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
, o

n 
or

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

15
th

 d
ay

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 m

on
th

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 

re
po

rt 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l. 
  

Th
e 

C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

W
at

er
 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
su

bm
it 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

ei
th

er
 (1

) t
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
, o

r (
2)

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l. 

 T
he

 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

be
 l

im
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 u

nl
es

s o
th

er
w

is
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
rt:

   

(a
)

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 



19
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(b
)

St
or

ag
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

by
 e

ac
h 

pa
rty

 

(c
)

St
at

us
 

of
 

th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
, i

f a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 

(d
)

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l o
pe

ra
tio

n 

(e
)

U
se

 o
f I

m
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
 

(f
)

V
io

la
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n 

ta
ke

n 
by

 

bo
di

es
 

of
 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
ha

vi
ng

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
as

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

in
 

th
is

 

Ju
dg

m
en

t  

(g
)

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 T
ot

al
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s  

(h
)

W
at

er
m

as
te

r a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
co

st
s  

(i)
W

at
er

 sp
re

ad
 o

r i
m

po
rte

d 
in

to
 th

e 
B

as
in

 

(j)
W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

(k
)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
a 

M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
, o

r 
im

m
in

en
t t

hr
ea

t o
f 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 a

 M
at

er
ia

l 
Ph

ys
ic

al
 H

ar
m

, 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 

Se
ct

io
n 

IV
(B

) o
f t

hi
s J

ud
gm

en
t 

(l)
O

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 a
s a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s P

an
el

 

(m
)

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, i
f a

ny
. 

In
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 a
ll 

pa
rti

es
 o

f a
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l a
ct

io
ns

 o
r d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 b

y 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
or

 a
ny

 c
on

st
itu

en
t b

od
y 

th
er

eo
f, 

an
d 

as
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 

Th
ird

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

(4
)

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 A
pp

ea
l P

ro
ce

du
re

 in
 R

el
at

io
n 

Th
er

et
o.

 
B

y 
A

pr
il 

1 
of

 e
ac

h 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

bu
dg

et
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
ye

ar
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 e

xp
en

se
 f

or
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
in

 th
is

 

Ju
dg

m
en

t (
th

e 
“A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
ud

ge
t”

). 
 T

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l m

ai
l a

 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t t
o 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 P

ar
tie

s a
t l

ea
st

 6
0 

da
ys

 

20
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

be
fo

re
 t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f 

ea
ch

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 T
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t 

m
ai

le
d 

to
 th

e 
Pa

rti
es

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
ud

ge
t 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

io
n 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

W
R

D
’s

 
R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

bu
dg

et
. 

 
Fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

un
de

r 
th

is
 T

hi
rd

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t, 

if 
th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

is
 

un
ab

le
 

to
 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

tim
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l m
ai

l s
ai

d 
co

pi
es

 a
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

.  
Th

e 
fir

st
 y

ea
r t

he
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t i
s 

pr
ep

ar
ed

, t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

ha
t b

ud
ge

t s
ha

ll 
no

t e
xc

ee
d 

an
 

am
ou

nt
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

fif
ty

 p
er

ce
nt

 (
50

%
) 

of
 t

he
 2

01
2-

20
13

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r t

he
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 fr
om

 P
ar

tie
s 

by
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 A
t 

al
l 

tim
es

, 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

se
pa

ra
tio

n 
in

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t 
an

d 
W

R
D

’s
 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
bu

dg
et

.  
A

ll 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 fu

tu
re

 b
ud

ge
ts

 

fo
r t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 s

et
 fo

rth
 a

bo
ve

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
he

ld
 p

rio
r t

o 

th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
ud

ge
t s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 fi

rs
t-y

ea
r b

ud
ge

t f
or

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 

ex
ce

pt
 u

po
n 

fu
rth

er
 o

rd
er

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

rt.
  

A
ny

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
by

 W
R

D
 

al
re

ad
y 

pa
id

 f
or

 b
y 

th
e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
an

 

ex
pe

ns
e 

in
 t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
ud

ge
t. 

 S
im

ila
rly

, 
an

y 
ex

pe
ns

e 
pa

id
 f

or
 b

y 
th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

be
 a

dd
ed

 t
o 

W
R

D
’s

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
bu

dg
et

, 
or

 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
W

hi
le

 W
R

D
 

m
ay

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 w

hi
ch

 

W
R

D
 

ad
op

ts
 

its
 

an
nu

al
 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

or
 

an
nu

al
 

bu
dg

et
, 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y’

s 
bu

dg
et

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

se
pa

ra
te

 
an

d 
di

st
in

ct
 

fr
om

 
th

e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t i
m

po
se

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 W
at

er
 C

od
e 

§6
03

17
 a

nd
 W

R
D

’s
 

op
er

at
in

g 
bu

dg
et

.

 
If

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
by

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 



21
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

fo
re

go
in

g,
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
ac

t u
po

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

ud
ge

t w
ith

in
 1

5 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ee
tin

g.
  

If
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
 p

rio
r 

to
 s

uc
h 

de
ad

lin
e,

 t
he

 m
at

te
r 

m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pe

al
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
w

ith
in

 s
ix

ty
 (

60
) 

da
ys

. 
 I

f 
an

y 
Pa

rty
 h

er
et

o 
ha

s 
an

y 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

to
 t

he
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t, 
it 

sh
al

l p
re

se
nt

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

to
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r w

ith
in

 

15
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
m

ai
lin

g 
of

 s
ai

d 
te

nt
at

iv
e 

bu
dg

et
 b

y 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y.
  

Th
e 

Pa
rti

es
 s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
of

 t
he

m
 t

o 
th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

ev
en

 t
ho

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ea

l 
of

 s
uc

h 
bu

dg
et

 m
ay

 b
e 

pe
nd

in
g.

  

U
po

n 
an

y 
re

vi
si

on
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l e
ith

er
 re

m
it 

to
 th

e 

Pa
rti

es
 th

ei
r p

ro
 ra

ta
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f a
ny

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
, o

r s
ha

ll 
cr

ed
it 

th
ei

r 

ac
co

un
ts

 
w

ith
 

re
sp

ec
t 

to
 

th
ei

r 
bu

dg
et

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
en

su
in

g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

sh
al

l d
ire

ct
.

 
Th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

ud
ge

t 
to

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 t
o 

ea
ch

 p
ar

ty
 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s:
  I

f t
ha

t p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

al
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

be
 a

ss
es

se
d 

to
 

th
e 

Pa
rti

es
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 o
r l

es
s 

th
an

 $
20

.0
0 

pe
r p

ar
ty

 th
en

 th
e 

co
st

 s
ha

ll 
be

 e
qu

al
ly

 

ap
po

rti
on

ed
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
Pa

rti
es

.  
If

 th
at

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

al
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

be
 a

ss
es

se
d 

to
 

Pa
rti

es
 i

s 
gr

ea
te

r 
th

an
 $

20
.0

0 
pe

r 
pa

rty
 t

he
n 

ea
ch

 P
ar

ty
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

ss
es

se
d 

a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f $

20
.0

0.
  T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f r
ev

en
ue

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fo
re

go
in

g 
m

in
im

um
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 th
at

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

al
 

bu
dg

et
 to

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 to
 th

e 
Pa

rti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 to
 th

e 
Pa

rti
es

 

ha
vi

ng
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 s
uc

h 
ba

la
nc

e 
be

in
g 

di
vi

de
d 

am
on

g 
th

em
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

ly
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
ei

r r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n.
  

 
Pa

ym
en

t o
f 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r 

he
re

in
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t b

y 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d,
 s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
 e

ac
h 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
 p

rio
r t

o 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t r

el
at

es
, o

r 
w

ith
in

 4
0 

da
ys

 a
fte

r 
th

e 

m
ai

lin
g 

of
 th

e 
te

nt
at

iv
e 

bu
dg

et
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 la

te
r. 

 If
 s

uc
h 

pa
ym

en
t b

y 
an

y 
Pa

rty
 

is
 n

ot
 m

ad
e 

on
 o

r b
ef

or
e 

sa
id

 d
at

e,
 th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l a

dd
 a

 p
en

al
ty

 o
f 

5%
 th

er
eo

f 
to

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
’s

 s
ta

te
m

en
t. 

 P
ay

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
of

 a
ny

 P
ar

ty
 h

er
eu

nd
er

 

22
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

m
ay

 b
e 

en
fo

rc
ed

 b
y 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
is

su
ed

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
rt,

 o
r a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 

or
de

r h
er

ei
na

fte
r m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 o
r b

y 
ot

he
r p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
 b

y 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

or
 b

y 
an

y 
Pa

rty
 o

n 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r’

s b
eh

al
f. 

 
A

ny
 m

on
ey

 u
ne

xp
en

de
d 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
an

y 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
 

of
 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r. 
 

Th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l m
ai

nt
ai

n 
no

 re
se

rv
es

. 

 
N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 t

he
 a

bo
ve

, 
no

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 b
ud

ge
t 

of
 t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 to

 W
R

D
 o

r t
o 

an
y 

Pa
rty

 w
ho

 h
as

 n
ot

 e
xt

ra
ct

ed
 w

at
er

 fr
om

 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 f

or
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 t

w
o 

su
cc

es
si

ve
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

rs
 p

rio
r 

to
 t

he
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 t
en

ta
tiv

e 
bu

dg
et

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ai
le

d 
by

 t
he

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

un
de

r t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
hi

s s
ub

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
(4

). 

(5
)

R
ul

es
.

 
Th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
m

ay
 a

do
pt

, a
nd

 a
m

en
d 

fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 ru

le
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 d

ut
ie

s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t w
ith

in
 it

s 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

ar
ea

 o
f 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y.
  

Th
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l a

do
pt

 it
s 

fir
st

 s
et

 o
f r

ul
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

re
e 

(3
) m

on
th

s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

try
 o

f t
hi

s 
Th

ird
 A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 ru

le
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
on

 

su
ch

 d
at

e 
af

te
r t

he
 m

ai
lin

g 
th

er
eo

f t
o 

th
e 

Pa
rti

es
 a

s 
is

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

B
od

y,
 b

ut
 

no
t s

oo
ne

r t
ha

n 
th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s a
fte

r s
uc

h 
m

ai
lin

g.
 

B
.

Th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
.  

 

 
Th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l o
f t

he
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r (

“W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l”
) s

ha
ll 

co
ns

is
t o

f s
ev

en
 (7

) m
em

be
rs

, e
ac

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 P

ar
ty

.  
Th

e 
te

rm
 o

f e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r 

of
 t

he
 P

an
el

, 
w

ith
 t

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 s

ea
t 

he
ld

 b
y 

th
e 

Sm
al

l 
W

at
er

 P
ro

du
ce

rs
 G

ro
up

, 
as

 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 s
ha

ll 
be

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 f

ou
r 

ye
ar

s. 
Th

e 
C

ou
rt 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 to

 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l u

po
n 

m
ot

io
n 

by
 P

ar
tie

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
se

t 

fo
rth

 b
el

ow
 a

t o
r a

bo
ut

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 e

nt
ry

 o
f t

hi
s 

Th
ird

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t, 

an
d 

sh
al

l e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
st

ag
ge

re
d 

te
rm

s 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

em
be

rs
.  

Th
er

ea
fte

r, 
el

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
be

 h
el

d 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
he

re
in

.  
O

ne
 (1

) s
uc

h 
m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
be

 



23
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

el
ec

te
d 

by
 v

ot
e 

of
 t

he
 S

m
al

l 
W

at
er

 P
ro

du
ce

rs
 G

ro
up

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 i
ts

 o
w

n 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 s
uc

h 
G

ro
up

, 
as

 o
f 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

th
e 

el
ec

tio
n,

 c
on

si
st

s 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t 
fiv

e 
(5

) 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
re

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
rs

.  
O

ne
 (

1)
 s

uc
h 

m
em

be
r 

of
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
be

 

el
ec

te
d 

by
 v

ot
e 

of
 P

ar
tie

s 
w

ith
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 le

ss
 th

an
 5

,0
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 w

ho
 a

re
 

no
t m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 S
m

al
l W

at
er

 P
ro

du
ce

rs
 G

ro
up

 o
r, 

if 
th

e 
Sm

al
l W

at
er

 P
ro

du
ce

rs
 G

ro
up

 d
oe

s 

no
t 

th
en

 q
ua

lif
y 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 s

ix
-m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

of
 n

on
-q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

he
re

in
, t

he
n 

tw
o 

(2
) 

su
ch

 m
em

be
rs

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
o 

se
le

ct
ed

.  
O

ne
 (

1)
 s

uc
h 

m
em

be
r 

of
 t

he
 W

at
er

 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
sh

al
l 

be
 e

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
vo

te
 o

f 
Pa

rti
es

 w
ith

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t 

5,
00

0 
ac

re
-fe

et
 b

ut
 l

es
s 

th
an

 1
0,

00
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t. 
 T

hr
ee

 (
3)

 s
uc

h 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
be

 e
le

ct
ed

 b
y 

vo
te

 o
f P

ar
tie

s w
ith

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 1
0,

00
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t o
r 

gr
ea

te
r. 

 O
ne

 (1
) s

uc
h 

m
em

be
r o

f t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 sh

al
l b

e 
el

ec
te

d 
by

 a
 v

ot
e 

of
 a

ll 
ho

ld
er

s 

of
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

, w
ith

 e
ac

h 
su

ch
 h

ol
de

r b
ei

ng
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 o
ne

 v
ot

e,
 su

ch
 m

em
be

r 

to
 b

e 
el

ec
te

d 
by

 a
 p

lu
ra

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
vo

te
s 

ca
st

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

a 
no

m
in

at
io

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

to
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 

in
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l’s
 ru

le
s. 

 In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f a
 ti

e,
 th

e 
se

ve
nt

h 
m

em
be

r s
ha

ll 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l’s
 r

ul
es

, o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
by

 t
he

 c
ou

rt.
  

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 S

ec
tio

n,
 e

ac
h 

su
ch

 r
ig

ht
s 

ho
ld

er
 s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 t

o 
ca

st
 a

 t
ot

al
 

nu
m

be
r o

f v
ot

es
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

cr
e-

fe
et

 o
f i

ts
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

(r
ou

nd
ed

 to
 

th
e 

ne
xt

 h
ig

he
st

 w
ho

le
 n

um
be

r)
.  

W
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 v
ot

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 s

ev
en

th
 m

em
be

r, 
Pa

rti
es

 

sh
al

l b
e 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 v

ot
e 

on
ly

 f
or

 c
an

di
da

te
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ca

te
go

ry
(ie

s)
 th

at
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 th
at

 P
ar

ty
’s

 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n.
  

Fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 p
ar

tie
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

Sm
al

l 
W

at
er

 

Pr
od

uc
er

s 
G

ro
up

 a
re

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 v

ot
e 

on
ly

 fo
r t

he
 S

m
al

l W
at

er
 P

ro
du

ce
r G

ro
up

 m
em

be
r a

nd
 th

e 

se
ve

nt
h 

m
em

be
r 

of
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
an

d 
so

 o
n.

  P
ar

tie
s 

ar
e 

no
t p

er
m

itt
ed

 to
 s

pl
it 

vo
te

s. 

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f 
su

ch
 e

le
ct

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fo
r 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

of
 e

ac
h 

m
em

be
r’

s 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
of

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 
 T

he
 e

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
sh

al
l 

be
 t

ho
se

 c
an

di
da

te
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 
vo

te
 t

ot
al

 i
n 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s. 
 T

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s P

an
el

 sh
al

l h
ol

d 
its

 fi
rs

t m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

in
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s o
f t

he
 d

at
e 

th
is

 T
hi

rd
 A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t b
ec

om
es

 fi
na

l. 
 T

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
de

ve
lo

p 
ru

le
s f

or
 it

s 

op
er

at
io

n 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t. 
 T

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

24
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 it

s 
C

ha
ir,

 b
y 

m
aj

or
ity

 v
ot

e 
of

 it
s 

m
em

be
rs

.  
El

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ha

ir 
sh

al
l o

cc
ur

 e
ve

ry
 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s, 
w

ith
 n

o 
Pa

rty
 s

er
vi

ng
 a

s 
C

ha
ir 

fo
r 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

te
rm

s. 
M

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
se

rv
e 

w
ith

ou
t c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

  A
ll 

re
fe

re
nc

es
 to

 A
nn

ua
l P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 a
s 

us
ed

 

he
re

in
, a

re
 a

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

la
st

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r r

ep
or

t. 

(1
)

Th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

sh
al

l 
ha

ve
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
du

tie
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s: (a

)
En

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 R
ig

ht
s. 

 A
s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 o

th
er

 

bo
di

es
 o

f 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r, 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

sh
al

l 
ha

ve
 e

xc
lu

si
ve

 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 m

ov
e 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
to

 ta
ke

 su
ch

 a
ct

io
n 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 t
he

 J
ud

gm
en

t 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 t
he

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
ad

ju
di

ca
te

d 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

s a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

(b
)

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
of

 M
ea

su
rin

g 
D

ev
ic

es
. 

 T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
re

qu
ire

 a
ll 

pa
rti

es
 o

w
ni

ng
 o

r o
pe

ra
tin

g 
an

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 to
 in

st
al

l a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
at

 

al
l 

tim
es

 
in

 
go

od
 

w
or

ki
ng

 
or

de
r 

at
 

su
ch

 
pa

rty
’s

 
ow

n 
ex

pe
ns

e,
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ea
su

rin
g 

de
vi

ce
s 

at
 s

uc
h 

tim
es

 a
nd

 a
s 

of
te

n 
as

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
to

 c
al

ib
ra

te
 o

r 
te

st
 s

uc
h 

de
vi

ce
s.

(c
)

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 b

y 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r. 

 T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l m

ay
 

m
ak

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
of

 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 

aq
ui

fe
r 

st
or

ag
e 

an
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 f
ac

ili
tie

s, 
an

d 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

de
vi

ce
s 

at
 s

uc
h 

tim
es

 a
nd

 a
s 

of
te

n 
as

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 

to
 c

al
ib

ra
te

 o
r t

es
t s

uc
h 

de
vi

ce
s. 

(d
)

R
ep

or
ts

.  
A

nn
ua

lly
, t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
in

 c
oo

pe
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 s
ha

ll 
re

po
rt 

to
 t

he
 C

ou
rt,

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

an
y 

or
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

(i)
 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 



25
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(ii
) 

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l o

pe
ra

tio
n 

(ii
i) 

  
St

at
us

 
of

 
th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

, i
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

(iv
)  

 
V

io
la

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t 
an

d 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

or
 so

ug
ht

 

(v
)

   
C

ha
ng

e 
of

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

of
 T

ot
al

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s  

(v
i)

   
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

m
ad

e 
by

 
th

e 
W

at
er

 
R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l a
nd

 a
ny

 c
os

ts
 in

cu
rr

ed
 

(v
ii)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l h

as
 b

ec
om

e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
a 

M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
, o

r 

im
m

in
en

t t
hr

ea
t o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l 

H
ar

m
, 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
Se

ct
io

n 
IV

(B
) 

of
 

th
is

 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 

(v
iii

)
  R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
, i

f a
ny

. 

 
A

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
II

.A
(3

), 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
m

ay
 a

do
pt

 t
he

 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 a
nd

 s
ub

m
it 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 o

r 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l m
ay

 p
re

pa
re

, a
do

pt
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

it 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 r
ep

or
t. 

Th
e 

C
ha

ir 
of

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 

re
po

rti
ng

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 a

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
B

as
in

.

(2
)

A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

as
se

ss
 h

ol
de

rs
 o

f w
at

er
 

rig
ht

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

$1
.0

0 
pe

r 
ac

re
-

fo
ot

 o
f 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 b

y 
m

aj
or

ity
 v

ot
e 

of
 t

he
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l. 

 T
he

 b
od

y 
m

ay
 a

ss
es

s 
a 

hi
gh

er
 a

m
ou

nt
, 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 b

ei
ng

 

ov
er

ru
le

d 
by

 M
aj

or
ity

 P
ro

te
st

. 
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 c
ov

er
 a

ny
 c

os
ts

 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s, 

an
y 

Ju
dg

m
en

t e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

io
n,

 a
nd

 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f s
to

ra
ge

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
as

 a
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 “

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l”
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

be
lo

w
.  

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 b
od

y 
w

ill
 re

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y’
s s

ta
ff

 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y’

s 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s, 
bu

t 
th

e 

26
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

m
ay

 e
ng

ag
e 

its
 o

w
n 

st
af

f 
if 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 i

ts
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 

ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 l

ie
n 

on
 t

he
 w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
 a

ss
es

se
d,

 

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

(3
)

R
ul

es
.  

Th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 m

ay
 a

do
pt

 a
nd

 a
m

en
d 

fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 

tim
e,

 a
t a

n 
op

en
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
at

 P
an

el
, r

ul
es

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t a

s m
ay

 

be
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 d

ut
ie

s 
un

de
r t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t 

w
ith

in
 it

s 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

ar
ea

 o
f 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y.
  

Th
e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
ad

op
t i

ts
 f

irs
t s

et
 o

f 

ru
le

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 w
ith

in
 t

hr
ee

 (
3)

 m
on

th
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

try
 o

f 
th

is
 T

hi
rd

 

A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 r
ul

es
 s

ha
ll 

be
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

on
 s

uc
h 

da
te

 a
fte

r 
th

e 
m

ai
lin

g 

th
er

eo
f t

o 
th

e 
Pa

rti
es

 a
s 

is
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l, 

bu
t n

ot
 s

oo
ne

r t
ha

n 
th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 

da
ys

 a
fte

r s
uc

h 
m

ai
lin

g.
   

 

C
.

Th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 
  

 
Th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pa

ne
l o

f t
he

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r (
“S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

”)
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

 

bi
ca

m
er

al
 b

od
y 

co
ns

is
tin

g 
of

 (i
) t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s P

an
el

 a
nd

 (i
i) 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s o
f 

W
R

D
.  

A
ct

io
n 

by
 th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

re
qu

ire
 se

pa
ra

te
 a

ct
io

n 
by

 a
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f e
ac

h 
of

 

its
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
bo

di
es

. 
 T

he
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

 s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 t

he
 d

ut
ie

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 t

he
 P

ro
vi

si
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
an

d 
Ex

tra
ct

io
n 

of
 S

to
re

d 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 a
s s

et
 fo

rth
 in

 P
ar

t I
V

 a
nd

 th
e 

ot
he

r p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 

D
.

U
se

 o
f F

ac
ili

tie
s a

nd
 D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
O

th
er

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ge

nc
ie

s. 
 

 
W

he
re

 p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, t
he

 t
hr

ee
 b

od
ie

s 
co

ns
tit

ut
in

g 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 d

up
lic

at
e 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 d
at

a 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
th

en
 b

ei
ng

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
bu

t 
w

he
re

 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ea

ch
 s

uc
h 

bo
dy

 m
ay

 c
ol

le
ct

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
da

ta
. 

 W
he

re
 i

t 
ap

pe
ar

s 
m

or
e 

ec
on

om
ic

al
 to

 d
o 

so
, t

he
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r a

nd
 it

s 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

 b
od

ie
s 

ar
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 to
 u

se
 s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s o
f o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ge

nc
ie

s a
s a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 it

 u
nd

er
 e

ith
er

 n
o 

co
st

 o
r c

os
t 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f 
re

po
rts

, b
ill

in
gs

 to
 p

ar
tie

s, 
m

ai
lin

gs
 to

 p
ar

tie
s, 

an
d 

si
m

ila
r m

at
te

rs
. 

E.
A

pp
ea

l f
ro

m
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r D

ec
is

io
ns

.  
 



27
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

 
A

pp
ea

ls
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 p
ro

po
se

d 
by

 t
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l 
be

 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

Se
ct

io
n 

II
(A

)(
4)

 o
f 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t. 
 A

pp
ea

ls
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
s 

by
 t

he
 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
be

 g
ov

er
ne

d 
by

 S
ec

tio
n 

IV
(P

) o
f t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 W

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

al
l 

ot
he

r o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 b

y 
a 

Pa
rty

 to
 a

ny
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 d
ec

is
io

n 
by

 th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
su

ch
 o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 

w
ill

 b
e 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
(E

). 
 A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 in
te

re
st

ed
 th

er
ei

n 
w

ho
 o

bj
ec

ts
 to

 a
ny

 

ru
le

, d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n,

 o
rd

er
 o

r 
fin

di
ng

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
or

 a
ny

 c
on

st
itu

en
t b

od
y 

th
er

eo
f, 

m
ay

 o
bj

ec
t 

th
er

et
o 

in
 w

rit
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
fte

r t
he

 d
at

e 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r, 

or
 a

ny
 c

on
st

itu
en

t b
od

y 
th

er
eo

f, 
m

ai
ls

 w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 

of
 th

e 
m

ak
in

g 
of

 s
uc

h 
ru

le
, d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n,
 o

rd
er

 o
r 

fin
di

ng
.  

W
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

fte
r 

su
ch

 

de
liv

er
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
or

 t
he

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

 b
od

y 
th

er
eo

f, 
sh

al
l 

co
ns

id
er

 s
ai

d 

ob
je

ct
io

n 
an

d 
sh

al
l a

m
en

d 
or

 a
ff

irm
 h

is
 r

ul
e,

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n,

 o
rd

er
 o

r 
fin

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 

gi
ve

 n
ot

ic
e 

th
er

eo
f t

o 
al

l p
ar

tie
s. 

 A
ny

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
 m

ay
 fi

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

w
ith

in
 6

0 
da

ys
 

fr
om

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f s

ai
d 

no
tic

e 
an

y 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

to
 s

uc
h 

ru
le

, d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n,

 o
rd

er
 o

r f
in

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
or

 a
ny

 c
on

st
itu

en
t 

bo
dy

 t
he

re
of

, 
an

d 
br

in
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
on

 f
or

 h
ea

rin
g 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 C

ou
rt 

at
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

as
 t

he
 C

ou
rt 

m
ay

 d
ire

ct
, 

af
te

r 
fir

st
 h

av
in

g 
se

rv
ed

 s
ai

d 

ob
je

ct
io

n 
up

on
 a

ll 
ot

he
r p

ar
tie

s. 
 T

he
 C

ou
rt 

m
ay

 a
ff

irm
, m

od
ify

, a
m

en
d 

or
 o

ve
rr

ul
e 

an
y 

su
ch

 r
ul

e,
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n,
 o

rd
er

 o
r 

fin
di

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

or
 it

s 
af

fe
ct

ed
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 

bo
dy

.  
A

ny
 o

bj
ec

tio
n 

un
de

r t
hi

s 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

sh
al

l n
ot

 s
ta

y 
th

e 
ru

le
, d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n,
 o

rd
er

 o
r 

fin
di

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

rt,
 b

y 
ex

 p
ar

te
 o

rd
er

, m
ay

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
or

 a
 

st
ay

 th
er

eo
f o

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 in
te

re
st

ed
 p

ar
ty

 o
n 

or
 a

fte
r t

he
 d

at
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
 

de
liv

er
s t

o 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r a

ny
 w

rit
te

n 
ob

je
ct

io
n.

 

F.
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f N

on
-C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
by

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r W
ith

 T
im

e 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

.  
 

 
Fa

ilu
re

 o
f t

he
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 a

ny
 d

ut
y,

 p
ow

er
 o

r r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 s

et
 fo

rth
 

in
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 t
im

e 
lim

ita
tio

n 
he

re
in

 s
et

 f
or

th
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

de
pr

iv
e 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
or

 i
ts

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
bo

dy
 o

f 
au

th
or

ity
 t

o 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 

su
ch

 d
ut

y,
 p

ow
er

 o
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y,
 e

xc
ep

t 
to

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

th
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
fa

ilu
re

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r m
ay

 h
av

e 
re

nd
er

ed
 so

m
e 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
ac

t b
y 

a 
pa

rty
 im

po
ss

ib
le

. 

G
.

Li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y.
   

28
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

 
W

R
D

 s
ha

ll 
no

t a
cq

ui
re

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

, n
or

 le
as

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 w

at
er

 

or
 w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 to

 o
r f

ro
m

 a
ny

 P
ar

ty
 o

r t
hi

rd
 p

ar
ty

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 fo
re

go
in

g 
sh

al
l (

i) 
no

t b
e 

in
te

rp
re

te
d 

to
 r

es
tri

ct
 W

R
D

’s
 a

bi
lit

y 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 a
cq

ui
re

 w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 a
ny

 s
ou

rc
e 

fo
r 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f 

A
rti

fic
ia

l o
r 

N
at

ur
al

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t o

r 
fo

r 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, a
nd

 (
ii)

 

no
t 

re
st

ric
t 

W
R

D
’s

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
un

de
r 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
60

00
0 

et
 s

eq
. 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

re
cl

ai
m

ed
, 

re
cy

cl
ed

 
or

 
re

m
ed

ia
te

d 
w

at
er

 
fo

r 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. H
.

R
eg

io
na

l D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

.  
 

 
Th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
ac

tin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

W
R

D
, 

sh
al

l 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
R

eg
io

na
l D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
, p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 a
 

po
rti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l 
is

 r
es

er
ve

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
.  

N
ot

hi
ng

 in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

no
r t

he
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t 

of
 s

uc
h 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
, 

sh
al

l 
di

m
in

is
h 

th
e 

rig
ht

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

gr
an

te
d 

to
 P

ar
tie

s 
un

de
r 

th
is

 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 t

o 
pl

ac
e 

w
at

er
 i

n 
st

or
ag

e 
in

 t
he

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l. 

 T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

m
ee

t w
ith

in
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s 
of

 

its
 f

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
hi

rd
-p

ar
ty

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
w

ho
 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

 t
o 

de
si

gn
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 t
ho

se
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

by
 t

he
 G

en
er

al
 

M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

W
R

D
.  

Th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

se
le

ct
 a

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 w

ith
in

 th
irt

y 
(3

0)
 

da
ys

 t
he

re
af

te
r. 

 I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 o

f 
W

R
D

 o
bj

ec
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
, i

n 
w

rit
in

g,
 th

en
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l a
nd

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

W
R

D
  

sh
al

l e
xc

ha
ng

e 
a 

lis
t o

f n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 tw

o 
(2

) c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

ea
ch

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

  

If
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
an

d 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 o

f 
W

R
D

 a
re

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 a

gr
ee

 to
 a

 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 w

ith
in

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
hi

rty
 (3

0)
 d

ay
s, 

th
en

 th
e 

C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

sh
al

l f
ile

 a
 re

qu
es

t w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
fo

r a
n 

or
de

r a
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

a 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

.  
U

po
n 

se
le

ct
io

n 
of

 

a 
th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

on
su

lta
nt

, w
he

th
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l p

ro
ce

ss
 o

r 

th
e 

co
ur

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

he
re

in
, t

he
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 s
ha

ll 
de

si
gn

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 

de
liv

er
 it

 to
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l w
ith

in
 n

in
et

y 
(9

0)
 d

ay
s 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

’s
 re

te
nt

io
n.

  

A
ll 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ai
d 

fo
r o

ut
 o

f t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 



29
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Pa
ne

l’s
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
.B

(2
). 

 T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 sh

al
l p

re
se

nt
 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
fo

r 
its

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
w

ith
in

 o
ne

 y
ea

r 
of

 e
nt

ry
 o

f 
th

is
 

Th
ird

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 I
f 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
ac

tin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

W
R

D
, 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 

R
eg

io
na

l 
D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 I
nc

en
tiv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

su
rin

g 
th

at
 a

ny
 

fu
nd

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 b
en

ef
it 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
.  

A
ny

 S
to

ra
ge

 

Pr
oj

ec
t e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
is

 P
ro

gr
am

 s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 p

rio
rit

y 
to

 u
se

 u
p 

to
 2

3,
00

0 
ac

re
-

fe
et

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l, 

as
 f

ur
th

er
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

Se
ct

io
n 

IV
.E

(2
). 

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
sh

al
l r

ep
or

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 s
uc

h 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 it

s a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t. 

II
I. 

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

S 
FO

R
 

PH
Y

SI
C

A
L 

SO
LU

TI
O

N
 

TO
 

M
EE

T 
TH

E 
W

A
TE

R
 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 IN

 C
EN

TR
A

L 
B

A
SI

N
.  

 

 
In

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

in
ju

nc
tio

n 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

t I
 o

f t
he

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
an

d 
to

 

as
si

st
 in

 a
 p

hy
si

ca
l s

ol
ut

io
n 

to
 m

ee
t w

at
er

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

, t
he

 in
ju

nc
tio

n 
so

 s
et

 

fo
rth

 is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

. 

A
.

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 o

f P
or

tio
n 

of
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

 

(1
)

A
m

ou
nt

 o
f C

ar
ry

ov
er

.  
 

 
Ea

ch
 p

ar
ty

 a
dj

ud
ge

d 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

To
ta

l W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

 o
r w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 a

nd
 w

ho
, 

du
rin

g 
a 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

xt
ra

ct
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

 

to
ta

l q
ua

nt
ity

 e
qu

al
 to

 su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

le
ss

 a
ny

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 b

y 
su

ch
 p

ar
ty

 t
o 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l, 
or

 p
lu

s 
an

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

re
qu

es
ts

 b
y 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
 f

or
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l w
at

er
, i

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ve
r (

th
e 

“O
ne

 Y
ea

r C
ar

ry
ov

er
”)

 fr
om

 

su
ch

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

th
e 

rig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 i

n 
th

e 
ne

xt
 

su
cc

ee
di

ng
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r s
o 

m
uc

h 
of

 sa
id

 to
ta

l q
ua

nt
ity

 a
s i

t d
id

 n
ot

 e
xt

ra
ct

 

in
 th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
no

t t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 (i

) t
he

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 

of
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

30
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Y
ea

r, 
or

 2
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 o
f s

ai
d 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
  o

r 2
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t i
s 

th
e 

la
rg

er
, 

le
ss

 (
ii)

 th
e 

to
ta

l q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

w
at

er
 th

en
 h

el
d 

in
 th

at
 p

ar
ty

’s
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

In
di

vi
du

al
 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 a

cc
ou

nt
s, 

as
 h

er
ei

na
fte

r d
ef

in
ed

, b
ut

 in
 n

o 
ev

en
t l

es
s t

ha
n 

20
%

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
ty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r. 
 F

or
 p

ur
po

se
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

Se
ct

io
n,

 t
he

 “
A

pp
lic

ab
le

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e”

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
s i

nd
ic

at
ed

:  

 
Fo

r t
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r i

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
is

 

 
Th

ird
 A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t b
ec

om
es

 fi
na

l: 
 

 
30

%
 

 
Fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r: 

 
 

 
40

%
 

 
Fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r: 

 
 

 
50

%
 

 
Fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r a

nd
 y

ea
rs

 

 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
 

 
 

 
 

60
%

 

(2
)

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 to
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

.

 
A

 p
ar

ty
 h

av
in

g 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 m
ay

, f
ro

m
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e,

 e
le

ct
 to

 c
on

ve
rt 

al
l o

r 

pa
rt 

of
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

’s
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 to
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 a
s 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
(“

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n”

) 
up

on
 p

ay
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
to

 W
R

D
.  

Su
ch

 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
to

 t
ha

t 
pa

rty
’s

 I
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

St
or

ag
e 

A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 i

f 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l. 

(3
)

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y.

   

 
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 W
R

D
 m

ay
, f

ro
m

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 d

ec
la

re
 a

 w
at

er
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
up

on
 a

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

th
at

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 im

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
ar

e 
su

ch
 th

at
, w

ith
ou

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
su

bs
ec

tio
n,

 th
e 

w
at

er
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 r

is
k 

de
gr

ad
at

io
n.

  
In

 m
ak

in
g 

su
ch

 d
ec

la
ra

tio
n,

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

co
ns

id
er

 
an

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

qu
es

ts
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
by

 
w

at
er

 

pr
od

uc
er

s, 
pu

rv
ey

or
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
ff

ec
te

d 
en

tit
ie

s 
an

d 
sh

al
l, 

fo
r t

ha
t p

ur
po

se
, h

ol
d 

a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
rin

g 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 d
ec

la
ra

tio
n.

  
A

 D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 



31
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

sh
al

l e
xt

en
d 

to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 su
ch

 re
so

lu
tio

n 
is

 

ad
op

te
d,

 u
nl

es
s s

oo
ne

r e
nd

ed
 b

y 
si

m
ila

r r
es

ol
ut

io
n.

 

(4
)

D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
.

 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 a

 D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

un
til

 t
he

 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

en
ds

 e
ith

er
 b

y 
ex

pi
ra

tio
n 

or
 b

y 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 W
R

D
,  

ea
ch

 p
ar

ty
 a

dj
ud

ge
d 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
To

ta
l W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
 o

r 

w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
w

ho
, d

ur
in

g 
a 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

xt
ra

ct
 

fr
om

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

 t
ot

al
 q

ua
nt

ity
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
le

ss
 a

ny
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 

by
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

 to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l, 

or
 p

lu
s 

an
y 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
re

qu
es

ts
 b

y 
su

ch
 p

ar
ty

 

fo
r 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
w

at
er

, i
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 t
o 

ca
rr

y 
ov

er
 (

th
e 

“D
ro

ug
ht

 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
”)

 f
ro

m
 s

uc
h 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

th
e 

rig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 s

o 
m

uc
h 

of
 s

ai
d 

to
ta

l q
ua

nt
ity

 a
s 

it 
di

d 
no

t e
xt

ra
ct

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 th
e 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y,

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 s

uc
h 

qu
an

tit
y 

ex
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

O
ne

 Y
ea

r 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
, 

no
t 

to
 e

xc
ee

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 3

5%
 o

f 
su

ch
 p

ar
ty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 o

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 3

5 
ac

re
 fe

et
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 o
f s

ai
d 

35
%

 o
r 3

5 
ac

re
 fe

et
 is

 th
e 

la
rg

er
, l

es
s 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
su

ch
 p

ar
ty

’s
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

.  
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
sh

al
l 

fir
st

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

O
ne

 Y
ea

r C
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

ny
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 c
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

m
ou

nt
 

fo
r t

ha
t y

ea
r s

ha
ll 

be
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
D

ro
ug

ht
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

. 

(5
)

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
.  

 

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 a
m

ou
nt

s s
ha

ll 
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e 

D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 D

ec
la

re
d 

W
at

er
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ho
w

ev
er

 t
ha

t 
in

 t
he

 e
ve

nt
 

an
ot

he
r 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

is
 d

ec
la

re
d,

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 D

ro
ug

ht
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
de

d,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 s

uc
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l D
ro

ug
ht

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 c
au

se
 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
D

ro
ug

ht
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 t

he
 l

im
its

 s
et

 f
or

th
 a

bo
ve

.  
Th

e 
D

ro
ug

ht
 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
l 

to
 a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

af
fe

ct
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

dr
ou

gh
t 

ca
rr

yo
ve

r a
cq

ui
re

d 
by

 a
 p

ar
ty

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

pr
ev

io
us

 o
rd

er
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

rt.
 

B
.

W
he

n 
 O

ve
r-

Ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 M

ay
 b

e 
Pe

rm
itt

ed
. 

32
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(1
)

U
nd

er
es

tim
at

io
n 

of
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r W

at
er

.  
 

 
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 h
er

et
o 

w
ith

ou
t 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

, 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 a

nd
 n

ot
 in

 v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t m

ay
 e

xt
ra

ct
 in

 

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f w

at
er

 n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d:
  (

a)
 2

0%
 o

f 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
or

 2
0 

ac
re

 f
ee

t, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 g

re
at

er
, 

an
d 

(b
) a

ny
 a

m
ou

nt
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 th
er

et
o 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 in

 a
dv

an
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 o

f W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 

(2
)

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 S
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

Y
ea

rs
 

to
 C

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r P
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
O

ve
re

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
.  

 

 
A

ny
 

su
ch

 
pa

rty
’s

 
A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
ed

uc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
ed

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
1 

ab
ov

e,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 if
 th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l d
et

er
m

in
es

 th
at

 s
uc

h 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

in
 o

ne
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 

w
ill

 im
po

se
 u

po
n 

su
ch

 a
 p

ar
ty

 a
n 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

 h
ar

ds
hi

p,
 th

e 
sa

id
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 sa

id
 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pr
or

at
ed

 o
ve

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 f
iv

e 
(5

) 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
rs

 s
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

th
at

 i
n 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

pa
rty

 o
cc

ur
re

d.
  

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

su
ch

 r
el

ie
f 

to
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
m

us
t 

be
 

m
ad

e 
no

t l
at

er
 th

an
 th

e 
40

th
 d

ay
 a

fte
r t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r i

n 
w

hi
ch

 

su
ch

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 p

um
pi

ng
 o

cc
ur

re
d.

  T
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

gr
an

t s
uc

h 
re

lie
f 

if 
su

ch
 o

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
io

n,
 o

r 
an

y 
po

rti
on

 t
he

re
of

, 
oc

cu
rr

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 

D
ec

la
re

d 
W

at
er

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y.

 

(3
)

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 

in
 

A
llo

w
ed

 
Pu

m
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

th
e 

N
ex

t 

Su
cc

ee
di

ng
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r t
o 

C
om

pe
ns

at
e 

fo
r O

ve
rp

um
pi

ng
.  

 

 
W

he
ne

ve
r, 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
B

)(
1)

, a
 p

ar
ty

 o
ve

r-
ex

tra
ct

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
pl

us
 t

ha
t 

pa
rty

’s
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

O
ne

-Y
ea

r 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

ny
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 h
el

d 
by

 th
at

 p
ar

ty
,  

an
d 

su
ch

 e
xc

es
s 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

by
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
th

en
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r s
ha

ll 
be

 re
du

ce
d 

by
 a

n 



33
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

am
ou

nt
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
to

 i
ts

 t
ot

al
 o

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 i

n 
th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 it

 o
cc

ur
re

d.
 

(4
)

R
ep

or
ts

 o
f C

er
ta

in
 O

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

rt.
   

 
W

he
ne

ve
r a

 p
ar

ty
 o

ve
r-

ex
tra

ct
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 2
0%

 o
f s

uc
h 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

pl
us

 t
ha

t 
pa

rty
’s

 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

ny
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 h
el

d 
by

 th
at

 p
ar

ty
, w

ith
ou

t 

ha
vi

ng
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

pr
io

r a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
su

ch
 s

ha
ll 

co
ns

tit
ut

e 
a 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fo
r s

uc
h 

ac
tio

n 
as

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
m

ay
 d

ee
m

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
.  

Su
ch

 p
ar

ty
 sh

al
l b

e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 s

uc
h 

in
ju

nc
tiv

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

as
 t

he
 C

ou
rt 

m
ig

ht
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ta

ke
 w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

 Ju
dg

m
en

t. 

(5
)

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f O
ve

r-
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

R
ig

ht
s. 

 

 
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 w
ho

 o
ve

r-
ex

tra
ct

s 
fr

om
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 i
n 

an
y 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r 
sh

al
l n

ot
 a

cq
ui

re
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
ig

ht
s 

by
 r

ea
so

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
ov

er
-e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
; 

no
r 

sh
al

l 
an

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 i
n 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
an

y 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 y
ea

rs
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
To

ta
l W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
 o

r w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f a

ny
 p

ar
ty

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 s
ai

d 
ov

er
-

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

 a
bo

ve
. 

(6
)

Pu
m

pi
ng

 U
nd

er
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
W

ith
 P

la
in

tif
f 

D
ur

in
g 

Pe
rio

ds
 o

f 

Em
er

ge
nc

y.
   

 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 

W
R

D
 

ov
er

lie
s 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
s 

in
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
of

 

re
pl

en
is

hi
ng

 t
he

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

s 
th

er
eo

f. 
 P

la
in

tif
f 

by
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
ha

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

d 

fo
r 

us
e 

du
rin

g 
em

er
ge

nc
ie

s 
th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 1
7,

00
0 

ac
re

 f
ee

t 
of

 i
m

po
rte

d 
an

d 

re
cl

ai
m

ed
 w

at
er

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
ed

 b
y 

it 
in

to
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

, 
an

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
su

ch
 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 r

es
er

ve
s 

th
e 

rig
ht

 t
o 

us
e 

or
 c

au
se

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

su
ch

 q
ua

nt
ity

 

du
rin

g 
su

ch
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
pe

rio
ds

 fo
r t

he
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
rs

. 

(a
)

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 

pa
rti

es
 w

ho
 a

re
 W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

rs
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
s 

in
 in

te
re

st
) a

re
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 t

o 
en

te
r 

in
to

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 P
la

in
tif

f 
fo

r 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 

34
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

po
rti

on
 o

f P
la

in
tif

f’
s 

17
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 o
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

w
at

er
, i

n 
ex

ce
ss

 

of
 t

he
ir 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r w

he
n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s a

re
 m

et
: 

(i)
  

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 i
s 

in
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f 
a 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 o
f 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 (

“M
W

D
”)

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 t
hr

ea
te

ne
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

ho
rta

ge
 o

f 
M

W
D

’s
 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 M

W
D

’s
 n

ee
ds

, 
or

 a
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 i

na
bi

lit
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 M

W
D

’s
 i

m
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
its

 a
re

a,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
le

vi
at

ed
 b

y 

ov
er

pu
m

pi
ng

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

. 

(ii
) 

  
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

of
 b

ot
h 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 a
nd

 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 b

y 
re

so
lu

tio
ns

 

co
nc

ur
 in

 th
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 M
W

D
’s

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s, 
an

d 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

of
 P

la
in

tif
f 

fin
ds

 i
n 

its
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 

th
at

 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

in
im

um
 

el
ev

at
io

n 
of

 
w

at
er

 
su

rf
ac

e 

am
on

g 
th

os
e 

w
el

ls
 i

n 
th

e 
M

on
te

be
llo

 F
or

eb
ay

 o
f 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fl
oo

d 

C
on

tro
l 

D
is

tri
ct

 W
el

ls
 N

os
. 

16
01

T,
 1

56
4P

, 
16

15
P,

 a
nd

 

16
26

L,
 

is
 

at
 

le
as

t 
43

.7
 

fe
et

 
ab

ov
e 

se
a 

le
ve

l. 
 

Th
is

 

co
m

pu
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l 
be

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 “
st

at
ic

 

re
ad

in
gs

” 
ta

ke
n,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n 

no
t m

or
e 

th
an

 

fo
ur

 w
ee

ks
 p

rio
r.

Sh
ou

ld
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 w
el

ls
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

be
co

m
e 

de
st

ro
ye

d 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 i

n 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 s
o 

th
at

 

re
ad

in
gs

 c
an

no
t b

e 
m

ad
e,

 o
r s

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
ow

ne
r p

re
ve

nt
 th

ei
r 

us
e 

fo
r 

su
ch

 r
ea

di
ng

s, 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 t
he

 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 
m

ay
, 

up
on

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n,

 s
ub

st
itu

te
 s

uc
h 

ot
he

r 
w

el
l 

or
 w

el
ls

 a
s 

it 



35
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

m
ay

 d
ee

m
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

(ii
i) 

  
In

 
sa

id
 

re
so

lu
tio

n,
 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

’s
 

B
oa

rd
 

of
 

D
ire

ct
or

s s
et

s a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

rin
g,

 a
nd

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
tim

e,
 p

la
ce

 

an
d 

da
te

 t
he

re
of

 (
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
fr

om
 t

im
e 

to
 

tim
e 

w
ith

ou
t f

ur
th

er
 n

ot
ic

e)
 is

 g
iv

en
 b

y 
Fi

rs
t C

la
ss

 M
ai

l t
o 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

de
si

gn
ee

s 
of

 t
he

 P
ar

tie
s, 

fil
ed

 a
nd

 s
er

ve
d 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
V

I(
C

) 
of

 t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 S
ai

d 

no
tic

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 m

ai
le

d 
at

 l
ea

st
 f

iv
e 

(5
) 

da
ys

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

d 
he

ar
in

g 
da

te
. 

(iv
)  

 
A

t 
sa

id
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

rin
g,

 p
ar

tie
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 

su
cc

es
so

rs
 i

n 
in

te
re

st
) 

ar
e 

gi
ve

n 
fu

ll 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 t
o 

be
 

he
ar

d,
 a

nd
 a

t t
he

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

th
er

eo
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

of
 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 
by

 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

de
ci

de
s 

to
 

pr
oc

ee
d 

w
ith

 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
I(

B
)(

6)
. 

(b
)

A
ll 

su
ch

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 s
uc

h 
ot

he
rs

 a
s 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

’s
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

re
qu

ire
:

(i)
 

Th
ey

 s
ha

ll 
be

 o
f 

un
ifo

rm
 c

on
te

nt
 e

xc
ep

t a
s 

to
 q

ua
nt

ity
 in

vo
lv

ed
, a

nd
 a

ny
 s

pe
ci

al
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
or

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
lo

ca
l 

hy
dr

ol
og

ic
al

 

co
nd

iti
on

s o
r g

oo
d 

hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 

(ii
) 

Th
ey

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 

al
l 

W
at

er
 

Pu
rv

ey
or

s, 
ex

ce
pt

in
g 

th
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
’s

 
B

oa
rd

 
of

 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
de

te
rm

in
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

ov
er

pu
m

p 
be

ca
us

e 
su

ch
 

ov
er

pu
m

pi
ng

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 in
 u

nd
es

ira
bl

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 a
 se

a 

w
at

er
 

ba
rr

ie
r 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
ed

 
to

 
fo

re
st

al
l 

se
a 

w
at

er
 

in
tru

si
on

, o
r 

w
ith

in
 o

r 
in

 u
nd

es
ira

bl
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 a

n 
ar

ea
 

w
ith

in
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 w

he
re

in
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 a
re

 a
t a

n 

36
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

el
ev

at
io

n 
w

he
re

 
ov

er
pu

m
pi

ng
 

is
 

un
de

r 
al

l 
th

e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s t
he

n 
un

de
si

ra
bl

e.
 

(ii
i) 

  
Th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 t

er
m

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 

sh
al

l 
be

 
fo

ur
 

(4
) 

m
on

th
s, 

w
hi

ch
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

sh
al

l 

co
m

m
en

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

da
te

 a
nd

 e
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
da

te
 (a

nd
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fo
ur

-m
on

th
 

pe
rio

d)
, 

un
le

ss
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

is
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 u

nd
er

 P
ar

t V
 o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 

(iv
)  

 
Th

ey
 s

ha
ll 

co
nt

ai
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

th
at

 

th
e 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r 

ex
ec

ut
in

g 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t 

pa
y 

to
 t

he
 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 a
 p

ric
e 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fo
rm

ul
a.

  
Th

e 

no
rm

al
 p

ric
e 

pe
r 

ac
re

-f
oo

t 
of

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
’s

 (C
B

M
W

D
) t

re
at

ed
 d

om
es

tic
 a

nd
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 

w
at

er
, 

as
 “

no
rm

al
” 

pr
ic

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f 
w

at
er

 i
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
I(

C
)(

10
) (

pr
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 fo
r E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 W
at

er
) 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 c

on
tra

ct
 t

er
m

 l
es

s 

th
e 

de
du

ct
io

ns
 s

et
 f

or
th

 i
n 

sa
id

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

0 
fo

r 
th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

in
 

w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
te

rm
 

co
m

m
en

ce
s. 

 T
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 o

f 
sa

id
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
pr

op
or

tio
na

l p
er

io
d 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 te

rm
 d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
B

M
W

D
 sa

id
 n

or
m

al
 

pr
ic

e 
is

 c
ha

ng
ed

, 
an

d 
if 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t 
st

ra
dd

le
s 

tw
o 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ye

ar
s, 

th
e 

sa
id

 d
ed

uc
tio

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

dj
us

te
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 p
er

io
d 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 te

rm
 in

 w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 th

er
eo

f 
or

 o
f 

ei
th

er
 s

ub
co

m
po

ne
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 f
or

 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f s

ai
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
10

.  
A

ny
 p

ric
e 

fo
r a

 p
ar

tia
l a

cr
e-

fo
ot

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

pu
te

d 
pr

o 
ra

ta
.  

Pa
ym

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

du
e 

an
d 



37
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

pa
ya

bl
e 

on
 t

he
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

th
at

 o
ve

r 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 

ag
re

em
en

t 
ar

e 
of

 
th

e 
la

st
 

w
at

er
 

pu
m

pe
d 

in
 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

as
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

. 

(v
)

   
Th

ey
 s

ha
ll 

co
nt

ai
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 t

ha
t: 

 (
1)

 A
ll 

of
 su

ch
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 (b

ut
 n

ot
 le

ss
 th

an
 a

ll)
 sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

by
 P

la
in

tif
f 

if,
 i

n 
th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

of
 P

la
in

tif
f’

s 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s, 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

or
 th

re
at

en
ed

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

up
on

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
ha

ve
 a

ba
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

ve
r 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y;
 a

nd
 (2

) t
ha

t 

an
y 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t o
r a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 

if 
th

e 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
’s

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

fin
ds

 t
ha

t 
ad

ve
rs

e 

hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

ha
ve

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 

ov
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

an
y 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r(

s)
  

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 s
ai

d 
ag

re
em

en
ts

, 
or

 f
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 r

ea
so

n 
th

at
 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

’s
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s f

in
ds

 g
oo

d 
an

d 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

.

(c
)

O
th

er
 

m
at

te
rs

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
to

 
su

ch
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

an
d 

ov
er

pu
m

pi
ng

 t
he

re
un

de
r 

ar
e 

as
 f

ol
lo

w
s, 

w
ith

ou
t 

ne
ed

 f
or

 e
xp

re
ss

 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

ts
; 

(i)
 

Th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 o

ve
rp

um
pi

ng
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 sh
al

l 

be
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 t
o 

th
at

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

r 
co

ul
d 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ov

er
pu

m
p 

un
de

r t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 

(ii
) 

Th
e 

to
ta

l q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f p

er
m

itt
ed

 o
ve

rp
um

pi
ng

 

un
de

r a
ll 

sa
id

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

sa
id

 fo
ur

 m
on

th
s 

sh
al

l n
ot

 

ex
ce

ed
 s

ev
en

te
en

 t
ho

us
an

d 
(1

7,
00

0)
 a

cr
e 

fe
et

, 
bu

t 
th

e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

r 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 o

r 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t. 

 T
ha

t t
ot

al
 is

 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
to

 o
ve

r 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 u
nd

er
 

38
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t. 

(ii
i) 

  
O

nl
y 

on
e 

fo
ur

 m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
ut

ili
ze

d 

by
 P

la
in

tif
f i

n 
en

te
rin

g 
in

to
 s

uc
h 

ag
re

em
en

ts
, a

s 
to

 a
ny

 o
ne

 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
or

 c
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f 

de
cl

ar
ed

 b
y 

M
W

D
’s

 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s u
nd

er
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
B

)(
6)

(a
). 

(iv
)  

 
If

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 c

la
im

s 
it 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
am

ag
ed

 o
r 

th
re

at
en

ed
 w

ith
 d

am
ag

e 
by

 t
he

 o
ve

r 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

an
y 

pa
rty

 t
o 

su
ch

 a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
th

e 
fir

st
 p

ar
ty

 o
r 

th
e 

W
at

er
 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l m
ay

 s
ee

k 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fo
r 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

ag
re

em
en

t u
po

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 h

ea
rin

g 

to
 th

e 
pa

rty
 c

om
pl

ai
ni

ng
, t

o 
th

e 
pa

rty
 to

 s
ai

d 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

to
 

th
e 

pl
ai

nt
iff

, a
nd

 to
 a

ny
 p

ar
tie

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

fil
ed

 a
 re

qu
es

t f
or

 

sp
ec

ia
l 

no
tic

e.
 

 
A

ny
 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
af

fe
ct

 
th

e 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
pa

rty
 

to
 

m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

un
de

r 
th

e 

ag
re

em
en

t f
or

 o
ve

r e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 d

id
 o

cc
ur

 th
er

eu
nd

er
. 

(v
)

   
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 s

ha
ll 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oc

ee
ds

 
fr

om
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
m

ad
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 e

nt
er

ed
 in

to
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 P
ar

t. 
 S

ai
d 

fu
nd

 s
ha

ll 
be

 

ut
ili

ze
d 

so
le

ly
 

fo
r 

pu
rp

os
es

 
of

 
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t 

in
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 w

at
er

s 
in

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

nd
 W

es
t 

B
as

in
.  

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 s
ha

ll 
as

 s
oo

n 
as

 p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

 c
au

se
 re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t i

n 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 b
y 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

to
 b

e 
ov

er
pr

od
uc

ed
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

hi
s 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
6,

 w
he

th
er

 t
hr

ou
gh

 s
pr

ea
di

ng
, i

nj
ec

tio
n,

 

or
 in

 li
eu

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

. 

(v
i)

  
O

ve
r e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

“m
ak

e 
up

” 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
as

 a
m

en
de

d,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 i
f 

an
y 

pa
rty

 f
ai

ls
 t

o 

m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 m

ay
 



39
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

re
qu

ire
 s

uc
h 

“m
ak

e 
up

” 
un

de
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

II
I(

B
)(

3)
 o

f 
 t

hi
s  

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 

(v
ii)

A
 

W
at

er
 

Pu
rv

ey
or

 
un

de
r 

an
y 

su
ch

 

ag
re

em
en

t m
ay

, a
nd

 is
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 e
nt

er
 in

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

in
 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 u
nd

er
 o

r 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t w
he

re
by

 

th
e 

W
at

er
 

Pu
rv

ey
or

 
w

ill
 

be
 

as
si

st
ed

 
in

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

(7
)

Ex
em

pt
io

n 
fo

r E
xt

ra
ct

or
s o

f C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
.  

 

 
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 h
er

ei
n 

m
ay

 p
et

iti
on

 W
R

D
 f

or
 a

 N
on

-c
on

su
m

pt
iv

e 
W

at
er

 U
se

 

Pe
rm

it 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 re

m
ed

y 
or

 a
m

el
io

ra
te

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n.

  I
f 

th
e 

pe
tit

io
n 

is
 g

ra
nt

ed
 a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
is

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
, t

he
 p

et
iti

on
er

 m
ay

 e
xt

ra
ct

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 a
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 h
er

ei
na

fte
r, 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
co

un
tin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 

pe
tit

io
ne

r’
s p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s. 

(a
)

If
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f W

R
D

 d
et

er
m

in
es

 b
y 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 

a 
pr

ob
le

m
 o

f g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 w
ill

 

re
m

ed
y 

or
 

am
el

io
ra

te
, 

an
 

op
er

at
or

 
m

ay
 

m
ak

e 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 
of

 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 
to

 
re

m
ed

y 
or

 
am

el
io

ra
te

 
th

at
 

pr
ob

le
m

 
w

ith
ou

t 
th

e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
co

un
tin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
pe

tit
io

ne
r’

s 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

rig
ht

s 
if 

th
e 

w
at

er
 is

 n
ot

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l s
ur

fa
ce

 u
se

, i
ts

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 

in
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
al

l 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ei
th

er
 o

f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 (i)

Th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 t
o 

be
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 i
s 

un
us

ab
le

 a
nd

 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
ec

on
om

ic
al

ly
 t

re
at

ed
 o

r 
bl

en
de

d 
fo

r 
us

e 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r w
at

er
. 

(ii
)T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 in
vo

lv
es

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 u

sa
bl

e 

w
at

er
 i

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

as
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
 t

o 
th

e 

40
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

w
ith

ou
t d

eg
ra

da
tio

n 
of

 q
ua

lit
y.

 

(b
)

Th
e 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

m
ay

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
os

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

e 

B
oa

rd
 d

ee
m

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
, b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, r
es

tri
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
so

 e
xe

m
pt

ed
, l

im
ita

tio
ns

 o
n 

tim
e,

 

pe
rio

di
c 

re
vi

ew
s, 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

of
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f 
te

st
 r

es
ul

ts
 f

ro
m

 a
 

B
oa

rd
-a

pp
ro

ve
d 

la
bo

ra
to

ry
, a

nd
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 re
le

va
nt

 te
rm

s o
r c

on
di

tio
ns

. 

(c
)

U
po

n 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 t

he
 o

pe
ra

to
r 

in
vo

lv
ed

, 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 

m
ay

 re
sc

in
d 

or
 m

od
ify

 it
s 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n.

  T
he

 re
sc

is
si

on
 o

r m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
sh

al
l 

ap
pl

y 
to

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 te

n 
(1

0)
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r t
he

 re
sc

is
si

on
 o

r m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n.

  N
ot

ic
e 

of
 

re
sc

is
si

on
 o

r 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
sh

al
l 

be
 e

ith
er

 m
ai

le
d 

fir
st

 c
la

ss
 m

ai
l, 

po
st

ag
e 

pr
ep

ai
d,

 a
t l

ea
st

 tw
o 

w
ee

ks
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

t 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 r

es
ci

ss
io

n 
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 t
he

 a
dd

re
ss

 o
f 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
ly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 tw

o 
w

ee
ks

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g.

 

(d
)

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 g
ra

nt
, 

de
ny

, 
m

od
ify

 o
r 

re
vo

ke
 a

 

pe
rm

it 
or

 to
 in

te
rr

up
t o

r 
st

op
 a

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pe
al

ed
 to

 

th
is

 c
ou

rt 
w

ith
in

 th
irt

y 
da

ys
 o

f 
th

e 
no

tic
e 

th
er

eo
f 

to
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t a

nd
 

up
on

 th
irt

y 
da

ys
’ n

ot
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

de
si

gn
ee

s o
f a

ll 
pa

rti
es

 h
er

ei
n.

 

(e
)

W
R

D
 s

ha
ll 

m
on

ito
r a

nd
 p

er
io

di
ca

lly
 in

sp
ec

t t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 fo
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
pe

rm
it 

is
su

ed
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

es
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
. 

(f
)

N
o 

pa
rty

 s
ha

ll 
re

co
ve

r c
os

ts
 fr

om
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ty
 h

er
ei

n 
in

 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

is
 P

ar
t. 

(8
)

“C
al

l”
 o

n 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rte

d 
to

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
. 

 
W

he
re

 a
ny

 P
ar

ty
 h

as
 e

le
ct

ed
, a

s 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 
Se

ct
io

n 
II

I(
A

)(
2)

, t
o 

co
nv

er
t 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 to

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
, a

ny
 o

th
er

 P
ar

ty
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

, w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 te

n 

(1
0)

 y
ea

rs
, 

be
en

 g
ra

nt
ed

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
to

 e
xt

ra
ct

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
un

de
r 

th
is

 



41
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Se
ct

io
n 

II
I(

B
)(

8)
 m

or
e 

th
an

 fi
ve

 (5
) t

im
es

, m
ay

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l f
or

 th
e 

rig
ht

 t
o 

ex
tra

ct
 a

ll 
or

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 t
ha

t 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

in
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

su
ch

 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

oc
cu

rs
.  

Th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
gr

an
t s

uc
h 

re
qu

es
t, 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

er
e 

is
 

no
 M

at
er

ia
l P

hy
si

ca
l H

ar
m

, i
f 

it 
de

te
rm

in
es

 th
at

 le
as

ed
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 

ap
pl

ic
an

t’s
 n

ee
ds

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 B

as
in

 c
an

no
t 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fo
r 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
fo

rty
-f

iv
e 

pe
rc

en
t (

45
%

) o
f M

W
D

’s
 Im

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

 ra
te

 fo
r d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 u

nt
re

at
ed

 w
at

er
 to

 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 s

pr
ea

di
ng

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
(w

hi
ch

 r
at

e 
is

 p
re

se
nt

ly
 M

W
D

’s
 “

Fu
ll 

Se
rv

ic
e 

U
nt

re
at

ed
 V

ol
um

et
ric

 C
os

t, 
Ti

er
 1

”)
, 

an
d 

th
at

 t
he

 a
pp

lic
an

t 
w

ill
 f

ul
ly

 

ex
tra

ct
 it

s 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
, a

nd
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

, i
f 

an
y,

 in
 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 it

s 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 o

ve
re

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
un

de
r S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
B

)(
1)

, p
rio

r t
o 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 

su
ch

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n.

U
po

n 
su

ch
 a

pp
ro

va
l, 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
an

t 
m

ay
 t

he
re

af
te

r 
ex

tra
ct

 s
uc

h 
w

at
er

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n.

  
A

 P
ar

ty
 s

o 
ex

tra
ct

in
g 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
fu

lly
 r

es
to

re
 s

uc
h 

ex
tra

ct
ed

 w
at

er
 (e

ith
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

un
de

r-
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

of
 it

s 
rig

ht
s 

or
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

po
rti

ng
 

w
at

er
) 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fiv

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Y
ea

r 
in

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 

un
de

r 
th

is
 S

ec
tio

n 
oc

cu
rs

. 
 O

th
er

w
is

e,
 t

he
 e

xt
ra

ct
in

g 
Pa

rty
 s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

to
 t

he
 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
10

0%
 o

f 
M

W
D

’s
 I

m
po

rte
d 

W
at

er
 r

at
e 

fo
r 

pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 u
nt

re
at

ed
 w

at
er

 to
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 s

pr
ea

di
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

(w
hi

ch
 r

at
e 

is
 p

re
se

nt
ly

 M
W

D
’s

 “
Fu

ll 
Se

rv
ic

e 
U

nt
re

at
ed

 V
ol

um
et

ric
 C

os
t, 

Ti
er

 

1”
) w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 s
uc

h 
w

at
er

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

th
at

 y
ea

r, 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r d
ur

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 is

 

th
e 

fif
th

 a
nn

iv
er

sa
ry

 o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

 d
ur

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
oc

cu
rs

, m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
so

 e
xt

ra
ct

ed
 

an
d 

no
t 

re
st

or
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 f
iv

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d.
  

Pa
ym

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 

th
irt

y 
(3

0)
 d

ay
s 

of
 d

em
an

d 
by

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 
 N

o 
R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ue
 o

n 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

so
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 P

ar
ty

 m
us

t d
ep

os
it 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
th

e 
R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 im
po

se
d 

by
 W

R
D

 u
po

n 
su

ch
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n.
  I

f t
he

 p
ar

ty
 re

st
or

es
 

th
e 

w
at

er
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 5
-y

ea
r 

re
pa

ym
en

t 
pe

rio
d,

 t
he

n 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

sh
al

l 

42
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

pr
om

pt
ly

 r
et

ur
n 

th
e 

de
po

si
t t

o 
th

e 
Pa

rty
, w

ith
ou

t i
nt

er
es

t. 
 I

f 
th

e 
Pa

rty
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

re
st

or
e 

th
e 

w
at

er
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

5-
ye

ar
 re

pa
ym

en
t p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
de

po
si

t s
ha

ll 
be

 c
re

di
te

d 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 P
ar

ty
’s

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

to
 p

ay
 1

00
%

 o
f 

M
W

D
’s

 I
m

po
rte

d 
W

at
er

 r
at

e 
as

 

re
qu

ire
d 

he
re

in
.

Sh
ou

ld
 th

er
e 

be
 m

ul
tip

le
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

to
 s

o 
ex

tra
ct

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
in

 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ye

ar
, t

he
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

 sh
al

l a
llo

ca
te

 su
ch

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

 su
ch

 th
at

 e
ac

h 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
pa

rty
 m

ay
 e

xt
ra

ct
 a

 p
ro

 r
at

a 
po

rti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

fo
r 

th
at

 y
ea

r. 
 N

o 
pa

rty
 m

ay
 e

xt
ra

ct
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 2

,5
00

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 o

f 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

th
is

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
I(

B
)(

8)
 in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 A
m

ou
nt

s 
pa

id
 to

 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
he

re
un

de
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

W
R

D
 s

ol
el

y 
fo

r 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f 
w

at
er

 f
or

 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

B
as

in
.  

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pa

ne
l, 

sh
al

l g
iv

e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 t
he

 P
ar

tie
s 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
to

 s
o 

ex
tra

ct
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

in
 s

uc
h 

m
an

ne
r 

as
 t

he
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

 s
ha

ll 
de

te
rm

in
e,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
, 

w
ith

ou
t 

lim
ita

tio
n,

 n
ot

ic
e 

by
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

ai
l 

or
 b

y 
w

eb
si

te
 p

os
tin

g,
 a

t 
le

as
t 

te
n 

(1
0)

 d
ay

s p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 su
ch

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n.

 

C
.

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l P
ro

vi
si

on
s. 

(1
)

D
ef

in
iti

on
s.

 
Fo

r p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 th
es

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l p

ro
vi

si
on

s, 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
or

ds
 a

nd
 

te
rm

s h
av

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

ni
ng

s:
 

(a
)

“E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
” 

is
 t

he
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

he
re

in
af

te
r 

se
t 

fo
rth

 

w
he

re
by

 c
er

ta
in

 o
f 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
, (

“E
xc

ha
ng

ee
s”

) 
m

ay
, n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
ex

tra
ct

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
ei

r 
ne

ed
s, 

an
d 

ce
rta

in
 o

th
er

 o
f 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
 

(“
Ex

ch
an

go
rs

”)
, r

ed
uc

e 
th

ei
r e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 b

el
ow

 th
ei

r A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
er

m
it 

su
ch

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
ot

he
rs

. 

(b
)

“E
xc

ha
ng

or
” 

is
 o

ne
 w

ho
 o

ff
er

s, 
vo

lu
nt

ar
ily

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e,
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t p
ro

vi
si

on
s, 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
its

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 b
el

ow
 it

s 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
pe

rm
it 

su
ch

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 



43
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
ot

he
rs

. 

(c
)

“E
xc

ha
ng

ee
” 

is
 o

ne
 w

ho
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
at

er
 fr

om
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
. 

(d
)

“U
nd

ue
 h

ar
ds

hi
p”

 m
ea

ns
 u

nu
su

al
 a

nd
 s

ev
er

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 o

r 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

ha
rd

sh
ip

, 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 t
ha

t 
ar

is
in

g 
(i)

 b
y 

re
as

on
 o

f 
an

y 

di
ff

er
en

tia
l 

in
 q

ua
lit

y 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 e
xi

st
 b

et
w

ee
n 

w
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

im
po

rta
tio

n 
or

 (
ii)

 b
y 

re
as

on
 o

f 

an
y 

di
ff

er
en

ce
 in

 c
os

t t
o 

a 
pa

rty
 in

 s
ub

sc
rib

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l 

an
d 

re
du

ci
ng

 i
ts

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 i

n 
an

 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

s o
pp

os
ed

 to
 e

xt
ra

ct
in

g 
an

y 
su

ch
 q

ua
nt

ity
 it

se
lf.

 

(2
)

Pa
rti

es
 W

ho
 M

ay
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

W
at

er
 T

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. 

 

 
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 n
ot

 h
av

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 ta
ki

ng
 o

f i
m

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 a
s 

of
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 a

ny
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
an

d 
an

y 
pa

rty
 h

av
in

g 
su

ch
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 a

ny
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
w

ho
 i

s 
un

ab
le

, 
w

ith
ou

t 
un

du
e 

ha
rd

sh
ip

, t
o 

ob
ta

in
, t

ak
e,

 a
nd

 p
ut

 to
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

, t
hr

ou
gh

 it
s 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

sy
st

em
 

or
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 i

n 
a 

qu
an

tit
y 

w
hi

ch
, 

w
he

n 
ad

de
d 

to
 i

ts
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

at
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

w
ill

 m
ee

t i
ts

 e
st

im
at

ed
 n

ee
ds

 

fo
r 

th
at

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
m

ay
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 

Po
ol

, 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 l
im

ita
tio

ns
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 i
n 

th
is

 S
ec

tio
n 

II
I(C

) 
(S

ub
pa

rt 
“C

” 

he
re

in
af

te
r)

. 

(3
)

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l W
at

er
.  

 

 
N

ot
 l

at
er

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
40

th
 d

ay
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 e
ac

h 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

ea
ch

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
 d

es
iri

ng
 t

o 
pu

rc
ha

se
 w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l s
ha

ll 
fil

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

a 
re

qu
es

t t
o 

so
 p

ur
ch

as
e,

 s
et

tin
g 

fo
rth

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
at

er
 in

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

 e
st

im
at

es
 th

at
 it

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
th

en
 c

ur
re

nt
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l o
f: 

(a
)

Its
 

A
llo

w
ed

 
Pu

m
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

at
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 

44
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r; 

an
d 

(b
)

Th
e 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
, 

if 
an

y,
 w

hi
ch

 i
t 

es
tim

at
es

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

, w
ith

ou
t u

nd
ue

 h
ar

ds
hi

p,
 to

 o
bt

ai
n,

 ta
ke

 a
nd

 p
ut

 to
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

, 

th
ro

ug
h 

its
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
sy

st
em

 o
r s

ys
te

m
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

as
 o

f t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

of
 th

at
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 w
ho

 a
s 

of
 t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f 

an
y 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

ha
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

ki
ng

 o
f 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 w

ho
 m

ak
es

 a
 r

eq
ue

st
 t

o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 f
ro

m
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l m

us
t p

ro
vi

de
 w

ith
 s

uc
h 

re
qu

es
t s

ub
st

an
tia

tin
g 

da
ta

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
of

 w
hi

ch
, 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
ny

 f
ur

th
er

 d
at

a 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pr
oo

f 

re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l, 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

w
ith

ou
t 

un
du

e 
ha

rd
sh

ip
, 

to
 o

bt
ai

n,
 t

ak
e 

an
d 

pu
t 

to
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l 
us

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 s
ai

d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

sy
st

em
 o

r 
sy

st
em

s 
a 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
im

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 w
hi

ch
, 

w
he

n 
ad

de
d 

to
 

its
 

sa
id

 
A

llo
w

ed
 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

w
ill

 m
ee

t 
its

 e
st

im
at

ed
 n

ee
ds

. 
 A

s 
to

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
pa

rty
, t

he
 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

sh
al

l 
m

ak
e 

a 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

 p
ar

ty
 h

as
 s

o 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

su
ch

 in
ab

ili
ty

, w
hi

ch
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
th

e 

co
ur

t u
nd

er
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
re

qu
es

t 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 

Po
ol

 
sh

al
l 

ei
th

er
 

fu
rn

is
h 

su
ch

 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
tin

g 
da

ta
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

of
, o

r a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t s
uc

h 
pa

rty
 h

ad
 n

o 
ex

is
tin

g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

ki
ng

 
of

 
im

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 
as

 
of

 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 

th
at

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

an
d 

in
 e

ith
er

 e
ve

nt
 a

 s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f t
he

 b
as

is
 fo

r t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 

re
qu

es
te

d 
to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d.
 

(4
)

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 to
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

. 

(a
)

R
eq

ui
re

d 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n.
 

 
Ea

ch
 

pa
rty

 
ha

vi
ng

 
ex

is
tin

g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

ki
ng

 o
f 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 a

s 
of

 th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

he
re

by
 s

ub
sc

rib
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
fo

r 

pu
rp

os
es

 
of

 
m

ee
tin

g 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

re
qu

es
ts

 
th

er
eo

n,
 

as
 

m
or

e 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

 o
f 

th
is

 S
ub

pa
rt 

C
, t

w
en

ty
 p

er
ce

nt
 



45
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(2
0%

) o
f i

ts
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r t

he
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f i
m

po
rte

d 

w
at

er
 w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 a
bl

e,
 w

ith
ou

t u
nd

ue
 h

ar
ds

hi
p,

 to
 o

bt
ai

n,
 ta

ke
 a

nd
 p

ut
 

to
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
sy

st
em

 o
r s

ys
te

m
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

as
 

of
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 o
w

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 n

ee
ds

 f
or

 i
m

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 d
ur

in
g 

th
at

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 th
e 

le
ss

er
.  

A
 p

ar
ty

’s
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 

un
de

r t
hi

s s
ub

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
(a

) a
nd

 su
bp

ar
ag

ra
ph

 (b
) o

f t
hi

s p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

 is
 

so
m

et
im

es
 h

er
ei

na
fte

r r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s a

 “
re

qu
ire

d 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n.
” 

 

(b
)

R
ep

or
t t

o 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l b
y 

Pa
rti

es
 w

ith
 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 U
na

bl
e 

to
 S

ub
sc

rib
e 

20
%

.  
A

ny
 p

ar
ty

 h
av

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 ta
ki

ng
 o

f i
m

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 e
st

im
at

in
g 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 

un
ab

le
, w

ith
ou

t u
nd

ue
 h

ar
ds

hi
p,

 in
 th

at
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r t
o 

ob
ta

in
, 

ta
ke

 a
nd

 p
ut

 t
o 

be
ne

fic
ia

l 
us

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

sy
st

em
 o

r 

sy
st

em
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

ha
t 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 i

m
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 t

o 
fu

rth
er

 r
ed

uc
e 

its
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 b

y 
tw

en
ty

 p
er

ce
nt

 (
20

%
) 

of
 i

ts
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 w

at
er

 to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l m

us
t 

fu
rn

is
h 

no
t 

la
te

r 
th

an
 t

he
 4

0t
h 

da
y 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 

su
ch

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
tin

g 
da

ta
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

of
 w

hi
ch

, 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
ny

 fu
rth

er
 d

at
a 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ro

of
 re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
W

at
er

 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l, 
es

ta
bl

is
he

s 
sa

id
 in

ab
ili

ty
 o

r 
su

ch
 p

ar
ty

 s
ha

ll 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 

to
 h

av
e 

su
bs

cr
ib

ed
 t

w
en

ty
 p

er
ce

nt
 (

20
%

) 
of

 i
ts

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 w

at
er

 to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. 

 

A
s 

to
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

pa
rty

 s
o 

co
nt

en
di

ng
 s

uc
h 

in
ab

ili
ty

, t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
m

ak
e 

a 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

pa
rty

 h
as

 s
o 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

su
ch

 in
ab

ili
ty

, w
hi

ch
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
th

e 

C
ou

rt 
un

de
r t

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

hi
s J

ud
gm

en
t. 

(c
)

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
.  

A
ny

 p
ar

ty
, w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 h
av

in
g 

46
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 ta
ki

ng
 o

f i
m

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

, w
ho

 d
es

ire
s 

to
 s

ub
sc

rib
e 

to
 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
a 

qu
an

tit
y 

or
 f

ur
th

er
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
its

 A
llo

w
ed

 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 m

ay
 s

o 
no

tif
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l i

n 
w

rit
in

g 

of
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
of

fe
r o

n 
or

 p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

40
th

 d
ay

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r. 
 

Su
ch

 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
re

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 h
er

ei
na

fte
r 

as
 “

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
.”

A
ny

 E
xc

ha
ng

or
 w

ho
 d

es
ire

s 
th

at
 a

ny
 p

ar
t 

of
 i

ts
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

qu
ire

d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

no
t n

ee
de

d 
to

 fi
ll 

C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) r
eq

ue
st

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

C
at

eg
or

y 
(b

) 
re

qu
es

ts
 m

ay
 s

o 
no

tif
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

in
 

w
rit

in
g 

on
 o

r 
pr

io
r 

to
 s

ai
d 

40
th

 d
ay

. 
 I

f 
al

l 
of

 t
ha

t 
Ex

ch
an

go
r’

s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 n
ee

de
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 fi

ll 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

re
qu

es
ts

, t
he

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 o

f 
su

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

no
t s

o 
us

ed
, 

or
 su

ch
 p

ar
t t

he
re

of
 a

s s
uc

h 
Ex

ch
an

go
r m

ay
 d

es
ig

na
te

, s
ha

ll 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 

to
 b

e 
a 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n.
 

(5
)

Li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
Pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 W
at

er
 a

nd
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 R

eq
ue

st
s t

o 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 W
at

er
 A

m
on

g 
Ex

ch
an

go
rs

. 

(a
)

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 R

eq
ue

st
s. 

 T
w

o 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 

re
qu

es
ts

 a
re

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

(i)
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

re
qu

es
ts

. 
Th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 

ea
ch

 E
xc

ha
ng

ee
, 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t 

th
at

 E
xc

ha
ng

ee
 h

as
 a

n 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 q
ua

nt
ity

 i
s 

no
t 

in
 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f 1
50

%
 o

f i
ts

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 if

 a
ny

, 

or
 1

00
 a

cr
e 

fe
et

, w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 g
re

at
er

.  
R

eq
ue

st
s o

r p
or

tio
ns

 

th
er

eo
f 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 s

om
et

im
es

 h
er

ei
na

fte
r 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 a

s “
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) r

eq
ue

st
s.”

 

(ii
)C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) 

re
qu

es
ts

. 
 T

he
 q

ua
nt

ity
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 b
y 

ea
ch

 E
xc

ha
ng

ee
 h

av
in

g 
an

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t i
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
50

%
 o

f t
ha

t A
llo

w
ed

 



47
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
or

 1
00

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 g

re
at

er
, 

an
d 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 e
ac

h 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

ha
vi

ng
 n

o 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t i
s 

in
 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f 
10

0 
ac

re
 f

ee
t. 

 P
or

tio
ns

 o
f 

re
qu

es
ts

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

ab
ov

e 
cr

ite
ria

 a
re

 s
om

et
im

es
 h

er
ei

na
fte

r 
re

fe
rr

ed
 t

o 
as

 

“C
at

eg
or

y 
(b

) r
eq

ue
st

s.”
 

(b
)

Fi
lli

ng
 o

f 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

R
eq

ue
st

s. 
 A

ll 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

, 
re

qu
ire

d 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y,

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
fil

l 

C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) 
re

qu
es

ts
.  

C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) 
re

qu
es

ts
 s

ha
ll 

be
 f

ill
ed

 fi
rs

t f
ro

m
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
, 

an
d 

if 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 to
 fi

ll 
al

l C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) r
eq

ue
st

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 th

en
 u

til
iz

ed
 to

 fi
ll 

C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) r
eq

ue
st

s. 
 A

ll 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) r

eq
ue

st
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

fir
st

 fi
lle

d 
be

fo
re

 a
ny

 C
at

eg
or

y 
(b

) r
eq

ue
st

s a
re

 fi
lle

d.
 

(c
)

Fi
lli

ng
 o

f 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) 

R
eq

ue
st

s. 
 T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 t
ha

t 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

ut
ili

ze
d 

in
 f

ill
in

g 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

re
qu

es
ts

, 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) 

re
qu

es
ts

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

fil
le

d 
on

ly
 

ou
t 

of
 

an
y 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

. 
 R

eq
ui

re
d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 w
ill

 t
he

n 

be
 u

til
iz

ed
 fo

r t
he

 fi
lli

ng
 o

f a
ny

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) r

eq
ue

st
s. 

(d
)

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
to

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

 W
he

n 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 
Ex

ce
ed

 
R

eq
ue

st
s. 

 
In

 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
an

y 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f 
re

qu
es

ts
 e

xc
ee

ds
 t

ho
se

 

re
qu

es
ts

 in
 th

at
 c

at
eg

or
y,

 o
r e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

ho
se

 re
qu

es
ts

 in
 

th
at

 c
at

eg
or

y,
 s

uc
h 

re
qu

es
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 f
ill

ed
 o

ut
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

ly
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 e
ac

h 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n.
 

(e
)

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

 to
 C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) R

eq
ue

st
s 

in
 th

e 

Ev
en

t 
of

 
Sh

or
ta

ge
 

of
 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

. 
 

In
 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
re

 in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 to
 m

ee
t C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) 

re
qu

es
ts

, a
va

ila
bl

e 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
re

qu
es

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
th

at
 

48
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
re

qu
es

t 
be

ar
s 

to
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
of

 t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

ca
te

go
ry

. 

(6
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

.  
 

 
If

 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

es
ts

 
of

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 
ar

e 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
al

l 
re

qu
es

ts
, 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 m
ay

 b
e 

so
lic

ite
d 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 p

ar
tie

s 
by

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l. 

 S
uc

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fir

st
 to

 C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) r
eq

ue
st

s t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 u

nf
ill

ed
, 

an
d 

ne
xt

 to
 C

at
eg

or
y 

(b
) r

eq
ue

st
s 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 u
nf

ill
ed

.  
A

ll 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 to
 b

e 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

an
ne

r a
s 

ea
rli

er
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 5
 (a

) t
hr

ou
gh

 5
 (e

) 

in
cl

us
iv

e.
 

(7
)

Ef
fe

ct
 i

f 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

R
eq

ue
st

s 
Ex

ce
ed

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
, 

B
ot

h 
R

eq
ui

re
d 

an
d 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
.

 
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f s

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 fi

ll 
C

at
eg

or
y 

(a
) 

re
qu

es
ts

 i
s 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 s

uc
h 

re
qu

es
ts

, 
th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 m
ay

, 

no
ne

th
el

es
s, 

ex
tra

ct
 t

he
 f

ul
l 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

C
at

eg
or

y 
(a

) 
re

qu
es

ts
 o

th
er

w
is

e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l a

s 
if 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s P
an

el
 o

n 
ac

co
un

t o
f t

ha
t p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 E
xc

ha
ng

or
s 

sh
al

l 
be

 p
ai

d 
by

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

to
 W

R
D

 i
n 

tru
st

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 

im
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 

an
d 

sp
re

ad
in

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

in
 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 

fo
r 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t t
he

re
of

.  
Th

er
ea

fte
r W

R
D

 m
ay

, a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e,

 w
ith

dr
aw

 sa
id

 fu
nd

s o
r 

an
y 

pa
rt 

th
er

eo
f s

o 
cr

ed
ite

d 
in

 tr
us

t f
or

 th
e 

af
or

es
ai

d 
pu

rp
os

e,
 o

r m
ay

 b
y 

th
e 

40
th

 

da
y 

of
 a

ny
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
ut

ili
ze

 a
ll 

or
 a

ny
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 s
ai

d 
fu

nd
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 

w
at

er
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 s
ub

sc
rip

tio
ns

 b
y 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 i

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 e

xc
ee

ds
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 

re
qu

es
ts

 b
y 

pa
rti

es
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l w

at
er

.  
To

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 

su
ch

 a
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 o

ve
r r

eq
ue

st
s 

an
d 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

cr
ed

it 
in

 f
av

or
 o

f 
W

R
D

 is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

su
ch

 e
xc

es
s 

qu
an

tit
y 

at
 



49
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

th
e 

pr
ic

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
fo

r 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
du

rin
g 

th
at

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r, 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 s
ha

ll 
be

 p
ai

d 
to

 th
e 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

an
ne

r a
s 

if 
an

ot
he

r 

pa
rty

 h
ad

 m
ad

e 
su

ch
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

as
 a

n 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e.

  W
R

D
 s

ha
ll 

no
t e

xt
ra

ct
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l w
at

er
 so

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
. 

(8
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

um
pi

ng
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 P
ur

su
an

t 
to

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
.

 
A

n 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

m
ay

 e
xt

ra
ct

 fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 it
s 

A
llo

w
ed

 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
a 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
th

at
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
w

at
er

 

w
hi

ch
 

it 
ha

s 
re

qu
es

te
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 
fr

om
 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 
Po

ol
 

du
rin

g 
th

at
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 it

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
5,

 6
 a

nd
 7

. 
 T

he
 f

irs
t 

pu
m

pi
ng

 b
y 

an
 E

xc
ha

ng
ee

 i
n 

an
y 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

pu
m

pi
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

pa
rty

’s
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l w
at

er
. 

(9
)

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 P
um

pi
ng

 b
y 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
.  

 

 
Ea

ch
 E

xc
ha

ng
or

 s
ha

ll 
in

 e
ac

h 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
re

du
ce

 it
s 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 

of
 w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 b
el

ow
 i

ts
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
ye

ar
 i

n 
a 

qu
an

tit
y 

eq
ua

l 
to

 t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
re

qu
es

ts
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 i
t 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 4
, 

5,
 6

 a
nd

 7
 o

f 
th

is
 

Su
bp

ar
t C

. 

(1
0)

Pr
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

Pa
id

 fo
r E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 W
at

er
.

 
Th

e 
pr

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 a
nd

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 to

 E
xc

ha
ng

or
s 

pe
r a

cr
e 

fo
ot

 f
or

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 o
f 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 u

til
iz

ed
 t

o 
fil

l 

re
qu

es
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
by

 E
xc

ha
ng

ee
s 

sh
al

l 
be

 t
he

 d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

nt
 

co
m

pu
te

d 
as

 f
ol

lo
w

s 
by

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 

Th
e 

“n
or

m
al

” 
pr

ic
e 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
ch

ar
ge

d 
by

 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 

W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
(C

B
M

W
D

) 
fo

r 
tre

at
ed

 
M

W
D

 

(M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

) w
at

er
 u

se
d 

fo
r d

om
es

tic
 a

nd
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 p

ur
po

se
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
, a

nd
 if

 o
n 

th
at

 d
at

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

50
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

sc
he

du
le

d 
du

rin
g 

th
at

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r i

n 
C

B
M

W
D

’s
 “

no
rm

al
” 

pr
ic

e 
fo

r s
uc

h 

ca
te

go
ry

 
of

 
w

at
er

, 
th

e 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

da
ily

 
“n

or
m

al
” 

C
B

M
W

D
 

pr
ic

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

nd
 u

se
d 

in
 l

ie
u 

of
 t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 s
uc

h 
pr

ic
e;

 a
nd

 t
he

re
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

de
du

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 s

uc
h 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
or

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
pr

ic
e,

 a
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 m
ay

 b
e,

 t
he

 

“i
nc

re
m

en
ta

l 
co

st
 o

f 
pu

m
pi

ng
 w

at
er

 i
n 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
” 

at
 t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

an
d 

an
y 

th
en

 c
ur

re
nt

 r
at

e 
or

 r
at

es
, o

f 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 le

vi
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pu
m

pi
ng

 o
f 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 in
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 b

y 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 D

is
tri

ct
 a

nd
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
ag

en
cy

. 
 T

he
 “

no
rm

al
” 

pr
ic

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
by

 C
B

M
W

D
 s

ha
ll 

be
 t

he
 

hi
gh

es
t p

ric
e 

of
 C

B
M

W
D

 f
or

 n
or

m
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
xc

lu
di

ng
 a

ny
 s

ur
ch

ar
ge

 o
r 

hi
gh

er
 

ra
te

 fo
r e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
de

liv
er

ie
s 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
fa

ili
ng

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

B
M

W
D

 ra
te

s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 e

ar
lie

r 
de

liv
er

ie
s. 

 T
he

 “
in

cr
em

en
ta

l c
os

t o
f 

pu
m

pi
ng

 

w
at

er
 in

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

” 
as

 o
f 

th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

di
so

n 
C

om
pa

ny
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

N
o.

 P
A

-1
 r

at
e 

pe
r k

ilo
w

at
t-h

ou
r, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
ll 

un
ifo

rm
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

s 

to
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

ra
te

, m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 5
60

 k
ilo

w
at

t-h
ou

rs
 p

er
 a

cr
e-

fo
ot

, r
ou

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 

ne
ar

es
t d

ol
la

r (
w

hi
ch

 n
um

be
r o

f k
ilo

w
at

t-h
ou

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 to

 re
pr

es
en

t 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

en
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

to
 p

um
p 

an
 a

cr
e-

fo
ot

 o
f w

at
er

 in
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
). 

 

In
 a

pp
ly

in
g 

sa
id

 P
A

-1
 r

at
e 

th
e 

ch
ar

ge
 p

er
 k

ilo
w

at
t-h

ou
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
sc

he
du

le
 s

ha
ll 

be
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 a
nd

 i
f 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
ra

te
 b

lo
ck

s 
th

en
 t

he
 l

as
t 

ra
te

 b
lo

ck
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

em
pl

oy
ed

. 
 S

ho
ul

d 
a 

ch
an

ge
 o

cc
ur

 i
n 

Ed
is

on
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

, 
th

e 
W

at
er

 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
em

pl
oy

 th
at

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 m
ot

or
s 

us
ed

 f
or

 p
um

pi
ng

 w
at

er
 b

y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 u

til
iti

es
. 

(1
1)

C
ar

ry
-o

ve
r o

f E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 P

ur
ch

as
es

 b
y 

Ex
ch

an
ge

es
.

 
A

n 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

w
ho

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ex

tra
ct

 f
ro

m
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 i
n 

a 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

a 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 w
at

er
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
of

 (
a)

 i
ts

 A
llo

w
ed

 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

at
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 a

ny
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
ca

rr
yo

ve
r 

in
to

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
A

) o
f t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
an

d 
(b

) t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 



51
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

th
at

 it
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l f
or

 th
at

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 

m
ay

 c
ar

ry
 o

ve
r 

in
to

 th
e 

ne
xt

 s
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 

fr
om

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 a
 q

ua
nt

ity
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
di

ff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
sa

id
 to

ta
l a

nd
 th

e 

qu
an

tit
y 

ac
tu

al
ly

 e
xt

ra
ct

ed
 i

n 
th

at
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
bu

t 
no

t 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l f

or
 th

at
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r. 
 A

ny
 

su
ch

 c
ar

ry
ov

er
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 sa

id
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I(
A

). 
 

 
If

 th
e 

“B
as

in
w

id
e 

A
ve

ra
ge

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 P

ric
e”

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 s

uc
ce

ed
in

g 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

ex
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

“E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 

Pr
ic

e”
 

in
 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

an
y 

su
ch

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

ex
er

ci
si

ng
 

su
ch

 
ca

rr
yo

ve
r 

rig
ht

s 

he
re

in
ab

ov
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
sh

al
l 

pa
y 

to
 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
fo

rth
w

ith
 

up
on

 
th

e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 “
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l 

Pr
ic

e”
 i

n 
sa

id
 s

uc
ce

ed
in

g 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r, 
an

d 
as

 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 
to

 
su

ch
 

ca
rr

yo
ve

r 
rig

ht
s, 

an
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
am

ou
nt

 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
m

ul
tip

ly
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

cr
e 

fe
et

 o
f c

ar
ry

ov
er

 b
y 

th
e 

di
ff

er
en

ce
 

in
 “

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
Pr

ic
e”

 a
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

tw
o 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
rs

. 
 S

uc
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ay

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 m
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
in

co
m

e 
to

 th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
by

 i
t 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
at

 s
ha

re
 o

f 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r’

s 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y’
s 

bu
dg

et
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
 to

 th
is

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 

Y
ea

r 
su

cc
ee

di
ng

 th
at

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l w
at

er
 w

as
 s

o 
pu

rc
ha

se
d.

  
Fo

r 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
, 

th
e 

te
rm

 B
as

in
w

id
e 

A
ve

ra
ge

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 P

ric
e 

m
ea

ns
 t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ric
e 

pe
r 

ac
re

 f
oo

t 
pa

id
 f

or
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 t
o 

be
 

m
ad

e,
 t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

ll 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l 

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 c

on
su

m
m

at
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
at

 y
ea

r. (1
2)

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

by
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

to
 E

xc
ha

ng
or

s 
an

d 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 o
f 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
R

eq
ue

st
s 

an
d 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 T

he
re

of
 a

nd
 P

ric
e 

of
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 

W
at

er
.  

 

 
N

ot
 

la
te

r 
th

an
 

th
e 

65
th

 
da

y 
af

te
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

of
 

ea
ch

 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

of
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

sh
al

l 
de

te
rm

in
e 

52
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

an
d 

no
tif

y 
al

l E
xc

ha
ng

or
s a

nd
 E

xc
ha

ng
ee

s o
f t

he
 to

ta
l o

f t
he

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 d
iv

id
ed

 i
nt

o 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 

re
qu

es
ts

 s
ho

w
in

g 
th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

Ex
ch

an
ge

e 
an

d 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 o
f t

he
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
Ex

ch
an

go
rs

.  
Su

ch
 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

sh
al

l a
ls

o 
ad

vi
se

 E
xc

ha
ng

or
s 

an
d 

Ex
ch

an
ge

es
 o

f t
he

 p
ric

es
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 

to
 E

xc
ha

ng
or

s 
fo

r 
su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
 u

til
iz

ed
 a

nd
 t

he
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 P
ric

e 
fo

r 
th

at
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r 

as
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

by
 

th
e 

W
at

er
 

R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l. 
 

Th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r i
n 

th
is

 re
ga

rd
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 re
vi

ew
 b

y 
th

e 

C
ou

rt 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

t I
I o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 

(1
3)

Pa
ym

en
t b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

.  
 

 
Ea

ch
 E

xc
ha

ng
ee

 s
ha

ll,
 o

n 
or

 p
rio

r 
to

 la
st

 d
ay

 o
f 

th
e 

th
ird

 m
on

th
 o

f 
ea

ch
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

pa
y 

to
 th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

on
e-

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 s

ai
d 

pr
ic

e 
pe

r 
ac

re
-

fo
ot

 m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

cr
e 

fe
et

 o
f 

su
ch

 p
ar

ty
’s

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
re

qu
es

t a
nd

 

sh
al

l, 
on

 o
r b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
la

st
 d

ay
 o

f e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

ne
xt

 s
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

th
re

e 
m

on
th

s, 
pa

y 
a 

lik
e 

su
m

 t
o 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 
 S

uc
h 

am
ou

nt
s 

m
us

t 
be

 p
ai

d 
by

 e
ac

h 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f 
w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t 
it 

in
 f

ac
t 

ex
tra

ct
s 

or
 u

se
s 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 w

at
er

 i
t 

ha
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. 

(1
4)

Pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 E

xc
ha

ng
or

s. 
  

 
A

s 
so

on
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

fte
r 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 m

on
ey

s 
fr

om
 E

xc
ha

ng
ee

s, 
th

e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r s
ha

ll 
re

m
it 

to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

go
rs

 th
ei

r p
ro

 ra
ta

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 so

 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
0 

ab
ov

e.
 

(1
5)

D
el

in
qu

en
t P

ay
m

en
ts

.  
 

 
A

ny
 a

m
ou

nt
s n

ot
 p

ai
d 

on
 o

r p
rio

r t
o 

an
y 

du
e 

da
te

 a
bo

ve
 sh

al
l c

ar
ry

 in
te

re
st

 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f 1
%

 p
er

 m
on

th
 o

r a
ny

 p
ar

t o
f a

 m
on

th
.  

A
ny

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

so
 p

ai
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

en
fo

rc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
po

w
er

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 

lim
ite

d 
to

, 
th

e 
in

ju
nc

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 

th
e 

C
ou

rt.
 

 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

er
et

o,
 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
as

 T
ru

st
ee

 fo
r t

he
 E

xc
ha

ng
or

s 
an

d 
ac

tin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l, 
m

ay
 e

nf
or

ce
 s

uc
h 

pa
ym

en
t 

by
 a

ny
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 l

eg
al

 a
ct

io
n,

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
be

 



53
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

en
tit

le
d 

to
 r

ec
ov

er
 a

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

da
m

ag
es

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

at
to

rn
ey

s’
 f

ee
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 i
n 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
th

er
ew

ith
.  

If 
an

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

sh
al

l f
ai

l t
o 

m
ak

e 
an

y 
pa

ym
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d 

of
 i

t 
on

 o
r 

be
fo

re
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

la
st

 p
ay

m
en

t 
is

 d
ue

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

ny
 a

cc
ru

ed
 

in
te

re
st

, s
ai

d 
pa

rty
 s

ha
ll 

th
en

ce
fo

rw
ar

d 
no

t b
e 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

w
at

er
 fr

om
 th

e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l i
n 

an
y 

su
cc

ee
di

ng
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r 
ex

ce
pt

 u
po

n 
or

de
r 

of
 th

e 

C
ou

rt,
 u

po
n 

su
ch

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

s t
he

 C
ou

rt 
m

ay
 im

po
se

. 

IV
. 

PR
O

V
IS

IO
N

S 
FO

R
 T

H
E 

ST
O

R
A

G
E 

O
F 

W
A

TE
R

 A
N

D
 T

H
E 

EX
TR

A
C

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

ST
O

R
ED

 W
A

TE
R

. 

A
.

A
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 

Sp
ac

e,
 

St
or

ag
e 

C
ap

ac
ity

 
an

d 

St
or

ag
e 

A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t. 
  

 
Th

er
e 

ex
is

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
as

in
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

sp
ac

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 

no
t b

ee
n 

op
tim

al
ly

 u
til

iz
ed

 fo
r b

as
in

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 fo

r s
to

ra
ge

 o
f n

at
iv

e 
an

d 
im

po
rte

d 

w
at

er
s. 

 T
he

 C
ou

rt 
fin

ds
 a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 (

i) 
th

er
e 

is
 3

30
,0

00
 a

cr
e 

fe
et

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 in
 th

e 
B

as
in

; (
ii)

 u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

 o
f t

he
 B

as
in

 b
y 

pe
rm

itt
in

g 
th

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
W

at
er

, 
co

nj
un

ct
iv

e 
us

e,
 a

nd
 f

or
 d

ire
ct

 a
nd

 i
n-

lie
u 

re
ch

ar
ge

, t
he

re
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
pr

ud
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 a
nd

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 f

or
 la

te
r 

us
e 

by
 p

ar
tie

s 
to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

of
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

Pa
rti

es
; a

nd
 (

iii
) 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

th
e 

te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t w
ill

 n
ot

 re
su

lt 
in

 M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
. 

B
.

A
vo

id
an

ce
 o

f M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
.  

 

 
It 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

ha
t t

he
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

fo
r t

he
 

gr
ea

te
st

 p
ub

lic
 b

en
ef

it 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
un

ifo
rm

, 
ce

rta
in

, 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nt

 r
eg

ul
at

io
n 

th
at

 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 th

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
of

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 re

lia
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y,

 a
vo

id
s 

M
at

er
ia

l 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 H
ar

m
, a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

 o
f 

w
at

er
.  

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, 

in
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
be

co
m

es
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 M

at
er

ia
l 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 

H
ar

m
, o

r i
m

m
in

en
t t

hr
ea

t o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 M

at
er

ia
l P

hy
si

ca
l H

ar
m

, r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

54
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

us
e 

of
 t

he
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

, 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

sh
al

l, 
w

ith
in

 t
hi

rty
 (

30
) 

da
ys

 

th
er

ea
fte

r, 
no

tic
e 

a 
he

ar
in

g 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 
an

d 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

ly
 fi

le
 a

 re
po

rt 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 

se
rv

ed
 o

n 
al

l p
ar

tie
s, 

w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll 

ex
pl

ai
n 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 f
ac

ts
 th

en
 k

no
w

n 
to

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 t

he
 M

at
er

ia
l 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 H
ar

m
, 

or
 i

m
m

in
en

t 
th

re
at

 t
he

re
of

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
ith

ou
t 

lim
ita

tio
n,

 t
he

 l
oc

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e,

 t
he

 s
ou

rc
e 

or
 c

au
se

, 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ph
ys

ic
al

 im
pa

ct
s 

or
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

or
 th

re
at

en
ed

 m
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
, 

an
d 

an
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
o 

re
m

ed
ia

te
 t

he
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 o
r 

th
re

at
en

ed
 M

at
er

ia
l 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 

H
ar

m
. 

C
.

A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t o
f A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

.  
 

 
To

 fa
irl

y 
ba

la
nc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
s o

f t
he

 d
iv

er
ge

nt
 in

te
re

st
s o

f p
ar

tie
s h

av
in

g 
w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 

in
 t

he
 B

as
in

, o
n 

th
e 

on
e 

ha
nd

, a
nd

 t
he

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f 

W
R

D
 o

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

, 
an

d 
in

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 s
ha

re
d 

de
si

re
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

re
m

ov
in

g 

im
pe

di
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n,

 s
to

ra
ge

, e
xc

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
tra

ns
fe

r 
of

 w
at

er
, a

ll 

of
 

th
e 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 
Sp

ac
e 

is
 

he
re

by
 

ad
ju

di
ca

te
d 

an
d 

ap
po

rti
on

ed
 

in
to

 

co
m

pl
im

en
ta

ry
 c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 a
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 a

s 
se

t 

fo
rth

 in
 th

is
 P

ar
t I

V
.  

Th
e 

ap
po

rti
on

m
en

t c
on

te
m

pl
at

es
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 s

to
ra

ge
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 w
he

re
 u

se
 is

 a
pp

or
tio

ne
d 

am
on

g 
co

m
pe

tin
g 

ne
ed

s, 
w

hi
le

 a
llo

w
in

g 
al

l A
va

ila
bl

e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e 

on
 a

 “
sp

ac
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e”
 b

as
is

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

an
d 

as
 f

ur
th

er
 d

ef
in

ed
 i

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
IV

(I
) 

of
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 C

ou
rt 

fu
rth

er
 f

in
ds

 a
nd

 d
et

er
m

in
es

 t
ha

t, 
of

 t
he

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 

Sp
ac

e,
 t

he
re

 i
s 

22
0,

00
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t 
of

 s
to

ra
ge

 c
ap

ac
ity

 i
n 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

pr
es

en
tly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
(“

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

”)
.  

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 

C
ap

ac
ity

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t w

ill
 n

ot
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
t t

he
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 

th
e 

B
as

in
 o

r t
he

 re
ch

ar
ge

 o
f w

at
er

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

’ r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
.  

Th
e 

ap
po

rti
on

m
en

t o
f 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 fo

r f
le

xi
bl

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 s

to
ra

ge
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
as

in
. 

 T
he

 A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 i
s 

he
re

by
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 I

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
St

or
ag

e 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
ho

w
ev

er
 t

ha
t 

if 
al

l 



55
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

sp
ac

e 
in

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
is

 fu
lly

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
th

en
, o

n 
a 

“s
pa

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e”

 b
as

is
, t

o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 o

th
er

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

f 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
, 

on
ly

 th
en

, t
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
.  

   

 
Th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fu
rth

er
 f

in
ds

 a
nd

 d
et

er
m

in
es

 t
ha

t, 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 

Sp
ac

e,
 t

he
re

 i
s 

11
0,

00
0 

ac
re

 f
ee

t 
th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
et

 a
si

de
 f

or
 u

se
 b

y 
W

R
D

 a
s 

a 
B

as
in

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(L
), 

an
d 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 b

y 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
s p

er
m

itt
ed

 h
er

eu
nd

er
.  

 

 
N

o 
st

or
ag

e 
of

 w
at

er
 s

ha
ll 

oc
cu

r 
in

 t
he

 B
as

in
 e

xc
ep

t 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. D
.

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

   

 
Ea

ch
 P

ar
ty

 h
av

in
g 

an
 a

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
 h

er
eu

nd
er

 s
ha

ll 

ha
ve

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
rig

ht
 to

 s
to

re
 w

at
er

 in
 a

n 
In

di
vi

du
al

 S
to

ra
ge

 A
cc

ou
nt

, t
hr

ou
gh

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 t
o 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 o
r 

by
 a

ny
 m

ea
ns

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
up

 to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 5

0%
 o

f s
uc

h 
pa

rty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n.
  T

he
 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
in

di
vi

du
al

 s
to

ra
ge

 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 1
08

,7
50

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
.  

In
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 p
rio

r 
im

po
rta

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
in

to
 t

he
 B

as
in

 a
s 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

, a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ot
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

ex
tra

ct
ed

, t
he

 

C
ou

rt 
fin

ds
 a

nd
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
, a

s 
of

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

hi
s 

O
rd

er
, t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

Pa
rti

es
 h

av
e 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 t
he

ir 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
al

l 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 ri

gh
ts

 th
er

ei
n,

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
:  

 
 

13
,0

76
.8

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 

C
ity

 o
f L

ak
ew

oo
d:

 
 

 
   

   
  5

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y:
 

 
 

   
   

  5
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 

C
ity

 o
f C

er
rit

os
 

 
 

   
   

  5
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 

E.
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

; 
R

eg
io

na
l 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 I

nc
en

tiv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

.  
 

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 a
 P

ar
ty

 t
ha

t 
ha

s 
fu

lly
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

its
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

m
ay

, o
n 

a 
fir

st
 in

 ti
m

e,
 f

irs
t i

n 
rig

ht
 b

as
is

 (
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

56
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

lim
its

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 b

el
ow

) p
la

ce
 w

at
er

 in
to

 s
to

ra
ge

 in
 th

e 
“C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l.”
  T

he
 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 

sh
al

l 
be

 1
11

,2
50

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
. 

 S
o 

lo
ng

 a
s 

th
er

e 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 i

n 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 

St
or

ag
e 

Po
ol

, 
an

y 
Pa

rty
 m

ay
 s

to
re

 w
at

er
 i

n 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l 
th

ro
ug

h 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 t
o 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 o
r 

by
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 m
ea

ns
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 s
uc

h 
Pa

rty
 h

as
 f

irs
t 

fu
lly

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
th

at
 p

ar
ty

’s
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
In

di
vi

du
al

 S
to

ra
ge

 A
llo

ca
tio

n.

(1
)

Pa
rti

es
 t

o 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t 

w
hi

ch
, 

as
 o

f 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3,
 h

el
d 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 n
ot

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 5
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 a

 fi
rs

t 

pr
io

rit
y 

rig
ht

 to
 o

cc
up

y,
 in

 th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e,
 u

p 
to

 1
0,

00
0 

ac
re

-f
ee

t o
f s

to
ra

ge
 s

pa
ce

 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l, 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 f
irs

t i
n 

tim
e,

 

fir
st

 in
 ri

gh
t. 

  

(2
)

W
at

er
 

st
or

ed
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 sh

al
l h

av
e 

a 
se

co
nd

 p
rio

rit
y 

rig
ht

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
up

 to
 

23
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l, 
on

 s
uc

h 
te

rm
s 

as
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
rt.

 

(3
)

A
ny

 
fu

rth
er

 
st

or
ag

e 
in

 
ex

ce
ss

 
of

 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 w

ill
 b

e 
on

 a
 “

sp
ac

e-
av

ai
la

bl
e”

 i
nt

er
im

 b
as

is
. F

ro
m

 t
im

e 
to

 

tim
e,

 a
nd

 o
n 

a 
“s

pa
ce

-a
va

ila
bl

e”
 b

as
is

, t
he

 t
ot

al
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
w

at
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 

st
or

ag
e 

is
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 f

or
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 

St
or

ag
e 

Po
ol

 o
n 

an
 i

nt
er

im
 b

as
is

. 
 T

hi
s 

in
te

rim
 s

to
ra

ge
 m

ay
 o

cc
ur

 i
f 

st
or

ag
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 e
xi

st
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f 
un

us
ed

 A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 w
ith

in
 o

th
er

 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

ns
, o

r 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

sp
ac

e 
ex

is
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

.  
Su

ch
 

in
te

rim
 s

to
ra

ge
, h

ow
ev

er
, i

s 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

pr
io

rit
y 

rig
ht

s 
to

 s
uc

h 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 a

s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t. 

 A
 p

ar
ty

 th
at

 s
ee

ks
 to

 c
on

ve
rt 

th
e 

w
at

er
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 

he
ld

 in
 in

te
rim

 s
to

ra
ge

 to
 a

 m
or

e 
fir

m
 r

ig
ht

, m
ay

 c
on

tra
ct

 f
or

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

no
th

er
 

pa
rty

’s
 I

nd
iv

id
ua

l S
to

ra
ge

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 o

r 
m

ay
 a

dd
 s

uc
h 

w
at

er
 to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
or

ag
e 

Po
ol

 o
nc

e 
sp

ac
e 

th
er

ei
n 

be
co

m
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 



57
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

(4
)

A
fte

r 
a 

pa
rty

 
oc

cu
pi

es
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
st

or
ag

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l a

nd
 th

en
 w

ith
dr

aw
s 

w
at

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 

Po
ol

, t
he

 s
to

rin
g 

pa
rty

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 t
w

en
ty

-f
ou

r 
(2

4)
 m

on
th

s 
to

 

re
fil

l 
th

e 
ev

ac
ua

te
d 

st
or

ag
e 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 c

ap
ac

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 e
xc

es
s 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r u
se

 b
y 

ot
he

r p
ar

tie
s. 

 O
nc

e 
th

e 
B

as
in

’s
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l h
as

 

be
en

 fi
lle

d 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t t
im

e,
 a

 p
ar

ty
 m

ay
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

its
 tw

en
ty

-f
ou

r (
24

) m
on

th
 re

fil
l 

pr
io

rit
y 

on
ly

 o
nc

e,
 a

nd
 t

he
n 

on
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

er
e 

is
 t

he
n 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 

pe
rm

it 
th

at
 p

ar
ty

 t
o 

re
fil

l 
th

e 
va

ca
te

d 
sp

ac
e.

  
Ex

ce
pt

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 C

om
m

un
ity

 

St
or

ag
e 

sp
ac

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

su
ch

 p
rio

rit
y 

rig
ht

 to
 re

-f
ill

, a
ll 

sp
ac

e 
th

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l 

be
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

on
 a

 fi
rs

t i
n 

tim
e,

 fi
rs

t i
n 

rig
ht

 b
as

is
.

(5
)

A
 p

ar
ty

 th
at

 h
as

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
st

or
ag

e 
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l 

fo
r t

en
 (1

0)
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
ye

ar
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
em

ed
 to

 e
xt

ra
ct

 it
s 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 fi
rs

t i
n 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 y

ea
rs

 (
no

tw
ith

st
an

di
ng

 t
he

 o
rd

er
 o

f 
w

at
er

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

se
t 

fo
rth

 i
n 

Se
ct

io
n 

I(
B

)(
3)

) 
un

til
 it

s 
en

tir
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 a

cc
ou

nt
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ex
tra

ct
ed

, 

bu
t 

th
er

ea
fte

r 
m

ay
 a

ga
in

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

te
rm

s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s o
n 

a 
fir

st
 in

 ti
m

e,
 fi

rs
t i

n 
rig

ht
, s

pa
ce

-a
va

ila
bl

e 
ba

si
s.

(6
)

A
ny

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

w
at

er
 h

el
d 

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l f
or

 a
 

te
rm

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 te
n 

(1
0)

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

ye
ar

s s
ha

ll 
be

 a
ss

es
se

d 
an

 a
nn

ua
l w

at
er

 lo
ss

 

eq
ua

l t
o 

5%
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

w
at

er
 h

el
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pa

rty
’s

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
or

ag
e 

Po
ol

 a
cc

ou
nt

 a
t 

an
y 

tim
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 p

re
ce

di
ng

 t
en

-y
ea

r 

pe
rio

d.
  T

he
 lo

w
es

t q
ua

nt
ity

 m
ea

ns
 th

e 
sm

al
le

st
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f w
at

er
 h

el
d 

by
 th

e 
Pa

rty
 

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l d
ur

in
g 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

te
n 

(1
0)

 y
ea

rs
, w

ith
 a

 

ne
w

 l
os

s 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
ev

er
y 

ye
ar

. 
 W

at
er

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

lo
ss

 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
ill

 
be

 
de

em
ed

 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

B
as

in
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 

in
 

fu
rth

er
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n.
  

W
at

er
 l

os
t 

to
 t

he
 

B
as

in
 s

ha
ll 

co
ns

tit
ut

e 
w

at
er

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 

al
l p

ar
tie

s 

F.
Li

m
it 

on
 S

to
ra

ge
.  

 

58
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

 
Ir

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

ca
te

go
ry

 o
f 

st
or

ag
e 

ut
ili

ze
d,

 e
ac

h 
pa

rty
 to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t m
ay

 

no
t 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
el

y 
ha

ve
 i

n 
st

or
ag

e 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 t

ot
al

in
g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 t

w
o 

hu
nd

re
d 

pe
rc

en
t 

(2
00

%
) 

of
 t

ha
t 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n.

  
Su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 

fo
re

go
in

g,
 th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 m

ay
 b

e 
fr

ee
ly

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 a

no
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 to
 

th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
or

 a
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 h

er
ei

n.
 

G
.

Ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 o

f S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
; E

xe
m

pt
io

n 
fr

om
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 
Th

e 
C

ou
rt 

fin
ds

 a
nd

 d
ec

la
re

s 
th

at
 t

he
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
of

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 a

s 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 

he
re

un
de

r d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

st
itu

te
 “

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

” 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 o
f W

at
er

 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
60

31
7 

an
d 

th
at

 n
o 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 l
ev

ie
d 

on
 t

he
 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
of

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
.  

W
R

D
 h

as
 st

ip
ul

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
sa

m
e.

  T
hi

s d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

pr
ac

tic
al

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 c

er
ta

in
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 s

to
ra

ge
 o

f 

w
at

er
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

, w
ith

ou
t 

lim
ita

tio
n,

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g:
  

(1
) 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

up
on

 t
he

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

 W
at

er
 i

nt
o 

st
or

ag
e,

 a
nd

; (
2)

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

at
er

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
in

to
 th

e 
B

as
in

 fo
r s

to
ra

ge
 b

y 
or

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 

a 
Pa

rty
 th

ro
ug

h 
sp

re
ad

in
g 

or
 in

je
ct

io
n 

ne
ed

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pl

en
is

he
d 

by
 W

R
D

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

be
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 

H
.

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e.
   

 
Th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

B
od

y 
sh

al
l (

i) 
pr

es
cr

ib
e 

fo
rm

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r t

he
 o

rd
er

ly
 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
f S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

, (
ii)

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 a
ll 

w
at

er
 s

to
re

d 
in

 th
e 

B
as

in
, a

nd
 (i

ii)
 

un
de

rta
ke

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
m

od
el

in
g 

of
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 a
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

qu
ire

d.
  A

s 

to
 a

ny
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l, 
th

e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ro

je
ct

 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 f
or

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 
 

Th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r c

on
du

ct
in

g 
an

y 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 m

od
el

in
g 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
a 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

.  
Th

e 
pr

op
on

en
t o

f 
a 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 

w
ill

 b
ea

r a
ll 

co
st

s a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 

an
d 

al
l c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 it
s i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
  N

ot
hi

ng
 in

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t s
ha

ll 
al

te
r t

he
 

ap
pl

ic
an

t(s
) 

du
ty

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

EQ
A

 o
r 

to
 m

ee
t o

th
er

 le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

s 
to

 a
ny

 



59
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

.  
W

ith
in

 th
irt

y 
(3

0)
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r 
fin

al
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
st

or
ag

e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

do
cu

m
en

ts
, 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y 

sh
al

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
no

tic
e 

of
 t

he
 s

to
ra

ge
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

(e
ith

er
 b

y 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

m
ai

l o
r 

U
.S

. p
os

ta
l m

ai
l),

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

do
cu

m
en

ts
, t

o 
al

l p
ar

tie
s 

po
ss

es
si

ng
 a

n 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 a
nd

 to
 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pe

rs
on

 r
eq

ue
st

in
g 

no
tic

e 
th

er
eo

f. 
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
no

tic
e,

 a
ny

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 h

ea
rin

gs
 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

an
el

 s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
IV

(O
) 

of
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. I.
Lo

ss
 o

f S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
/R

el
at

iv
e 

Pr
io

rit
y.

   

 
To

 b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

rio
rit

y 
us

es
 o

f 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
fu

ll 

ut
ili

za
tio

n 
of

 A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 w
he

re
 it

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
ou

t i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

rio
rit

y 
us

es
, a

nd
 e

xc
ep

t a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t, 

no
 w

at
er

 h
el

d 
in

 a
ny

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

cc
ou

nt
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 lo
st

 

fr
om

 th
at

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
cc

ou
nt

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 h
el

d 
as

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 

pl
us

 t
he

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f 

w
at

er
 h

el
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 e

xc
ee

ds
 3

30
,0

00
 

ac
re

-f
ee

t. 
 W

he
re

 a
ll 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 h
as

 

be
en

 o
cc

up
ie

d,
 th

e 
fir

st
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 to
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 lo
st

 s
ha

ll 
be

 th
e 

la
st

 w
at

er
 s

to
re

d 
as

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
. 

 U
po

n 
re

ce
ip

t 
of

 a
 b

on
a 

fid
e 

re
qu

es
t 

by
 a

no
th

er
 u

se
 e

nt
itl

ed
 t

o 

pr
io

rit
y 

he
re

un
de

r, 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

sh
al

l 
is

su
e 

a 
no

tic
e 

re
qu

iri
ng

 t
he

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s 
to

 

ev
ac

ua
te

 th
ei

r 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
.  

A
ny

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
va

cu
at

ed
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ee
m

ed
 

de
di

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 in
 fu

rth
er

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 p

hy
si

ca
l s

ol
ut

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
. 

J.
Li

m
its

 o
n 

Ex
tra

ct
io

n.
   

 
A

ny
th

in
g 

in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ry
 n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
, n

o 
pa

rty
 s

ha
ll 

ex
tra

ct
 

gr
ea

te
r t

ha
n 

14
0%

 o
f t

he
 s

um
 o

f (
i) 

th
e 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

(ii
) t

he
 

pa
rty

’s
 l

ea
se

d 
w

at
er

, e
xc

ep
t 

up
on

 p
rio

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l. 
 F

or
 t

hi
s 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
 p

ar
ty

’s
 t

ot
al

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

 f
or

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 y
ea

r 
sh

al
l 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
at

 p
ar

ty
’s

 

A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
an

y 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l r
ig

ht
 th

ro
ug

h 
le

as
e 

or
 o

th
er

 m
ea

ns
 to

 

ut
ili

ze
 th

e 
ad

ju
di

ca
te

d 
rig

ht
s 

of
 a

no
th

er
 p

ar
ty

.  
W

he
re

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
os

ed
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 

60
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

oc
cu

r w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 P

re
ss

ur
e 

A
re

a 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 r

ec
or

ds
, t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
sh

al
l 

su
bm

it 
su

ch
 r

eq
ue

st
 f

or
 r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
th

e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
W

R
D

. 
 T

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ap
pr

ov
e 

an
y 

re
qu

es
t 

fo
r 

ov
er

-

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Pr
es

su
re

 A
re

a 
w

ith
ou

t a
 w

rit
te

n 
fin

di
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f W
R

D
 th

at
 

su
ch

 o
ve

r-
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 c
au

se
 M

at
er

ia
l P

hy
si

ca
l H

ar
m

.  
Th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

W
R

D
 in

 th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 s
ha

ll 
no

t b
e 

re
ad

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
or

 r
es

tri
ct

 W
R

D
’s

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
on

 a
n 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
ba

si
s. 

K
.

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 fo

r C
er

ta
in

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
rs

.  
 

(1
)

Th
is

 C
ou

rt 
al

so
 m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

ov
er

 t
he

 W
es

t 

C
oa

st
 B

as
in

, w
hi

ch
 b

ou
nd

s t
he

 C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t.

(2
)

C
er

ta
in

 
W

at
er

 
Pu

rv
ey

or
s 

ar
e 

pa
rti

es
 

to
 

bo
th

 
th

is
 

A
m

en
de

d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
ju

dg
m

en
t 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
th

e 
W

es
t 

C
oa

st
 

B
as

in
 

an
d 

se
rv

e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
ve

rly
in

g 
bo

th
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

es
t C

oa
st

 B
as

in
.  

(3
)

C
er

ta
in

 W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
rs

 m
ay

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
ei

r 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
in

 a
ny

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
al

l o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s:
   

(a
)

Th
e 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ve

yo
r i

s o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
ig

ib
le

 P
ar

tie
s:

 

(i)
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

(ii
) 

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
om

pa
ny

 

(ii
i) 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
om

pa
ny

.  

(b
)

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
hi

s 
Se

ct
io

n 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 

5,
00

0 
ac

re
-f

ee
t 

pe
r 

W
at

er
 

Pu
rv

ey
or

 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 

(c
)

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
hi

s 
Se

ct
io

n 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 th

e 
W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

r’
s u

nu
se

d 
“A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 R

ig
ht

s”
 in

 th
e 

W
es

t 

C
oa

st
 B

as
in

. 

(d
)

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
hi

s 
Se

ct
io

n 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

re
su

lt 
in

 M
at

er
ia

l P
hy

si
ca

l H
ar

m
.  

 

(4
)

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 t
he

 f
or

eg
oi

ng
, n

ot
hi

ng
 h

er
ei

n 
pe

rm
its

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 



61
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

of
 w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f 
14

0%
 o

f 
A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r, 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 

un
de

r t
hi

s J
ud

gm
en

t. 
 

(5
)

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

of
 a

ny
 w

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

is
 S

ec
tio

n 
sh

al
l o

cc
ur

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

 in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
.

(6
)

Th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 th

is
 S

ec
tio

n 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

ly
 to

 th
e 

ce
rta

in
 

W
at

er
 

Pu
rv

ey
or

s 
th

at
 

se
rv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

ov
er

ly
in

g 
th

e 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 
an

d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
ve

rly
in

g 
th

e 
W

es
t 

B
as

in
, 

in
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 

w
at

er
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
y 

th
os

e 
W

at
er

 P
ur

ve
yo

rs
 to

 s
er

ve
 s

uc
h 

ov
er

ly
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

It 
is

 n
ot

 m
ad

e,
 n

or
 is

 it
 r

el
at

ed
 to

, a
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

un
de

rf
lo

w
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ba
si

ns
, a

 c
os

t o
r b

en
ef

it 
al

lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 fa
ct

or
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 

th
e 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
  

L.
Sp

ec
ia

l 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 f
or

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

to
ra

ge
 w

ith
in

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 

Po
ol

.

 
Th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 (

“C
B

M
W

D
”)

 s
ha

ll 
ta

ke
 s

uc
h 

ac
tio

n 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
its

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 f
iv

e 
(5

) 
ac

re
-f

ee
t o

r 

fe
w

er
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
18

, 
an

d 
ha

s 
ag

re
ed

, 
by

 s
tip

ul
at

io
n,

 n
ot

 t
o 

ac
qu

ire
 a

ny
 

ad
di

tio
na

l C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

.  
U

po
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

by
 C

B
M

W
D

, t
he

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
an

el
 

m
ay

, a
fte

r 
m

ak
in

g 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
is

 s
ub

se
ct

io
n,

 a
pp

ro
ve

 s
to

ra
ge

 o
f 

w
at

er
 b

y 
C

B
M

W
D

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
st

at
ed

 c
on

di
tio

ns
.  

Th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l m
ay

 o
nl

y 
au

th
or

iz
e 

su
ch

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
fte

r f
in

di
ng

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
to

 

be
 tr

ue
 a

s o
f t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 su

ch
 a

pp
ro

va
l: 

(1
)

C
B

M
W

D
 (

a)
 t

he
n 

ow
ns

 f
iv

e 
(5

) 
ac

re
-f

ee
t 

or
 f

ew
er

 o
f 

A
llo

w
ed

 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n,
 a

nd
 (

b)
 h

as
 n

ot
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

w
at

er
 u

til
iz

in
g 

an
y 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 

rig
ht

s i
t h

ol
ds

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 b
ut

 h
as

 o
nl

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 th
e 

sa
le

 o
r l

ea
si

ng
 o

f t
ho

se
 

rig
ht

s t
o 

ot
he

rs
.

(2
)

Th
er

e 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
sp

ac
e 

fo
r S

to
ra

ge
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 

62
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Po
ol

.

(3
)

C
B

M
W

D
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 i
m

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 t
ha

t 
m

ay
 b

e 

br
ou

gh
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

B
as

in
 a

nd
 st

or
ed

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

. 

(4
)

Th
e 

w
at

er
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

st
or

ag
e 

(a
) 

is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ac

qu
ire

d 
by

 

ot
he

r 
pa

rti
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 s
ur

fa
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
fo

r 
us

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 B
as

in
, 

an
d 

(b
) 

w
as

 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 W

R
D

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 f
or

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

pu
rp

os
es

 a
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pr

ic
e 

th
at

 

C
B

M
W

D
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
se

lls
 im

po
rte

d 
w

at
er

 to
 W

R
D

 a
nd

 W
R

D
 d

ec
lin

ed
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 

sa
id

 w
at

er
, w

ith
in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e.

 

(5
)

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
no

 M
at

er
ia

l 
Ph

ys
ic

al
 H

ar
m

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

 in
to

 st
or

ag
e,

 o
r i

ts
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n,
 in

 th
e 

m
an

ne
r a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 

Th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

IV
(L

)(
1)

(a
) a

bo
ve

 s
ha

ll 
no

t b
e 

op
er

at
iv

e 
un

til
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
9,

 o
r 

up
on

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 C
B

M
W

D
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 

to
 f

iv
e 

(5
) 

ac
re

-f
ee

t o
r 

fe
w

er
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 f
irs

t o
cc

ur
s. 

 C
B

M
W

D
 m

ay
 n

ot
 e

xt
ra

ct
 

th
e 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

, 
an

d 
m

ay
 i

ns
te

ad
 o

nl
y 

tra
ns

fe
r 

th
at

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 t

o 
a 

pa
rty

 

ha
vi

ng
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s, 

or
 t

o 
W

R
D

 f
or

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y.
  

Su
ch

 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 n
ot

 s
o 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
re

e 
(3

) 
ye

ar
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
its

 s
to

ra
ge

 m
ay

 

be
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 b
y 

W
R

D
, a

t i
ts

 o
pt

io
n,

 f
or

 re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t p
ur

po
se

s 
on

ly
, a

t a
 p

ric
e 

no
t e

xc
ee

di
ng

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
t i

nc
ur

re
d 

by
 C

B
M

W
D

 in
 im

po
rti

ng
 a

nd
 s

to
rin

g 
th

e 

w
at

er
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 in
st

an
ce

, p
lu

s 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ch
ar

ge
 f

or
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

no
t e

xc
ee

di
ng

 fi
ve

 p
er

ce
nt

 (5
%

) o
f t

he
 p

ric
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

C
B

M
W

D
 fo

r t
he

 w
at

er
 w

ith
 

no
 o

th
er

 fe
es

 o
r m

ar
ku

ps
 im

po
se

d 
by

 C
B

M
W

D
. E

xc
ep

t a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 

th
is

 S
ec

tio
n,

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 h

el
d 

by
 C

B
M

W
D

 f
or

 a
 t

er
m

 g
re

at
er

 t
ha

n 

th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
 a

nn
ua

l w
at

er
 lo

ss
 e

qu
al

 to
 1

0%
 o

f t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 

of
 s

uc
h 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

. 
 W

at
er

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

lo
ss

 



63
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
ill

 
be

 
de

em
ed

 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

B
as

in
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 

in
 

fu
rth

er
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t f

ur
th

er
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

  
Th

e 
St

or
ag

e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
gr

an
t C

B
M

W
D

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 o
f 

su
ch

 te
rm

, n
ot

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 

to
ta

l 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 o
f 

th
re

e 
(3

) 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ye
ar

s, 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
rin

g,
 i

f 
th

e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l 
de

te
rm

in
es

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
tiv

el
y 

m
ar

ke
te

d 
by

 

C
B

M
W

D
 f

or
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 P
ar

tie
s 

on
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
te

rm
s 

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r. 

 T
he

 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l m
ay

 im
po

se
 s

uc
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
as

 it
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  
A

ny
 re

vi
ew

 b
y 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l h
er

eu
nd

er
 sh

al
l o

nl
y 

oc
cu

r a
t 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

rin
g 

he
ld

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

at
 l

ea
st

 1
5 

da
ys

’ 
(b

ut
 n

ot
 m

or
e 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

’)
 

m
ai

le
d 

no
tic

e 
to

 a
ll 

Pa
rti

es
 to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
at

 w
hi

ch
 h

ea
rin

g 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 c

om
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 a

ff
or

de
d 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f a
ny

 s
uc

h 
de

ci
si

on
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l 
m

ay
 c

on
si

de
r 

an
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
on

 s
ho

rte
r 

no
tic

e 
un

de
r 

ex
ig

en
t 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
os

s 
of

 th
e 

w
at

er
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 b

e 
st

or
ed

 if
 

ac
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 ta
ke

n 
so

on
er

.  
C

B
M

W
D

 s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 a
pp

ea
l a

ny
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 

in
ac

tio
n 

by
 th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pa

ne
l t

o 
th

is
 c

ou
rt.

  T
he

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
nd

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 S

to
re

d 

W
at

er
 h

er
eu

nd
er

 s
ha

ll 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
th

is
 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 c

ou
rt 

fin
ds

 a
nd

 d
ec

la
re

s 
th

at
 th

is
 s

ub
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
tit

ut
es

 a
 “

co
ur

t 

or
de

r 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

ur
t h

av
in

g 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
ad

ju
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 b
as

in
 w

he
re

 st
or

ag
e 

is
 so

ug
ht

” 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 o
f 

W
at

er
 C

od
e 

§7
16

10
(b

)(
2)

(B
). 

 N
ot

hi
ng

 i
n 

th
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 i

m
pe

de
s 

C
B

M
W

D
’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 s

to
re

 w
at

er
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 a

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 a
n 

ad
ju

di
ca

te
d 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

s 
ho

ld
er

 
as

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 

by
 

W
at

er
 

C
od

e 

§ 
71

61
0(

b)
(2

)(
A

) a
nd

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

M
.

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

.

 
It 

is
 in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
 a

nd
 in

 fu
rth

er
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 p
hy

si
ca

l s
ol

ut
io

n 
fo

r W
R

D
 to

 

pr
ud

en
tly

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
its

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

is
cr

et
io

n 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e,
 s

pr
ea

d,
 a

nd
 in

je
ct

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

W
at

er
, 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 f

or
 i

n-
lie

u 
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t, 

an
d 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
to

 f
ul

fil
l 

its
 r

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 

fu
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 W

at
er

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
60

00
0 

et
. s

eq
.  

H
yd

ro
lo

gi
c,

 

64
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 n

ow
 p

re
va

ili
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
St

at
e 

re
qu

ire
 th

at
 W

R
D

 b
e 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 to

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 d
is

cr
et

io
n 

an
d 

ha
ve

 f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
m

pl
is

hm
en

t 

of
 i

ts
 r

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
fu

nc
tio

n.
  

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, 
W

R
D

 m
ay

 p
re

-p
ur

ch
as

e 
or

 d
ef

er
 t

he
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

W
at

er
, a

nd
 m

ay
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t 
W

at
er

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 m

os
t 

fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
cl

im
at

ic
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
as

 it
 m

ay
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
nd

 p
ru

de
nt

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s. 

 It
 is

 th
e 

in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tie
s 

to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r s
uc

h 
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

ap
tu

re
 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 i

nf
lo

w
s 

du
rin

g 
w

et
 y

ea
rs

, 
re

ca
pt

ur
e 

of
 w

at
er

 w
he

n 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

an
d 

ar
tif

ic
ia

l 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t w
he

n 
w

at
er

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
ra

te
, f

or
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f t

he
 B

as
in

 a
nd

 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
 to

 th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

llo
w

 W
R

D
 to

 

m
ee

t i
ts

 r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t n

ee
ds

 to
 m

ak
e 

 A
PA

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

by
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

ho
ld

er
s. 

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, W
R

D
 s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
rig

ht
 to

 o
cc

up
y 

up
 to

 1
10

,0
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 

of
 th

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 a
s 

th
e 

“B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

” 
fo

r 
th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 

an
d 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t o
f w

at
er

, o
r t

o 
en

su
re

 s
pa

ce
 re

m
ai

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 to
 c

ap
tu

re
 

na
tu

ra
l i

nf
lo

w
s 

du
rin

g 
w

et
 y

ea
rs

 fo
r t

he
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 th
e 

pa
rti

es
 to

 th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
to

 o
ff

se
t 

ov
er

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n.

   
Th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
rig

ht
 is

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

llo
w

 W
R

D
 to

 s
el

l o
r l

ea
se

 s
to

re
d 

w
at

er
, s

to
ra

ge
, o

r w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

.
To

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 W

R
D

 d
oe

s n
ot

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
ll 

of
 su

ch
 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

, t
ha

t 
po

rti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 t
ha

t 
is

 n
ot

 t
he

n 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 o

th
er

 P
ar

tie
s 

to
 s

to
re

 w
at

er
 o

n 
a 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

nd
 s

pa
ce

-

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ba

si
s. 

 N
o 

Pa
rty

 m
ay

 u
se

 a
ny

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 fo

r s
pa

ce
-

av
ai

la
bl

e 
st

or
ag

e 
un

le
ss

 th
at

 P
ar

ty
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
m

ax
im

iz
ed

 it
s a

llo
w

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 

its
 In

di
vi

du
al

 S
to

ra
ge

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
al

l a
va

ila
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 u
se

.  

W
R

D
’s

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o 

us
e 

an
y 

po
rti

on
 o

f 
its

 B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
ca

us
e 

fo
rf

ei
tu

re
 o

r 
cr

ea
te

 a
 li

m
ita

tio
n 

of
 it

s 
rig

ht
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
pa

ce
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

W
R

D
’s

 f
irs

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
rig

ht
 t

o 
th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

of
 s

pa
ce

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
bs

ol
ut

e.
  

To
 t

he
 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 c
on

fli
ct

 b
et

w
ee

n 
W

R
D

 a
nd

 a
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 

an
d 

de
si

re
 to

 u
se

 a
ny

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ac
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r r
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t u

p 
to

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 

lim
its

 s
et

 f
or

th
 in

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n,

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 W
R

D
 w

ill
 p

re
va

il.
  

If
 a

 p
ar

ty
 o

th
er

 th
an

 



65
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

W
R

D
 i

s 
us

in
g 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 s
pa

ce
 o

n 
a 

“s
pa

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e”

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 a

 

co
nf

lic
t d

ev
el

op
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

W
R

D
 a

nd
 th

e 
st

or
in

g 
pa

rty
, t

he
 s

to
rin

g 
pa

rty
 w

ill
, u

po
n 

no
tic

e 

fr
om

 W
R

D
, e

va
cu

at
e 

th
e 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 w
ith

in
 n

in
et

y 
(9

0)
 d

ay
s 

th
er

ea
fte

r. 
 In

 s
uc

h 
ev

en
t, 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 s

ha
ll 

be
 f

irs
t i

n 
tim

e,
 f

irs
t i

n 

rig
ht

, a
nd

 th
e 

la
st

 P
ar

ty
 to

 s
to

re
 w

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 e
va

cu
at

e 
fir

st
 u

nt
il 

ad
eq

ua
te

 

sp
ac

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 to
 m

ee
t W

R
D

’s
 n

ee
ds

.  

Th
e 

st
or

in
g 

pa
rty

 o
r 

pa
rti

es
 a

ss
um

e 
al

l 
ris

ks
 o

f 
w

as
te

, s
pi

ll 
an

d 
lo

ss
 r

eg
ar

dl
es

s 
of

 t
he

 

ha
rd

sh
ip

.  
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
va

cu
at

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

W
R

D
’s

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 in

te
nt

 to
 o

cc
up

y 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 in

 

fu
rth

er
an

ce
 

of
 

th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
so

lu
tio

n 
w

ith
ou

t 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y.

  
N

ot
hi

ng
 h

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l 

pe
rm

it 
W

R
D

 t
o 

lim
it 

or
 e

nc
um

be
r, 

by
 c

on
tra

ct
 o

r 

ot
he

rw
is

e,
 it

s 
rig

ht
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 f
or

 R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t p

ur
po

se
s 

fo
r 

an
y 

re
as

on
, 

or
 

to
 

m
ak

e 
sp

ac
e 

th
er

ei
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
an

y 
pe

rs
on

 
by

 
an

y 
m

ea
ns

.  

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

fo
re

go
in

g,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 e

xc
es

s 
sp

ac
e 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 w
at

er
 e

va
cu

at
ed

 

fr
om

 th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

is
 S

ec
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
de

em
ed

 a
dd

ed
 to

 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
In

di
vi

du
al

 S
to

ra
ge

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l, 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
rig

ht
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
is

 Ju
dg

m
en

t. 

N
.

W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n.

 

 
Th

e 
pa

rti
es

, i
n 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 W
R

D
, m

ay
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

at
 a

dd
 to

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 r
el

ia
bl

e 
yi

el
d 

of
 th

e 
B

as
in

.  
  

In
no

va
tio

ns
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 th

at
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ax

im
iz

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l u
se

 o
f w

at
er

 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

om
ot

ed
.  

To
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
th

at
 P

ar
tie

s 
to

 t
he

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
in

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 

W
R

D
, i

m
pl

em
en

t a
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
s a

dd
iti

on
al

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 re
lia

bl
e 

w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

 to
 th

e 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
, 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s 

in
 t

he
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 

co
m

m
en

su
ra

te
ly

 in
 a

n 
am

ou
nt

 to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l t
o 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 

yi
el

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 A
ug

m
en

te
d 

su
pp

lie
s 

of
 w

at
er

 r
es

ul
tin

g 

fr
om

 s
uc

h 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t m

ay
 b

e 
ex

tra
ct

ed
 o

r s
to

re
d 

as
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 in
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
an

ne
r a

s 
ot

he
r w

at
er

.  
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 a
ny

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

ha
ll 

be
 

66
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

vo
lu

nt
ar

y.
  

A
 p

ar
ty

 m
ay

 e
le

ct
 t

o 
tre

at
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
as

 a
 W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

(f
or

 t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

se
ek

in
g 

an
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

ha
t 

pa
rty

’s
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n)
 o

r 
m

ay
 e

le
ct

 t
o 

tre
at

 s
uc

h 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

as
 a

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 o

th
er

 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t. 

 T
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 a

ny
 W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 b

e 
at

 th
e 

fu
ll 

di
sc

re
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

pa
rti

es
.  

A
ll 

W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 

(1
)

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

Pa
rti

es
.  

 
Pa

rti
es

 w
ho

 p
ro

po
se

 a
 W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t (
“P

ro
je

ct
 L

ea
ds

”)
 m

ay
 

do
 s

o 
in

 th
ei

r 
ab

so
lu

te
 d

is
cr

et
io

n,
 u

po
n 

su
ch

 te
rm

s 
as

 th
ey

 m
ay

 d
et

er
m

in
e.

  
A

ll 

ot
he

r p
ar

tie
s 

to
 th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

on
 c

on
di

tio
n 

th
at

 t
he

y 
sh

ar
e 

pr
op

or
tio

na
lly

 i
n 

co
m

m
on

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

its
, a

nd
 a

ss
um

e 
th

e 
ob

lig
at

io
n 

to
 b

ea
r e

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 th

e 
co

st
 

of
 a

ny
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
ne

ed
s. 

 N
ot

ic
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
hi

ch
 g

en
er

al
ly

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 

an
d 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

w
ith

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 ti

m
e 

fo
r d

el
ib

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 

by
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

es
e 

pa
rti

es
 w

ho
 c

ou
ld

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e.
  

D
isp

ut
es

 o
ve

r 
th

e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f 

no
tic

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l, 
an

d 
th

en
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

rt 

un
de

r 
its

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n.

 P
ar

tie
s 

w
ho

 e
le

ct
 t

o 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 (
“P

ro
je

ct
 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s”

) 
m

ay
 d

o 
so

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

ey
 a

gr
ee

 t
o 

of
fe

r 
cu

st
om

ar
y 

w
rit

te
n 

an
d 

le
ga

lly
 b

in
di

ng
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

s t
ha

t t
he

y 
w

ill
 b

ea
r t

he
ir 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 c
os

ts
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 

to
 

th
e 

W
at

er
 

R
ig

ht
s 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
or

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ot

he
r 

va
lu

ab
le

 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
de

em
ed

 su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 b

y 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t L
ea

ds
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

.

(2
)

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 E
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

R
ig

ht
s. 

 

 
Th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 a
 W

at
er

 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pa

ne
l, 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

vi
ew

 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
rt.

 T
he

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l e
vi

de
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
 th

at
 th

e 
W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

lo
ng

-

te
rm

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 y
ie

ld
 o

f 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

B
as

in
 b

y 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 a
t l

ea
st

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 



67
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

pr
op

os
ed

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s.

(3
)

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 E

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
R

ig
ht

s. 
 

 
A

 p
ar

ty
 th

at
 e

le
ct

s t
o 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
 a

nd
 p

ay
s t

ha
t p

ar
ty

’s
 fu

ll 
pr

o-
ra

ta
 sh

ar
e 

of
 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

an
y 

W
at

er
 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d/
or

 
re

ac
he

s 
an

 

ag
re

em
en

t 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

ot
he

r 
va

lu
ab

le
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 

to
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Le
ad

s 
an

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
nt

s, 
w

ill
 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 

co
m

m
en

su
ra

te
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s. 

 N
on

-p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
pa

rti
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

r a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s. 

 A
ny

 p
ar

ty
 th

at
 e

le
ct

s 
no

t t
o 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ay

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 c

os
ts

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

w
he

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 a
s 

a 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 

W
R

D
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

(4
)

N
om

in
al

 F
lu

ct
ua

tio
ns

.

B
ec

au
se

 w
at

er
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

, f
lu

ct
ua

tio
ns

 in
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

te
m

po
ra

ry
, n

om
in

al
 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
. 

(5
)

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 N

ew
 W

at
er

.  
 

 
Th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 

a 
W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t s
ha

ll 
be

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 n

ew
 w

at
er

 in
 th

e 

B
as

in
 th

at
 is

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 th

at
 W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
 N

o 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

sh
al

l 

oc
cu

r 
an

d 
no

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

 s
ha

ll 
be

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

un
til

 n
ew

 w
at

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
ly

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
in

to
 th

e 
B

as
in

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
 A

ny
 a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 a

 

W
at

er
 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

(a
) 

re
qu

iri
ng

 
re

gu
la

r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f s
uc

h 
ne

w
 w

at
er

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 (b
) 

re
qu

iri
ng

 m
ak

e-
up

 w
at

er
 o

r 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 p
ay

m
en

t t
he

re
fo

r 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 a

ct
ua

l 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
au

gm
en

ta
tio

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 m

ee
t p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
, a

nd
 (c

) a
dj

us
tin

g 
ex

tra
ct

io
n 

rig
ht

s 
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
m

at
ch

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 w

at
er

 

cr
ea

te
d.

  
Th

e 
rig

ht
 t

o 
ex

tra
ct

 a
ug

m
en

te
d 

w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 B
as

in
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 a
 

pa
rty

’s
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 a

 W
at

er
 A

ug
m

en
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 f

or
 

68
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 a

 p
ar

ty
’s

 A
llo

w
ed

 P
um

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n.
  N

o 

R
ep

le
ni

sh
m

en
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 l
ev

ie
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ug

m
en

te
d 

w
at

er
.

(6
)

Li
m

ita
tio

n.
  

 
N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 th

e 
fo

re
go

in
g,

 W
R

D
 w

ill
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

y 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

or
 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
s 

un
de

r 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t 

by
 v

irt
ue

 o
f 

its
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 a

 W
at

er
 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
 I

f 
W

R
D

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 i
n 

a 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

hr
ou

gh
 fu

nd
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, i

ts
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ha
ll 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 o

ff
se

t i
ts

 re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s.

O
.

Li
m

its
 o

n 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r R

ev
ie

w
.  

 

 
It 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

or
 W

at
er

m
as

te
r, 

or
 a

ny
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
bo

dy
 t

he
re

of
, 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 o

r 
ap

pr
ov

e 
an

y 
of

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 a

ff
ec

te
d 

Pa
rty

 m
ay

 p
ro

ce
ed

: 
 (

i) 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f a

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t, 
ex

ce
pt

 fo
r e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 

ab
ov

e 
14

0%
 o

f a
 P

ar
ty

’s
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
rig

ht
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
IV

(J
) o

f t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t; 

(ii
) 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t o
f 

th
e 

B
as

in
 w

ith
 R

ep
le

ni
sh

m
en

t W
at

er
 b

y 
W

R
D

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 W

at
er

 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
60

00
0 

et
 s

eq
., 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t o

f 
w

at
er

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s 

ho
ld

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f 

ad
ju

di
ca

te
d 

w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s;
 (

iii
) 

W
R

D
’s

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

; (
iv

) C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f t

he
 fi

lli
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

to
ra

ge
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

oo
l, 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

is
 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
as

 lo
ng

 a
s e

xi
st

in
g 

w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 sp

re
ad

in
g,

 o
r i

nj
ec

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
re

 u
se

d;
 

an
d 

(v
) i

nd
iv

id
ua

l t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 o

f t
he

 ri
gh

t t
o 

pr
od

uc
e 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 a
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 

IV
(F

). 
 A

ll 
ot

he
r S

to
ra

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

al
l W

at
er

 A
ug

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 

to
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

he
re

in
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 (i
) m

at
er

ia
l v

ar
ia

nc
es

 to
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 

cr
ite

ria
 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ex
em

pt
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

pr
oc

es
s, 

(ii
) 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 t
o 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

, 
(ii

i) 
a 

pa
rty

’s
 

pr
op

os
al

 f
or

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
in

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
ap

po
rti

on
m

en
t 

of
 A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 o

n 
a 

no
n-

pr
io

rit
y,

 s
pa

ce
-a

va
ila

bl
e,

 i
nt

er
im

 b
as

is
, a

nd
 

(iv
) 

St
or

ag
e,

 b
y 

m
ea

ns
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n,

 w
he

n 
ne

w
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 



69
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

sp
re

ad
in

g,
 o

r i
nj

ec
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 b

e 
ut

ili
ze

d.
 

P.
H

ea
rin

g 
Pr

oc
es

s F
or

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r R
ev

ie
w

.  
 

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 s

ha
ll 

be
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 b
y 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
w

he
re

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
st

or
ag

e 
or

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 S

to
re

d 
W

at
er

 i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

or
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 u
nd

er
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t: 

(1
)

N
o 

la
te

r 
th

an
 th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

no
tic

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 is

su
ed

 f
or

 th
e 

st
or

ag
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 th
e 

m
at

te
r s

ha
ll 

be
 s

et
 fo

r h
ea

rin
gs

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l. 
 

A
 s

ta
ff

 re
po

rt 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
W

R
D

 s
ta

ff
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

st
or

ag
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s 

Pa
ne

l 
m

ay
 p

re
pa

re
 a

n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ta
ff

 re
po

rt,
 if

 it
 e

le
ct

s t
o 

do
 so

. 

(2
)

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
W

R
D

 a
nd

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l (

si
tti

ng
 jo

in
tly

 a
s 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l) 
sh

al
l 

co
nd

uc
t 

a 
jo

in
t 

he
ar

in
g 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 

th
e 

st
or

ag
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

(3
)

A
ll 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 s

ha
ll 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

m
an

ne
r 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 R
ul

es
 a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
.  

Th
e 

R
ul

es
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
at

 

al
l 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
f 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 o

pe
n 

to
 w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

th
at

 

re
as

on
ab

le
 n

ot
ic

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
gi

ve
n 

of
 a

ll 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

(4
)

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
W

R
D

 a
nd

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l s

ha
ll 

ea
ch

 a
do

pt
 

w
rit

te
n 

fin
di

ng
s 

ex
pl

ai
ni

ng
 it

s 
de

ci
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
, a

lth
ou

gh
 

if 
bo

th
 e

nt
iti

es
 r

ea
ch

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
de

ci
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
th

ey
 s

ha
ll 

w
or

k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 a

do
pt

 a
 u

ni
fo

rm
 se

t o
f f

in
di

ng
s. 

 

(5
)

U
nl

es
s 

bo
th

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
W

R
D

 a
nd

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

sh
al

l 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 

de
ni

ed
 (

a 
“P

ro
je

ct
 D

en
ia

l”
). 

 I
f 

bo
th

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
W

R
D

 a
nd

 t
he

 W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 

Pa
ne

l a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ee
m

ed
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

(a
 “

Pr
oj

ec
t A

pp
ro

va
l”

). 

Q
.

Tr
ia

l C
ou

rt 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(1
)

Th
e 

ap
pl

ic
an

t 
m

ay
 s

ee
k 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 r

ec
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
 

70
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Pr
oj

ec
t D

en
ia

l. 
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 sh
al

l b
e 

no
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r m
an

da
to

ry
 re

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 

or
 m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 a

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
or

 a
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

en
ia

l 
ei

th
er

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
B

od
y,

 o
r b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
W

at
er

 R
ig

ht
s P

an
el

. 

(2
)

 A
ny

 P
ar

ty
 m

ay
 f

ile
 a

n 
ap

pe
al

 f
ro

m
 a

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
en

ia
l w

ith
 th

is
 C

ou
rt,

 a
s f

ur
th

er
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

(F
). 

 

(3
)

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

(a
) 

pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

fu
ll 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 i
ts

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

, (
b)

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
n 

ex
pe

di
tio

us
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ea
l t

o 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 a

nd
 (c

) a
cc

or
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f d
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 th
e 

ex
pe

rti
se

 o
f 

th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l, 
th

e 
ap

pe
al

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
sh

al
l 

be
 b

as
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

on
 t

he
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
re

co
rd

, s
ub

je
ct

 o
nl

y 
to

 th
e 

lim
ite

d 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

in
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 C
od

e 
of

 

C
iv

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

se
ct

io
n 

10
94

.5
(e

). 

(4
)

If
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

W
R

D
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 th
e 

W
at

er
 R

ig
ht

s 
Pa

ne
l e

ac
h 

vo
te

 to
 

de
ny

 o
r 

ap
pr

ov
e 

a 
pr

op
os

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
, i

t s
ha

ll 
be

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l a
nd

 th
at

 d
ec

is
io

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
ac

co
rd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
rt 

de
fe

re
nc

e 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
es

t. 
 I

f 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

bo
di

es
 v

ot
es

 t
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 th
e 

ot
he

r r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

bo
dy

 v
ot

es
 to

 d
en

y 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

st
or

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
en

 th
e 

C
ou

rt’
s 

re
vi

ew
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

e 
no

vo
, a

lth
ou

gh
 s

til
l r

es
tri

ct
ed

 

to
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

re
co

rd
.  

In
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f 
an

y 
de

 n
ov

o 
Tr

ia
l C

ou
rt 

re
vi

ew
, t

he
 

fin
di

ng
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 t
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
bo

di
es

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
be

 a
cc

or
de

d 
an

y 

w
ei

gh
t i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 o

f t
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
em

. 

R
.

Sp
ac

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

St
or

ag
e,

 R
el

at
iv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y,
 a

nd
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
of

 “
Sp

ill
ed

” 

W
at

er
.  

 

 
To

 b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

rio
rit

y 
us

es
 o

f 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
fu

ll 

ut
ili

za
tio

n 
of

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 

th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

, 
an

y 
Pa

rty
 m

ay
 m

ak
e 

in
te

rim
, 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 u

se
 o

f 
th

en
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 u
nu

se
d 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 a
ny

 c
at

eg
or

y 
of

 A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 

C
ap

ac
ity

, 
an

d 
th

en
 i

f 
al

l 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 i

s 
be

in
g 

fu
lly

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
St

or
ed

 



71
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

W
at

er
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 (
“S

pa
ce

-A
va

ila
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e”
), 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

: 

(1
)

A
ny

 P
ar

ty
 m

ay
 e

ng
ag

e 
in

 S
pa

ce
-A

va
ila

bl
e 

St
or

ag
e 

w
ith

ou
t 

pr
io

r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
st

or
in

g 
Pa

rty
 o

r P
ar

tie
s s

ha
ll 

as
su

m
e 

al
l r

is
ks

 o
f w

as
te

, s
pi

ll,
 a

nd
 lo

ss
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f t

he
 h

ar
ds

hi
p.

  W
he

ne
ve

r t
he

 S
to

ra
ge

 

Pa
ne

l d
et

er
m

in
es

 th
at

 a
 P

ar
ty

 is
 m

ak
in

g 
us

e 
of

 e
xc

es
s 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
 

fo
r 

Sp
ac

e-
A

va
ila

bl
e 

St
or

ag
e,

 t
he

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
an

el
 s

ha
ll 

is
su

e 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 t

he
 

Pa
rty

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
th

em
 o

f t
he

 ri
sk

 o
f s

pi
ll 

an
d 

lo
ss

. 

(2
)

W
he

ne
ve

r 
th

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 

Sp
ac

e 
is

 
ne

ed
ed

 
to

 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
us

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ca
te

go
ry

 o
f A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 

C
ap

ac
ity

, o
r 

W
R

D
 s

ee
ks

 to
 m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 it

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
rig

ht
 to

 th
e 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

 to
 fu

lfi
ll 

its
 re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t f

un
ct

io
n,

 th
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Pa
ne

l s
ha

ll 
is

su
e 

a 
no

tic
e 

to
 e

va
cu

at
e 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
 o

r 
B

as
in

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
, 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

, 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 t
im

e-
pe

rio
ds

 s
et

 f
or

th
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 

A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

 T
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

e 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 is

 n
ot

 ti
m

el
y 

ev
ac

ua
te

d 
su

ch
 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 i

nt
o 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
ex

ce
ss

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

ew
at

er
ed

 S
pa

ce
, 

fir
st

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 A

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 S

to
ra

ge
 C

ap
ac

ity
, 

if 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 a
nd

 t
he

n 
if 

al
l 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
ed

 S
to

ra
ge

 C
ap

ac
ity

 i
s 

be
in

g 
fu

lly
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

B
as

in
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
es

er
ve

.  
If

 n
o 

ex
ce

ss
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

D
ew

at
er

ed
 S

pa
ce

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
, 

th
en

 t
he

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ee
m

ed
 

sp
ill

ed
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
B

as
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 i

n 

fu
rth

er
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y.

  
A

 P
ar

ty
 th

at
 s

ee
ks

 to
 c

on
ve

rt 
th

e 
St

or
ed

 W
at

er
 te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
he

ld
 in

 

in
te

rim
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

s 
Sp

ac
e-

A
va

ila
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e 
to

 a
 m

or
e 

fir
m

 r
ig

ht
, 

m
ay

 i
n 

its
 

di
sc

re
tio

n,
 c

on
tra

ct
 f

or
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
no

th
er

 P
ar

ty
’s

 I
nd

iv
id

ua
l S

to
ra

ge
 A

llo
ca

tio
n,

 

or
 m

ay
 a

dd
 s

uc
h 

w
at

er
 t

o 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
oo

l 
on

ce
 s

pa
ce

 t
he

re
in

 

be
co

m
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

(3
)

N
o 

St
or

ed
 W

at
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

72
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 h
el

d 
as

 S
to

re
d 

W
at

er
 p

lu
s t

he
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f w
at

er
 h

el
d 

in
 th

e 
B

as
in

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
 e

xc
ee

ds
 3

30
,0

00
 (t

hr
ee

 h
un

dr
ed

 a
nd

 th
irt

y 
th

ou
sa

nd
) a

cr
e-

fe
et

 

in
 th

e 
C

en
tra

l B
as

in
. 

V
. 

C
O

N
TI

N
U

IN
G

 JU
R

IS
D

IC
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

C
O

U
R

T.
 

 
Th

e 
C

ou
rt 

he
re

by
 re

se
rv

es
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

up
on

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 in

te
re

st
ed

 

pa
rty

, 
or

 u
po

n 
its

 o
w

n 
m

ot
io

n,
 m

ay
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

ed
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

at
te

rs
 a

nd
 a

ny
 

m
at

te
rs

 in
ci

de
nt

 th
er

et
o:

 

A
.

Its
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
ba

si
n 

an
d 

an
 e

co
no

m
ic

 u
til

iz
at

io
n 

of
 C

en
tra

l 

B
as

in
 f

or
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 s

to
ra

ge
, 

ta
ki

ng
 i

nt
o 

ac
co

un
t 

an
y 

th
en

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 a
rti

fic
ia

l 

re
pl

en
is

hm
en

t o
f 

C
en

tra
l B

as
in

 b
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 a
lle

vi
at

in
g 

w
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 a

nn
ua

l 
ov

er
dr

af
ts

 u
po

n 
C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 a
nd

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
re

le
va

nt
 

fa
ct

or
s. 

B
.

W
he

th
er

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 h

as
 lo

st
 a

ll 
or

 a
ny

 

po
rti

on
 o

f 
hi

s 
rig

ht
s 

to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 a

nd
, 

if 
so

, 
to

 r
at

ab
ly

 

ad
ju

st
 t

he
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
pa

rti
es

 a
nd

 r
at

ab
ly

 t
he

re
to

 a
ny

 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 A

llo
w

ed
 P

um
pi

ng
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 su

ch
 p

ar
ty

. 

C
.

To
 r

em
ov

e 
an

y 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r 

or
 c

on
st

itu
en

t b
od

y 
ap

po
in

te
d 

fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 

tim
e 

an
d 

ap
po

in
t a

 n
ew

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r; 
an

d 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
e 

th
e 

du
tie

s, 
po

w
er

s 
an

d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r o

r i
ts

 c
on

st
itu

en
t b

od
ie

s 
an

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 a
nd

 

fu
rth

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
an

d 
or

de
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

or
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 Ju

dg
m

en
t. 

D
.

To
 r

ev
is

e 
th

e 
pr

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

 a
nd

 t
o 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 f

or
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l p
ur

ch
as

es
 a

nd
 su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
. 

E.
In

 c
as

e 
of

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

or
 n

ec
es

si
ty

, 
to

 p
er

m
it 

ex
tra

ct
io

ns
 f

ro
m

 C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 fo

r s
uc

h 
pe

rio
ds

 a
s 

th
e 

C
ou

rt 
m

ay
 d

et
er

m
in

e:
 (i

) r
at

ab
ly

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 th
e 

A
llo

w
ed

 

Pu
m

pi
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
pa

rti
es

; 
or

 (
ii)

 o
n 

a 
no

n-
ra

ta
bl

e 
ba

si
s 

by
 c

er
ta

in
 p

ar
tie

s 
if 



73
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

ei
th

er
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 e
qu

ita
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

pa
rti

es
 is

 

pr
ov

id
ed

.  
Su

ch
 o

ve
re

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

fo
r e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
ne

ce
ss

ity
 

ar
is

in
g 

w
ith

in
 C

en
tra

l 
B

as
in

 a
re

a,
 b

ut
 t

o 
as

si
st

 t
he

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

in
 T

he
 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f t
em

po
ra

ry
 s

ho
rta

ge
 o

r 

th
re

at
en

ed
 t

em
po

ra
ry

 s
ho

rta
ge

 o
f 

its
 i

m
po

rte
d 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y,
 o

r 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 i
na

bi
lit

y 
to

 

de
liv

er
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 it

s 
ar

ea
, b

ut
 o

nl
y 

if 
th

e 
co

ur
t i

s 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 n

o 

pa
rty

 w
ill

 b
e 

irr
ep

ar
ab

ly
 d

am
ag

ed
 th

er
eb

y.
  I

nc
re

as
ed

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
st

 fo
r p

um
pi

ng
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 

de
em

ed
 

irr
ep

ar
ab

le
 

da
m

ag
e.

 
 

Pr
ov

id
ed

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

th
at

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
th

is
 

su
bp

ar
ag

ra
ph

 w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 o

nl
y 

if 
th

e 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 s
ho

rta
ge

, t
hr

ea
te

ne
d 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

ho
rta

ge
, 

or
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 w

as
 e

ith
er

 n
ot

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

vo
id

ab
le

 b
y 

th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
, o

r 
if 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

vo
id

ab
le

, g
oo

d 
re

as
on

 e
xi

st
ed

 f
or

 n
ot

 ta
ki

ng
 th

e 
st

ep
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
vo

id
 it

. 

F.
To

 re
vi

ew
 a

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 W
at

er
m

as
te

r. 

G
.

To
 a

ss
is

t 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 T
he

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 

D
is

tri
ct

 o
f S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 su
bp

ar
ag

ra
ph

 (e
) a

bo
ve

. 

H
.

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r s
uc

h 
ot

he
r m

at
te

rs
 a

s a
re

 n
ot

 c
on

te
m

pl
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 m

ig
ht

 o
cc

ur
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 if
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r w

ou
ld

 d
ef

ea
t a

ny
 o

r 

al
l 

of
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
to

 a
ss

ur
e 

a 
ba

la
nc

ed
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
th

e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

C
en

tra
l 

B
as

in
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

w
at

er
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

its
 n

ee
ds

, 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 
Th

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

f s
uc

h 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

af
te

r 3
0 

da
ys

’ n
ot

ic
e 

to
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

, 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f s

uc
h 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 s

ub
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 E
 

an
d 

G
 a

bo
ve

, w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ex

 p
ar

te
, 

in
 w

hi
ch

 e
ve

nt
 t

he
 m

at
te

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 f

or
th

w
ith

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 

ei
th

er
 u

po
n 

th
e 

C
ou

rt’
s 

ow
n 

m
ot

io
n 

or
 th

e 
m

ot
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 3

0 
da

ys
’ n

ot
ic

e 
sh

al
l 

be
 s

o 
gi

ve
n.

  
W

ith
in

 te
n 

(1
0)

 d
ay

s 
of

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 a

ny
 e

x 
pa

rt
e 

or
de

r, 
th

e 
pa

rty
 s

o 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
sh

al
l 

m
ai

l 
no

tic
e 

th
er

eo
f 

to
 t

he
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tie
s. 

 I
f 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pa

rty
 d

es
ire

s 
C

ou
rt 

re
vi

ew
 

th
er

eo
f, 

th
e 

pa
rty

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 t

he
 e

x 
pa

rt
e 

or
de

r 
sh

al
l 

be
ar

 t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 o
f 

m
ai

lin
g 

no
tic

e 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

, 
or

 m
ay

 i
n 

lie
u 

th
er

eo
f 

un
de

rta
ke

 t
he

 m
ai

lin
g.

  
A

ny
 c

on
tra

ry
 o

r 

74
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

m
od

ifi
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
up

on
 s

uc
h 

re
vi

ew
 s

ha
ll 

no
t p

re
ju

di
ce

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 w

ho
 r

el
ie

d 
on

 s
ai

d 
ex

 p
ar

te
 

or
de

r.

V
I. 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
PR

O
V

IS
IO

N
S.

 

A
.

Ju
dg

m
en

t C
on

st
itu

te
s I

nt
er

 S
e 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n.
   

 
Th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t c

on
st

itu
te

s 
an

 in
te

r 
se

 a
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
rig

ht
s 

of
 a

ll 

pa
rti

es
, e

xc
ep

t a
s m

ay
 b

e 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
lis

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

 ri
gh

ts
 

of
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

 o
f t

hi
s 

Ju
dg

m
en

t, 
or

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

“2
” 

he
re

of
.  

A
ll 

pa
rti

es
 to

 th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t 

re
ta

in
 a

ll 
rig

ht
s 

no
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

rig
ht

, b
y 

co
m

m
on

 la
w

 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 to

 se
ek

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r d
am

ag
es

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f a
ny

 a
ct

 o
r o

m
is

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 

pe
rs

on
.  

Th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t c
on

st
itu

te
s 

a 
“c

ou
rt 

or
de

r”
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 o
f 

W
at

er
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

71
61

0(
B

)(
2)

(b
). 

B
.

A
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

Tr
an

sf
er

, E
tc

., 
of

 R
ig

ht
s. 

  

 
Su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

ot
he

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
hi

s 
Ju

dg
m

en
t, 

an
d 

an
y 

ru
le

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r 
re

qu
iri

ng
 r

ep
or

ts
 r

el
at

iv
e 

th
er

et
o,

 n
ot

hi
ng

 h
er

ei
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
sh

al
l 

be
 

de
em

ed
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
ny

 p
ar

ty
 h

er
et

o 
fr

om
 a

ss
ig

ni
ng

, t
ra

ns
fe

rr
in

g,
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

or
 le

as
in

g 
al

l 

or
 a

ny
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
w

at
er

 r
ig

ht
s 

as
 i

t 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
am

e 
fo

rc
e 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
 a

s 

w
ou

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
un

de
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 ru
le

s o
f l

aw
 a

s e
xi

st
 fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e.

 

C
.

Se
rv

ic
e 

U
po

n 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

to
 P

ar
tie

s o
f V

ar
io

us
 P

ap
er

s.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
of

 t
he

 J
ud

gm
en

t 
on

 t
ho

se
 p

ar
tie

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 t
ha

t 
ce

rta
in

 

St
ip

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

fo
r 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
or

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
fil

ed
 a

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 e

le
ct

io
n 

to
 b

e 

bo
un

d 
by

 t
he

 E
xc

ha
ng

e 
Po

ol
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 m

ad
e 

by
 f

irs
t 

cl
as

s 
m

ai
l, 

po
st

ag
e 

pr
ep

ai
d,

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
si

gn
ee

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 a

dd
re

ss
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r 
th

at
 p

ur
po

se
 in

 th
e 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 a
nd

 fi
le

d 
C

ou
nt

er
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

St
ip

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 J

ud
gm

en
t o

r i
n 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 a
nd

 fi
le

d 
“N

ot
ic

e 
of

 E
le

ct
io

n 
to

 b
e 

B
ou

nd
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l P

ro
vi

si
on

s,”
 a

s t
he

 

ca
se

 m
ay

 b
e,

 o
r i

n 
an

y 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

fil
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

rt.
 

 
Ea

ch
 p

ar
ty

 w
ho

 h
as

 n
ot

 h
er

et
of

or
e 

m
ad

e 
su

ch
 a

 d
es

ig
na

tio
n 

sh
al

l, 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 

af
te

r t
he

 J
ud

gm
en

t s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

se
rv

ed
 u

po
n 

th
at

 p
ar

ty
, f

ile
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 w
ith

 p
ro

of
 



75
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

f a
 c

op
y 

up
on

 th
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r, 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

rs
on

 to
 w

ho
m

 

an
d 

th
e 

ad
dr

es
s a

t w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 n
ot

ic
es

, d
et

er
m

in
at

io
ns

, r
eq

ue
st

s, 
de

m
an

ds
, o

bj
ec

tio
ns

, 

re
po

rts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 u

po
n 

th
at

 p
ar

ty
 o

r 
de

liv
er

ed
 to

 th
at

 

pa
rty

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
so

 se
rv

ed
 o

r d
el

iv
er

ed
. 

 
A

 la
te

r 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

fil
ed

 a
nd

 s
er

ve
d 

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
an

ne
r 

by
 a

ny
 p

ar
ty

 

sh
al

l 
be

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 f

ili
ng

 a
s 

to
 t

he
 t

he
n 

fu
tu

re
 n

ot
ic

es
, d

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
, 

re
qu

es
ts

, d
em

an
ds

, o
bj

ec
tio

ns
, r

ep
or

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 u

po
n 

or
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 th

at
 p

ar
ty

. 

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

to
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

 u
po

n 
an

y 
pa

rty
 b

y 
th

e 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r, 

by
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ty
, o

r 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
rt,

 o
r 

an
y 

ite
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 u

po
n 

or
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o 

a 
pa

rty
 u

nd
er

 o
r 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

Ju
dg

m
en

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
by

 d
ep

os
it 

in
 t

he
 m

ai
l, 

fir
st

 c
la

ss
, 

po
st

ag
e 

pr
ep

ai
d,

 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
to

 th
e 

de
si

gn
ee

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 a

dd
re

ss
 in

 th
e 

la
te

st
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n 
fil

ed
 b

y 
th

at
 p

ar
ty

. 

D
.

Ju
dg

m
en

t D
oe

s N
ot

 A
ff

ec
t R

ig
ht

s, 
Po

w
er

s, 
Et

c.
, o

f P
la

in
tif

f D
is

tri
ct

. 

 
N

ot
hi

ng
 h

er
ei

n 
co

ns
tit

ut
es

 a
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
or

 a
dj

ud
ic

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
ha

ll 
fo

re
cl

os
e 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 D
is

tri
ct

 f
ro

m
 e

xe
rc

is
in

g 
su

ch
 r

ig
ht

s, 
po

w
er

s, 
pr

iv
ile

ge
s 

an
d 

pr
er

og
at

iv
es

 a
s 

it 

m
ay

 n
ow

 h
av

e 
or

 m
ay

 h
er

ea
fte

r h
av

e 
by

 re
as

on
 o

f p
ro

vi
si

on
s o

f l
aw

. 

E.
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 O
rd

er
 u

nd
er

 In
te

rim
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
  

 
Th

e 
or

de
r o

f C
ou

rt 
m

ad
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
“S

tip
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

te
rim

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t a

nd
 

Pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r O

rd
er

” 
sh

al
l r

em
ai

n 
in

 e
ff

ec
t t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

is
 

Ju
dg

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

co
m

e 
fin

al
 (s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

re
se

rv
ed

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
rt)

. 

F.
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f E

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
Ex

ch
an

ge
es

; R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 E
xt

ra
ct

io
ns

.

 
W

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 p
ur

ch
as

es
, t

he
 fi

rs
t e

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
ea

ch
 E

xc
ha

ng
ee

 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
em

ed
 th

e 
ex

tra
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
nt

iti
es

 o
f w

at
er

 w
hi

ch
 th

at
 p

ar
ty

 is
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 

ex
tra

ct
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
hi

s 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l f
or

 th
at

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Y

ea
r. 

 

Ea
ch

 E
xc

ha
ng

ee
 sh

al
l b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

pu
m

pe
d 

hi
s E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 re
qu

es
t s

o 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

an
d 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 e
ac

h 
Ex

ch
an

go
r 

in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 to
 e

ac
h 

Ex
ch

an
go

r’
s 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

ut
ili

ze
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

Ex
ch

an
ge

 P
oo

l 
re

qu
es

ts
.  

N
o 

Ex
ch

an
go

r 

sh
al

l 
ev

er
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 t
o 

ha
ve

 r
el

in
qu

is
he

d 
or

 l
os

t 
an

y 
of

 i
ts

 r
ig

ht
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 

76
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Ju
dg

m
en

t b
y 

re
as

on
 o

f 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. 

 E
ac

h 
Ex

ch
an

ge
e 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 a
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

Ex
ch

an
go

rs
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

Ex
ch

an
ge

e,
 f

or
 a

ny
 t

ax
 o

r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

up
on

 t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 l

ev
ie

d 
fo

r 
re

pl
en

is
hm

en
t 

pu
rp

os
es

 b
y 

W
R

D
 o

r 
by

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

ag
en

cy
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
w

at
er

 e
xt

ra
ct

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

e 
by

 r
ea

so
n 

of
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Po
ol

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ur
ch

as
es

.  
N

o 
Ex

ch
an

go
r 

or
 

Ex
ch

an
ge

e 
sh

al
l a

cq
ui

re
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ri
gh

ts
, w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

an
y 

pa
rty

 to
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n,
 to

 

ex
tra

ct
 w

at
er

s 
fr

om
 C

en
tra

l B
as

in
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
W

at
er

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

05
.1

 b
y 

re
as

on
 o

f 

th
e 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
an

d 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 P

oo
l. 

G
.

Ju
dg

m
en

t B
in

di
ng

 o
n 

Su
cc

es
so

rs
, E

tc
.  

 

 
Th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t a

nd
 a

ll 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 th
er

eo
f 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

 a
nd

 b
in

di
ng

 u
po

n 
no

t 

on
ly

 t
he

 p
ar

tie
s 

to
 t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n,
 b

ut
 a

s 
w

el
l 

to
 t

he
ir 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
he

irs
, 

ex
ec

ut
or

s, 

ad
m

in
is

tra
to

rs
, s

uc
ce

ss
or

s, 
as

si
gn

s, 
le

ss
ee

s, 
lic

en
se

es
 a

nd
 to

 th
e 

ag
en

ts
, e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 

at
to

rn
ey

s i
n 

fa
ct

 o
f a

ny
 su

ch
 p

er
so

ns
. 

H
.

C
os

ts
.

 
N

o 
pa

rty
 sh

al
l r

ec
ov

er
 it

s c
os

ts
 h

er
ei

n 
as

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

. 

I.
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
of

 S
uc

ce
ss

or
s i

n 
In

te
re

st
 a

nd
 N

ew
 P

ar
tie

s.

 
A

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ho
 is

 n
ot

 a
 p

ar
ty

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
s 

or
 p

ar
tie

s 

w
ho

 a
re

 b
ou

nd
 b

y 
th

is
 J

ud
gm

en
t) 

an
d 

w
ho

 p
ro

po
se

s 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 th
e 

B
as

in
, 

st
or

e 
w

at
er

 in
 th

e 
B

as
in

, o
r e

xe
rc

is
e 

w
at

er
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f a

 p
re

de
ce

ss
or

 m
ay

 s
ee

k 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 

pa
rty

 t
o 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

St
ip

ul
at

io
n 

in
 I

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

en
te

re
d 

in
to

 w
ith

 t
he

 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

.  
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 m

ay
 e

xe
cu

te
 s

ai
d 

St
ip

ul
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tie
s 

he
re

in
, b

ut
 

su
ch

 S
tip

ul
at

io
n 

sh
al

l n
ot

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
a 

pa
rty

 fr
om

 o
pp

os
in

g 
su

ch
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 

th
e 

co
ur

t h
ea

rin
g 

th
er

eo
n.

  S
ai

d 
St

ip
ul

at
io

n 
fo

r I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n 
m

us
t t

he
re

up
on

 b
e 

fil
ed

 w
ith

 

th
e 

C
ou

rt,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r a
n 

or
de

r c
on

fir
m

in
g 

sa
id

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

irt
y 

(3
0)

 

da
ys

’ n
ot

ic
e 

to
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

.  
Th

er
ea

fte
r, 

if 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
rt,

 s
uc

h 
in

te
rv

en
or

 s
ha

ll 
be

 

a 
pa

rty
 b

ou
nd

 b
y 

th
is

 J
ud

gm
en

t a
nd

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 th

e 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

pr
iv

ile
ge

s 
ac

co
rd

ed
 u

nd
er

 

th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 so
lu

tio
n 

he
re

in
. 

J.
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

hi
s A

m
en

de
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

t o
n 

O
rd

er
s F

ile
d 

H
er

ei
n.

   



77
TH

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

 
Th

is
 T

hi
rd

 A
m

en
de

d 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
ab

ro
ga

te
 s

uc
h 

rig
ht

s 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ca
rr

yo
ve

r 
of

 u
nu

se
d 

w
at

er
 r

ig
ht

s 
as

 m
ay

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

ex
is

t p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

or
de

rs
 h

er
ei

n 
fil

ed
 

Ju
ne

 2
, 1

97
7 

an
d 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
9,

 1
97

7.
 

 
TH

E 
C

LE
R

K
 W

IL
L 

EN
TE

R
 T

H
IS

 T
H

IR
D

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 JU

D
G

M
EN

T 
FO

R
TH

W
IT

H
. 

D
A

TE
D

:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ju

dg
e 

of
 th

e 
Su

pe
rio

r C
ou

rt 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX J  
2015 Consumer Confidence Report 

 



CI
TY

 O
F 

SA
N

TA
 F

E 
SP

RI
N

GS
PO

 B
ox

 2
12

0
Sa

nt
a 

Fe
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

A 
90

67
0-

21
20

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il

Ri
ch

ar
d 

J.
 M

oo
re

, M
ay

or

W
ill

ia
m

 K
. R

ou
nd

s,
 M

ay
or

 P
ro

 Te
m

Ja
y 

Sa
rn

o,
 C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Ju
an

ita
 T

ru
jil

lo
, C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Jo
e 

An
ge

l Z
am

or
a,

 C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r

CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT

PR
SR

T 
ST

D
 

U
.S

. P
O

ST
A

G
E

  
 

PA
ID

 
PE

R
M

IT
 N

O
. 8

00
 

G
O

LD
ST

R
E

E
T

 
97

30
1 

 

2015 Annual Water 
Quality Report

Santa Fe Springs Water 
Utility Authority

Santa Fe Springs Water Utility 
Authority (SFSWUA) tap 
water comes from 2 sources: 
groundwater and surface 
water.  

Last year, SFSWUA obtained 
treated and disinfected 
groundwater through the City 
of Whittier from four (4) active 
deep wells located in the Whittier 
Narrows area.  In addition, 
SFSWUA receives treated groundwater from the Central 
Basin Water Quality Protection Program facility located in 
the Central Basin, through the City of Whittier. 

In 2015 we also received Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California’s (MWD) filtered and disinfected 
surface water, which is water from the Colorado River.  

These water sources supply our service area shown 
on the adjacent map.  The quality of our treated 
groundwater and MWD’s treated surface water supplies 
is presented in this report.

Where Does My Tap 
Water Come From?

How is My Drinking Water Tested?
Your drinking water is tested by State Water Resources Control 
Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW) certified water system 
operators and laboratories to ensure its safety.  SFSWUA drinking 
water from wells, treatment facilities, and distribution system 
pipes is routinely tested for bacterial, radiological and chemical 
constituents.  The chart in this report shows the average and 
range of concentrations of the constituents tested in your drinking 
water during year 2015 or from the most recent tests.  DDW 
allows some constituents to be tested less than once per year 
because the concentrations of these constituents do not change 
frequently.  Some of our data, although representative, are more 
than one year old.  The chart lists all the constituents detected 
in your drinking water regulated by federal and state drinking 
water standards.  Detected unregulated constituents requiring 
monitoring and of interest are also included.  We are proud to 
report that during 2015, the drinking water provided by SFSWUA 

to your home met or surpassed all federal and state drinking 
water standards.  We remain dedicated to providing you with a 
reliable supply of high quality drinking water.

Should I Take Additional 
Precautions?
Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants 
in drinking water than the general population.  Immuno-
compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing 
chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, 
people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some 
elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections.  
These people should seek advice about drinking water from their 
health care providers.  The USEPA/Centers for Disease Control 
guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection of 
Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available 
from the USEPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4791). 

This report is a snapshot of the tap water quality 
that was provided to you last year.  Included are 
details about where your water comes from, how 
it is tested, what is in it, and how it compares with 
state and federal limits.  We strive to keep you 
informed about the quality of your water, and to 
provide a reliable and economical supply that 
meets all regulatory requirements. 

Lead in Tap Water
If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health 
problems, especially for pregnant women and young 
children.  Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials 
and components associated with service lines and home 
plumbing.  SFSWUA is responsible for providing high quality 
drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials 
used in plumbing components.  When your water has been 
sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential 
for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 
minutes before using water for drinking or cooking.  If you are 
concerned about lead in your water, you may wish to have 
your water tested.  Information on lead in drinking water, 
testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure 
is available from the USEPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at: 
https://www.epa.gov/lead.

Source Water Assessment
Every five years, MWD is required by DDW to examine 
possible sources of drinking water contamination in its 
State Water Project and Colorado River source waters.  
In 2012, MWD submitted to DDW its updated Watershed 
Sanitary Surveys for the Colorado River and State Water 
Project, which include suggestions for how to better protect 
these source waters.  Both source waters are exposed to 
stormwater runoff, recreational activities, wastewater 
discharges, wildlife, fires, and other watershed-related 
factors that could affect water quality.  Water from the 
Colorado River is considered to be most vulnerable to 
contamination from recreation, urban/stormwater runoff, 
increasing urbanization in the watershed, and wastewater.  
Water supplies from Northern California’s State Water 
Project are most vulnerable to contamination from urban/
stormwater runoff, wildlife, agriculture, recreation, and 
wastewater.  USEPA also requires MWD to complete one 
Source Water Assessment (SWA) that utilizes information 
collected in the watershed sanitary surveys.  MWD completed 
its SWA in December 2002.  The SWA is used to evaluate the 
vulnerability of water sources to contamination and helps 
determine whether more protective measures are needed.  
A copy of the most recent summary of either Watershed 
Sanitary Survey or the SWA can be obtained by calling MWD at 
(213) 217-6850.

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 
or facilities not associated with contaminants detected 
in the water supply: research laboratories and parks.  A 
copy of the complete assessment is available at the City 
of Whittier Water Division at 13230 East Penn Street, 
Whittier, California 90602.  You may request a summary of 
the assessment to be sent to you by contacting the City of 
Whittier Customer Service Department at (562) 567-9530.

How Can I Participate in Decisions On Water Issues 
That Affect Me?
The public is welcome to attend City Council meetings on the 
second and fourth Thursday of each month at 6 p.m. at City 
Hall, 11710 East Telegraph Road, Santa Fe Springs.  

How Do I Contact My Water Agency If I Have Any 
Questions About Water Quality?
If you have specific questions about your tap water quality, 
please contact Frank Beach, Utility Services Manager at 
(562) 868-0511, extension 7568.  

Este informe contiene información muy importante sobre su 
agua potable.  Para mas información ó traducción, favor de 
contactar a Mr. Frank Beach, Gerente de Servicios de Utilidad 
al (562) 868-0511. 

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 

Visit us on the web at: www.santafesprings.org

Source Water Assessment



CITY O
F SAN

TA FE SPRIN
GS

PO
 Box 2120

Santa Fe Springs, CA 
90670-2120

City Council

Richard J. M
oore, M

ayor

W
illiam

 K. Rounds, M
ayor Pro Tem

Jay Sarno, Councilm
em

ber

Juanita Trujillo, Councilm
em

ber

Joe Angel Zam
ora, Councilm

em
ber

CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT

PR
SR

T STD
 

U
.S. PO

STA
G

E
   

PA
ID

 
PE

R
M

IT N
O

. 800
 

G
O

LD
STR

E
E

T
 

97301 
 

2015 Annual Water 
Quality Report

Santa Fe Springs Water 
Utility Authority

Santa Fe Springs Water Utility 
Authority (SFSWUA) tap 
water comes from 2 sources: 
groundwater and surface 
water.  

Last year, SFSWUA obtained 
treated and disinfected 
groundwater through the City 
of Whittier from four (4) active 
deep wells located in the Whittier 
Narrows area.  In addition, 
SFSWUA receives treated groundwater from the Central 
Basin Water Quality Protection Program facility located in 
the Central Basin, through the City of Whittier. 

In 2015 we also received Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California’s (MWD) filtered and disinfected 
surface water, which is water from the Colorado River.  

These water sources supply our service area shown 
on the adjacent map.  The quality of our treated 
groundwater and MWD’s treated surface water supplies 
is presented in this report.

Where Does My Tap 
Water Come From?

How is My Drinking Water Tested?
Your drinking water is tested by State Water Resources Control 
Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW) certified water system 
operators and laboratories to ensure its safety.  SFSWUA drinking 
water from wells, treatment facilities, and distribution system 
pipes is routinely tested for bacterial, radiological and chemical 
constituents.  The chart in this report shows the average and 
range of concentrations of the constituents tested in your drinking 
water during year 2015 or from the most recent tests.  DDW 
allows some constituents to be tested less than once per year 
because the concentrations of these constituents do not change 
frequently.  Some of our data, although representative, are more 
than one year old.  The chart lists all the constituents detected 
in your drinking water regulated by federal and state drinking 
water standards.  Detected unregulated constituents requiring 
monitoring and of interest are also included.  We are proud to 
report that during 2015, the drinking water provided by SFSWUA 

to your home met or surpassed all federal and state drinking 
water standards.  We remain dedicated to providing you with a 
reliable supply of high quality drinking water.

Should I Take Additional 
Precautions?
Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants 
in drinking water than the general population.  Immuno-
compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing 
chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, 
people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some 
elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections.  
These people should seek advice about drinking water from their 
health care providers.  The USEPA/Centers for Disease Control 
guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection of 
Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available 
from the USEPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4791). 

This report is a snapshot of the tap water quality 
that was provided to you last year.  Included are 
details about where your water comes from, how 
it is tested, what is in it, and how it compares with 
state and federal limits.  We strive to keep you 
informed about the quality of your water, and to 
provide a reliable and economical supply that 
meets all regulatory requirements. 

Lead in Tap Water
If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health 
problems, especially for pregnant women and young 
children.  Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials 
and components associated with service lines and home 
plumbing.  SFSWUA is responsible for providing high quality 
drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials 
used in plumbing components.  When your water has been 
sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential 
for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 
minutes before using water for drinking or cooking.  If you are 
concerned about lead in your water, you may wish to have 
your water tested.  Information on lead in drinking water, 
testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure 
is available from the USEPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at: 
https://www.epa.gov/lead.

Source Water Assessment
Every five years, MWD is required by DDW to examine 
possible sources of drinking water contamination in its 
State Water Project and Colorado River source waters.  
In 2012, MWD submitted to DDW its updated Watershed 
Sanitary Surveys for the Colorado River and State Water 
Project, which include suggestions for how to better protect 
these source waters.  Both source waters are exposed to 
stormwater runoff, recreational activities, wastewater 
discharges, wildlife, fires, and other watershed-related 
factors that could affect water quality.  Water from the 
Colorado River is considered to be most vulnerable to 
contamination from recreation, urban/stormwater runoff, 
increasing urbanization in the watershed, and wastewater.  
Water supplies from Northern California’s State Water 
Project are most vulnerable to contamination from urban/
stormwater runoff, wildlife, agriculture, recreation, and 
wastewater.  USEPA also requires MWD to complete one 
Source Water Assessment (SWA) that utilizes information 
collected in the watershed sanitary surveys.  MWD completed 
its SWA in December 2002.  The SWA is used to evaluate the 
vulnerability of water sources to contamination and helps 
determine whether more protective measures are needed.  
A copy of the most recent summary of either Watershed 
Sanitary Survey or the SWA can be obtained by calling MWD at 
(213) 217-6850.

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 
or facilities not associated with contaminants detected 
in the water supply: research laboratories and parks.  A 
copy of the complete assessment is available at the City 
of Whittier Water Division at 13230 East Penn Street, 
Whittier, California 90602.  You may request a summary of 
the assessment to be sent to you by contacting the City of 
Whittier Customer Service Department at (562) 567-9530.

How Can I Participate in Decisions On Water Issues 
That Affect Me?
The public is welcome to attend City Council meetings on the 
second and fourth Thursday of each month at 6 p.m. at City 
Hall, 11710 East Telegraph Road, Santa Fe Springs.  

How Do I Contact My Water Agency If I Have Any 
Questions About Water Quality?
If you have specific questions about your tap water quality, 
please contact Frank Beach, Utility Services Manager at 
(562) 868-0511, extension 7568.  

Este informe contiene información muy importante sobre su 
agua potable.  Para mas información ó traducción, favor de 
contactar a Mr. Frank Beach, Gerente de Servicios de Utilidad 
al (562) 868-0511. 

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 

Visit us on the web at: www.santafesprings.org

Source Water Assessment



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS WATER AUTHORITY 2015 ANNUAL WATER QUALITY REPORT

TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT
Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL): The highest level of a contaminant 
that is allowed in drinking water.  Primary MCLs are set as   close to 
the PHGs (or MCLGs) as is economically and technologically feasible.  
Secondary MCLs are set to protect the odor, taste, and appearance of 
drinking water.
Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG): The level of a contaminant in 
drinking water below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  
MCLGs are set by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  
Public Health Goal (PHG):  California Public Health Goal; The level of 
a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or 
expected risk to health.  PHGs are set by the California Environmental 
Protection Agency.
Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL):  The highest level of a 
disinfectant allowed in drinking water.  There is convincing evidence 
that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial 
contaminants.
Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG): The level of a 
drinking water disinfectant below which there is no known or expected 
risk to health.  MRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of the use of 
disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.
Treatment Technique (TT):  A required process intended to reduce the 
level of a contaminant in drinking water.
Regulatory Action Level (AL): The concentration of a contaminant which, 
if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements that a water system 
must follow.

Why Do I See So Much Coverage in the News About the Quality of 
Tap Water and Bottled Water?
All drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be 
expected to contain at least small amounts of some contaminants.  
The presence of contaminants does not necessarily indicate that 
water poses a health risk.  More information about contaminants 
and potential health effects can be obtained by calling the USEPA’s 
Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4791).  You can also get more 
information on tap water by logging on to these helpful web sites: 
https://www.epa.gov/your-drinking-water (USEPA web site) or http://
www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/
publicwatersystems.shtml (DDW web site).
The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) 
include rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs and wells.  
As water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, 
it dissolves naturally-occurring minerals and, in some cases, 
radioactive material, and can pick up substances resulting from the 
presence of animals or from human activity.  
Contaminants that may be present in source water include:
• Microbial contaminants, including viruses and bacteria, that may 

come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems,  agricultural 
livestock operations, and wildlife;

• Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, that can be 
naturally-occurring or result from urban stormwater runoff, 
industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas 
production, mining or farming;

• Pesticides and herbicides, that may come from a variety of 
sources such as agriculture, urban stormwater runoff, and 
residential uses;

• Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile 
organic chemicals, that are byproducts of industrial processes 
and petroleum production, and can also come from gasoline 
stations, urban stormwater runoff, agricultural application, and 
septic systems;

• Radioactive contaminants, that can be naturally-occurring or be 
the result of oil and gas production and mining activities.

What Are Water Quality Standards?
In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, the USEPA and 
the DDW prescribe regulations that limit the amount of certain 
contaminants in water provided by public water systems.  DDW 
regulations also establish limits for contaminants in bottled water 
that must provide the same protection for public health.
The chart in this report shows the following types of water quality 
standards:
• Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL): The highest level of a 

contaminant that is allowed in drinking water.  Primary MCLs 
are set as close to the PHGs (or MCLGs) as is economically and 
technologically feasible.  Secondary MCLs are set to protect the 
odor, taste, and appearance of drinking water. 

• Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL): The highest level 
of a disinfectant allowed in drinking water.  There is convincing 
evidence that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of 
microbial pathogens.

• Primary Drinking Water Standard: MCLs and MRDLs for 
contaminants that affect health along with their monitoring and 
reporting requirements and water treatment requirements. 

• Regulatory Action Level (AL): The concentration of a contaminant 
which, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements that 
a water system must follow.

• Notification Level (NL): An advisory level which, if exceeded, 
requires the drinking water system to notify the governing body of 
the local agency in which users of the drinking water reside (i.e. 
City Council, County Board of Supervisors).  

What is a Water Quality Goal?
In addition to mandatory water quality standards, USEPA and DDW 
have set voluntary water quality goals for some contaminants.  
Water quality goals are often set at such low levels that they 
are not achievable in practice and are not directly measurable.  
Nevertheless, these goals provide useful guideposts and direction 
for water management practices.  The chart in this report includes 
three types of water quality goals:
• Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG): The level of a 

contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known or 
expected risk to health.  MCLGs are set by the USEPA.

• Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG): The level 
of a disinfectant below which there is no known or expected 
risk to health.  MRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of the use of 
disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.

• Public Health Goal (PHG): The level of a contaminant in drinking 
water below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  
PHGs are set by the California Environmental Protection Agency.

How Do I Read the Water Quality Table? 
The first column of the water quality table lists substances detected in 
your water.  The next columns list the average concentration and range 
of concentrations found in your drinking water.  Following are columns 
that list the MCL and PHG or MCLG, as appropriate.  The last column 
describes the likely sources of these substances in drinking water.  

To review the quality of your drinking water, compare the highest 
concentration and the MCL.  Check for substances greater than the 
MCL.  Exceedance of a primary MCL does not usually constitute an 
immediate health threat.  Rather, it requires testing the source water 
more frequently for a short duration.  If test results show that the water 
continues to exceed the MCL, the water must be treated to remove the 
substance, or the source must be removed from service.

Results are from the most recent testing performed in accordance with State and Federal drinking water regulations
PRIMARY STANDARDS MONITORED AT THE SOURCE - MANDATED FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
CONSTITUENTS AND UNITS  SFSWUA GROUNDWATER MWD SURFACE WATER MCL PHG OR (MCLG) SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER

AVERAGE RANGE AVERAGE RANGE
ORGANIC CHEMICALS Tested in 2015
Tetrachloroethylene (µg/l) <0.5 ND - 1.6 ND ND 5 0.06 Degreasing sites and other industries

INORGANIC CHEMICALS Tested in 2012, 2014, and 2015
Aluminum (mg/l) ND ND 0.156 0.088 - 0.2 1 0.6 Residue from water treatment processes
Arsenic (µg/l) ND ND 2.1 2.1 10 0.004 Erosion of natural deposits
Barium (mg/l) ND ND 0.122 0.122 1 2 Erosion of natural deposits
Chromium, Hexavalent  (µg/l) <1 ND - 1.6 ND ND 10 0.02 Runoff/leaching from natural deposits; industrial discharge
Fluoride (mg/l) Naturally-occuring 0.22 0.17 - 0.33 NR NR 2 1 Erosion of natural deposits
Fluoride (mg/l) Treatment-related NR NR 0.8 0.6 - 1 Control Range 0.6-1.2

Optimal 0.7      
Water additive for dental health

Nitrate (mg/l as N) 2.1 1.4 - 3.4 ND ND 10 10 Runoff and Leaching from fertilizer/septic tanks/sewage

RADIOLOGICALS Tested in 2012 and 2014
Gross Alpha (pCi/l) <3 ND - 8.1 ND ND - 4 15 (0) Erosion of natural deposits
Gross Beta (pCi/l) NR NR 5 4 - 6 50 (0) Decay of man-made or natural deposits
Uranium (pCi/l) 1.9 1.2 - 2.9 3 2 - 3 20 0.43 Erosion of natural deposits

PRIMARY STANDARDS MONITORED IN THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM - MANDATED FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
DISINFECTION BY-PRODUCTS (a) AVERAGE RANGE  MCL MCLG SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER
Trihalomethanes (µg/l) Tested 
quarterly

38 18 - 46 80  - Byproduct of drinking water disinfection

Haloacetic Acids (µg/l) Tested 
quarterly

16 4.2 - 17 60 - Byproduct of drinking water disinfection

Total Chlorine Residual (mg/l) 
Tested weekly

1.3 0.06 - 2.3 4.0 (b) 4.0 (c) Disinfectant added for treatment

MICROBIOLOGICAL
Total Coliform Tested weekly 0% -- 5.0% (0) Naturally Present in the Environment
AT-THE-TAP LEAD AND COPPER, 
Tested in 2013

90th PERCENTILE # OF SITES ABOVE THE 
ACTION LEVEL

ACTION 
LEVEL

PHG SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER

Copper (mg/l) 0.31 (d) 0 out of 30 sites 1.3 0.3 Internal corrosion of household plumbing
Lead (µg/l) ND (d) 0 out of 30 sites 15 0.2 Internal corrosion of household plumbing

SECONDARY STANDARDS MONITORED AT THE SOURCE - FOR AESTHETIC PURPOSES
INORGANIC CHEMICALS AND 
UNITS

 SFSWUA GROUNDWATER MWD SURFACE WATER MCL PHG SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER

Tested in 2012, 2014, and 2015 AVERAGE RANGE AVERAGE RANGE
Aluminum (µg/l) (e) ND ND 156 88 - 200 200 600 Surface water treatment process residue
Chloride (mg/l) 100 68 - 120 100 98 - 102 500  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Color (color units) ND ND 1 1 15  - Naturally-occurring organic materials
Conductivity (umhos/cm) 940 710 - 1,100 1,040 1,030 - 1,060 1,600  - Substances that form ions when in water
Foaming Agents (MBAS) (µg/l) <50 ND - 56 ND ND 500  - Municipal and industrial waste discharges
Odor (threshold odor number) 1.1 1 - 2 2 2 3 - Naturally-occurring organic materials
Sulfate (mg/l) 140 87 - 190 257 252 - 261 500  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Total Dissolved Solids (mg/l) 550 420 - 670 660 654 - 665 1,000  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Turbidity (ntu) <1 ND - 0.24 NA NA 5  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits

SECONDARY STANDARDS MONITORED IN THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM - FOR AESTHETIC PURPOSES
GENERAL PHYSICAL 
CONSTITUENTS

AVERAGE RANGE MCL PHG SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER

Odor (threshold odor number) 1 1 3 - Naturally-occurring organic materials
Turbidity (NTU) Tested monthly <0.1 ND - 0.5 5  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits

UNREGULATED CHEMICALS REQUIRING MONITORING AT THE ENTRY POINTS TO THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
CONSTITUENTS AND UNITS   SFSWUA GROUNDWATER MWD SURFACE WATER NL PHG OR (MCLG)
Tested in  2013 and 2014 AVERAGE RANGE AVERAGE RANGE
1,4-Dioxane (µg/l) 0.49 0.48 - 0.49 ND ND 1  -
Chlorate (µg/l) 37 35 - 39 42 42 800  -
Chromium, Hexavalent  (µg/l) (f) 0.65 0.6 - 0.69 0.04 0.04 MCL = 10 0.02
Chromium, Total (µg/l) (g) 0.65 0.5 - 0.8 ND ND MCL = 50 (100)
Cobalt, Total (µg/l) 2.3 2.2 - 2.3 ND ND -  -
Molybdenum (µg/l) 1.6 1.5 - 1.6 4.3 4.3 -  -
Strontium (µg/l) 560 540 - 570 950 950 -  -
Vanadium (µg/l) 3.2 3 - 3.3 2.5 2.5 50  -

UNREGULATED CHEMICALS REQUIRING MONITORING IN THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
CONSTITUENTS AND UNITS
TESTED IN 2014 AVERAGE RANGE NL PHG OR (MCLG)
Chlorate (µg/l) 35 35 800 -
Chromium, Hexavalent  (µg/l) (f) 0.35 0.12 - 0.58 MCL = 10 0.02
Chromium, Total (µg/l) (g) 0.6 0.6 MCL = 50 (100)
Cobalt, Total (µg/l) 2.6 2.6 - -
Molybdenum (µg/l) 1.7 1.7 - -
Strontium (µg/l) 570 570 - -
Vanadium (µg/l) 3.5 3.5 50 -

ADDITIONAL UNREGULATED CHEMICALS OF INTEREST
CONSTITUENTS AND UNITS   SFSWUA GROUNDWATER MWD SURFACE WATER MCL PHG SOURCES IN DRINKING WATER
Tested in 2015 AVERAGE RANGE AVERAGE RANGE
Alkalinity (mg/l as CaCO3) 180 150 - 230 126 123 - 129 - - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Calcium (mg/l) 91 73 - 110 78 77 - 78  -  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Magnesium (mg/l) 16 12 - 19 27 26 - 28  -  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
pH (standard unit) 7.8 7.6 - 8.2 8.1 8.1 - - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Sodium (mg/l) 73 48 - 95 100 97 - 102  -  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Total Hardness (mg/l as CaCO3) 300 230 - 360 300 296 - 304  -  - Runoff/leaching from natural deposits
Total Organic Carbon (mg/l) NR NR 2.6 2.4 - 2.8 TT  - Naturally-occurring organic materials

FOOTNOTES
(a) Running annual average used to calculate MCL compliance
(b) Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL)
(c) Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG)
(d) 90th percentile from the most recent sampling
(e) Aluminum has primary and secondary standards

(f) Hexavalent chromium is regulated with an MCL of 10 µg/l but was not detected in MWD 
surface water and in the distribution system, based on the detection limit for purposes 
of reporting of 1 µg/l.  Hexavalent chromium was included as part of the unregulated 
chemicals requiring monitoring.

(g) Total chromium is regulated with an MCL of 50 µg/l but was not detected, based on the 
detection limit for purposes of reporting of 10 µg/l.  Total chromium was included as 
part of the unregulated chemicals requiring monitoring.

METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT SURFACE WATER FILTRATION TREATMENT (WEYMOUTH PLANT)
Turbidity Combined Filter Effluent
Treatment Technique (TT) tested continuously

TT Turbidity Measurements TT Violation? Typical Source

 1) Highest single turbidity measurement 0.3 NTU 0.05 No  Runoff
 2) Percentage of samples less than 0.3 NTU 95% 100% No  Runoff
 Turbidity is a measure of the cloudiness of the water, an indication of particulate matter, some of which might include harmful microorganisms. 
 Low turbidity in Metropolitan’s treated water is a good indicator of effective filtration.  Filtration is called a “treatment technique.”  A treatment technique is a required process 
intended to reduce the level of contaminants in drinking water that are difficult and sometimes impossible to measure  directly.

mg/l = milligram per liter or parts-
per-million; 
pCi/L = picoCuries per liter;
NTU = nephelometric turbidity 
units; µmho/cm = micromhos per 
centimeter; 
TT = treatment technique; 
NL = Notification Level; 
< = average is less than the 
detection limit for reporting
ND: not detectable at testing limit  
NR = not required to be tested; 

ppm: parts per million or 
milligrams per liter (mg/L)
ppb: parts per billion or 
micrograms per liter (ug/L)
ppt: parts per trillion or nanograms 
per liter (ng/L) 
pCi/L: picocuries per liter (a 
measure of radiation)
µS/cm:  a measure of specific 
conductance
µg/l = microgram per liter or parts-
per-billion



CI
TY

 O
F 

SA
N

TA
 F

E 
SP

RI
N

GS
PO

 B
ox

 2
12

0
Sa

nt
a 

Fe
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

A 
90

67
0-

21
20

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il

Ri
ch

ar
d 

J.
 M

oo
re

, M
ay

or

W
ill

ia
m

 K
. R

ou
nd

s,
 M

ay
or

 P
ro

 Te
m

Ja
y 

Sa
rn

o,
 C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Ju
an

ita
 T

ru
jil

lo
, C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r

Jo
e 

An
ge

l Z
am

or
a,

 C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r

CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT

PR
SR

T 
ST

D
 

U
.S

. P
O

ST
A

G
E

  
 

PA
ID

 
PE

R
M

IT
 N

O
. 8

00
 

G
O

LD
ST

R
E

E
T

 
97

30
1 

 

2015 Annual Water 
Quality Report

Santa Fe Springs Water 
Utility Authority

Santa Fe Springs Water Utility 
Authority (SFSWUA) tap 
water comes from 2 sources: 
groundwater and surface 
water.  

Last year, SFSWUA obtained 
treated and disinfected 
groundwater through the City 
of Whittier from four (4) active 
deep wells located in the Whittier 
Narrows area.  In addition, 
SFSWUA receives treated groundwater from the Central 
Basin Water Quality Protection Program facility located in 
the Central Basin, through the City of Whittier. 

In 2015 we also received Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California’s (MWD) filtered and disinfected 
surface water, which is water from the Colorado River.  

These water sources supply our service area shown 
on the adjacent map.  The quality of our treated 
groundwater and MWD’s treated surface water supplies 
is presented in this report.

Where Does My Tap 
Water Come From?

How is My Drinking Water Tested?
Your drinking water is tested by State Water Resources Control 
Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW) certified water system 
operators and laboratories to ensure its safety.  SFSWUA drinking 
water from wells, treatment facilities, and distribution system 
pipes is routinely tested for bacterial, radiological and chemical 
constituents.  The chart in this report shows the average and 
range of concentrations of the constituents tested in your drinking 
water during year 2015 or from the most recent tests.  DDW 
allows some constituents to be tested less than once per year 
because the concentrations of these constituents do not change 
frequently.  Some of our data, although representative, are more 
than one year old.  The chart lists all the constituents detected 
in your drinking water regulated by federal and state drinking 
water standards.  Detected unregulated constituents requiring 
monitoring and of interest are also included.  We are proud to 
report that during 2015, the drinking water provided by SFSWUA 

to your home met or surpassed all federal and state drinking 
water standards.  We remain dedicated to providing you with a 
reliable supply of high quality drinking water.

Should I Take Additional 
Precautions?
Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants 
in drinking water than the general population.  Immuno-
compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing 
chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, 
people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some 
elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections.  
These people should seek advice about drinking water from their 
health care providers.  The USEPA/Centers for Disease Control 
guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection of 
Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available 
from the USEPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (1-800-426-4791). 

This report is a snapshot of the tap water quality 
that was provided to you last year.  Included are 
details about where your water comes from, how 
it is tested, what is in it, and how it compares with 
state and federal limits.  We strive to keep you 
informed about the quality of your water, and to 
provide a reliable and economical supply that 
meets all regulatory requirements. 

Lead in Tap Water
If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health 
problems, especially for pregnant women and young 
children.  Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials 
and components associated with service lines and home 
plumbing.  SFSWUA is responsible for providing high quality 
drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials 
used in plumbing components.  When your water has been 
sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential 
for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 
minutes before using water for drinking or cooking.  If you are 
concerned about lead in your water, you may wish to have 
your water tested.  Information on lead in drinking water, 
testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure 
is available from the USEPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at: 
https://www.epa.gov/lead.

Source Water Assessment
Every five years, MWD is required by DDW to examine 
possible sources of drinking water contamination in its 
State Water Project and Colorado River source waters.  
In 2012, MWD submitted to DDW its updated Watershed 
Sanitary Surveys for the Colorado River and State Water 
Project, which include suggestions for how to better protect 
these source waters.  Both source waters are exposed to 
stormwater runoff, recreational activities, wastewater 
discharges, wildlife, fires, and other watershed-related 
factors that could affect water quality.  Water from the 
Colorado River is considered to be most vulnerable to 
contamination from recreation, urban/stormwater runoff, 
increasing urbanization in the watershed, and wastewater.  
Water supplies from Northern California’s State Water 
Project are most vulnerable to contamination from urban/
stormwater runoff, wildlife, agriculture, recreation, and 
wastewater.  USEPA also requires MWD to complete one 
Source Water Assessment (SWA) that utilizes information 
collected in the watershed sanitary surveys.  MWD completed 
its SWA in December 2002.  The SWA is used to evaluate the 
vulnerability of water sources to contamination and helps 
determine whether more protective measures are needed.  
A copy of the most recent summary of either Watershed 
Sanitary Survey or the SWA can be obtained by calling MWD at 
(213) 217-6850.

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 
or facilities not associated with contaminants detected 
in the water supply: research laboratories and parks.  A 
copy of the complete assessment is available at the City 
of Whittier Water Division at 13230 East Penn Street, 
Whittier, California 90602.  You may request a summary of 
the assessment to be sent to you by contacting the City of 
Whittier Customer Service Department at (562) 567-9530.

How Can I Participate in Decisions On Water Issues 
That Affect Me?
The public is welcome to attend City Council meetings on the 
second and fourth Thursday of each month at 6 p.m. at City 
Hall, 11710 East Telegraph Road, Santa Fe Springs.  

How Do I Contact My Water Agency If I Have Any 
Questions About Water Quality?
If you have specific questions about your tap water quality, 
please contact Frank Beach, Utility Services Manager at 
(562) 868-0511, extension 7568.  

Este informe contiene información muy importante sobre su 
agua potable.  Para mas información ó traducción, favor de 
contactar a Mr. Frank Beach, Gerente de Servicios de Utilidad 
al (562) 868-0511. 

An assessment of the drinking 
water sources for the City 
of Whittier was completed 
in December 2002.  The 
assessment concluded that 
the City of Whittier’s sources 
are considered vulnerable 
to the following activities 
or facilities associated with 
contaminants detected in 
the water supply: research 
laboratory, known volatile 
organic chemical contamination 
plumes, and parking lots/
mall.  In addition, the sources 
are considered most vulnerable to the following activities 

Visit us on the web at: www.santafesprings.org

Source Water Assessment



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX K  
City of Santa Fe Springs  

Resolution 5592 

 





















 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX L  
City of Santa Fe Springs 

Ordinance No. 1065 

 



Santa Fe Springs Code of Ordinances

CHAPTER 54:  WATER CONSERVATION

Section

   54.01   2015 water conservation regulations

§ 54.01  2015 WATER CONSERVATION REGULATIONS.

   The regulations set forth in this section shall supersede any conflicting regulations contained
elsewhere in this Code or contained in any previous action taken by the City Council, and such
regulations shall remain in force and effect until the City Council takes an action to modify or rescind
the implementation of these water conservation regulations.

   (A)   To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, each of
the following actions is prohibited, except where necessary to address an immediate health and safety
need or to comply with a term or condition in a permit issued by a state or federal agency:

      (1)   The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes runoff such that
water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking
lots, or structures.

      (2)   The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, except where a hose is
fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes it to cease dispensing water immediately
when not in use.

      (3)   The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks.

      (4)   The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water feature, except where the water
is part of a recirculating system.

      (5)   The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during and within 48 hours after
measureable rainfall.

      (6)   The serving of drinking water other than upon request in eating or drinking establishments,
including but not limited to restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, bars, or other public places where food
or drink are served and/or purchased.

      (7)   The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians.

      (8)   The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly constructed homes and
buildings in a manner inconsistent with regulations or other requirements established by the California
Building Standards Commission and the Department of Housing and Community Development.

   (B)   To promote water conservation, operators of hotels and motels shall provide guests with the
option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily. The hotel or motel shall prominently

CHAPTER 54: WATER CONSERVATION http://library.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx

1 of 2 11/14/2016 11:51 AM



display notice of this option in each guestroom using clear and easily understood language.

   (C)   Residential and commercial landscape areas shall be watered no more than two times per week,
for no more than ten minutes per area. Residential and commercial landscape areas shall not be watered
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. Watering of landscape areas shall be permitted only on
Mondays and Thursdays at properties located north of the centerline of Lakeland Road, and at those
properties located within the triangle bounded by Florence Avenue on the north, I-5 on the west and the
railroad tracks parallel to Ringwood Avenue on the east. Watering of landscape areas shall be permitted
only on Tuesdays and Fridays at properties located south of the centerline of Lakeland Road.

   (D)   The taking of any action prohibited by this section, or the failure to take any action required by
this section, is an infraction, punishable by a fine as set forth in Cal. Govt’s Code § 36900, not to exceed
$500 for each day in which the violation occurs.

(Ord. 1065, passed 5-28-15)

CHAPTER 54: WATER CONSERVATION http://library.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx

2 of 2 11/14/2016 11:51 AM



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX M  
Water Rates and Charges 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 9360 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 
AMENDING WATER RATES AND CHARGES FOR FY 2011/12 

 
The City Council of the City of Santa Fe Springs does hereby resolve as follows: 

 
Section 1.  The water rates and charges for the City set forth pursuant to Section 53-28 
of the City Code, are hereby established as follows: 
 

 (a) Quantity Rates 
 

First 1,800 cubic feet per month $2.86/100 cubic feet 
Over 1,800 and up to 3,600 cubic feet/monthly $3.26/100 cubic feet 
Over 3,600 and up to 10,000 cubic feet/monthly $3.73/100 cubic feet 
Over 10,000 and up to 40,000 cubic feet/monthly $3.82/100 cubic feet 
Over 40,000 cubic feet monthly $3.91/100 cubic feet 
 

 (b) Reclaimed Water Rates 
 
First 1,800 cubic feet per month $2.76/100 cubic feet 
Over 1,800 cubic feet & up to 25 acre feet/monthly $3.11/100 cubic feet 
Over 25 and up to 50 acre feet per month $3.00/100 cubic feet 
Over 50 acre feet per month $2.86/100 cubic feet 
 

(c) Senior Citizen Lifeline Rate 
 
Residential customers who can verify that they meet the following eligibility 
requirements will receive a 15% discount on the first 1,800 cubic feet of water used 
each month: 
 
 Applicant must be at least 60 years old 
 Applicant must be a full-time resident of the City water service area 
 The water bill must be in the name of the applicant 
 The property listed on the water bill must be the primary residence of the 

applicant 
 The total combined annual gross income of applicant’s household must not 

exceed 175% of Federal poverty guidelines 
 

(d) Meter Service Charge     Per Meter Per Month 
 
 5/8 x 3/4    $    11.20 
 3/4 inch    $    11.20 

1 inch           $    14.50   
Meter Service Charge Per Meter Per Month  
1-1/2 inch                                                                                $    53.65 
2 inch                                                                                      $ 75.00 
3 inch                                                                                      $   151.00 
4 inch                                                                                      $ 199.00 
6 inch                                                                                      $ 250.00 
8 inch           $  332.00 
10 inch                                                                                    $ 500.00 



 
The service charge is applicable to all metered service.  It is a readiness-to-serve 
charge to which is added to the consumption charge, computed at the quantity rates, for 
water used during the month. 
 

(e) Fire Service Charge      Per Meter Per Month 
 

2 inch DC                                                                                 $   49.00 
4 inch DC                                                                                 $ 74.00 
6 inch DC                                                                                 $   92.00 
8 inch DC                                                                                 $  125.00 
10 inch DC                                                                               $ 158.00 
 

(f) Late Payment Charge 
 

If any account becomes delinquent, the City shall impose a fifteen dollar ($15.00) 
late payment charge. 
 

(g) Reconnection Charge 
 

Water service which has been shut off for failure to comply with any of the rules 
and regulations or to pay any rates, charges or penalties, as herein provided, shall 
not be restored until such rules and regulations and penalties have been complied 
with to the satisfaction of the City and payment is made of the amount due if any; 
and in addition thereto the amount of thirty dollars ($30.00) shall be assessed for 
the expense of restoring water service for such occurrence. 
 

(h) Unauthorized Turn-On Charge 
 

In the event that a customer turns on their water service, or allows any person 
other than an authorized City employee to turn on their water service, after the 
water service has been turned off by the City, a charge of seventy-five dollars 
($75.00) shall be added to the bill for the affected service for the first occurrence in 
a six-month period, and one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00) shall be assessed 
for the second and each subsequent occurrence in a six-month period. 
 

Section 2.   The foregoing rates and charges shall apply to all water used after March 1, 
2012 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of February, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
                                                                MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
               CITY CLERK 







 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX N  
60-Day Notification Letters 

 









 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX O  
Notices of Public Hearing 

 



 

 
C i t y 	 o f 	 S a n t a 	 F e 	 S p r i n g s 	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX P  
Resolution Adopting Plan 

 
 























Proposal for As-Needed Planning 

Services 

 

Prepared for 
 

 

Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 
City of Santa Fe Springs 

11710 East Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 

 

 
 

 

Prepared by 
 

SAGECREST  

planning+environmental  
 

 

 

 
 



  

2400 E. Katella Ave. • Suite 800 • Anaheim, CA 92806 

 

 
 

May 25, 2017 
Mr. Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 East Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
 
A.  Letter of Offer 
Subject:  Proposal for As-Needed Planning Services 
 
Dear Mr. Morrell:  The following information addresses the information request in the request 
for proposal for as-needed planning services (Section A): 
 
Identification of Consultant: 
Sagecrest Planning+Environmental  
2400 East Katella Avenue, Suite 800  
Anaheim, CA 92806 
Office: (714) 783-1863  
 
Contact Person: 
Joshua Haskins, Principal 
Sagecrest Planning+Environmental  
2400 East Katella Avenue, Suite 800  
Anaheim, CA 92806 
jhaskins@sagecrest.us 
Office: (714) 783-1863 x710 
Mobile: (805) 509-3246 
 
Sagecrest Planning+Environmental (Sagecrest) acknowledges that this Proposal shall remain valid for a 
period of not less than ninety (90) calendar days from the date of submittal.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
 
Joshua Haskins, Principal  
Authorized to Bind the Consultant to term of the Proposal 

mailto:jhaskins@sagecrest.us


2 of 13 

 
 
          

May 25, 2017 
Mr. Wayne Morrell, Director of Planning 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 East Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
 
B. Cover Letter/Executive Summary 
Subject:  Proposal for As-Needed Planning Services 
 
Dear Mr. Morrell: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal in response to the City of Santa Fe Springs’s 

request for on-call planning services.  The team at Sagecrest Planning+Environmental has 

decades of experience providing planning services to communities throughout California.   

Our accomplished staff is led by a team of principals, each with 15 to 28 years of experience 

providing planning services to municipalities.  The planners within our firm began consulting after 

working in various planning positions for local jurisdictions.  Our staff has expertise in 

discretionary case processing, code compliance, project management, customer service and 

environmental review.   

Sagecrest delivers the highest level of service by providing proactive solutions, ongoing 

communication and dependable coordination.   Our company is committed to adapting our 

services to your planning organization and complementing your services by becoming a member 

of your staff.   As contract planners, we provide cost-efficient solutions for interim staff vacancies, 

technical expertise for special projects, and management of fluctuating workloads.  

Sagecrest is a local Southern California based firm that focuses on Los Angeles and Orange 

Counties. This allows us to ensure that we are able to meet the needs of our clients and are 

accessible at a moment’s notice. We are accustomed to being proactive and anticipating the 

needs of our clients and recommending practical solutions to complex planning issues.  In 

addition, due to our efficient structure, we can be more competitive on price while adhering to 

stringent budgets and schedules. 

 



3 of 13 

Sagecrest acknowledges that we are obligated by all addenda of the request for proposals and 

that this proposal shall remain valid for a period of not less than ninety (90) calendar days from 

the date of submittal.  

All information submitted with this proposal is true and correct.  Sagecrest looks forward to your 

favorable review of our firm’s proposal. If you require additional information or would like to 

further discuss our qualifications, please contact me directly at the phone numbers or email 

below. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Joshua Haskins, Principal 
Sagecrest Planning+Environmental  
2400 East Katella Avenue, Suite 800  
Anaheim, CA 92806 
jhaskins@sagecrest.us 
Office: (714) 783-1863 x710 
Mobile: (805) 509-3246 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:jhaskins@sagecrest.us


4 of 13 

 

 
 
 
C.    Qualifications of the Firm  

Sagecrest Planning + Environmental is a full service, professional planning firm providing on-site 

planning, land use, and environmental consulting to public agencies throughout California.  We 

were founded in 2017, but our team of Principals is comprised of professional planners who have 

worked in the public sector for 15 to 28 years. We currently have 11 employees, but will be bringing 

more professional planners on board as we continue to grow. With considerable experience in Los 

Angeles and Orange Counties, the Sagecrest team has built strong working relationships with key 

staff, applicants and public officials. Our mission is to provide outstanding service at competitive 

rates to the clients and communities we serve while adding value and making a positive 

impression with each assignment.  Because of our extensive experience and focus to provide 

planning staff to public agencies, Sagecrest is uniquely qualified to deliver high-quality on-call 

services.  We have assembled an exceptional team of experienced planners.   All of our staff has 

professional planning experience in the public sector, giving them a unique and thorough 

understanding of the processes we will be implementing and the challenges faced by planning 

departments.  We employ highly qualified and experienced professionals whose skills, 

qualifications and previous responsibilities are a strong match to the needs of any agency.   We 

ensure this by employing the following practices:  

 Our clients have the opportunity to interview our staff before they are assigned. 

 Our planners have experience working for public agencies prior to working with 
us, allowing them to integrate seamlessly into department operations. 

 We know that our reputation is our most valuable asset.  With that in mind we do 
not overcommit our staff and only accept work that our staff has the qualifications 
to perform. 

 Our staff maintains ongoing professional development and we provide extensive 
training in project management, land use law, CEQA, writing and public 
presentations skills.  

 We maintain regular office hours and are accessible and available whenever 
needed.    

 We consistently meet departmental standards, including: deadlines, quality of 
work products, courtesy and accessibility, accuracy of reports and information 
given to the public, and responsiveness.    



5 of 13 

 We ensure we have a clear understanding of expectations and maintain consistent 
communication with our clients. 

 We are committed to providing services that are cost effective while maintaining 
high standards of quality and productivity.   

 
Sagecrest planners are integrated as part of City staff. Any office resources that a City employee 

would typically utilize to perform planning services would also be needed by our contract 

planners. For example we would utilize computers, individual work spaces, standard office 

supplies, etc. 

Since all of our contract planners have worked in the public sector, we have the ability to bring 

that knowledge and experience to continually look for enhancements to city procedures. For 

example, Amy Vazquez was instrumental in launching a client city’s “35 Day Expedited CUP 

Process.” On the administrative side we are always looking for innovations to allow staff to spend 

more time assisting the client. Our streamlined administrative procedures include hours tracking 

via a smartphone application and utilization of secure cloud servers for team coordination. 

Financial Condition 
 
Our company does not have any pending litigation, has not declared bankruptcy, has no planned 

office closures and is not the subject of an impending merger.  Further, our company has the 

financial resources needed to fund the payroll of our employees during the interim period when 

beginning the contract with Santa Fe Springs.  Therefore, we have no financial conditions that 

would impede our ability to complete the services requested. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 of 13 

D.  Proposed Staffing and Project Organization  
Sagecrest Team Members (Resumes are included in attached Appendix): 
 

Greg McCafferty, Principal 

Greg’s career spans over 29 years in the public and private sectors, having worked in all aspects 

of planning and environmental compliance.  Greg has a proven track record managing planners 

in both local government and private settings.  He has practical experience in the preparation 

and processing of environmental compliance documentation, general plans, specific plans, 

annexations, development agreements, reclassifications, subdivisions and other discretionary 

and ministerial permits. Greg has strong presentation skills and has represented both public and 

private sector clients at public hearings and community meetings.  His exposure to a diverse 

range of project types allows him to develop specialized approaches tailored to each client’s 

needs.  In addition, Greg worked in the Anaheim Planning Department for 18 years and served 

as the Principal Planner. He will be responsible for leading the management team, strategic 

growth, client relations, quality assurance and administration. 

Joshua Haskins, Principal 

Joshua has over 15 years of experience in planning, zoning, CEQA, and project management. He 

has prepared and managed General Plan Amendments, Zone Changes, Conditional Use Permits 

(CUPs), Variances, and CEQA/NEPA documents including Initial Studies, Mitigated Negative 

Declarations (MNDs), (Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs), Environmental Assessments (EAs), 

and Environmental Impact Statements (EISs), for projects throughout southern California on 

behalf of federal, state, regional, and local agencies and private clients. 

Amy Vazquez, Contract Manager/Principal 

Amy has a passion for working with public agencies, developers and community members to 

create well-designed and sustainable communities. Amy has been managing a contract planning 

firm with a staff of over 50 contractors and employees since 2014. She has been involved in 

community outreach, project management and client relations. Amy takes pride in managing her 

team of planners who are skilled in working collaboratively with clients while providing 

professional insight and exceptional customer service. In addition, Amy has been working as a 

senior level contract planner in the City of Anaheim since May 2014.  She is also board member 

of the Orange Section of the American Planning Association (APA). Amy’s specialty is managing 

large scale development projects and expedited case processing. She was instrumental in helping 

launch the City of Anaheim’s “35 Day Expedited CUP Process” process. Amy’s role would be to 

manage all Sagecrest staff in Santa Fe Springs. 

 



7 of 13 

Greg Hastings, Project Manager/Special Projects 

Greg has over 35 years of hands-on, wide ranging experience in land use planning and 

implementation. Greg was the former Planning Manager for Anaheim and has served as interim 

Planning Director for a number of Orange County cities. He is a respected and approachable 

leader with effective communication and conflict resolution skills. Greg’s role would be to handle 

special projects on an on-call basis. 

Wayne Carvalho, Senior Planner 

Wayne has been a professional planner since 1991. His most recent experience includes 

entitlement processing for the City of Anaheim and the City of Huntington Beach. Wayne also 

serves as a member of the City of Fullerton Planning Commission. Wayne would perform contract 

services as a Senior Planner. As a Senior Planner he would be processing development 

applications and is also available for CEQA coordination. 

Vanessa Norwood, Senior Planner 

Vanessa is an experienced planner with over 20 years of municipal planning experience in current 

and advance planning, and previously worked as a planner for Riverside and Anaheim. She has 

experience managing mixed-use projects and the capability to coordinate multiple planning 

projects simultaneously in a timely and effective manner. Vanessa is available to perform 

contract services as a Senior Planner processing development applications.  

Laurel Reimer, Associate Planner 

Laurel has six years of experience in urban planning with over three years in the public sector 

focusing on entitlements, compliance, and meeting client needs through creative problem 

solving. She has worked in over 100 jurisdictions throughout the West Coast and thus 

understands government procedures, laws, ordinances and zoning. Laurel will be available 

immediately as an Associate Planner. 

Jimmy Wong, Assistant Planner 

Jimmy has a wide range of city planning related experience. This includes assisting at the public 

counter, reviewing applications for code compliance, permit processing, public notices, grant 

applications, and ensuring that all permits are processed in accordance with local and state 

requirements. As project planner he has also written and presented staff reports at Planning 

Commission and Design Review Board meetings. In the role of Assistant Planner, Jimmy will be 

available immediately. 

Vicente Velasco, Assistant Planner 



8 of 13 

Vince recently graduated from Cal State Polytechnic University, Pomona.   He has been serving 

the City of Santa Fe Springs as an intern since September 2015.  Sagecrest would like to offer the 

services of Vince as an Assistant Planner.  Vince would continue his role of project planner, 

conducting plan checks and assisting the public at the counter.   

Minutes Clerk/Planning Administration 

Sagecrest also provides experienced administrative services contract staff. Services include 

taking stenographic minutes of public hearings and/or transcribing minutes for official business 

meetings, ensuring that legal notices and hearing publications are prepared and posted in 

accordance with state law and city ordinances, and providing support services to city clerical staff. 

 
E. Consultants and/or Sub-Consultants 
 
Sagecrest is a full-service planning services and environmental firm.  All of the staff members 

included in this proposal would be employees of Sagecrest.  We do not propose the use of sub-

consultants for this assignment. 

We understand that the individuals represented as assigned to the Professional Services 

Agreement with Santa Fe Springs must remain working on the Agreement throughout the 

duration of the Agreement unless otherwise requested or approved by the City. Substitution of 

Key Personnel shall be allowed only with prior written approval of the City’s Planning Director or 

designee.  

F.   Work Approach 

The following discussion addresses the various technical services anticipated for the City of Santa 

Fe Springs. We include a brief description of each of our services and our approach.  Our goal is 

to be responsive to the public at the counter and to our applicants during the processing of our 

assigned case files; to be thorough and comprehensive in the review of our assigned projects; to 

ensure compliance with all applicable codes and the California Environmental Quality Act; to 

write detailed staff reports and findings for each entitlement; to assemble all attachments and 

required graphics; to prepare and deliver informative and succinct presentations at public 

meetings; and to maintain ongoing coordination and communication with other staff members, 

departments and agencies.  In order to accomplish these goals, our on-call contract services may 

include but are not limited to the following tasks: 



9 of 13 

1. Review, analyze and 
evaluate discretionary case 
applications for consistency 
with City codes, policies and 
standards. 
 
 
 

We provide entitlement processing for general plan 
amendments, specific plans, reclassifications, CUPs, 
subdivision maps, variances and other discretionary and 
administrative applications.  
 
We are skilled project managers and work with applicants to 
help them find solutions to meet the code and conform to 
the City’s general plan. We provide excellent customer 
service and are responsive to the needs of both the applicant 
and the City. We clearly explain the planning process, 
timelines, the need for technical studies, revisions to the 
project, and coordinate with other departments to ensure a 
successful outcome. 
 

2. Utilize City electronic and 
paper files to research 
previous and/or related 
cases. 

All of our team members are skilled at reviewing the City’s 
historical files, GIS and permit tracking systems, zoning code 
and other data and files to respond to inquiries at the 
public counter and to research cases related to proposed 
projects. 
 

3. Prepare environmental 
assessments, including, but 
not limited to, Initial Studies 
and Negative Declarations, 
as may be required by the 
California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA).   

Our professional planners are well versed in current 
environmental law and documentation.   Greg McCafferty 
Principal of the firm, was previously Anaheim’s 
Environmental Coordinator.  As such, we are qualified to 
prepare the required CEQA documentation for 
discretionary projects. Our staff is thorough in our 
approach and prepares documents that are defensible and 
meet all local, State and Federal requirements. We can 
prepare Initial Studies, Notices of Preparation, Negative 
Declarations, MNDs, EIRs and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Programs, and various other necessary CEQA 
documents. We have managed many consultant teams 
preparing these documents and bring our project 
management skills to add value to this work as well. 
Finally, we have reviewed and commented on numerous 
CEQA documents from outside organizations and adjacent 
agencies. We review these documents t o  ensure the City’s 
needs are represented and comments and concerns are 
raised early and monitored throughout the entire CEQA 
review process.   
 

4. Route plans to various City 
departments; consolidate 

Our firm specializes in providing effective and efficient on-
call planning services to public agencies. This is our niche. 



10 of 13 

comments; resolve internal 
inconsistencies; and present 
recommendations and 
revisions to the applicant. 

We are experienced in project management which entails 
routing plans to various City departments; consolidating 
comments; resolving internal inconsistencies; and 
presenting recommendations and revisions to the 
applicant. We understand our clients are looking for 
professional staff that understand the work and step into the 
assignments immediately and keep projects on track. Our 
planners fit seamlessly into the organization and operate as 
an extension of staff and can integrate fully into a variety of 
environments to fit the style, communication, and approach 
to meet the specific character of the client city. Our firm is 
committed to providing great customer service to other city 
departments, applicants and the public. 
 

5. Prepare screen check 
comments, zoning letters, 
letters to applicants, 
presentations and staff 
reports. All services to be 
performed using City-
approved forms and report 
formats. 
 

Our professional team has experience processing thousands 
of discretionary cases for many jurisdictions and has 
developed best practices to manage multiple projects 
deadlines, maintain responsiveness to applicants and the 
community, and prepare clear and concise staff reports and 
letters to applicants. We take time to thoroughly review 
each case to ensure we understand the history and the 
policies and procedures of the City. We draft our reports and 
make our recommendations with clear and accurate findings 
so appointed officials can easily come to a decision on a 
project.   
 

6. Maintain communication 
with applicants, interested 
parties, property owners, 
homeowner associations, 
various governmental 
agencies, and other City 
departments. Respond to 
inquiries about projects from 
residents and applicants. 

Sagecrest takes pride in our communication and customer 
service skills. We are very skilled at working with applicants, 
interested parties, property owners, homeowner 
associations, various governmental agencies, and other City 
departments. We understand the needs and concerns of 
various stakeholders and we possess the communication 
skills needed to serve all of these various participants in the 
process. We integrate ourselves as members of the staff 
and collaborate very well with city planners and other city 
employees. 
In addition, we quickly learn the frequently asked questions 
(i.e. business license, special events, building inspection 
requests, etc.) and we provide as much assistance as 
possible and help provide “one-stop- shopping” for 
questions and needs at the public counter. 
 

7. Prepare notices for public 
meetings and hearings. 

Our planners understand the importance of preparing 
timely, clear, concise and accurate public notices. We are 



11 of 13 

experienced in preparing publications for the newspaper, 
posting on and/or near the project site and mailing notices 
to interested parties who may be affected by a proposed 
action.  
 

8. Attend community meetings 
and public hearings as 
required and present items 
using MS PowerPoint to the 
Planning Commission and/or 
City Council. 

Our planners have solid presentation skills and have 
presented development applications and reports to city 
councils, commissions, and community groups. We are 
often commended for the ability our staff has to take 
complex issues and present them in a way that is clear and 
concise. We are passionate about working with 
stakeholders on projects to communicate the direction of 
the City early in the process so they understand what the 
goals are and how to be a part of the ultimate solution.   
 

9. Review grading and building 
plans for consistency with 
discretionary approvals and 
environmental mitigation, if 
applicable. 
 

Plan checking is completed in accordance with conditions of 
approval associated with each discretionary approval and 
applicable codes, ordinances and standards adopted by the 
City. 

10. Conduct site inspections to 
determine of the project has 
been completed in 
accordance with the final 
plans and specifications. 

Inspecting a project site to determine compliance with 
approved plans is a common practice for Sagecrest planners.  
We believe that site inspections are also critical for case 
processing. Our planners diligently conduct site visits when 
a project is assigned, before any recommendation or internal 
staff meetings and before all public hearings. We also 
understand the importance of ensuring that the project has 
been completed consistent with approved plans and 
conditions of approval, prior to granting final zoning 
approval. 
 

11. Manage the project schedule 
in accordance with the City’s 
adopted timelines. 

We proactively manage our caseload to ensure that all 
projects stay on schedule and in accordance with the City’s 
adopted timelines. We coordinate with various city 
departments for comments and build relationships with 
department representatives to ensure good communication 
and coordination is maintained throughout the life of each 
project. We understand the importance to applicants of 
maintaining established timelines. 
 

12. Maintain and close 
electronic and paper files in 

We believe that proper records management and 
organization is crucial. Our planners have all worked for 
public agencies and understand the importance of working 



12 of 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

accordance with City 
procedures. 

diligently to maintain the public record, proper publications, 
filing, indexing, and safekeeping of all proceedings of the 
Planning Commission and City Council. We have experience 
working with the City Clerk to ensure the public record is 
kept permanently and in a manner in which retrieval is 
efficient.  
 

13. The City will be responsible 
for compiling reports into 
agenda packets for 
appropriate reviewing 
authorities. In addition, the 
City will provide legal 
services in the review of 
applications. 
 

We understand this role of the city and our planners have 
experience working closely with clerical and city attorney 
staff to ensure that these tasks are completed in an efficient 
and timely manner. 

14. All documentation prepared 
in conjunction with the 
above-described duties shall 
become the property of the 
City of Santa Fe Springs.  
 

Sagecrest planners understand the importance of 
maintaining an accurate and complete public record 
associated with each development application.  As such, we 
are diligent in record keeping and proper archiving of case-
related documentation.  

15. Provide general 
administrative support 
services to Department of 
Planning, as directed. 

We also provide experienced administrative services 
contract staff. Services include taking stenographic minutes 
of public hearings and/or transcribing minutes for official 
business meetings, ensuring that legal notices and hearing 
publications are prepared and posted in accordance with 
state law and city ordinances, and providing support services 
to city clerical staff. 
 
  



13 of 13 

G.  Client References 

The team at Sagecrest includes a collaboration of managing principals and staff who have 

extensive experience in performing work of a similar nature to that solicited in this RFP. 

 

Assignment 
Description 

Term Location Client Contact 

On-Call Planning 
Services 

May 2014- 
present 

City of Anaheim  

Jonathan Borrego 
Planning Services Manager 
jborrego@anaheim.net 
(714) 765-5016 

On-Call Planning 
Services 

January 2015- 
November 2016 

 
City of Riverside 

Ted White 
City Planner 
twhite@riversideca.gov 
(951) 826-5108 

On-Call Planning 
Services 

December 2015- 
present 

City of 
Huntington 
Beach 

Jane James 
Planning Manager 
jjames@surfcity-hb.org 
(714) 536-5271 

On-Call Planning 
Services 

November 2016- 
present 

City of San 
Clemente 

Amber Gregg 
Senior Planner 
GreggA@san-clemente.org 
(949) 361-6184 

CEQA and Planning 
Services 

2012-2016* 
City of Laguna 
Niguel 

Leslie Roseberry 
Community Development Director 
lroseberry@cityoflagunaniguel.org 
(949) 362-4323 

CEQA and Planning 
Entitlement Services 

2015-2016 DR Horton 

Todd Funk 
Director of Forward Planning 
South Coast / Inland Empire Division 
TFunk@drhorton.com 
(951) 739-5475 (office) 
(760) 535-6814 (mobile) 

CEQA and Planning 
Entitlement Services 

2014-2016 TriPointe Homes 

Tom Grable 
Division President - Southern 
California Division 
Tom.Grable@TriPointeHomes.com 
(949) 478-8674 (office) 
(949) 378-3251 (mobile) 

CEQA and Planning 
Entitlement Services 

2013-2015 MBK Homes 

Kye Evans 
Director of Acquisitions 
KyeEvans@mbk.com 
(949) 789-8389 

*During this time, Leslie Roseberry was the Planning Manager at the City of Orange. 

 

mailto:jborrego@anaheim.net
mailto:twhite@riversideca.gov
mailto:jjames@surfcity-hb.org
mailto:GreggA@san-clemente.org
mailto:lroseberry@cityoflagunaniguel.org
mailto:TFunk@drhorton.com
mailto:Tom.Grable@TriPointeHomes.com
mailto:KyeEvans@mbk.com


 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

Staff Resumes 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Greg McCafferty 

QUALIFICATION SUMMARY 
Energetic and focused professional with public and private sector environmental planning 

experience.  Strong motivational leader with ability to effectively lead multidisciplinary teams to 

achieve winning results.   Confident communicator both orally and in writing.  Ability to direct 

work of technical staff to meet city management expectations for quality, budget and schedule 

while upholding the highest standards of customer service.  Strong servant leader skilled at 

mentoring and coaching staff to bring out their full potential while creating clear expectations 

and accountability.  Strong consensus building skills and ability to outreach to diverse 

stakeholders and community groups. Skilled at preparing business plans and measuring results. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Development Advisors/Environmental Advisors              August 2012 - Present 
Principal 

Owner and principal of land use and environmental planning firms assisting public and 

private sector clients with project management, entitlement, advocacy, public outreach 

and planning associated with various development projects as well as CEQA documents 

and technical environmental studies.  Clients include diverse market sectors such as 

residential and commercial development, education, water, utilities and alternative energy. 

Chambers Group          March 2010 – July 2012 
Director of Environmental Planning 

Managed the company’s Environmental Planning Department responsible for preparing 

environmental compliance documents pursuant to NEPA and CEQA, air quality and noise 

studies, GIS services and mitigation monitoring.  Working in diverse market sectors including 

education, water, utilities, alternative energy, public works, and residential/commercial 

development.  As part of the corporate team, prepared business plans, conducted business 

development and participated in quarterly and annual strategic planning meetings. 

Sheldon Group                      August 2007 – March 2009 
Director of Planning 

Responsible for the company’s planning and environmental consulting services including but 

not limited to general plan amendments, specific plans, annexations, code amendments, 

overlay zones, conditional use permits, variances, environmental documents and project 

management/condition compliance.  Participated in lobbying efforts with the president of 

the firm. The firm specialized in representing publicly-traded residential builders as well as 

smaller, privately held development companies 

 Effectively represented clients throughout southern California with a one hundred

percent project approval rate.

 Supervised project managers working on multiple projects under tight deadlines.

 Managed multi-disciplinary project teams on behalf of developer clients.

 Represented clients before planning commissions and city councils including PowerPoint

presentations and briefing packets.

 Made presentations to community groups to address concerns and gain support.



City of Anaheim      February 1989 – July 2007 
Principal Planner 

Responsible for the daily operation and supervision of the Department’s Zoning and 

Development review functions.  This included the zoning counter, zoning plan check review, 

environmental review and condition compliance, Zoning Administrator and Planning 

Commission. 

 Created a paperless Planning Commission agenda process from application stage

through staff report preparation.

 Environmental Coordinator for the City’s Planning, Public Works and Utilities Departments.

 Worked with Administrative Analyst to set up a fee recovery system to recover the costs

associated with development review.

 As part of a multi-departmental team, lead an effort to create a new conceptual

project review process with input from developers and the Building Industry Association.

 Oversaw implementation of the Platinum Triangle, a large mixed-use district near Angel

Stadium.

 Supervised a staff of 11 planners and 4 clerical staff including performance evaluations.

 Staff representative at Planning Commission meetings.

 Worked as part of a team on a comprehensive update to general plan and zoning

code.

EDUCATION 

University of California, Los Angeles 
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science (Specializing in Public Administration) 



Joshua Haskins 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Development Advisors/Environmental Advisors  June 2012 - Present 
Anaheim, CA 

Principal 
 Navigate projects through the complex approval process of public agencies

 Negotiate/coordinate with city council members, county supervisors, planning

commissioners, as well as city and county staff and speak before planning commissions

and city councils

 Land Entitlement activities, including planning applications, code analysis, due diligence,

planning and project management

 Drafting and coordination of of environmental documents such as Environmental Impact

Reports and Initial Studies

Chambers Group    June 2011 – May 2012 
Santa Ana, CA 

Environmental Planner 
 Assisted public agencies and private sector clients with California Environmental Quality

Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) compliance

 Prepared environmental documentation, coordinated focused technical studies, and

provided comments on the adequacy of environmental documents prepared by others

 Prepared Initial Studies and Environmental Assessments, Negative Declarations, Mitigated

Negative Declarations, and Findings of No Significant Impact, Environmental Impact

Reports and Environmental Impact Statements, as well as Mitigation Monitoring Programs

Iger & Associates  January 2008 – May 2011 
Irvine, CA 

Vice President 
 Lobbied/advocated on behalf of clients before government entities, elected and

appointed officials, and staff within the Southern California area

 Conducted early political due diligence to help forecast timelines, likelihood of zoning

change, and obstacles to approval prior to entitlement

 Coordination and creative oversight of digital marketing/outreach for clients, including

website, email marketing, and social media

Porter Novelli   June 2006 – December 2007 
Irvine, CA 

Campaign Manager/Coordinator 
 Implemented local community outreach programs, including public presentations,

coalition building, and voter outreach from Ventura County to Riverside County

 Coordinated with local media, including letters to the editor, press releases, and media

coverage

 Developed and coordinated messaging and campaign materials

 Recruited, trained, and supervised volunteers



 

 

DalyOwensGroup           November 2004 – June 2006 
Westlake Village, CA 

Planner 
 Land use planning for complex projects, including mixed use, residential, commercial, 

and large master planned communities 

 Project management for projects in Los Angeles and Ventura Counties 

 Prepared specific plans and environmental impact reports 

 Generated proformas, cost estimates, and other financial analyses 

 Researched and analyzed land acquisition opportunities 

 Public outreach and citywide campaigning 

 

EDUCATION 

Brown University, Providence, Rhode Island 
Bachelor of Arts, Law and Public Policy 

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science 



   

AMY VAZQUEZ 
 

Education 
B.A. Environmental Analysis and Design 
Minor, Urban & Regional Planning 
June 2001, University of California, Irvine 

Experience 
Principal, Sagecrest Planning+Environmental, April 2017- Present 
Manages a team of contract planners assigned throughout Southern California.  Principal in charge of 

marketing and networking, client relations and staff retention.   Drafts and submits proposals, participates in 

interviews and fulfills client requests for contract planning services.  Assigned to the City of Anaheim for 

entitlement services. 

Principal 
Lilley Planning Group, January 2015-April 2017 
Manages a team of over a dozen planners assigned throughout Southern California.  Principal in charge of 

marketing and networking, client relations and staff retention.   Drafts and submits proposals, participates in 

interviews and fulfills client requests for contract planning services. 

Contract Planner 
City of Anaheim, Planning Department, May 2014 -Present  
Experienced project planner contracted with the City of Anaheim responsible for project management of 

expedited entitlements and complex development applications. Reviews and processes general plan 

amendments, reclassifications, subdivisions, annexations, conditional use permits and variances.   Performs 

field inspections to gather data relevant to the development review process and/or to verify that development 

projects comply with approved plans.  Schedules and conducts meetings with other city departments and 

elected officials.  Presents reports and other findings to staff, Planning Commission, and City Council.   

Senior Project Manager 
The Sheldon Group, November 2006- January 2008 
Coordinated complex development applications as a project manager with a variety of public and private 
sector clients.  Drafted planning documents including specific plans and community outreach strategic plans. 
 
Associate Planner 
City of Anaheim, Planning Department, June 2001-November 2006 



Performed professional work related to a variety of planning assignments.  Reviewed and processed complex 
general plan amendments, zoning code amendments, reclassifications, subdivisions, conditional use permits 
and variances.   Processed entitlement requests and development agreements for mixed-use projects within 
the Platinum Triangle that included various planning studies and development applications.  Prepared and 
reviewed proposal requests for consultant contracts for environmental studies and managed the entire CEQA 
review process.  Performed field inspections to gather data relevant to the development review process 
and/or to verify that development projects comply with approved plans.  Scheduled and conducted meetings 
with other city departments, applicants and consultants.  Prepared and presented staff reports that included 
project analysis, project findings, and project recommendations for the City Council and Planning Commission.  
Practiced excellent customer service at the public zoning counter.  Supervised and mentored several Planning 
Aides, Assistant Planners and Planning Interns. 
 
Planning Intern 
City of Huntington Beach, June 1998 to June 2001 
Provided customer service to residents, business owners and developers at the public counter with new 
development projects residential, commercial and industrial alterations. 
Analyzed, evaluated, and performed technical review of site and architectural plans to verify conformance with 
appropriate zoning and building regulations.  
Conducted records requests for residents, business owner and developers.  
 

Professional Affiliation 
American Planning Association- Orange County Chapter, 2001-2006 and 2014-Present 

Awards Co-Chairperson- 2015 and 2016 

 

References 

Ted White, City Planner, City of Riverside 

Phone- 951-826-5108 E-mail- twhite@riversideca.gov 

Jonathan Borrego, Planning Manager, City of Anaheim 

Phone- 714-765-5016 E-mail- jborrego@anaheim.net 

 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 

 

 

Greg Hastings 

PROFILE 

Accomplished and integrity-driven professional offering over 35 years of hands-on, wide-ranging 

experience in land use planning and implementation.  

 Experience managing in fields of Planning, Zoning, Building, Code Enforcement and 

Economic Development. 

 Respected, approachable leader with effective communication skills. 

 Ability to quickly focus, evaluate and manage challenging situations in a fast paced 

environment. 

 Personable and effective approach to conflict resolution. 

 Effective delegator and relationship builder. 

 Adept at multi-tasking and managing numerous, often competing priorities. 

 Dedicated to accomplishing City betterment goals. 

 Committed and personally motivated to provide and encourage unparalleled customer 

service. 

 Strong interest in viable Historic Preservation. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

CITY OF ORANGE, CA 

 Interim Community Development Director                                  July 2013 – March 2014 

o Directed and managed programs, projects and operations of the Community 

Development Department, including Planning, Zoning, Building, Housing and Code 

Compliance. 

o Provided supervision, training, mentoring and professional development for a staff of 

35 employees. 

o Maintained important contacts with community stakeholders including Chapman 

University, St. Joseph’s Hospital and two regional shopping complexes.  

o Managed issues to protect integrity of Old Town Orange, one of the largest historic 

districts in the United States. 

o Oversaw $4 million department budget. Prepared annual budget proposal. 

o Acted as department liaison to City Council. 

o Interacted on daily basis with City Manager’s Office and City’s Executive Team. 

o Oversaw staff’s completion and certification of Housing Element Update. 

o Acted as mediator to residents, organizations and businesses within the community. 

o Extensively involved in resolving multitude of previously existing human 

resource/performance issues within the department. 

CITY OF SEAL BEACH, CA 

 Interim Community Development Director                       March 2012 – December 2012 

o Directed and managed programs, projects and operations of the Community 

Development Department, including Planning, Zoning, Building and Safety and 

Code Enforcement. 



  

 

 

 
[Type Your Name]   Page 2 

o Acted as liaison to City Council, Planning Commission, and Environmental Quality 

Control Board. 

o Interacted on a daily basis with City Manager, City Council members and City’s 

Executive Management team as well as various stakeholders in the community. 

o Oversaw completion of City’s 2013 Housing Element. 

o Completed Specific Plan Amendment for highly controversial 10-acre residential / 

open space DWP project on the City’s last remaining ocean-front acreage. 

o Assisted with transition of Redevelopment issues to successor agency, especially 

related to housing issues. 

o Managed City’s CDBG program. 

o Coordinated multiple contracts with consultants relative to housing, CDBG, building 

services and environmental analysis. 

o Acted as mediator to multitude of residents and businesses within the community. 

o Worked closely with City Attorney to establish several revised ordinances. 

 

CITY OF ANAHEIM, CA 

 Redevelopment Manager                                                        2006 - 2012 (Retired March 2012) 

o Served as official department liaison to the Planning Department in planning, 

zoning, environmental and subdivision matters. 

o Mentored Redevelopment staff in various areas of planning and zoning. 

o Managed City’s historic preservation program by ensuring appropriate protection 

and restoration of its historic resources.  Provided presentations and information to 

educate homeowners and civic groups about Anaheim’s preservation efforts and 

programs. 

o Coordinated 18-month process involving the City’s Historic Preservation Committee, 

a consultant and the community, resulting in Council adoption of Anaheim’s first 

Citywide Historic Preservation Plan that subsequently won a California Preservation 

Foundation award. 

o Oversaw Anaheim’s diverse 16-member Historic Preservation Committee. 

o Directed the design and implementation of the City’s Historic Preservation website. 

o Reassessed and revised Anaheim’s list of nearly 1,500 historic properties. 

o Managed Anaheim’s Mills Act program, the third largest in the State, involving 262 

historic properties. 

o Managed project creating a unique 6-lot, 11-building single-family neighborhood of 

historically significant move-on structures. 

o Implemented DDA for innovative infill construction of new single-family homes 

scattered on 18 remnant sites remaining from the widening of the Santa Ana 

freeway and DDA for purchase and renovation of Weir Canyon Honda. 

o Participated in planning the expansion of Canyon Metrolink station, in conjunction 

with development of Kaiser Hospital. 

 Planning Services Manager                                                                                            2004 – 2006 

o Managed Planning Services Division, including a staff of twenty planners, one 

Economic Development Coordinator and a clerical support team, with a Division 

budget in excess of $4 million. 

o Oversaw nearly 250 land use entitlement requests per year, presented to Planning 

Commission, Zoning Administrator and City Council and ensured professional 

assistance to over 29,000 customers per year, by providing exceptional service. 

o Negotiated and resolved significant controversial and politically sensitive 

development issues with high profile developers and land use proponents. 



  

 

 

 
[Type Your Name]   Page 3 

o As chair of City’s Recommendation Committee, ensured decision makers received 

carefully crafted interdepartmental input for development issues. 

o Refined land use entitlement process, resulting in one of the quickest turnarounds in 

the County, while maintaining a 95% to 98% customer satisfaction rate for 

entitlement processing and customer service. 

o Oversaw planning and implementation of several Planned Communities and 

Specific Plans, significantly increasing Anaheim’s population. 

o Forged a strong and trusted relationship between staff and the Planning 

Commission. 

o Implemented a new fee program to capture large portion of actual costs to 

process entitlements. 

o Merged Zoning and Advanced Planning into one Division, allowing for cross training 

opportunities and greater organizational flexibility. 

o Oversaw complete redrafting of City’s Zoning Code, resulting in greater flexibility, 

clarity and updated methods and procedures. 

o Participated in multi-year interdepartmental effort to institute and refine an 

electronic permit tracking system, resulting in time savings and improved customer 

service. 

o Established a citywide Planning Program with action items, identifying 

improvements for several portions of the City needing land use attention. 

o Achieved strong interdepartmental coordination and commitment to aesthetics 

and neighborhood relationships for project design review. 

o Collaborated with Chamber of Commerce to develop mutually beneficial and 

forward-thinking Zoning Code amendments. 

 Zoning Division Manager                                                                                                 1988 - 2004 

 Senior Planner                                                                                                                   1987 - 1988 

 Associate Planner                                                                                                             1984 - 1987 

 Assistant Planner                                                                                                               1979 - 1984 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD, CA 

 Planning Aide                                                                                                                    1978 - 1979 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science, Urban Planning - California State Polytechnic University, Pomona - 1978 

Graduate Coursework, Public Administration - California State University, Long Beach - 1980 

PROFESSIONAL AND COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS 

American Planning Association 

Anaheim Beautiful Association 

Anaheim Sister Cities Association 

California Preservation Foundation 

National Trust for Historic Preservation 

Knights of Columbus  

REFERENCES 

Joel Fick - Former Deputy City Manager, City of Anaheim - (714) 281-1987 

Jill Ingram - City Manager, City of Seal Beach - (562) 431-2527 x1300 

Rick Otto - City Manager, City of Orange – (714) 744 - 2206 



 
 

Wayne G. Carvalho 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE 
 

 Private planning consultative services for land use entitlements and project development 

 Contract planning services for governmental agencies 

 Twenty years in the City of Huntington Beach Community Development Department with 
experience in Current Planning, Advance Planning and Code Enforcement Divisions 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
Lilley Planning Group                                                                                      June 2013 to present   
Contract Planner 
 

 Provide government clients with Planning Services ranging from entitlement 
processing/case planning, plan check coordination, special projects including preparation 

of Ordinances, Housing Element updates, Specific Plans, and amendments to General 

Plans. 

 
Carvalho & Associates March 2006 to present 
President  
 

 Land Use/Planning Consultant coordinating development projects for private clients 
including submittal and monitoring of entitlement applications through governmental 

agencies 

 Represent clients at meetings and hearings 

 Provide clients with land use feasibility studies consisting of conceptual site plan options 
and zoning conformance review 

 Assist clients with Building Permit and Certificate of Occupancy process 

 Provide contract planning services to cities 

 
City of Huntington Beach, Planning Division  February 1991 to March 2006 
Planner 
 

 Processed Planning entitlement applications including General Plan Amendments, Zone 

Changes, Environmental Impact Reports, Environmental Assessments (Mitigated Negative 

Declarations), Specific Plans, Master Plans, Tentative Parcel and Tract Maps, Final Maps, 

Conditional Use Permits, Variances, etc.   

 Review and analyze development projects pursuant to City’s General Plan and Zoning Code 

 Formulated recommendations with input from other departments 

 Represented staff and presented reports to City Council, Planning Commission, Zoning 
Administrator and other boards and commissions 

 Supervised Planning/Zoning Counter staff and coordinated plan check review 

 Staff liaison to the City’s Design Review Board 

 Staff liaison to the City’s Environmental Assessment Committee 

 Processed City-sponsored applications to LAFCO and California Coastal Commission 



 
 
 
City of Huntington Beach, Code Enforcement Division February 1990 to April 1991 
Code Enforcement Officer 
 

 Conducted proactive inspections and those resulting from citizen inquiries 

 Gained compliance with property owners and business owners in violation of  
City’s Zoning, Municipal and Housing Codes 

 Distributed Notices of Violation in field or to property owners via letters 

 Processed requests for prosecution with City Attorney’s Office 

 

EDUCATION 
 

California State University, Long Beach 
Master of Public Administration, 1998 
School of Public Policy and Administration 

 
University of California, Irvine 

Bachelor of Arts, 1989 
Environmental Health and Planning 
School of Social Ecology 

 
PERSONAL INFORMATION 
 
Married for 23 years to Sonia Carvalho, a Municipal Law attorney 
Two children:  Leena (16) and Isaac (11) 

Fullerton resident for 23 years 

Planning Commissioner, City of Fullerton 

Past Parks and Recreation Commissioner, City of Fullerton 
Consultative Board Member, St. Angela Merici School, Brea 

Active member of St. Angela Merici Parish, Brea 

Community volunteer 

 



                         

 

Vanessa Norwood, Senior Planner 

Summary 

Experienced planner with over 15 years of municipal planning experience with background in current and 

advance planning. Expertise and knowledge of managing mixed-use projects.  Results oriented with the 

ability to work collaboratively with municipalities and forge strong working relationships and partnerships 

with other communities. Capability to coordinate multiple planning projects simultaneously and in a 

timely and effective manner. Proven strengths in case processing and customer service. 

   Core Competencies 

 Proficient in organizing projects 

 Accuracy & thoroughness a priority 

 Analytical, strategic and conceptual thinker 

 Works cooperatively as a team member and a manager 

 Takes initiative to complete tasks timely 

 Results driven, responsible & reliable 

 Effective verbal and persuasive communicator 

 Enthusiastic team leader & motivator 

 

Professional Experience 

2015 – 2016 | Senior Planner, City of Riverside | Riverside, CA 

Processed complex cases including zone changes, specific and general plan amendments, conditional use 

permits involving airport land use compatibility, arroyo delineation, Senate Bill 18 (SB18) and Assembly 

Bill 52 (AB52). Evaluated and prepared initial studies and determined project compliance in accordance 

with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Completed plan checks for permit issuance on 

approved projects. 

 Presented cases to Planning Commission and City Council including PowerPoint presentations for 

consideration and action. Processed and managed the day to day case workload of assigned cases 

and interacted daily with various City Departments 

 Prepared letters, staff reports  and related documentation pertaining to case processing   

 Participated in meetings with government officials, land developers, attorneys, special interest 

groups and the general public to address land use issues 

 Provided ideas and knowledge commiserate with experience to streamline overall case processing 

for increased departmental efficiency 

 

2001 – 2015 | Associate Planner, City of Anaheim | Anaheim, CA 



Performed professional work related to a variety of planning assignments.  Reviewed and processed 

complex general plan amendments, zoning code amendments, reclassifications, subdivisions, conditional 

use permits and variances.    

 Processed entitlement requests and development agreements for mixed-use projects within the 

Platinum Triangle that included various planning studies and development applications 

 Prepared and reviewed proposal requests for consultant contracts for environmental studies 

 Performed field inspections to gather data relevant to the development review process and/or to 

verify that development projects comply with approved plans   

 Scheduled and conducted meetings with other city departments, applicants and consultants 

 Prepared and presented reports to the Planning Commission and City Council  

 Practiced excellent customer service at the public zoning counter   

 

 

Prior Experience 

Assistant Planner, City of Anaheim | Anaheim, CA 

 Reviewed development proposals and site plans for conformance with the General Plan, Zoning 

Code, regulation and policies and provided public zoning counter services. 

 Evaluated requests for property reclassifications, zoning code amendments, site plans, special 

use permits, variances and other proposals 

 Acted as liaison between community groups, government agencies, developers  

 Coordinated community review of private development projects 

 

Assistant Planner, City of San Dimas | San Dimas CA 

 Assisted in the preparation of planning and environmental documents 

 Worked on technical analyses and CEQA document preparation for general plans, specific plans, 

and specific development projects 

 Provided public counter services  

 Assisted with literature searches and field studies 

 Prepared environmental assessments/documents, technical studies, and other planning 

documents 

 

Education 

California State Polytechnic University, Pomona, CA — Bachelor of Science – Urban and Regional Planning 

 

Systems 

Operate Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and permit tracking systems 

Microsoft WORD 

PowerPoint 

 



   
LAUREL REIMER 

 

QUALIFICATION SUMMARY 

 Six years in urban planning with over three years in the public sector and a focus on entitlements, compliance, and 
meeting client needs through creative problem solving. 

 Extensive experience understanding government procedures, laws, ordinances and zoning by working in over 100 
jurisdictions throughout the West Coast. 

 Engaging public speaker who uses data-driven research to persuade audiences to obtain project approvals. 

 Excellent project manager who effectively directs time, priorities and teams to meet company objectives. 

 Entrusted to expand business into a new market while working remotely and independently. 
 

EDUCATION 

University of California | Irvine, CA          2012  
Master of Urban and Regional Planning 

 

University of California | Los Angeles, CA          2008   
Bachelor of Arts in Geography/Environmental Studies, Minor in Urban & Regional Studies 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Lilley Planning Group | Brea, CA                   9/2016 – Present 

Associate Planner – City of Santa Fe Springs 
 Advise the public, developers, architects, engineers, and realtors regarding development standards, land use policies, 

sign code, CEQA review, business licensing, and general planning and zoning information.    
 Review formal applications, development proposals and construction plans for industrial, commercial and residential 

projects to ensure compliance with city policies, ordinances and codes.   
 Conduct site inspections to ensure projects are built and maintained in accordance with all conditions of approval 

and zoning regulations; suggest corrective actions for non-compliant sites.  
 Prepare and present staff reports for the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 Currently drafting a wireless telecommunications ordinance and updating the landscaping ordinance. 

Core Development Services | Portland, OR & Brea, CA                   9/2012 – 7/2016 
Well reputed company that obtains entitlements and negotiates leases for telecommunications facilities.  

Senior Project Manager         2/2015 – 7/2016 
 Independently launched the Portland office and oversaw all Pacific Northwest entitlements and lease negotiations.  
 Went from zero market presence to securing 40 new projects within six months of office opening by leading business 

development, client relations, and sales. 
 Managed West Coast projects and four staff while simultaneously overseeing all aspects of project life cycle. 
 Achieved fastest promotion to Senior Project Manager in company history.  

Project Manager     5/2014 – 2/2015 

 Delivered shovel ready projects by obtaining planning and building approvals and fully executed leases.  
 Solved problems in response to project changes while considering budgets, scheduling, and client needs. 
 Managed five staff and 300 project sites simultaneously while overseeing all aspects of project life cycle. 
 Increased territory responsibility to include jurisdictions in Northern California. 

Zoning Manager     9/2012 – 5/2014 



 Managed the administrative and discretionary entitlement processes for telecommunications facilities by 
researching, interpreting and applying government laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations.  

 Compiled and submitted applications for permits, site plans, and variances to jurisdictions across Southern California. 
 Ensured municipal code compliance by rectifying issues and initiating corrective actions on violations. 
 Creatively solved problems stemming from changes in the municipal code, public opinion and site violations.  
 Presented client projects and persuaded decision makers at various public meetings. 
 Advocated for clients’ needs by ordering and interpreting technical reports. 
 Managed up to 100 projects simultaneously while consistently meeting or exceeding client deadlines. 
 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC SECTOR EXPERIENCE 

Clackamas County Emergency Management | Oregon City, OR                                                     10/2008 – 9/2009  

Hazard Mitigation Specialist 
 Proposed short and long term mitigation strategies to meet community resiliency and sustainability goals by writing 

FEMA-approved Natural Hazards Mitigation Plans for 10 cities in Clackamas County.  
 Identified stakeholders, organized steering committees, and facilitated community meetings to evaluate the 

adequacy of community facilities and infrastructure and develop comprehensive natural hazard risk assessments.  
 Reached consensus by collaborating with the community to prioritize public improvement projects. 
 

Municipal Water District of Orange County| Fountain Valley, CA      4/2011 – 9/2012 
Water Use Efficiency Intern 
 Determined the impact of water reduction programs through analytical statistical evaluation. 
 Prepared clear and comprehensive reports for water reduction programs by organizing data using Excel and Access. 
 

City of Villa Park | Villa Park, CA          6/2012 – 9/2012  
Planning Intern 
 Reviewed site plans and answered questions related to city codes, ordinances and regulations. 
 Updated planning and building documents to ensure accuracy with the municipal code. 
 

City of Brea | Brea, CA           6/2012 – 9/2012  
Community Development Intern 
 Wrote RFPs, created public outreach pieces and designed trail signage for the Tracks at Brea project. 
 Researched and established a process for translating the greenhouse gas inventory into the Climate Registry. 
 Facilitated table top discussions at neighborhood meetings. 
 

SKILL SUMMARY 

 Public speaking and presenting    •   MS Office  

 Customer service     •   GIS proficient 

 Database management    •   Statistical analysis 

 Client relationship building    •   Proficient writer 

REFERENCES 

 Cuong Nguyen, Senior Planner at City of Santa Fe Springs,  
562-868-0511 ext. 7359, cuongnguyen@santafesprings.org 

 Tanya Mariko Roth, Program Manager Telecommunications at Jacobs, 
 661-755-1471, tanyamarikoroth@gmail.com  

 

mailto:562-868-0511%20ext.%207359
mailto:cuongnguyen@santafesprings.org
tel:(661)%20755-1471
mailto:tanyamarikoroth@gmail.com


  
 

 

 
 
Highlights 
 Public Counter Support  
 Residential and 

Commercial Plan Check 
 Construction Plan 

review 
 Research and Analysis 
 Discretionary case 

processing 
 Regulatory review and 

compliance 
 Assistance/research on 

special projects and 
code updates 

 
 
Education 
Master in Public 
Administration, California 
State University, Long 
Beach 
Bachelor of Science, Urban 
and Regional Planning 
California State 
Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, CA 
GIS Certification, Rio 
Hondo College 

 
Affiliations 
American Planning 
Association 
Languages Fluent 
Cantonese,& Mandarin, 
Reading fluency in simplify & 
traditional Chinese    
 
 

 

JIMMY WONG 

ASSISTANT/ASSOCIATE PLANNER  
 
Mr. Wong has a wide range of city planning related experience including 
assisting at the public counter, reviewing applications for code compliance, 
permit processing, identifying needs and ensuring that all local and state 
permits are processed, public notices, and grant applications.  I have also 
written and presented staff reports at Planning Commission and Design 
Review Board as the project planner.  

 

Highlights of Mr. Wong’s experience include: 
 
City of Sante Fe Springs and San Gabriel, Contract Ast./Assoc. Planner -  

2016 – Present.   
 
Processed and reviewed land use and development cases to ensure 
compliance with laws, ordinances, and guidelines. Interacted with the public 
at the planning counter and over the phone to disseminate information related 
to property requirements, ordinances, and laws. Prepared reports and 
resolutions on discretionary cases and presented reports to the City’s 
Planning Commission. Conducted research and field surveys. Assisted with 
special projects in sustainability and code updates including production of a 
climate action plan.  
 
City of Monterey Park, Assistant Planner,  2014 – 2016.   
 
Worked under the guidance and direction of experienced planners as a 
project manager for routine projects in the area of current and advanced 
planning, which required the application of fundamental planning principles; 
assisted in administration of adopted plans and ordinances; served as a team 
member within the operating procedures and policies of the City. Prepared 
reports and resolutions on discretionary cases and presented reports to the 
City’s Planning Commission and Design Review Board. Conducted research 
and field surveys. 
 
County of Los Angeles, Student Professional Worker, 2013- 2015     
 
Worked under the direction of supervising planners to assist with special 
projects, including monitoring performance standards ensuring goal 
compliance. Data analysis through operation of Fleet Management 
Information System. Prepared reports reflecting results and additional 
research findings.  
 
References 
Cuong Nguyen- Senior Planner, City of Santa Fe Springs 
Phone:  562-868-0511 ext. 7359  E-mail: cuongnguyen@santafesprings.org 

 

Paul Garcia- Associate Planner, City of San Juan Capistrano 
Phone:  949-443-6327 E-mail: pgarcia@sanjuancapistrano.org 

mailto:cuongnguyen@santafesprings.org


   
 

Vincente Velasco 
9058 Lemoran Ave, Downey, CA 90240 - 562.879.2924 - VincenteVelasco@yahoo.com 

EDUCATION 

California State Polytechnic University, Pomona 

Urban and Regional Planning, Bachelor of Science                 June 2017 

Cerritos Community College 

Architecture, Associate of Arts                August 2014 

RELATED EXPERIENCE  

Planning Intern 

City of Santa Fe Springs, CA                   September 2015 - Present 

 Project planner for 17 cases, including Conditional Use Permits, Development Plan Approvals, Modification Permits, 
Parcel Maps, Compliance Reviews, and Revocations.  

 Reviewed applications for residential, commercial and industrial developments 
 Reviewed Landscaping Plans 
 Conducted site inspections to determine the projects are in compliance with laws, regulations and ordinances 
 Assisted the Director of Planning in evaluations related to ordinance amendments  
 Assisted the Director of Planning with Economic Development 
 Prepared Zoning Certification Letters to inform potential buyers on the history and compliance of requested properties 
 Prepared code comparison surveys with other cities  
 Reviewed business license applications and sign plans for zoning compliance 
 Recommend needed changes in zoning regulations and related policies and procedures 

RELATED KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS 

 Ability to work with the public and articulate planning issues to a wide variety of audiences 
 Ability to envision alternatives to the physical and social environments in which we live 
 Understanding of the social and environmental impact of planning decisions on communities 
 Clear communication skills aimed at understanding customers’ needs and providing corresponding services 
 Confident, articulate, and professional public speaking abilities 
 Thrive in a team environment and work well with others 
 Knowledge of Microsoft Office, ArcGIS, Adobe Suite, AutoCAD, and Autodesk Revit 



ADDITIONAL EMPLOYMENT 

 Fitness Attendant, Bronco Recreation and Intermural Complex, Cal Poly Pomona, CA 
 Retail Associate Manager, RideMakerz, Anaheim, CA  

REFERENCES 

Cuong Nguyen 
Senior Planner 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
Email: cuongnguyen@santafesprings.org 
Phone: (562) 868-0511 
 
 
Paul M. Garcia 
Associate Planner 
City of San Juan Capistrano 
Email: pgarcia@sanjuancapistrano.org 
Phone: (949) 443-632 

mailto:pgarcia@sanjuancapistrano.org































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	#8 - SFS Proposal - Final to print.pdf
	Proposal with Cover
	Cover Page
	SFS Proposal - Final to print

	Complete Appendix
	Appendix Cover
	Greg and Josh
	Sagecrest Anaheim Resumes (1) 1
	Sagecrest Anaheim Resumes (1) 2
	Sagecrest Anaheim Resumes (1) 3
	Sagecrest Anaheim Resumes (1) 4

	Amy Vazquez with photo
	Greg Hastings
	Wayne Carvalho
	Vanessa Norwood- with photo
	Laurel with photo
	Jimmy Wong with photo
	Resume_VinceVelasco- with photo





